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Term Definition Term Definition

ACL Allowance for Credit Losses FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank
ADC Acquisition, development, and construction loan FHLB-NY Federal Home Loan Bank of New York
ALCO Asset and Liability Management Committee FOAL Fallout-Adjusted Locks
AOCL Accumulated other comprehensive loss FOMC Federal Open Market Committee
ASC Accounting Standards Codification FRB Federal Reserve Board
ASU Accounting Standards Update FRB-NY Federal Reserve Bank of New York
BaaS Banking as a Service Freddie Mac Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
BOLI Bank-owned life insurance FTEs Full-time equivalent employees
BP Basis point(s) GAAP U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
cal Commercial and industrial loan GLBA The Gramm Leach Bliley Act
CDs Certificates of deposit GNMA Government National Mortgage Association
CECL Current Expected Credit Loss GSE Government-sponsored enterprises
CFPB Consumer Financial Protection Bureau HPI Housing Price Index
CMOs Collateralized mortgage obligations LGG Loans with government guarantees
CMT Constant maturity treasury rate LHFS Loans Held-for-Sale
CPI Consumer Price Index LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate
CPR Constant prepayment rate LTV Loan-to-value ratio
CRA Community Reinvestment Act MBS Mortgage-backed securities
CRE Commercial real estate loan MSRs Mortgage servicing rights
DIF Deposit Insurance Fund NIM Net interest margin
DFA Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act NOL Net operating loss
DSCR Debt service coverage ratio NPAs Non-performing assets
EAR Earnings at Risk NPLs Non-performing loans
EPS Earnings per common share NPV Net Portfolio Value
ERM Enterprise Risk Management NYSE New York Stock Exchange
ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan occ Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
EVE Economic Value of Equity at Risk OREO Other real estate owned
Fannie Mae Federal National Mortgage Association PAA Purchase accounting adjustments
FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board ROU Right of use asset
FCA the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority SBA Small Business Administration
FDI Act Federal Deposit Insurance Act Signature Signature Bridge Bank, N.A.
FDIC Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
FHA Federal Housing Administration SOFR Secured Overnight Financing Rate
FHFA Federal Housing Finance Agency TDR Troubled debt restructurings
GLOSSARY

BARGAIN PURCHASE GAIN
The amount by which the fair value of assets purchased exceeds the fair value of liabilities assumed and consideration given.
BASIS POINT

Throughout this filing, the year-over-year changes that occur in certain financial measures are reported in terms of basis points. Each basis point is equal to one hundredth of
a percentage point, or 0.01 percent.

BOOK VALUE PER COMMON SHARE

Book value per common share refers to the amount of common stockholders’ equity attributable to each outstanding share of common stock, and is calculated by dividing
total stockholders' equity less preferred stock at the end of a period, by the number of shares outstanding at the same date.

BROKERED DEPOSITS

Refers to funds obtained, directly or indirectly, by or through deposit brokers that are then deposited into one or more deposit accounts at a bank.
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CHARGE-OFF

Refers to the amount of a loan balance that has been written off against the allowance for credit losses.
COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LOAN

A mortgage loan secured by either an income-producing property owned by an investor and leased primarily for commercial purposes or, to a lesser extent, an owner-
occupied building used for business purposes. The CRE loans in our portfolio are typically secured by either office buildings, retail shopping centers, light industrial centers with
multiple tenants, or mixed-use properties.

COST OF FUNDS

The interest expense associated with interest-bearing liabilities, typically expressed as a ratio of interest expense to the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities for a
given period.

CRE CONCENTRATION RATIO
Refers to the sum of multi-family, non-owner occupied CRE, and acquisition, development, and construction (“ADC") loans divided by total risk-based capital.
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

An indication of a borrower's ability to repay a loan, the DSCR generally measures the cash flows available to a borrower over the course of a year as a percentage of the
annual interest and principal payments owed during that time.

DERIVATIVE

Aterm used to define a broad base of financial instruments, including swaps, options, and futures contracts, whose value is based upon, or derived from, an underlying rate,
price, or index (such as interest rates, foreign currency, commodities, or prices of other financial instruments such as stocks or bonds).

EFFICIENCY RATIO
Measures total operating expenses as a percentage of the sum of net interest income and non-interest income.
GOODWILL

Refers to the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of an acquired company’s assets, net of the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is reflected as an asset on the
balance sheet and is tested at least annually for impairment.

GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED ENTERPRISES
Refers to a group of financial services corporations that were created by the United States Congress to enhance the availability, and reduce the cost of, credit to certain
targeted borrowing sectors, including home finance. The GSEs include, but are not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”), the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”), and the Federal Home Loan Banks (the “FHLBs").
GSE OBLIGATIONS
Refers to GSE mortgage-related securities (both certificates and collateralized mortgage obligations) and GSE debentures.
INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
Refers to the likelihood that the interest earned on assets and the interest paid on liabilities will change as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates.
INTEREST RATE SPREAD
The difference between the yield earned on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.
LOAN-TO-VALUE RATIO

Measures the balance of a loan as a percentage of the appraised value of the underlying property.

MULTI-FAMILY LOAN
A mortgage loan secured by a rental or cooperative apartment building with more than four units.

NET INTEREST INCOME
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The difference between the interest income generated by loans and securities and the interest expense produced by deposits and borrowed funds.

NET INTEREST MARGIN
Measures net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

NON-ACCRUAL LOAN

A loan generally is classified as a “non-accrual” loan when it is 90 days or more past due or when it is deemed to be impaired because we no longer expect to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, we cease the accrual of interest owed, and previously accrued
interest is reversed and charged against interest income. A loan generally is returned to accrual status when the loan is current and we have reasonable assurance that the loan will
be fully collectible.

NON-PERFORMING LOANS AND ASSETS

Non-performing loans consist of non-accrual loans and loans that are 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest. Non-performing assets consist of non-performing
loans, OREO and other repossessed assets.

OREO AND OTHER REPOSSESSED ASSETS

Includes real estate owned by the Company which was acquired either through foreclosure or default. Repossessed assets are similar, except they are not real estate-related
assets.

RENT-REGULATED APARTMENTS

In New York City, where the vast majority of the properties securing our multi-family loans are located, the amount of rent that tenants may be charged on the apartments in
certain buildings is restricted under rent-stabilization laws. Rent-stabilized apartments are generally located in buildings with six or more units that were built between February
1947 and January 1974. Rent-regulated apartments tend to be more affordable to live in because of the applicable regulations, and buildings with a preponderance of such rent-
regulated apartments are therefore less likely to experience vacancies in times of economic adversity.

TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING MODIFICATION
Aloan for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties.
WHOLESALE BORROWINGS

Refers to advances drawn by the Bank against its line(s) of credit with the FHLBs, their repurchase agreements with the FHLBs and various brokerage firms, and federal funds
purchased.

YIELD

The interest income associated with interest-earning assets, typically expressed as a ratio of interest income to the average balance of interest-earning assets for a given
period.

For the purpose of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the words “we,” “us,” “our,” and the “Company” are used to refer to New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and our consolidated
subsidiary, Flagstar Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”).

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING LANGUAGE

This report, like many written and oral communications presented by New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and our authorized officers, may contain certain forward-looking
statements regarding our prospective performance and strategies within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are including this statement for purposes of said safe harbor provisions.

Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe future plans, strategies, and expectations of the Company, are generally identified by use
of the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “seek,” “strive,” “try,” or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,”
“may,” or similar expressions. Although we believe that our plans, intentions, and expectations as reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no
assurance that they will be achieved or realized.

Our ability to predict results or the actual effects of our plans and strategies is inherently uncertain. Accordingly, actual results, performance, or achievements could differ
materially from those contemplated, expressed, or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this report.

There are a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, that could cause actual conditions, events, or results to differ significantly from those described in our
forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to:
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+ general economic conditions, including higher inflation and its impacts, either nationally or in some or all of the areas in which we and our customers conduct our
respective businesses;

+ conditions in the securities markets and real estate markets or the banking industry;

+ changes in real estate values, which could impact the quality of the assets securing the loans in our portfolio;

+ changes in interest rates, which may affect our net income, prepayment penalty income, and other future cash flows, or the market value of our assets, including our
investment securities;

* any uncertainty relating to the LIBOR transition process;

+ changes in the quality or composition of our loan or securities portfolios;

+ changes in our capital management policies, including those regarding business combinations, dividends, and share repurchases, among

« others;

+ heightened regulatory focus on commercial real estate loan concentrations;

+ changes in competitive pressures among financial institutions or from non-financial institutions;

+ changes in deposit flows and wholesale borrowing facilities;

+ changes in the demand for deposit, loan, and investment products and other financial services in the markets we serve;

+ our timely development of new lines of business and competitive products or services in a changing environment, and the acceptance of such products or services by our
customers;

+ our ability to obtain timely shareholder and regulatory approvals of any merger transactions or corporate restructurings we may propose.;

+ our ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, customers, systems, and management personnel we may acquire into our operations, and our ability to realize
related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames, including our recent acquisition of Flagstar Bancorp, Inc. and the purchase and assumption of
certain assets and liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank;

+ changes in the estimated fair value of the assets that we recorded in connection with the purchase and assumption of certain assets and liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank;

+ potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of companies we have acquired, may acquire, or target for acquisition, including our recent acquisition of Flagstar
Bancorp, Inc. and the purchase and assumption of certain assets and liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank;

+ the success of our previously announced investment in, and partnership with, Figure Technologies, Inc., a FinTech company focusing on payment and lending via
blockchain technology;

+ theability to invest effectively in new information technology systems and platforms;

+ changes in future allowance for credit losses requirements under relevant accounting and regulatory requirements;

+ the ability to pay future dividends at currently expected rates;

+ theability to hire and retain key personnel;

+ the ability to attract new customers and retain existing ones in the manner anticipated;

+ changes in our customer base or in the financial or operating performances of our customers’ businesses;

+ any interruption in customer service due to circumstances beyond our control;

+ the outcome of pending or threatened litigation, or of matters before regulatory agencies, whether currently existing or commencing in the future; future, including with
respect to any litigation or regulatory actions related to the business practices of acquired companies, including our recent acquisition of Flagstar Bancorp, Inc. and the
purchase and assumption of certain assets and liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank;

+ environmental conditions that exist or may exist on properties owned by, leased by, or mortgaged to the Company;

+  cybersecurity incidents, including any interruption or breach of security resulting in failures or disruptions in customer account management, general ledger, deposit, loan,
or other systems;

+ operational issues stemming from, and/or capital spending necessitated by, the potential need to adapt to industry changes in information technology systems, on which
we are highly dependent;

+ the ability to keep pace with, and implement on a timely basis, technological changes;

+ changes in legislation, regulation, policies, or administrative practices, whether by judicial, governmental, or legislative action, and other changes pertaining to banking,
securities, taxation, rent regulation and housing (the New York Housing Stability and Tenant Protection Act of 2019), financial accounting and reporting, environmental
protection, insurance, and the ability to comply with such changes in a timely manner;

+ changes in the monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System;

+ changes in accounting principles, policies, practices, and guidelines;

+ changes in regulatory expectations relating to predictive models we use in connection with stress testing and other forecasting or in the assumptions on which such
modeling and forecasting are predicated;

+ changes to federal, state, and local income tax laws;

+ changes in our credit ratings or in our ability to access the capital markets;

* increases in our FDIC insurance premium;

+ legislative and regulatory initiatives related to climate change;

+ the potential impact to the Company from climate change, including higher regulatory compliance, increased expenses, operational changes, and reputational risks;

+ unforeseen or catastrophic events including natural disasters, war, terrorist activities, and the emergence of a pandemic;

+ the impacts related to or resulting from Russia’'s military action in Ukraine, including the broader impacts to financial markets and the global macroeconomic and
geopolitical environment;

+ the effects of the COVID-19, pandemic; and

+ other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, technological, and geopolitical factors affecting our operations, pricing, and services.
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In addition, the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances beyond our control.

Furthermore, on an ongoing basis, we evaluate opportunities to expand through mergers and acquisitions and opportunities for strategic combinations with other banking
organizations. Our evaluation of such opportunities involves discussions with other parties, due diligence, and negotiations. As a result, we may decide to enter into definitive
arrangements regarding such opportunities at any time.

In addition to the risks and challenges described above, these types of transactions involve a number of other risks and challenges, including:
+ the ability to successfully integrate branches and operations and to implement appropriate internal controls and regulatory functions relating to such activities;
+ the ability to limit the outflow of deposits, and to successfully retain and manage any loans;
+ theability to attract new deposits, and to generate new interest-earning assets, in geographic areas that have not been previously served;
+ our ability to effectively manage liquidity, including our success in deploying any liquidity arising from a transaction into assets bearing sufficiently high yields without
incurring unacceptable credit or interest rate risk;
+ the ability to obtain cost savings and control incremental non-interest expense;
+ theability to retain and attract appropriate personnel;
+ the ability to generate acceptable levels of net interest income and non-interest income, including fee income, from acquired operations;
+ thediversion of management’s attention from existing operations;
+ the ability to address an increase in working capital requirements; and

+ limitations on the ability to successfully reposition our post-merger balance sheet when deemed appropriate.

See Part |, Item 1A, Risk Factors, in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and in this Form 10-Q for a
further discussion of important risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements.

Readers should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect our expectations only as of the date of this report. We do not assume any
obligation to revise or update these forward-looking statements except as may be required by law.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On At June 30, 2023, total assets were $118.8 billion, up $28.7 billion compared to December 31, 2022. Total deposits were $88.5 billion at June 30, 2023, up $29.8 billion from
December 31, 2022. These year-to-date increases were primarily due to our March 20, 2023, the Bank assumed assumption of a substantial amount of the deposits and certain
identified liabilities and acquired the acquisition of certain assets and lines of business of Signature Bridge Bank, from the FDIC, as receiver for Signature Bridge Bank (the “Signature
Transaction”), pursuant to the terms of the Purchase and Assumption Agreement - All Deposits, dated March 20, 2023, among the FDIC, as receiver of Signature Bridge Bank, the
FDIC and the Bank (the “Signature Purchase Agreement”). See Note 3 “Business Combinations” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the
Signature Transaction. Transaction

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, net income was $2.0 billion $413 million as compared to $172 million $2.0 billion for the three months ended
December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023. Net income available to common stockholders for the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 was also $2.0 billion, $405 million,
compared to $164 million $2.0 billion for the three months ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023. Diluted EPS totaled $0.55 for the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared
to $2.87 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 compared to $0.30 for the three months ended December 31, 2022.

First Second quarter 2023 and first quarter 2023 net income and diluted EPS were impacted by a bargain purchase gain of $2.0 billion $141 million and $2.0 billion, respectively
arising from the purchase and assumption of certain assets and liabilities in the Signature Bridge Bank transaction (the “Signature Transaction”). We believe Transaction. Also
included in net income for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023, were merger related and restructuring expenses of $109 million and $67 million, respectively,
related to both the Signature Transaction strengthens our deposit base, lowers and the loan-to-deposit ratio, adds liquidity and provides the opportunity to pay down wholesale
funding. It also further diversifies our loan portfolio away from CRE loans and more toward commercial loans and expands our net interest margin. We believe the Signature
Transaction will be accretive to both earnings per share and to tangible book value per share while maintaining strong capital ratios.

Flagstar acquisition. In addition, to the bargain purchase gain, our first quarter 2023 results were impacted by the following items:

* Merger-related and restructuring expenses of $67 million, comprised of $40 million for the Flagstar acquisition and $27 million for the Signature Transaction;
* Ananinitial provision for credit losses totaling $132 million for the loans acquired from Signature; and
*  First full quarter of Flagstar Bank activity to our balance sheet and overall financial results.in the Signature Transaction.

Loan Portfolio

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, total C&I loans were $23.4 $23.9 billion compared to $12.3 billion at December 31, 2022.The majority of the increase is attributable to the $10

billion $10.0 billion of C&l loans acquired in the Signature Transaction.In addition, organic C&l loan Transaction along with growth totaled $1.1 billion on a linked-quarter basis,
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largely the result of growth in specialty finance lending and the mortgage warehouse business.portfolio. On a linked quarter basis, mortgage warehouse loans rose $638 million or
12 percent due to using our market position in this vertical to capitalize on several competitors exiting the market.

The multi-family loan portfolio was $38.0 $37.8 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, down slightly compared to $38.1 billion at December 31, 2022. The slight decline during
the current first quarter this period was due to a combination of higher interest rates and our increasing ability to diversify our loan diversification strategy. portfolio as a result of
our recent acquisition. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, multi-family loans represented 4645 percent of total loans, compared to 55 percent at December 31, 2022, further
reducing demonstrating the reduction of our concentration in this asset class.

Commercial loans (commercial real estate and acquisition, development and construction) increased $2.1$2.6 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 to $12.7$13.1 billion
compared to $10.5 billion at December 31, 2022. Of the linked-quarter increase, approximately $1.9 billion was due largely attributable to the Signature Transaction and $230 million
was due to organic growth. Transaction.

One-to-four family residential loans totaled $5.9 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, representing seven percent of total loans compared to $5.8 billion or eight percent of
total loans at December 31, 2022. Other loans totaled $2.6 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 compared to $2.3 billion at December 31, 2022. The other loan portfolio consists

mostly of consumer loans.

Loans held-for-sale at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 totaled $1.3 $2.2 billion, up from $1.1 billion at December 31, 2022, Loans related to the Signature Transaction added
$360 million to this growth.

The loans held-for-investment acquired in the Signature transaction are as follows:

Principal Balance Carrying Value Weighted Average Interest Rate Weighted Average Maturity
cal $ 10,608 $ 10,131 5.76 % 3.85
CRE 2,173 1,915 5.58 % 6.06
Total $ 12,781 % 12,046 5.73 % 4.23

Of the loans acquired, approximately $28 million were over 90 days past due or nonaccrual.
Deposit Base

Deposits at March 31, 2023june 30, 2023 totaled $84.8$88.5 billion up $26.1$29.8 billion compared to $58.7 billion at December 31, 2022.The Signature Transaction,
contributed $31.5 billion driven primarily by an increase to $5.9 billion of custodial deposits as of quarter-end.Our deposits remained stable except for declines of $5.4 billion due

primarily to anticipated spend down in the prepaid debit card program related to the California Middle-Class Tax Relief Program, the reserve account withdrawal from Circle
Internet Financial ("Circle"), and seasonality in the mortgage escrow deposits business.

Of the $5.4 billion decline described above, Banking as a Service (“BaaS") deposits declined $3.7 billion or 32 percent to $7.8 billion at March 31, 2023 compared to
$11.5 billion at December 31, 2022.The decrease is attributable to the aforementioned decline in the California Middle-Class Tax Relief Program of approximately $1.8 billion to $1.3
billion at March 31, 2023 and a $2.8 billion decline in the Circle reserve account.At March 31, 2023, the Company no longer has a deposit relationship with Circle and does not have
any stablecoin or cryptocurrency-related deposits.Signature transaction.

Our deposit base includes $29.2 billion $37.8 billion of uninsured deposits at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 a net increase of $9.6 $18.2 billion as compared to December 31, 2022
due to the Signature acquisition. Transaction. This represents 34.442.7 percent of our total deposits. These amounts were determined based on the same methodologies and
assumptions used for regulatory reporting purposes and exclude internal accounts. We also have $42 $37.7 billion (or approximately 1.4 times the uninsured deposits) of total
ready liquidity (cash and cash equivalents, unpledged securities, and Fed Funds access and FHLB borrowing capacity) reflects a significant amount. Our total ready liquidity
approximately matches the balance of liquid assets and sufficient sources of readily-available funds that can be accessed to meet its obligations and unanticipated needs as they
arise. our uninsured deposits.

Net Interest Income

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, net interest income totaled $555 $900 million, up $176 $345 million or 4662 percent compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023.The current quarter’s results include a full-quarter's contribution from the Flagstar acquisition along with a partial month related to the
Signature Transaction, compared to only a one-month Flagstar partial month Signature contribution in the fourth first quarter of last this year.

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the NIM was 2.603.21 percent up 3261 basis points compared to the fourth quarter of last year. three months
ended March 31, 2023. The linked-quarter improvement was due to both athe Signature Transaction which drove higher level levels of average earnings interest-earnings assets,
owing specifically loans held for investment and average cash and cash equivalent balances, including custodial deposits related to Flagstar being included for the entire quarter
compared Signature Transaction. In addition, we continued to only one month during benefit from the fourth quarter of last year, along with significantly higher interest rate
environment, which positively impacted the yields on those our assets stemming primarily from the Flagstar acquisition.This was partially offset by a higher cost of funds and
higher average interest-bearing liabilities. Average interest-earnings interest-earning assets increased $19.9 billion $25.6 billion or 30 percent to $86.7 $112.3 billion, while the average
yield rose 73 54 basis points to 4.805.34 percent. Average interest-bearing liabilities grew $13.8 $7.2 billion or 24 10.28 percent to $70.2 $77.4 billion, while the average cost of funds
increased 65 33 basis points to 2.773.10 percent.

Asset Quality
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Our asset quality metrics remained strong during the first second quarter of 2023 with despite increases in NPLs and NPAs attributable to certain loans acquired in the
Signature Transaction. Total NPLs at March 31, 2023 were $161 million, up $20 million or 14 Transaction and Flagstar acquisition. At June 30, 2023, NPAs to total assets equaled 0.21
percent compared to December 31, 2022. Total NPAs were $174 million 0.14 percent at March 31, 2023, up $21 million or 14 while NPLs to total loans equaled 0.28 percent
compared to 0.20 percent at December 31, 2022. Repossessed assets of $13 million were relatively unchanged compared to the $12 $13 million recorded in the prior quarter.

At March 31, 2023, NPAs to total assets equaled 14 basis points compared to 17 basis points at December 31, 2022 while NPLs to total loans equaled 20 basis points
compared to 20 basis points at December 31, 2022.

Recent Events
Declaration of Dividend on Common Shares

On April 25, 2023 July 25, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.17 per share on the Company's common stock. The dividend is
payable on May 18, 2023 August 17, 2023 to common stockholders of record as of May 8, 2023 August 7, 2023.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Interest Income

Net interest income is our primary source of income. Its level is a function of the average balance of our interest-earning assets, the average balance of our interest-bearing
liabilities, and the spread between the yield on such assets and the cost of such liabilities. These factors are influenced by both the pricing and mix of our interest-earning assets
and our interest-bearing liabilities which, in turn, are impacted by various external factors, including the local economy, competition for loans and deposits, the monetary policy of
the FOMC, and market interest rates.

The cost of our deposits and borrowed funds is largely based on short-term rates of interest, the level of which is partially impacted by the actions of the FOMC.

While the target federal funds rate generally impacts the cost of our short-term borrowings and deposits, the yields on our held-for-investment loans and other interest-
earning assets are not as sensitive to intermediate-term market interest rates.

Another factor that impacts the yields on our interest-earning assets—and our net interest income—is the income generated by our multi-family and CRE loans and securities
when they prepay. Since prepayment income is recorded as interest income, an increase or decrease in its level will also be reflected in the average yields (as applicable) on our
loans, securities, and interest-earning assets, and therefore in our net interest income, our net interest rate spread, and our net interest margin.

It should be noted that the level of prepayment income on loans recorded in any given period depends on the volume of loans that refinance or prepay during that time.
Such activity is largely dependent on such external factors as current market conditions, including real estate values, and the perceived or actual direction of market interest rates.
This impact is most prevalent in our multi-family portfolio. In addition, while a decline in market interest rates may trigger an increase in refinancing and, therefore, prepayment
income, so too may an increase in market interest rates. It is not unusual for borrowers to lock in lower interest rates when they expect, or see, that market interest rates are rising
rather than risk refinancing later at a still higher interest rate. The impact of prepayments on the current quarter was minimal.

Comparison to Prior Quarter

Net interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 was $555 $900 million, up $176 $345 million or 4662 percent compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023.This quarter’s results include a full-quarter's contribution from the Flagstar acquisition Signature Transaction compared to only a one-
month partial month contribution in the fourth first quarter of last year. In addition, this year which is the current quarter includes a partial-month contribution from primary cause
of most of the Signature Transaction.linked-quarter differences explained below.

* Interest income on mortgage and other loans, net, totaled $867 million, $1.2 billion, up $278 $294 million compared to fourth first quarter of |ast this year. Interest income
also increased across all other categories with securities and income on money market investments up $75 million. The income on money market investments was
primarily due to the higher average balances held at the Federal Reserve.

+ Interest income on mortgages and other loans, net This increase was driven by a $14.8 billion $13.0 billion or 26 18.42 percent increase in average loan balances to $70.8
billion $83.8 billion. This is primarily due to organic loan growth throughout the full quarter and activity related to the December acquisition of Flagstar and the March
Signature Transaction. Additionally, we had a 7263 basis points increase in the average loan yield to 4.925.55 percent from 4.204.92 percent in the prior quarter due
primarily to the rising interest rate environment.

+ Interest income on securities was positively impacted by a 6032 basis points increase in the average yield to 3.86% 4.18 percent from 3.26% 3.86 percent along with a $1.7
billion $1.1 billion or 18.17 9.85 percent increase decrease in the average securities balance to $10.9 billion $9.8 billion.

+ Interest-earning Interest income on cash and cash equivalents were positively impacted increased $177 million driven by a 72seven basis points increase in the average
yield to 4.965.03 percent driven by higher short-term market rates, coupled with an increase in the average balance of $3.3 billion. $14.0 billion driven by the Signature
Transaction.

* Interest expense on average interest-bearing deposits increased $83 million $158 million to $283 $441 million during the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023,
driven by a 4758 basis point increase in the average cost of interest-bearing deposits due to rising interest rates and competition for deposits. Additionally, our average
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interest earning deposits grew $7.0$11.3 billion, or 16.9923.69 percent, to $47.9$59.2 billion. The balance growth reflects the December acquisition of Flagstar and the
March Signature Transaction.

+ Interest expense on borrowed funds increased $94 million decreased $39 million or 9220 percent to $196 million $157 million driven by a 94-basisnine basis point
increase decrease in rates in addition to a $6.8 $4.1 billion or 44 18.5 percent increase decrease in the average balance to $22.3 billion $18.2 billion, partially due to our shift to
lower cost deposits.

Comparison to Prior Year Quarter to Date

For the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, net interest income totaled $555 million, $1.5 billion, up $223 $764 million or 67111 percent compared to the
three six months ended March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022. This quarter's The year-to-date results include a full-quarter's six month contribution from the Flagstar acquisition and three
months plus a partial-month contribution from the Signature Transaction which were not part of the Company in the first quarter half of last year. 2022.

* Interest income on mortgages and other loans, net was driven by a $25$31.0 billion or 5566.7 percent increase in average loan balances to $70.8 $77.5 billion. This is due to
organic loan growth and primarily driven by the December 2022 acquisition of Flagstar and the March 2023 Signature Transaction. Additionally, we had a 149 173 basis point
increase in the average loan yield to 4.925.25 percent in the current year quarter due primarily to the rising interest rate environment.

* Interest income on securities was positively impacted by a 174 175 basis point increase in the average yield to 3.864.01 percent from 2.122.26 percent along with a $4.3
billion $3.7 billion or 6656.1 percent increase in the average securities balance to $10.9 billion. $10.3 billion primarily driven by the six month contribution from the Flagstar
acquisition.

* Interest-earning cash and cash equivalents reflected a 475438 basis point increase in the average yield to 4.96 5.02 percent driven by higher short-term market rates and an
increase in the average balance of $2.3 billion. $8.9 billion driven by the Signature Transaction.

* Interest expense on average interest-bearing deposits increased $256 million $651 million to $283 million $724 million during the threesix months ended March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023, driven by a 205227 basis point increase in the average cost of interest-bearing deposits due to rising interest rates. Average interest earning deposits
grew $16.8 billion $20.7 billion, or 54.2262.8 percent, to $48 billion $53.6 billion. The balance growth primarily reflects the December acquisition of Flagstar and the March
Signature Transaction.

* Interest expense on borrowed funds increased $126 million $215 million or 180156 percent to $196 million $353 million driven by a 184-basis 176 basis point increase in
rates in addition to a $5.8 billion $4.5 billion or 34.7928.3 percent increase in the average balance to $22.3 billion. $20.3 billion primarily driven by the December acquisition of
Flagstar.

Net Interest Margin

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our average balance sheet for the periods indicated, including the average yields on our interest-earning assets
and the average costs of our interest-bearing liabilities. Average yields are calculated by dividing the interest income produced by the average balance of interest-earning assets.
Average costs are calculated by dividing the interest expense produced by the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. The average balances for the periods are derived from
average balances that are calculated daily. The average yields and costs include fees, as well as premiums and discounts (including mark-to-market adjustments from acquisitions),
that are considered adjustments to such average yields and costs.

Three Months Ended, Three Months Ended,
March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Average Average  Average Average  Average Average (dollars in Average Average  Average Average
(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions) ~ Balance  Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost millions) Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
ASSETS: ASSETS: ASSETS:
Interest- Interest- Interest-earning
earning earning assets:
assets: assets:
Mortgage and Mortgage and Mortgage and
other loans other loans other loans
and leases, and leases, and leases,
net(mn netm $ 70774 $ 867 492 % $ 55957 $ 589 420 % $ 45807 $ 393 343 % net () $ 83810 $ 1,161 555 % $ 70,774 $ 867 492 %
Securities @ @ Securities 2 3 10,850 104 386 % 9,182 75 326 % 6,538 34 212 % Securities @ @3 9,781 102 418 % 10,850 104 3.86 %
Reverse Reverse Reverse
repurchase repurchase repurchase
agreements agreements 785 11 553 % 676 8 478 % 292 1 112 %  agreements 429 6 585 % 785 11 553 %
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Interest-
earning cash
and cash
equivalents
Total interest-
earning assets
Non-interest-
earning assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY:
Interest-bearing
deposits:
Interest-bearing
checking and
money market
accounts
Savings
accounts
Certificates of
deposit
Total interest-

bearing deposits

Shortterm

borrowed funds

Other borrowed

funds
Total Borrowed
funds
Total interest-
bearing liabilities
Non-interest-
bearing deposits
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders’
equity
Total liabilities and
stockholders’
equity
Netinterest
income/interest
rate spread
Netinterest
margin
Ratio of interest-
earning assets to
interest-bearing

liabilities

(1) Amounts are net of net deferred loan origination costs/(fees) and the allowances for loan losses and includes loans held for sale and non-performing loans.

Interest-

earning cash

Interest-

earning cash

and cash and cash
equivalents 4,257 52 49% % 980 9 424 % 1,924 1 021 % equivalents 18,279 229
Total interest- Total interest-
earningassets $ 86,666 $ 1,034 480 % $ 66795 $ 681 407 % $ 54561 $ 429 315 % earningassets $ 112,299 $ 1,498
Non-interest- Non-interest-
earning assets 7,864 5,537 5333 earning assets 8,974
Total assets $ 94530 $ 72332 $ 59,894 Total assets $ 121,273
LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY: EQUITY:
Interest-bearing Interest-bearing
deposits: deposits:
Interest-bearing Interest-bearing
checking and checking and
money market money market
accounts $ 23098 $ 157 276 % $ 20864 $ 122 231 % $ 13784 $ 8 024 % accounts $ 30,647 $ 232
Savings Savings
accounts 11,093 39 144 % 9,605 27 110 % 9,208 8 035 % accounts 10,015 40
Certificates of Certificates of
deposit 13,712 87 257 % 10,478 51 194 % 8,070 1 053 % deposit 18,587 169
Total interest- Total interest-
bearing deposits $ 47,903 $ 283 240 % $ 40947 $ 200 193 % $ 31062 $ 27 035 %bearing deposits $ 59,249 $ 441
Short term
Short term borrowed
borrowed funds 9,036 103 461 % 3842 39 407 % 3212 3 039 % funds 6,807 75
Other
Other borrowed borrowed
funds 13,290 93 285 % 11,683 63 216 % 13,351 67 204 % funds 11,393 82
Total Borrowed Total Borrowed
funds $ 22326 $ 196 356 % $ 15525 $ 102 262 % $ 16563 $ 70 172 %funds $ 18,200 $ 157
Total interest- Total interest-
bearing liabilites $ 70229 $ 479 277 % $ 56472 $ 302 212 % $ 47625 $ 97 082 %bearing liabilities $ 77,449 $ 598
Non-interest- Non-interest-
bearing deposits 13,189 7474 4,397 bearing deposits 24,613
Other liabilities 1,939 897 826 Other liabilities 8,320
Total liabilities $ 85357 $ 64,843 $ 52,848 Total liabilities $ 110,383
Stockholders' Stockholders’
equity 9,173 7,489 7,046 equity 10,890
Total liabilities and Total liabilities
stockholders' and stockholders’
equity $ 94530 $ 72332 $ 59,894 equity $ 121,273
Net interest Net interest
incomef/interest income/interest
rate spread $ 555 203 % $ 379 195 % $ 332 233 %rate spread $ 900
Netinterest Net interest
margin 260 % 228 % 243 % margin
Ratio of interest- Ratio of interest-
earning assets to earning assets to
interest-bearing interest-bearing
kB 115 %jiabilities

liabilities 123 %

(2) Amounts are at amortized cost.

(©)]

Includes FHLB stock and FRB stock.

Six Months Ended,
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503 % 4,257 52 4.96
534 % $ 86,666 $ 1,034 4.80
7,864
$ 94,530
3.05 % $ 23,098 $ 157 2.76
161 % 11,093 39 1.44
361 % 13,712 87 2.57
298 % $ 47,903 $ 283 2.40
446 % 9,036 103 4.61
288 % 13,290 93 2.85
347 % $ 22,326 $ 196 3.56
310 % $ 70,229 $ 479 2.77
13,189
1,939
$ 85,357
9,173
$ 94,530
224 % $ 555 2.03
321 % 2.60
1.45 x
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(dollars in millions)
ASSETS:

Interest-earning assets:

Mortgage and other loans and leases, net o)

Securities @ @)

Reverse repurchase agreements

Interest-earning cash and cash equivalents

Total interest-earning assets

Non-interest-earning assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Interest-bearing deposits:

Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts

Savings accounts
Certificates of deposit
Total interest-bearing deposits
Short term borrowed funds
Other borrowed funds
Total Borrowed funds
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Non-interest-bearing deposits
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

Net interest income/interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities

(1) Amounts are net of net deferred loan origination costs/(fees) and the allowances for loan losses and includes loans held for sale and non-performing loans.
(2) Amounts are at amortized cost.

(3) Includes FHLB stock and FRB stock.

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2022

Average Balance Interest

Average
Average Balance Interest Yield/Cost
77,481 $ 2,028 5.25%
10,313 206 4.01 %
606 17 5.64 %
11,300 281 5.02 %
99,700 $ 2,532 5.10 %
8,271
107,971
26,894 $ 389 291 %
10,551 79 1.52 %
16,159 256 3.19 %
53,604 $ 724 272 %
7,915 178 4.54 %
12,336 175 2.86 %
20,251 $ 353 3.52 %
73,855 $ 1,077 2.94 %
18,933
5,145
97,933
10,038
107,971
$ 1,455 2.16 %
2.94 %
1.35 x

Average Yield/Cost

46,479 $ 817 3.52%
6,607 75 226 %
320 2 1.56 %
2,395 8 0.64 %
55,801 $ 902 324 %
5,145
60,946
15,629 $ 32 0.42 %
9,218 18 0.38 %
8,086 23 0.58 %
32,933 $ 73 0.45 %
2,132 7 0.66 %
13,650 131 1.93 %
15,782 $ 138 1.76 %
48,715 $ 211 0.87 %
4,483
775
223272
6,973
60,946
$ 691 237 %
248 %
1.15 x

The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities affected our
interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to (i) the changes attributable to changes in volume
(changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); (i) the changes attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (iii) the net change. The changes
attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate.

Three Months Ended, Three Months Ended,

March 31, 2023 compared to
December 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 compared to March

Increase/(Decrease) Due to: Increase/(Decrease) Due to:

(in millions)  (in millions) Volume

(in millions)

INTEREST-  INTEREST-
EARNING EARNING
ASSETS: ASSETS:

Mortgage Mortgage
and other and other
loans and loans and

leases, net  leases, net $

Securities Securities

INTEREST-
EARNING

ASSETS:

Mortgage and
other loans

and leases,

net

Securities
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Six Months Ended,

June 30, 2023 compared to March
31, 2023

Increase/(Decrease) Due to:

June 30, 2023 compared to June 30,

Increase/(Decrease) Due to:

Volume

Rate

Volume

Net
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Reverse Reverse Reverse

repurchase  repurchase repurchase
agreements agreements 1 2 3 3 7 10 agreements (5) — (5) 8 7 15
Interest Interest Interest
Earning Cash Earning Cash Earning Cash
& Cash & Cash & Cash
Equivalent  Equivalent 2 41 43 22 29 51  Equivalent 176 1 177 224 49 273
Total Total Total
interest- interest- interest-
earnings earnings earnings
assets assets $ 12 $ 241 $ 353 $ 220 % 385 $ 605 assets $ 341 $ 123§ 464 $ 1120 $ 510 $ 1630
INTEREST- INTEREST- INTEREST-
BEARING BEARING BEARING
LIABILITIES: LIABILITIES: LIABILITIES:
Interest- Interest- Interest-
bearing bearing bearing
checking and checking and checking and
money money money
market market market
accounts accounts $ 20 % 15 % 35 $ 8 $ 64 $ 149  accounts $ 58 $ 17 3 75 $ 164 $ 193 $ 357
Savings Savings Savings
accounts accounts 7 5 12 24 7 31 accounts @) 5 1 10 51 61
Certificates  Certificates Certificates of
of deposit  of deposit 15 21 36 40 36 76  deposit 44 38 82 129 104 233
Short Term  Short Term Short Term
Borrowed Borrowed Borrowed
Funds Funds 4 60 64 65 35 100 Funds 85 73 158 131 40 171
Other Other Other
Borrowed Borrowed Borrowed
Funds Funds 1 19 30 27 (1) 26 Funds (25) 3) (28) (19) 63 44
Total Total Total
interest- interest- interest-
bearing bearing bearing
liabilities liabilities 57 120 177 241 141 382 liabilities 158 130 288 415 451 866
Change in Change in Change in
net net net
interest interest interest
income income $ 55 % 121 $ 176 $ 21) $ 244 $ 223 income $ 183 % 7 $ 176 $ 705 % 59 $ 764

Comparison to Prior Quarter

The Company's net interest margin for the three months ended March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023, was 2.603.21 percent up 3261 basis points compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023. The increase was driven by both a higher level of average earnings assets due to Flagstar the Signature Transaction being included for the
entire quarter compared to only one a partial month during the fourth first quarter of last this year, along with significantly higher yields on those assets. This was partially offset by
a higher cost of funds and higher average interest-bearing liabilities. liabilities reflecting a full quarter impact of the Signature Transaction.

Average interest-earning assets increased $19.9$25.6 billion or 3029.58 percent to $86.7 $112.3 billion, while the average yield rose 7354 basis points to 4.805.34 percent.
Average interest-bearing liabilities grew $13.8 $7.2 billion or 24 10.28 percent to $70.2 $77.4 billion, while the average cost of funds increased 65 33 basis points to 2.773.10 percent.

Comparison to Prior Year Quarter to Date

The Company's net interest margin for the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, was 2.602.94 percent compared to 2.43 2.48 percent for the three six months
ended March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022. The increase was driven by both a higher level of average earnings assets due to the Flagstar being included for the first quarter of
2023, acquisition and Signature Transaction, along with significantly higher yields on those assets stemming primarily from reflecting the Flagstar acquisition.higher interest rate
environment. This was partially offset by a higher cost of funds and higher average interest-bearing liabilities.

Average interest-earnings assets increased $32.1 $43.9 billion or 5978.67 percent to $86.7 billion, $99.7 billion, while the average yield increased 165 186 basis points to 4.805.10
percent. Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $22.6 $25.1 billion or 4751.61 percent to $70.2 billion, $73.9 billion, while the average cost of funds increased 195207 basis
points to 2.77 2.94 percent.
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Provision (Benefit) for Credit Losses
Comparison to Prior Quarter

The three months ended March 31, 2023, June 30, 2023 provision for credit losses totaled $170 $49 million compared including increases of $13 million related to a $124 million
provision specific reserves for new non-accrual loans and the remainder driven by changes in the macroeconomic forecast. The three months ended December 31, 2022.The first
quarter March 31, 2023 provision for credit losses included was $170 million including a $132 million $132 million initial provision for credit losses related to the initial ACL
measurement of non-PCD acquired loans from the Signature Transaction and a $20 million provision for credit losses on legacy Signature Bank debt securities held by the Company
prior to the transaction. The remaining difference was primarily driven by loan growth and changes in the macroeconomic forecast.

Comparison to Prior Year to Date

The six months ended June 30, 2023 provision for credit losses was $219 million compared to $117 million during $7 million for the fourth quarter of last year six months ended
June 30, 2022. The 2023 provision includes a $132 million initial provision for credit losses related to the Flagstar acquisition. The first quarter 2023, also includes initial ACL
measurement of non-PCD acquired loans from the Signature Transaction, a $20 million provision for credit losses on Signature debt securities held by the Company Company. The
remaining difference was primarily driven by loan growth, specific reserves for new nonaccrual loans and $18 million primarily related to higher loan volume.

Comparison to Prior Year Quarter

The three months ended March 31, 2023 provision for credit losses was $170 million compared to a $2 million benefit for credit losses for changes in the three months
ended March 31, 2022.macroeconomic forecast.

For additional information about our methodologies for recording recoveries of, and provisions for, loan credit losses, please refer to Critical Accounting Policies in our Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, which is available on our website, under the Investor Relations section, or on the website of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
at sec.gov.
Non-Interest Income

We generate non-interest income through a variety of sources, including—among others—fee income (in the form of retail deposit fees and charges on loans); income from
our investment in BOLI; net return on our MSR asset; net gain on loan sales; sales and securitizations; and “other” sources, including the revenues produced through the sale of

third-party investment products and loan subservicing.

The following table summarizes our non-interest income for the respective periods:

Three Months Ended, Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended,
(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 (in millions) June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Bargain purchase Bargain $ 2,001 $ 159 $ — Bargain purchase $ 141 $ 2,001 $ 2,142 $ —
gain purchase gain gain
Fee income Fee income 27 10 6 Fee income 48 27 75 12
Net return on Net return on 22 6 — Net return on 25 22 47 -
mortgage mortgage mortgage
servicing rights servicing servicing rights
rights

Gain on loan sales 20 5 —
Net gain on loan Net gain on loan 25 20 45 —
sales and sales and
securitizations securitizations
Other Other " 7 2 Other 14 1 25 7
BOLI income 10 8 7
Loan administration income 7 3 -
Bank-owned life Bank-owned life 1 10 21 14
insurance insurance
Net Loan Net Loan 39 7 46 —
administration administration
income income
Net (loss) gain on Net (loss) gain — — (1) Net (loss) gain on 1) — (1) (1)
securities on securities securities

Total non- Total non- $ 2,098 $ 198 $ 14 Total non- $ 302 $ 2,098 $ 2,400 $ 32

interest interest interest

income income income
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Comparison to Prior Quarter

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, non-interest income totaled $2.1 billion, which $302 million as compared to $2.1 billion in the first quarter. The
second quarter includes a bargain purchase gain of $141 million as compared to $2.0 billion in the first quarter related to the Signature Transaction, as transaction. Second-quarter
2023 non-interest income includes a full-quarter's contribution from Signature compared $159 million bargain purchase gain recognized to a partial month in the fourth
quarter first quarter. This benefited fee income and loan administration income which includes a $42 million benefit for income related to servicing loans on behalf of 2022 in
connection with the Flagstar acquisition. FDIC receivership. Loan admin income otherwise decreased due to SOFR-referenced costs related to custodial deposits which are net
settled as part of certain servicing contracts.

First Second quarter 2023 non-interest income includes a gain on loan sales of $20 $25 million compared to $5 $20 million during the fourth first quarter, of last year, with a
gain on sale margin of 76 56 basis points compared to 56 76 basis points last quarter. The net return on mortgage servicing rights was $25 million or 9.7 percent for the second
quarter compared to $22 million or 8.5% 8.5 percent for the first quarter compared to $6 million or 6.80% for the fourth quarter of last year. quarter. Net loan administration income

totaled $39 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared to $7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 compared driven by subservicing income related
to $3 million for the three months ended December 31, 2022.

Signature transaction.
Comparison to Prior Year Quarter to Date

Noninterest Non-interest income increased $2.1 billion $2.4 billion for the threesix months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 compared to the threesix months ended
March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022 primarily due to the bargain purchase gain of $2.0 billion $2.1 billion related to the Signature Transaction. Increases in non-interest income were also
driven by the inclusion of a full-quarter's contribution from the Flagstar acquisition and Signature Transaction including a $21$63 million increase in fee income, net return on
mortgage servicing rights of $22 $47 million, and gain on loan sales of $20 million.. $45 million and loan administration income of $46 million.
Non-Interest Expense
Comparison to Prior Quarter

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, non-interest expenses totaled $476 $661 million, up $207 $185 million, for or 39 percent compared to the
quarter three months ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023. Total operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 were $392 $515 million, up
$188 $123 million compared to $204 million $392 million for the three months ended December 31, 2022. For both items, first-quarter first quarter 2023. The increase was primarily
driven by the second quarter 2023 includes including a full quarter of Flagstar Signature expenses, including costs to retain key business personnel, compared to only one a partial
month during fourth-quarter 2022. first-quarter 2023.
Comparison to Prior Year Quarter to Date

Noninterest Non-interest expense increased $335 $858 million for the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 compared to the threesix months ended March
31, 2022 June 30, 2022. Excluding merger-related and restructuring expenses and intangible amortization expense, total Total operating expenses for the three six months ended
March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 were up $258 $639 million compared to the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2022. Both increases were primarily due the inclusion of
Flagstar and Signature activity.
Income Tax Expense
Comparison to Prior Quarter

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company reported a provision for income taxes was $1 of $79 million compared $12 $1 million for the three
months ended December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023.Income tax expense for both the current quarter and for the fourth first quarter 2023 was impacted the Signature Transaction
and Flagstar acquisition, respectively. The effective tax rate was 16.2 percent for the second quarter 2023.

Comparison to Prior Year to Date

For the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company reported a provision for income taxes of last $80 million, compared to $111 million for the six months ended June 30,
2022. Income tax expense for the current year was impacted the Signature Transaction and Flagstar acquisition, respectively.

Comparison to Prior Year Quarter

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, the provision for income taxes was $1 million, compared to $52 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. Income tax
expense for the current quarter was impacted by the Signature Transaction. acquisition.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Balance Sheet Summary
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At March 31, 2023 total Total assets were $123.7 increased $28.7 billion to $118.8 billion as of June 30, 2023, compared to $90.1 billion at December 31, 2022 and $61.0 billion at
March 31, 2022. The linked-quarter increase was primarily driven by the Signature Transaction and organic loan growth.The year-over-year increase was due to three factors:
organic loan growth, the Flagstar acquisition which closed December 1, 2022, and the Signature Transaction, which closed on March 20, 2023. and organic loan growth.

The Company acquired approximately $25 billion of cash, approximately $12 billion, of loans, net of purchase accounting adjustments ("PAA"), $34 billion $34 billion of
deposits, net of PAA, and $3 billion $2 billion of other liabilities related to the Signature Transaction.

Total loans and leases held for investment were $82.5 $83.3 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 compared to $69.0 billion at December 31, 2022 and $46.8 billion at March
31, 2022. The increase was driven by the aforementioned loans acquired from the Signature Transaction and $1.5 billion of organic loan growth.

The securities portfolio totaled $7.6 $7.8 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, compared to $9.1 billion $9.1 billion at December 31, 2022 and $5.6 billion at March 31, 2022.
During the month of March 2023, the Company sold approximately $1.2 billion of mostly U.S. Treasuries and reinvested the proceeds into cash.As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023,
the Company has no held-to-maturity securities portfolio and all of the Company’s securities were designated as “Available-for-Sale”, unchanged from December 31, 2022.

Total deposits grew $29.8 billion, or 51 percent to $88.5 billion at March 31, 2023 were $84.8 billion June 30, 2023 compared to $58.7 billion $58.7 billion at December 31, 2022
and $38.0 billion at March 31, 2022. The sequential quarter increase was primarily driven by the deposits acquired from assumed in the Signature Transaction and Transaction.
Included in the annual increase includes June 30, 2023 balance are $5.9 billion in non-interest-bearing custodial deposits related to the Flagstar acquisition and Signature

Transaction.

Wholesale borrowings at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 were $20.4 billion $15.4 billion compared to $20.3 billion at December 31, 2022 and $14.7 billion at March 31, 2022.,
reflecting the use of some of the cash acquired from the Signature transaction to reduce the level of FHLB-NY borrowings.

Loans held-for-investment

The following table summarizes the composition of our loan portfolio:

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
Percent of Loans Percent of Loans Percent of Loans Percent of Loans
(dollars in (dollars in Held for Held for (dollars in Held for Held for
millions) millions) Amount Investment Amount Investment  millions) Amount Investment Amount Investment
Mortgage Loans: Mortgage Loans: Mortgage Loans:
Multi-family Multi-family $38,004 46.0 % $ 38,130 55.3 % Multi-family $37,831 45.4 % $ 38,130 55.3 %
Commercial real ~ Commercial real Commercial real
estate estate 10,464 12.7 % 8,526 12.4 % estate 10,613 12.7 % 8,526 12.4 %
One-to-four One-to-four One-to-four
family first family first family first
mortgage mortgage 5,934 7.2 % 5,821 8.4 % mortgage 5,889 7.1 % 5,821 8.4 %
Acquisition,
Acquisition, Acquisition, development,
development, development, and
and construction and construction 2,203 2.7 % 1,996 2.9 % construction 2,481 3.0 % 1,996 2.9 %
Total mortgage Total mortgage Total mortgage
loans loans $ 56,605 68.6 % $ 54,473 78.9 % loans $ 56,814 68.2 % $ 54,473 78.9 %
Other Loans: Other Loans: Other Loans:
Commercial and = Commercial and Commercial and
industrial industrial $ 23,357 28.3 % $ 12,276 17.8 % industrial $ 23,861 28.7 % $ 12,276 17.8 %
Other loans Other loans 2,585 3.1 % 2,252 33 % Otherloans 2,603 3.1 % 2,252 33 %
Total other loans Total other loans Total other loans
held for held for held for
investment investment $ 25,942 31.4 % $ 14,528 21.1 % investment $ 26,464 31.8 % $ 14,528 21.1 %
Total loansand  Total loans and Total loans and
leases held for leases held for leases held for
investment investment $ 82,547 100.0 % $ 69,001 100.0 % investment $ 83,278 100.0 % $ 69,001 100.0 %
Allowance for Allowance for Allowance for
credit losses on  credit losses on credit losses on
loans and leases loans and leases (550) (393) loans and leases (594) (393)
Total loansand  Total loans and Total loans and
leases held for leases held for leases held for
investment, net  investment, net $ 81,997 $ 68,608 investment, net  $ 82,684 $ 68,608
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Loans held for Loans held for Loans held for

sale, at fair value sale, at fair value 1,305 1,115 sale, at fair value 2,194 1,115
Total loansand  Total loans and Total loans and
leases, net leases, net $ 83,302 $ 69,723 leases, net $ 84,878 - $ 69,723

The following table summarizes our production of loans held for investment:

Three Months Ended, Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended,
March 31,
March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 2023 June 30,2023  June 30, 2022

(dollarsin (dollars in Percent of Percent of Percent of (dollarsin

millions) millions) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total millions) Amount Amount Amount Amount

Mortgage Loan  Mortgage Loan Mortgage Loan

Originated for  Originated for Originated for

Investment: Investment: Investment:

Multi-family Multi-family $ 340 104 % $ 1,322 294 % $ 2,410 68.2 % Multi-family $ 217 $ 340 $ 557 $ 5,349
Commercial real Commercial real 309 9.4 % 348 77 % 281 79 % Commercial 278 309 587 494
estate estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 274 84 % 7 38 % 62 1.8 % One-to-four 98 274 372 144
family first family first family first
mortgage mortgage mortgage
Acquisition, Acquisition, 185 56 % 67 1.5 % 40 1.1 % Acquisition, 593 185 778 72
development, development, development,
and and and
construction construction construction

Total Total $ 1,108 338 % $ 1,908 424 % $ 2,793 79.0 % Total $ 1,186 $ 1,108 $ 2,294 $ 6,059
mortgage mortgage mortgage

loans loans loans

originated for originated for originated for

investment investment investment

Other Loans Other Loans Other Loans

Originated for ~ Originated for Originated for

Investment: Investment: Investment:

Specialty Specialty $ 1,335 407 % $ 1,926 428 % $ 638 18.0 % Specialty $ 1,905 $ 1,335 $ 3,240 $ 2,515
finance finance finance
Commercial Commercial 497 152 % 583 13.0 % 102 29 % Commercial 1,581 497 2,078 218
and industrial and industrial and industrial
Other Other 338 103 % 78 1.7 % 2 0.1 % Other 312 338 650 3
Total other Total other  § 2,170 662 % $ 2,587 576 % $ 742 21.0 % Total other ¢ 3,797 $ 2,170 $ 5,967 $ 2,736
loans loans loans
originated for originated for originated for
investment investment investment
Total loans Total loans  $ 3,278 1000 % $ 4,495 1000 % $ 3,535 100.0 % Totalloans ¢ 4,983 $ 3,278 $ 8,261 $ 8,795
originated for originated for originated for
investment investment investment

Multi-Family Loans

The multi-family loans we produce are primarily secured by non-luxury residential apartment buildings in New York City that feature rent-regulated units and below-market
rents.

The multi-family loan portfolio was $38.0 $37.8 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, down slightly compared to $38.1 billion at December 31, 2022. The slight decline during
the current first quarter was due to a combination of higher interest rates and our loan diversification strategy.

The majority of our multi-family loans were secured by rental apartment buildings.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, $22 $21.8 billion or 58 59 percent of the Company’s total multi-family loan portfolio is secured by properties in New York State and, therefore,
are subject to the new rent regulation laws. The weighted average LTV of the NYSNew York State rent regulated multi-family portfolio was 57.161 percent percent as of March
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31,June 30, 2023, compared to a weighted average LTV of 60.5 percentfor the multi-family loan portfolio at unchanged from December 31, 2022.

In addition to underwriting multi-family loans on the basis of the buildings’ income and condition, we consider the borrowers' credit history, profitability, and building
management expertise. Borrowers are required to present evidence of their ability to repay the loan from the buildings’ current rent rolls, their financial statements, and related
documents.

While a percentage of our multi-family loans are ten-year fixed rate credits, the vast majority of our multi-family loans feature a term of ten or twelve years, with a fixed rate of
interest for the first five or seven years of the loan, and an alternative rate of interest in years six through ten or eight through twelve. The rate charged in the first five or seven
years is generally based on intermediate-term interest rates plus a spread.

During the remaining years, the loan resets to an annually adjustable rate that is indexed to CME Term SOFR, plus a spread. Alternately, the borrower may opt for a fixed rate
that is tied to the five-year fixed advance rate of the FHLB-NY, plus a spread. The fixed-rate option also requires the payment of one percentage point of the then-outstanding loan
balance. In either case, the minimum rate at repricing is equivalent to the rate in the initial five-or seven-year term. As the rent roll increases, the typical property owner seeks to
refinance the mortgage, and generally does so before the loan reprices in year six or eight.

Multi-family loans that refinance within the first five or seven years are typically subject to an established prepayment penalty schedule. Depending on the remaining term of
the loan at the time of prepayment, the penalties normally range from five percentage points to one percentage point of the then-current loan balance. If a loan extends past the
fifth or seventh year and the borrower selects the fixed-rate option, the prepayment penalties typically reset to a range of five points to one point over years six through ten or
eight through twelve. For example, a ten-year multi-family loan that prepays in year three would generally be expected to pay a prepayment penalty equal to three percentage
points of the remaining principal balance. A twelve-year multi-family loan that prepays in year one or two would generally be expected to pay a penalty equal to five percentage
points.

Because prepayment penalties assessed to the borrower are recorded as interest income, they are reflected in the average yields on our loans and interest-earning assets,
our net interest rate spread and net interest margin, and the level of net interest income we record. No assumptions are involved in the recognition of prepayment income, as such
income is recorded when the cash is received.

Our success as a multi-family lender partly reflects the solid relationships we have developed with the market’s leading mortgage brokers, who are familiar with our lending
practices, our underwriting standards, and our long-standing practice of basing our loans on the cash flows produced by the properties. The process of producing such loans is
generally four to six weeks in duration and, because the multi-family market is largely broker-driven, the expense incurred in sourcing such loans is substantially reduced.

We believe our underwriting quality of multi-family lending is distinctive. This reflects the nature of the buildings securing our loans, our underwriting process and standards,
and the generally conservative LTV ratios our multi-family loans feature at origination. Historically, a relatively small percentage of the multi-family loans that have transitioned to
non-performing status have resulted in actual losses, even when the credit cycle has taken a downward turn.

We primarily underwrite our multi-family loans based on the current cash flows produced by the collateral property, with a reliance on the “income” approach to appraising
the properties, rather than the “sales” approach. We also consider a variety of other factors, including the physical condition of the underlying property; the net operating income
of the mortgaged premises prior to debt service; the DSCR, which is the ratio of the property’s net operating income to its debt service; and the ratio of the loan amount to the
appraised value (i.e,, the LTV) of the property.

In addition to requiring a minimum DSCR of 120 percent on multi-family buildings, we obtain a security interest in the personal property located on the premises, and an
assignment of rents and leases. Our multi-family loans generally represent no more than 75 percent of the lower of the appraised value or the sales price of the underlying
property, and typically feature an amortization period of 30 years. In addition, our multi-family loans may contain an initial interest-only period which typically does not exceed two
years; however, these loans are underwritten on a fully amortizing basis.

Accordingly, while our multi-family lending niche has not been immune to downturns in the credit cycle, the limited number of losses we have recorded, even in adverse credit
cycles, suggests that the multi-family loans we produce involve less credit risk than certain other types of loans. In general, buildings that are subject to rent regulation have tended
to be stable, with occupancy levels remaining more or less constant over time. Because the rents are typically below market and the buildings securing our loans are generally
maintained in good condition, they have been more likely to retain their tenants in adverse economic times. In addition, we exclude any short-term property tax exemptions and
abatement benefits the property owners receive when we underwrite our multi-family loans.

The following table presents a geographical analysis of the multi-family loans in our held-for-investment loan portfolio:

At March 31, 2023 At June 30, 2023
Multi-Family Loans Multi-Family Loans
(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions) Amount Percent of Total (dollars in millions) Amount Percent of Total
New York City: New York City: New York City:
Manhattan Manhattan $ 7,243 19 % Manhattan $ 7175 19
Brooklyn Brooklyn 6,343 17 % Brooklyn 6,285 17
Bronx Bronx 3,669 10 % Bronx 3,630 10 %
Queens Queens 2,882 8 % Queens 2,852 8 %
Staten Island Staten Island 135 — % Staten Island 135 - %
Total New York City Total New York City $ 20,272 54 % Total New York City $ 20,077 54 %
New Jersey New Jersey 5,094 13 % New Jersey 5,087 13
Long Island Long Island 561 1 % Long Island 548 1 %
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Total Metro New Total Metro New 25,927 68 %  Total Metro New 25,712 68 %
York York York
Other New York State Other New York State 1,205 3 % Other New York State 1,194 3 %
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania 3,763 10 % Pennsylvania 3,738 10 %
Florida Florida 1,689 4 % Florida 1,686 4 %
Ohio Ohio 982 3 % Ohio 1,035 3 %
Arizona Arizona 437 1 % Arizona 440 1 %
All other states All other states 4,001 11 % All other states 4,026 11
Total Total $ 38,004 100 % Total $ 37,831 100 %

Commercial Real Estate

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, CRE loans represented $10.5$10.6 billion, or 12.7 percent, of total loans held for investment, reflecting a $2.1 billion increase when compared
to $10.5 $8.5 billion at December 31, 2022. Approximately $1.9 billion was due to the Signature Transaction and $230 million was due to organic growth. Transaction.

CRE loans represented $309 $278 million, or 9.435.6 percent, of the loans we originated in the first second quarter 2023 as compared to $348 $309 million, or 7.749.4 percent
forin the three months ended December 31, 2022. first quarter 2023.

The CRE loans we produce are secured by income-producing properties such as office buildings, retail centers, mixed-use buildings, and multi-tenanted light industrial
properties. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the largest concentration of CRE loans were secured by properties in the metro New York City area, refer to the Geographical Analysis
table included below for additional details.

Approximately $3.4 billion $3.4 billion of the CRE portfolio are office properties with an average balance of approximately $14.84$11 million and located primarily in the New
York metro area. There are no delinquencies non-performing loans or non-performing loans recent charge-offs with respect to this portfolio as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

The terms of more than half of our CRE loans are similar to the terms of our multi-family credits which primarily feature a fixed rate of interest for the first five years of the
loan that is generally based on intermediate-term interest rates plus a spread. In addition to customary fixed rate terms, we now also offer floating rates advances indexed to CME
Term SOFR. These products are generally offered in combination with interest rate cap or swaps that provide borrowers with additional optionality to manage their interest rate
risk. Following the initial fixed rate period, the loan resets to an adjustable interest rate that is indexed to CME Term SOFR, plus a spread. Alternately, the borrower may opt for a
fixed rate that is tied to the five-year fixed advance rate of the FHLB-NY plus a spread. The fixed-rate option also requires the payment of an amount equal to one percentage point
of the then-outstanding loan balance. In either case, the minimum rate at repricing is equivalent to the rate in the initial five- or seven-year term.

Prepayment penalties apply to certain of our CRE loans, as they do our multi-family credits. Depending on the remaining term of the loan at the time of prepayment, the
penalties normally range from five percentage points to one percentage point of the then-current loan balance. If a loan extends past the fifth or seventh year and the borrower
selects the fixed rate option, the prepayment penalties typically reset to a range of five points to one point over years six through ten or eight through twelve.

The repayment of loans secured by commercial real estate is often dependent on the successful operation and management of the underlying properties. To minimize our
credit risk, we originate CRE loans in adherence with conservative underwriting standards, and require that such loans qualify on the basis of the property’s current income stream
and DSCR. The approval of a loan also depends on the borrower’s credit history, profitability, and expertise in property management, and generally requires a minimum DSCR of
130 percent and a maximum LTV of 65 percent. In addition, the origination of CRE loans typically requires a security interest in the fixtures, equipment, and other personal property
of the borrower and/or an assignment of the rents and/or leases. In addition, our CRE loans may contain an interest-only period which typically does not exceed three years;
however, these loans are underwritten on a fully amortizing basis.

The following table presents a geographical analysis of the CRE loans in our held-for-investment loan portfolio:

At March 31, 2023 At June 30, 2023

Commercial Real Estate Loans Commercial Real Estate Loans

(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions) Amount Percent of Total (dollars in millions) Amount Percent of Total

New York New York $ 5,837 56 % New York $ 4,884 46 %
Michigan Michigan 1,102 1 % Michigan 1,186 1" %
New Jersey New Jersey 605 6 % New Jersey 654 6 %
Florida Florida 543 5 %
Texas Texas 337 g %
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania 353 3 % Pennsylvania 324 3 %
Florida 263 3 %

Ohio Ohio 139 1 % Ohio 237 2 %
Arizona 75 1 %

All other states All other states 2,090 20 % All other states 2,448 24 %
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Total Total $ 10,464 101 % Total $ 10,613 100 %

Acquisition, Development, and Construction Loans

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, our ADC loans represented $2.2 $2.5 billion or 2.7%, 3.0 percent, of total loans held for investment, reflecting an increase $207 of $485 million of
compared to December 31, 2022.

Because ADC loans are generally considered to have a higher degree of credit risk, especially during a downturn in the credit cycle, borrowers are required to provide a
guarantee of repayment and completion. In the three months ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, we did not have any ADC loan losses that were recovered through a
guarantee. The risk of loss on an ADC loan is largely dependent upon the accuracy of the initial appraisal of the property’s value upon completion of construction; the developer's
experience; the estimated cost of construction, including interest; and the estimated time to complete and/or sell or lease such property.

When applicable, as a condition to closing an ADC loan, it is our practice to require that properties meet pre-sale or pre-lease requirements prior to funding.
C&l Loans

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 C& loans totaled $23.4 $23.9 billion or 28.328.7 percent of total loans held-for-investment. Included in this portfolio is $5.4 billion $6.0 billion in
warehouse loans that allow mortgage lenders to fund the closing of residential mortgage loans.

The non-warehouse C&l loans we produce are primarily made to small and mid-size businesses and finance companies. Such loans are tailored to meet the specific needs of
our borrowers, and include term loans, demand loans, revolving lines of credit, and, to a much lesser extent, loans that are partly guaranteed by the Small Business Administration.

A broad range of C&l loans, both collateralized and unsecured, are made available to businesses for working capital (including inventory and accounts receivable), business
expansion, the purchase of machinery and equipment, and other general corporate needs. In determining the term and structure of C&l loans, several factors are considered,
including the purpose, the collateral, and the anticipated sources of repayment. C&I loans are typically secured by business assets and personal guarantees of the borrower, and
include financial covenants to monitor the borrower’s financial stability.

Also included in our C&l portfolio is our national warehouse lending platform with relationship managers across the country. We offer warehouse lines of credit to other
mortgage lenders which allow the lender to fund the closing of residential mortgage loans. Each extension, advance, or draw-down on the line is fully collateralized by residential
mortgage loans and is paid off when the lender sells the loan to an outside investor or, in some instances, to the Bank.

Underlying mortgage loans are predominantly originated using the Agencies' underwriting standards. The guideline for debt to tangible net worth is 15 to 1. We have $5.4
billion $6.0 billion outstanding warehouse loans to other mortgage lenders and have relationships in place to lend up to $11.6 billion at our discretion.

The interest rates on our C&l loans can be fixed or floating, with floating-rate loans being tied to SOFR, prime or some other market index, plus an applicable spread. Our
floating-rate loans may or may not feature a floor rate of interest. The decision to require a floor on C&l loans depends on the level of competition we face for such loans from
other institutions, the direction of market interest rates, and the profitability of our relationship with the borrower.

Specialty Finance

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, specialty finance loans and leases totaled $4.8 billion or 6 percent of total loans held for investment, up $428 $393 million or 109 percent
compared to December 31, 2022.

We produce our specialty finance loans and leases through a subsidiary that is staffed by a group of industry veterans with expertise in originating and underwriting senior
securitized debt and equipment loans and leases. The subsidiary participates in syndicated loans that are brought to them, and equipment loans and leases that are assigned to
them, by a select group of nationally recognized sources, and are generally made to large corporate obligors, many of which are publicly traded, carry investment grade or near-
investment grade ratings, and participate in stable industries nationwide.

The specialty finance loans and leases we fund fall into three categories: asset-based lending, dealer floor-plan lending, and equipment loan and lease financing. Each of these
credits is secured with a perfected first security interest in, or outright ownership of, the underlying collateral, and structured as senior debt or as a non-cancelable lease. As of
March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023,80 81 percent of specialty finance loan commitments are structured as floating rate obligations which will benefit in a rising rate environment. All
floating rate obligations are being transitioned from LIBOR to an appropriate LIBOR replacement index in accordance with the regulatory guidance provided around LIBOR
cessation.

In the first second quarter of 2023, the Company originated $1.3$1.9 billion of specialty finance loans and leases, representing 4138 percent of total originations compared to
$638 million $1.9 billion for the same period in 2022, representing 18 36 percent of total originations.

Since launching our specialty finance business in the third quarter of 2013, no losses have been recorded on any of the loans or leases in this portfolio.
One-to-Four Family Loans
At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, one-to-four family loans represented $5.9 billion, including $1.1 billion $947 million of LGG or 87.1 percent, of total loans held for investment.

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the repurchase liability on LGG loans was $0.3 billion. $333 million. As of December 31, 2022 total one-to-four family loans totaled $5.8 billion, with
the increase being driven by the Flagstar acquisition. billion. These loans include various types of conforming and non-conforming fixed and adjustable rate loans underwritten
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using Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac guidelines for the purpose of purchasing or refinancing owner occupied and second home properties. We typically hold certain mortgage loans
in LHFI that do not qualify for sale to the Agencies and that have an acceptable yield and risk profile. The LTV requirements on our residential first mortgage loans vary depending
on occupancy, property type, loan amount, and FICO scores. Loans with LTVs exceeding 80 percent are required to obtain mortgage insurance. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023,
non-government guaranteed loans in this portfolio had an average current FICO score of 741 and an average LTV of 54 percent. 54.

Substantially all LGG are insured or guaranteed by the FHA or the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. Nonperforming repurchased loans in this portfolio earn interest at a
rate based upon the 10-year U.S. Treasury note rate from the time the underlying loan becomes 60 days delinquent until the loan is conveyed to HUD (if foreclosure timelines are
met), which is not paid by the FHA until claimed. The Bank has a unilateral option to repurchase loans sold to GNMA if the loan is due, but unpaid, for three consecutive months
(typically referred to as 90 days past due) and can recover losses through a claims process from the guarantor. These loans are recorded in loans held for investment and the
liability to repurchase the loans is recorded in other liabilities on the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Certain loans within our portfolio may be subject to indemnifications
and insurance limits which expose us to limited credit risk. We have reserved for these risks within other assets and as a component of our ACL on residential first mortgages.

Other Loans

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, other loans totaled $2.6 billion and consisted primarily of home equity lines of credit, boat and recreational vehicle indirect lending, point of
sale consumer loans and other consumer loans, including overdraft loans.

Our home equity portfolio includes HELOANS, second mortgage loans, and HELOCs. These loans are underwritten and priced in an effort to ensure credit quality and loan
profitability. Our debt-to-income ratio on HELOANs and HELOCs is capped at 43 percent and 45 percent, respectively. We currently limit the maximum CLTV to 89.99 percent and
FICO scores to a minimum of 700. Second mortgage loans and HELOANS are fixed rate loans and are available with terms up to 20 years. HELOC loans are primarily variable-rate
loans that contain a 10-year interest only draw period followed by a 20-year amortizing period. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, loans in this portfolio had an average current
FICO score of 751.

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, loans in our indirect portfolio had an average current FICO score of 747. Point of sale loans consist of unsecured consumer installment
loans originated primarily for home improvement purposes through a third-party financial technology company who also provides us a level of credit loss protection.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held-for-sale at March 31, 2023June 30, 2023 totaled $1.3$2.2 billion, up from $1.1 billion at December 31, 2022. The Signature Transaction added contributed
$360 million of Small Business Administration ("SBA") loans to this increase. We classify loans as held for sale when we originate or purchase loans that we intend to sell. We have
elected the fair value option for nearly all of this portfolio, except the SBA loans. We estimate the fair value of mortgage loans based on quoted market prices for securities backed
by similar types of loans, where available, or by discounting estimated cash flows using observable inputs inclusive of interest rates, prepayment speeds and loss assumptions for
similar collateral.

Lending Authority

We maintain credit limits in compliance with regulatory requirements. Under regulatory guidance, the Bank may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group
of borrowers in excess of 15 percent of Tier 1 plus Tier 2 capital and any portion of the ACL not included in Tier 2 capital. We have a tracking and reporting process to monitor
lending concentration levels, and all new commercial real estate credit exposures to relationships that exceed $200 million and all other commercial credit exposures to
relationships that exceed $100 million must be approved by the Board Credit Committee of the Board. Exceptions to these levels are made to strong borrowers on a case by case
basis, with the approval of the Board Credit Committee of the Board. Relationships less than the aforementioned limits are approved by the joint authority of credit officers and
lending officers. The Board Credit Committee has authority to direct changes in lending practices as they deem necessary or appropriate in order to address individual or aggregate
risks and credit exposures in accordance with the Bank's strategic objectives and risk appetites.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the largest mortgage loan in our portfolio was a $329 million $329 million multi-family multi-family loan, which is
collateralized by properties located in Brooklyn, New York. As of the date of this report, the loan has been current since origination.

Asset Quality
All asset quality information excludes LGG that are insured by U.S government agencies.

The following table presents the Company's asset quality measures at the respective dates:

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

Non-performing  Non-performing 0.20 % 0.20 % 0.13 9% Non-performing 0.28 % 0.20 %
loans to total loans to total loans to total
loans loans loans
Non-performing  Non-performing 0.14 0.17 0.1 Non-performing 0.21 0.17
assets to total assets to total assets to total
assets assets assets
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Allowance for Allowance for 340.75 278.98 313.18 Allowance for 255.40 278.87

losses on loans to losses on loans to losses on loans to

non-performing  non-performing non-performing

loans loans loans

Allowance for Allowance for 0.67 0.57 0.42 Allowance for 0.71 0.57
losses on loans to losses on loans to losses on loans to

total loans held  total loans held total loans held

for investment for investment for investment

Delinquent and non-performing loans held for investment and Repossessed Assets

The following table presents our loans, 30 to 89 days past due by loan type and the changes in the respective balances:

June 30, 2023
March 31, 2023 compared to

December 31,

compared to 2022
June
(dollars in March 31, December 31, March 31, December 31, March 31, (dollars in 30, December
millions) (dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2022 2022 2022 millions) 2023 31,2022 Amount Percent
Loans30to 89 Loans 30 to 89 Days Past Due: Loans 30 to 89
Days Past Due: Days Past Due:
Multi-family Multi-family $ 72 % 34 $ 23 12 % 213 %  Multi-family $ 79 $ 34 $ 45 132 %
Commercial Commercial real estate 15 2 4 650 % 275%  Commercial 147 2 145 NM
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four family first mortgage 20 21 7 (5)% 186 %  One-to-four 17 21 @ (19 %
family first family first
mortgage mortgage
Acquisition, Acquisition, 29 — 29 NM
development, development,
and and
construction construction
Commercial Commercial and industrial 57 — — NM NM  Commercial 45 — 45 NM
and industrial and industrial
Other loans Other loans 11 13 — (15)% NM Other loans 18 13 5] 38 %
Total loans 30-89 Total loans 30-89 days past due $ 175 $ 70 $ 34 150 % 415 % Total loans 30-89 $335 $ 70 265 379 %
days past due days pastdue

Aloan generally is classified as a “non-accrual” loan when it is 90 days or more past due or when it is deemed to be impaired because we no longer expect to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, we cease the accrual of interest owed, and previously accrued
interest is reversed and charged against interest income. At March 31, 2023, our non-performing loans consisted of $13 million of loans 90 days or more past due June 30, 2023 and
still accruing and $148 million were non-accrual loans. At December 31, 2022December 31, 2022, all of our non-performing loans were non-accrual loans. A loan is generally returned
to accrual status when the loan is current and we have reasonable assurance that the loan will be fully collectible.

We monitor non-accrual loans both within and beyond our primary lending area in the same manner. Monitoring loans generally involves inspecting and re-appraising the
collateral properties; holding discussions with the principals and managing agents of the borrowing entities and retain legal counsel, as applicable; requesting financial, operating,
and rent roll information; confirming that hazard insurance is in place or force-placing such insurance; monitoring tax payment status. advancing funds as needed; and seeking
approval from the courts to appoint a receiver, when necessary to protect the Bank’s interests, including to collect rents, manage property operations, and ensure maintenance of
the collateral properties.

It is our policy to order updated appraisals for all non-performing loans 90 days or more past due, irrespective of loan type, that are collateralized by multi-family buildings,
CRE properties, or land, if the most recent appraisal on file for the property is more than one year old. Appraisals are ordered annually until such time as the loan becomes
performing and is returned to accrual status. It is not our policy to obtain updated appraisals for performing loans. However, appraisals may be ordered for performing loans when
a borrower requests an increase in the loan amount, a modification in loan terms, or an extension of a maturing loan.

The following table presents our non-performing loans by loan type and the changes in the respective balances:

Change from

December 31,
2022
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(dollars in

millions)

Non-

Performing

Loans:
Non-accrual
mortgage
loans:

Multi-family

Commercial

real estate

One-to-four
family first
mortgage
Total non-
accrual
mortgage
loans
Other non-
accrual loansg)
Total non-
accrual

loans

Loans 90 days
or more past
due and still
accruing @
Total non-
performing
loans
Repossessed
assets
Total non-
performing
assets
M
(2) Commercial real estate loans.

Includes Commercial and Industrial, Home Equity, Consumer and other loans.

The following table sets forth the changes in non-accrual loans over the -six months ended _June 30, 2023:

(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2022

New non-accrual

Non-accrual acquired from acquisition

Charge-offs

Transferred to repossessed assets

Loan payoffs, including dispositions and principal pay-downs

Restored to performing status

Balance at _June 30, 2023

to

June 30, 2023

At _June 30, 2023 total non-accrual mortgage loans _increased $29 million to -$1 54 million, while other non-accrual loans increased
.$63 million to -$79 million compared December 31, 2022. Included in the _June 30, 2023 amount were non-accrual loans of-$44 million acquired in the

Signature Transaction.
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June
(dollars in 30, December
millions) 2023 31,2022 Amount Percent
Non-
Performing
Loans:
Non-accrual
mortgage
loans:
Multi-family $ 33 $ 13 $ 20 154 %
Commercial 36 20 16 80 %
real estate
One-to-four 85 92 @) (8) %
family first
mortgage
Total non- $154 $ 125 29 23 %
accrual
mortgage
loans
Other non- 79 16 63 394 %
accrual loansa)
Total non- $233 $ 141 92 65 %
accrual
loans
Loans 90 days — 3 - — NM
or more past
due and still
accruing @
Total non- $233 $ 141 92 65 %
performing
loans
Repossessed 13 12 1 8 %
assets
Total non- $246 $ 153 93 61 %
performing
assets —
$ 141
17121
13
@@
me
@ao
(18)25)
$ 1148233
247210
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At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, NPAs to total assets equaled 14 basis points 0.21 percent compared to 17 basis points 0.14 percent at December 31, 2022 March 31, 2023
while NPLs to total loans equaled 20 basis points compared to 20 basis points at December 31, 2022.

Total NPLs at March 31, 2023 were $161 million, up $20 million or 140.28 percent compared to December 31, 2022, including $13 million of loans 90 days or greater past due
and still accruing acquired in the Signature Transaction.Total NPAs were $174 million 0.20 percent at March 31, 2023, up $21 million or 14 percent compared to December 31,

2022.Repossessed assets of $13 million were relatively unchanged compared to the $12 $13 million recorded in the prior quarter.

Non-performing loans are reviewed regularly by management and discussed on a monthly basis with the Board Credit Committee, and the Board of Directors of the Bank, as
applicable. In accordance with our charge-off policy, collateral-dependent non-performing loans are written down to their current appraised values, less certain transaction costs.
Workout specialists from our Loan Workout Unit actively pursue borrowers who are delinquent in repaying their loans in an effort to collect payment. In addition, outside counsel
with experience in foreclosure proceedings are retained to institute such action with regard to such borrowers.

Properties and other assets that are acquired through foreclosure are classified as repossessed assets, and are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition, less the
estimated cost of selling the property. Subsequent declines in the fair value of the assets are charged to earnings and are included in non-interest expense. It is our policy to require
an appraisal and an environmental assessment of properties classified as OREO before foreclosure, and to re-appraise the properties on an as-needed basis, and not less than
annually, until they are sold. We dispose of such properties as quickly and prudently as possible, given current market conditions and the property’s condition.

To mitigate the potential for credit losses, we underwrite our loans in accordance with credit standards that we consider to be prudent. In the case of multi-family and CRE
loans, we look first at the consistency of the cash flows being generated by the property to determine its economic value using the “income approach,” and then at the market
value of the property that collateralizes the loan. The amount of the loan is then based on the lower of the two values, with the economic value more typically used.

The condition of the collateral property is another critical factor. Multi-family buildings and CRE properties are inspected from rooftop to basement as a prerequisite to
approval. Furthermore, independent appraisers, whose appraisals are carefully reviewed by our experienced in-house appraisal officers and staff, perform appraisals on collateral
properties.

In addition, we work with a select group of mortgage brokers who are familiar with our credit standards and whose track record with our lending officers is typically greater
than ten years. Furthermore, in New York City, where the majority of the buildings securing our multi-family loans are located, the rents that tenants may be charged on certain
apartments are typically restricted under certain rent-control or rent-stabilization laws. As a result, the rents that tenants pay for such apartments are generally lower than current
market rents. Buildings with a preponderance of such rent-regulated apartments are less likely to experience vacancies in times of economic adversity.

Reflecting the strength of the underlying collateral for these loans and the collateral structure, a relatively small percentage of our non-performing multi-family loans have
resulted in losses over time.

To further manage our credit risk, our lending policies limit the amount of credit granted to any one borrower, and typically require minimum DSCRs of 120 percent for multi-
family loans and 130 percent for CRE loans. Although we typically lend up to 75 percent of the appraised value on multi-family buildings and up to 65 percent on commercial
properties, the average LTVs of such credits at origination were below those amounts at March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023. Exceptions to these LTV limitations are minimal and are
reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

The repayment of loans secured by commercial real estate is often dependent on the successful operation and management of the underlying properties. To minimize our
credit risk, we originate CRE loans in adherence with conservative underwriting standards, and require that such loans qualify on the basis of the property’s current income stream
and DSCR. The approval of a CRE loan also depends on the borrower's credit history, profitability, and expertise in property management. Given that our CRE loans are
underwritten in accordance with underwriting standards that are similar to those applicable to our multi-family credits, the percentage of our non-performing CRE loans that have
resulted in losses has been comparatively small over time.

Multi-family and CRE loans are generally originated at conservative LTVs and DSCRs, as previously stated. Low LTVs provide a greater likelihood of full recovery and reduce the
possibility of incurring a severe loss on a credit; in many cases, they reduce the likelihood of the borrower “walking away” from the property. Although borrowers may default on
loan payments, they have a greater incentive to protect their equity in the collateral property and to return their loans to performing status.

With regard to ADC loans, we typically lend up to 75 percent of the estimated as-completed market value of multi-family and residential tract projects; however, in the case of
home construction loans to individuals, the limit is 80 percent. With respect to commercial construction loans, we typically lend up to 65 percent of the estimated as-completed
market value of the property. Credit risk is also managed through the loan disbursement process. Loan proceeds are disbursed periodically in increments as construction
progresses, and as warranted by inspection reports provided to us by our own lending officers and/or consulting engineers.

To minimize the risk involved in specialty finance lending and leasing, each of our credits is secured with a perfected first security interest or outright ownership in the
underlying collateral, and structured as senior debt or as a non-cancellable lease. To further minimize the risk involved in specialty finance lending and leasing, we re-underwrite
each transaction. In addition, we retain outside counsel to conduct a further review of the underlying documentation.

Other C&l loans generally represent loans to commercial businesses which meet certain desired client characteristics and credit standards. The credit standards for
commercial borrowers are based on numerous criteria, including historical and projected financial information, strength of management, acceptable collateral, and market
conditions and trends in the

borrower’s industry. These loans are generally variable rate loans in which the interest rate fluctuates with a specified index rate.

The procedures we follow with respect to delinquent loans are generally consistent across all categories, with late charges assessed, and notices mailed to the borrower, at
specified dates. We attempt to reach the borrower by telephone to ascertain the reasons for delinquency and the prospects for repayment. When contact is made with a borrower
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at any time prior to foreclosure or recovery against collateral property, we attempt to obtain full payment, and will consider a repayment schedule to avoid taking such action.
Delinquencies are addressed by our Loan Workout Unit and every effort is made to collect rather than initiate foreclosure proceedings.

Fair values for all multi-family buildings, CRE properties, and land are determined based on the appraised value. If an appraisal is more than one year old and the loan is
classified as either non-performing or as an accruing TDR, TDM, then an updated appraisal is required to determine fair value. Estimated disposition costs are deducted from the fair
value of the property to determine estimated net realizable value. In the instance of an outdated appraisal on an impaired loan, we adjust the original appraisal by using a third-
party index value to determine the extent of impairment until an updated appraisal is received.

While we strive to originate loans that will perform fully, adverse economic and market conditions, among other factors, can negatively impact a borrower's ability to repay.
Historically, our level of net charge-offs hasin our multifamily and specialty finance portfolios have been relatively low in downward credit cycles, even when the volume of non-
performing loans has increased. For the threesix months ended March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023, our net charge-offs recoveries were $1 millionzero as compared to net charge-
offs recoveries of $2 million $5 million over the same period in 2022.

The allowance for credit losses on loans and leases increased $157 $201 million, equaling $550 $594 million at March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023 from $393 million at December 31,
2022. The majority of the increase was primarily related to the initial provision allowance for credit losses of $132 million for the acquired loans in the Signature Transaction, and an
$18 million provision for loan losses increase of $13 million in specific reserves primarily related to higher loan volume. two loans that have moved to nonaccrual and an increase of
$56 million primarily related to our worsening forecast of macroeconomic conditions and origination volume since year-end. The allowance for credit losses on loans and leases
represented 341 255 percent of non-performing loans at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, as compared to 279 percent at the prior year-end.

Based upon all relevant and available information at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, management believes that the allowance for credit losses on loans was appropriate at and
leases represents a reasonable estimate based upon our judgment as that date.

The following table presents information on the Company's net charge-offs as compared to average loans outstanding:

Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended,

(dollars in millions)  (dollars in millions) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 (dollars in millions) June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Multi-family Multi-family Multi-family

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during  (recoveries) during (recoveries) during

the period the period $ = $ = the period $ = $ =

Average amount Average amount

outstanding $ 37,906 $ 34,799

Average amount

outstanding outstanding $ 37,819 $ 35,332

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of percentage of percentage of

average loans average loans — % — % average loans — % — %

Commercial real Commercial real Commercial real

estate estate estate

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs
(recoveries) during  (recoveries) during

the period $ - $ 4

(recoveries) during
the period the period $ = $ =
Average amount Average amount

outstanding $ 8,450 $ 6,670

Average amount

outstanding outstanding $ 9,619 $ 6,669

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of

percentage of

percentage of

average loans average loans — 0.06 % average loans — % — %

One-to-Four Family One-to-Four Family One-to-Four Family

first mortgage first mortgage first mortgage

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during  (recoveries) during (recoveries) during

the period the period 2 = the period $ 3 $ =

Average amount Average amount Average amount

outstanding outstanding 5,895 152 outstanding $ 5,881 $ 146

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of percentage of percentage of

average loans average loans — — % average loans — % — %
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Acquisition,
Development and

Construction

Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during

Acquisition,
Development and
Construction

Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during

Acquisition,
Development and
Construction

Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during

the period the period = = the period = $ =

Average amount Average amount Average amount

outstanding outstanding 2,110 224 outstanding 2,219 $ 228

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of percentage of percentage of

average loans average loans — — % average loans — % — %
Other Loans Other Loans Other Loans

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during  (recoveries) during (recoveries) during

the period the period (2) (2) the period 4 $ )
Average amount Average amount Average amount

outstanding outstanding 16,412 3,962 outstanding 21,943 $ 4,104

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of percentage of percentage of

average loans average loans (0.01) (0.05) % average loans (0.02) % (0.12) %
Total loans Total loans Total loans

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) during  (recoveries) during (recoveries) during

the period the period — 2 the period (1) $ (5)

Average amount Average amount Average amount

outstanding outstanding 70,774 45,807 outstanding 77,481 $ 46,479

Net charge-offs Net charge-offs Net charge-offs

(recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a (recoveries) as a

percentage of percentage of percentage of

average loans average loans — — % average loans — % -0.01 %

Securities

Total securities were $7.6 $7.8 billion, or 67 percent, of total assets at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, compared to $9.1 billion, or 10 percent of total assets at December 31, 2022.
At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022December 31, 2022, all of our securities were designated as “Available-for-Sale”. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, 15 percent of
our portfolio are floating rate securities.

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the net unrealized loss on securities available for sale, net of tax, was $566 million $668 million as compared to $626 million $626 million at
December 31, 2022,. reflecting the rising interest rate environment.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, available-for-sale securities had an estimated weighted average life of seven years. Included in the quarter-end amount were mortgage-
related securities of $4.7 $5.0 billion and other debt securities of $2.9 $2.8 billion.

At the prior year-end, available-for-sale securities were $9.1 billion, and had an estimated weighted average life of six years. Mortgage-related securities accounted for
$4.8 billion of the year-end balance, with other debt securities accounting for the remaining $4.3 billion.

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company recorded a $20 million provision for credit losses, and subsequent charge-off, on a Signature Bank relatedbond
holding.

The following table summarizes the weighted average yields of debt securities for the maturities indicated at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:

u.S. State, u.s. State,
Mortgage- Government County, Other Mortgage- Government County, Other
Related and GSE and Debt Related and GSE and Debt
Securities Obligations Municipal Securities @ Securities Obligations Municipal Securities @)
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Available-  Available- Available-

for-Sale Debt for-Sale Debt for-Sale Debt
Securities: (1) Securities: (1) Securities: (1)
Due within = Due within Due within
one year one year 2.74 % 3.35 % — % 4.53 % oneyear 271 % 3.68 % — % 4.76 %
Due from Due from Due from
oneto five = one to five one to five
years years 3.34 4.29 — 5.93 years 3.33 4.83 — 6.39
Due from Due from Due from
five to ten  five to ten five to ten
years years 2.93 1.55 3.73 4.86 years 2.84 1.55 3.16 4.82
Due after Due after Due after
ten years ten years 3.60 2.20 — 5.51 ten years 3.72 3.16 — 5.63
Total debt  Total debt Total debt
securities securities securities
available for available for available for
sale sale 3.54 212 3.73 5.41 sale 3.65 2.27 3.16 5.61

(1) The weighted average yields are calculated by multiplying each carrying value by its yield and dividing the sum of these results by the total carrying values and are not presented on a tax-
equivalent basis.

(2) Includes corporate bonds, capital trust notes, foreign notes, and asset-backed securities.
Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

At March 31, 2023, June 30, 2023 the Company had $827 $605 million and $329 million of FHLB-NY stock, at cost, and FHLB-Indianapolis stock, at cost, respectively. At
December 31, 2022, the Company had $762 million and $329 million of FHLB-NY stock, at cost and FHLB-Indianapolis stock, at cost, respectively. The Company maintains an
investment in FHLB-NY stock and, as a result of the Flagstar acquisition, FHLB-Indianapolis stock, partly in conjunction with its membership in the FHLB and partly related to its
access to the FHLB funding it utilizes. In addition, at March 31, 2023, the Company had Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost, of $200 $203 million and $176 million at March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

BOLI is recorded at the total cash surrender value of the policies in the Consolidated Statements of Condition, and the income generated by the increase in the cash
surrender value of the policies is recorded in “Non-interest income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. Reflecting an increase in the cash
surrender value of the underlying policies, our investment in BOLI at June 30, 2023 rose $3 6 million to $1.6$1.6 billion at March 31, 2023 compared to $1.6 billion December 31, 2022.
at December 31, 2022.

Goodwill

We record goodwill in our consolidated statements of condition in connection with certain of our business combinations. Goodwill, which is tested at least annually for
impairment, refers to the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of an acquired company’s assets, net of the liabilities assumed. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
and December 31, 2022 goodwill was $2.4 billion.

Sources of Funds

The Parent Company has four primary funding sources for the payment of dividends, share repurchases, and other corporate uses: dividends paid to the Parent Company by
the Bank; capital raised through the issuance of securities; funding raised through the issuance of debt instruments; and repayments of, and income from, investment securities.

On a consolidated basis, our funding primarily stems from a combination of the following sources: retail, institutional, and brokered deposits; borrowed funds, primarily in the
form of wholesale borrowings; cash flows generated through the repayment and sale of loans; and cash flows generated through the repayment and sale of securities.

Deposits

Our ability to retain and attract deposits depends on numerous factors, including customer satisfaction, the rates of interest we pay, the types of products we offer, and the
attractiveness of their terms. From time to time, we have chosen not to compete actively for deposits, depending on our access to deposits through acquisitions, the availability of
lower-cost funding sources, the impact of competition on pricing, and the need to fund our loan demand. The vast majority of our deposits are retail in nature (i.e., they are
deposits we have gathered through our branches or through business combinations).

Depending on their availability and pricing relative to other funding sources, we also include brokered deposits in our deposit mix. Brokered deposits accounted for $11.0
billion $9.3 billion of our deposits at the end of this March, June 30, 2023, compared to $5.1 billion$5.1 billion at December 31, 2022. Brokered money market accounts represented
$2.5 billion $2.2 billion of total brokered deposits at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and $2.8 billion at December 31, 2022; brokered interest-bearing checking accounts represented

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 28/210
©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited REFI N ITIV I ‘

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated
companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

$1.2 billion $1.0 billion and $1.0 billion, $1.0 billion, respectively. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we had $7.3billion$6.0 billion of brokered CDs, compared to $1.3 billion $1.3 billion at
December 31, 2022.

Our uninsured deposits are the portion of deposit accounts that exceed the FDIC insurance limit (currently $250,000). These amounts were estimated based on the same
methodologies and assumptions used for regulatory reporting purposes and excludes internal accounts. At March 31, 2023June 30, 2023 our deposit base includes $29.2
billion $37.8 billion of uninsured deposits a net increase of $9.6 $18.2 billion as compared to December 31, 2022 due to the Signature Transaction. This represents 3443 percent of
our total deposits. We also have $37.7 billion of total ready liquidity (cash and cash equivalents, unpledged securities, Fed Funds access and FHLB borrowing capacity). Our total
ready liquidity approximately matches the balance of our uninsured deposits.

The following table indicates the amount of time deposits, by account, that are in excess of the FDIC insurance limit (currently $250,000) by time remaining until maturity:

(in millions) March 31, 2023

Portion of U.S. time deposits in excess of insurance limit $ 5,144

Time deposits otherwise uninsured with a maturity of:

3 months or less 1,397
Over 3 months through 6 months 1,100
Over 6 months through 12 months 1,493
Over 12 months 1,154
Total time deposits otherwise uninsured $ 5144
(in millions) June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

Portion of U.S. time deposits in excess of insurance limit $ 4,847 $ 3,749

Time deposits otherwise uninsured with a maturity of:

3 months or less 1,601 969
Over 3 months through 6 months 1,239 604
Over 6 months through 12 months 1,260 1,269
Over 12 months 747 907
Total time deposits otherwise uninsured $ 4,847 $ 3,749
Borrowed Funds

The majority of our borrowed funds are wholesale borrowings (FHLB-NY and FHLB-Indianapolis advances) and, to a lesser extent, junior subordinated debentures and
subordinated notes. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, total borrowed funds increased $28 million decreased $4.9 billion to $21 $16.4 billion compared to the balance at December 31,
2022, primarily driven by the paydown of wholesale borrowings with cash received in the Signature Transaction.

Wholesale Borrowings

Wholesale borrowings at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 were $20.4 billion $15.4 billion compared to $20.3 billion at December 31, 2022.

FHLB-NY and FHLB-Indianapolis advances accounted for $20.4 billion $15.4 billion and $20.3 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.
Pursuant to blanket collateral agreements with the Bank, our FHLB-NY, FHLB-Indianapolis advances and overnight advances are secured by pledges of certain eligible collateral in
the form of loans and securities. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, $5.4 billion $5.4 billion and $6.8 billion of our wholesale borrowings had callable features,
respectively.

We had no federal funds outstanding at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

Junior subordinated debentures totaled $576 577 million at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 compared to $575 million at December 31, 2022.

Subordinated Notes

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the balance of subordinated notes was $434 $435 million, including $135 million assumed from the Flagstar acquisition.

See Note 11, “Borrowed Funds,” in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for a further discussion of our wholesale borrowings, our junior subordinated
debentures and subordinated debt.

Liquidity, Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Commitments, and Capital Position

Liquidity
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We manage our liquidity to ensure that our cash flows are sufficient to support our operations, and to compensate for any temporary mismatches between sources and uses
of funds caused by variable loan and deposit demand.

We monitor our liquidity daily to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet our financial obligations. Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents, which
totaled $22.3 billion $15.8 billion and $2.0 billion, at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents were $22.3 billion and $2.0 billion at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The $20.3 billion $13.8 billion increase in cash and cash
equivalents is primarily dueincludes custodial deposits related to an increase in interest-bearing deposits at the Federal Reserve Bank to enhance and support short-term
liquidity.Signature Transaction.

Our $42 $37.7 billion of total ready liquidity (cash and cash equivalents, unpledged securities, and Fed Funds and FHLB borrowing capacity) reflects a significant amount,
approximately matching the balance of liquid assets and sufficient sources of readily-available funds that can be accessed to meet its obligations and unanticipated needs as they
arise. our uninsured deposits.

Additional liquidity stems from deposits and from our use of wholesale funding sources, including wholesale borrowings and brokered deposits. In addition, we have access
to the Bank’s approved lines of credit with various counterparties, including the FHLB-NY. The availability of these wholesale funding sources is generally based on the amount of
mortgage loan collateral available under a blanket lien we have pledged to the respective institutions and, to a lesser extent, the amount of available securities that may be pledged
to collateralize our borrowings. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 our available borrowing capacity with the FHLB-NY was $10.3 billion $15.4 billion. In addition, the Bank had available-
for-sale securities of $7.6 7.8 billion, of which, $6.8 $6.5 billion is unpledged.

Furthermore, the Bank has agreements with the FRB-NY that enable it to access the discount window as a further means of enhancing our liquidity. In connection with these
agreements, the Bank has pledged certain loans and securities to collateralize any funds we may borrow. The maximum amount the Bank could borrow from the FRB-NY was
$1.0 billion$1.0 billion. . There were no borrowings against these lines of credit at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

CDs due to mature or reprice in one year or less from March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 totaled $16.9 billion, $16.9 billion, representing 87 93 percent of total CDs at that date. Our
ability to attract and retain retail deposits, including CDs, depends on numerous factors, including, among others, the convenience of our branches and our other banking
channels; our customers’ satisfaction with the service they receive; the rates of interest we offer; the types of products we feature; and the attractiveness of their terms.

Our decision to compete for deposits also depends on numerous factors, including, among others, our access to deposits through acquisitions, the availability of lower-cost
funding sources, the impact of competition on pricing, and the need to fund our loan demand.

The Parent Company is a separate legal entity from the Bank and must provide for its own liquidity. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 the Parent Company held cash and cash
equivalents of $151 million $131 million. In addition to operating expenses and any share repurchases, the Parent Company is responsible for paying any dividends declared to our
stockholders. As a Delaware corporation, the Parent Company is able to pay dividends either from surplus or, in case there is no surplus, from net profits for the fiscal year in which
the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year.

Various legal restrictions limit the extent to which the Company’s subsidiary bank can supply funds to the Parent Company and its non-bank subsidiaries. The Bank would
require the approval of the OCC if the dividends it declares in any calendar year were to exceed the total of its respective net profits for that year combined with its respective
retained net profits

for the preceding two calendar years, less any required transfer to paid-in capital. The term “net profits” is defined as net income for a given period less any dividends paid during
that period. As a result of our acquisition of Flagstar, we are also

required to seek regulatory approval from the OCC for the payment of any dividend to the Parent Company through at least the period ending November 1, 2024. In connection
with receiving regulatory approval from the OCC for the Signature Transaction, the Bank has committed that (i) for a period of two years from the date of the Signature Transaction,
it will not declare or pay any dividend without receiving a prior written determination of no supervisory objection from the OCC and (ii) it will not declare or pay dividends on the
amount of retained earnings that represents any net bargain purchase gain that is subject to a conditional period that may be imposed by the OCC. In 2023, the six months ended
June 30, 2023, dividends of $140 million $280 million were paid by the Bank to the Parent Company. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Bank could have paid had $479 million
available for additional dividends, of $2.3 billion to the Parent Company without regulatory approval. excluding bargain purchase gain from retained earnings.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we believe the Company has sufficient liquidity and capital resources to meet its cash flow obligations over the next 12 months and for the
foreseeable future.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

In the normal course of business, we enter into a variety of contractual obligations in order to manage our assets and liabilities, fund loan growth, operate our branch
network, and address our capital needs.

For example, we offer CDs with contractual terms to our customers, and borrow funds under contract from the FHLB-NY. These contractual obligations are reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Condition under “Deposits” and “Borrowed funds,” respectively. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we had CDs of $19.4 $18.2 billion and long-term debt
(defined as borrowed funds with an original maturity one year or more) of $10.4 $10.9 billion.

We also are obligated under certain non-cancelable operating leases on the buildings and land we use in operating our branch network and in performing our back-office
responsibilities. These obligations are included in the Consolidated Statements of Condition and totaled $119$536 million at March 31, 2023.June 30, 2023 an increase of
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$414 million compared to $122 million at December 31, 2022 driven by the Signature Transaction.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we also had commitments to extend credit in the form of mortgage and other loan originations, as well as commercial, performance stand-by,
and financial stand-by letters of credit. These commitments consist of agreements to extend credit, as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract
under which the loan is made. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require the payment of a fee.

The following table summarizes the Company’s commitments to originate loans and letters of credit:

(in millions)

Multi-family and

(in millions) March 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Multi-family and

(in millions) June 30, 2023

December 31, 2022

Multi-family and

commercial real estate commercial real estate $ 93 216 commercial real estate $ 96 216

One-to-four family One-to-four family One-to-four family

including interest rate including interest rate including interest rate

locks locks 1,977 2,066 locks 2,497 2,066

Acquisition, Acquisition, Acquisition,

development, and development, and development, and

construction construction 3,814 3,539 construction 4,281 3,539

Warehouse loan Warehouse loan Warehouse loan

commitments commitments 7,168 8,042 commitments 5,479 8,042

Other loan Other loan Other loan

commitments commitments 10,822 7,964 commitments 11,484 7,964

Total loan Total loan Total loan

commitments commitments $ 23,874 21,827 commitments $ 23,837 21,827

Commercial, Commercial, Commercial,

performance stand-by, performance stand-by, performance stand-by,

and financial stand-by and financial stand-by and financial stand-by

letters of credit letters of credit 1,038 541 letters of credit 941 541
Total commitments Total commitments §$ 24,912 22,368 Total commitments $ 24,778 $ 22,368

The letters of credit we issue consist of performance stand-by, financial stand-by, and commercial letters of credit. Financial stand-by letters of credit primarily are issued for
the benefit of other financial institutions, municipalities, or landlords on behalf of certain of our current borrowers, and obligate us to guarantee payment of a specified financial
obligation. Performance stand-by letters of credit are primarily issued for the benefit of local municipalities on behalf of certain of our borrowers. Performance letters of credit
obligate us to make payments in the event that a specified third party fails to perform under non-financial contractual obligations. Commercial letters of credit act as a means of
ensuring payment to a seller upon shipment of goods to a buyer. Although commercial letters of credit are used to effect payment for domestic transactions, the majority are used
to settle payments in international trade. Typically, such letters of credit require the presentation of documents that describe the commercial transaction, and provide evidence of
shipment and the transfer of title. The fees we collect in connection with the issuance of letters of credit are included in “Fee income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

Based upon our current liquidity position, and ready liquidity of $42 billion, $37.7 billion, we expect that our funding will be sufficient to fulfill these cash obligations and
commitments when they are due both in the short term and long term.

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we did not engage in any off-balance sheet transactions that we expect to have a material effect on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, we had no commitments to purchase securities.
Regulatory Capital

The Bank is subject to regulation, examination, and supervision by the OCC and the Federal Reserve (the “Regulators”). The Bank is also governed by numerous federal and
state laws and regulations, including the FDIC Improvement Act of 1991, which established five categories of capital adequacy ranging from “well capitalized” to “critically
undercapitalized.” Such classifications are used by the FDIC to determine various matters, including prompt corrective action and each institution’s FDIC deposit insurance
premium assessments. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to the Regulators’ qualitative judgments about the components of capital and risk weightings, among
other factors.

The quantitative measures established to ensure capital adequacy require that banks maintain minimum amounts and ratios of leverage capital to average assets and of
common equity tier 1 capital, tier 1 capital, and total capital to risk-weighted assets (as such measures are defined in the regulations). At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, our capital
measures continued to exceed the minimum federal requirements for a bank holding company and for a bank. The following table sets forth our common equity tier 1, tier 1 risk-
based, total risk-based, and leverage capital amounts and ratios on a consolidated basis and for the Bank on a stand-alone basis, as well as the respective minimum regulatory
capital requirements, at that date:

The following tables present the actual capital amounts and ratios for the Company:
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Risk-Based Capital

Risk-Based Capital

Common Equity Tier 1 Total Leverage Capital
March 31, 2023 Tier 1
June 30, June 30, Common Equity Tier 1 Total Leverage Capital
2023 2023 Tier 1
(dollars in  (dollars in Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio (dollars in Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio
millions) millions) millions)
Total Total $ 799 928 % $ 8472 986 % $ 9943 1157 % $ 8472 9.18 % Total $ 8269 959 % $ 8772 1017 % $ 10304 1195 % $ 8772 737 %
capital capital capital
Minimum  Minimum 3,866 4.50 5154 6.00 6,873 8.00 3,691 4.00 Minimum 3,881 4.50 5,175 6.00 6,900 8.00 4,762 4.00
for capital for capital for capital
adequacy adequacy adequacy
purposes  purposes purposes
Excess Excess $ 4103 478 % $ 3318 386 % $ 3070 357 % $ 4,781 5.18 % Excess $ 4388 509 % $ 3597 417 % $ 3404 395 % $ 4010 337 %
December December December
31, 2022 31, 2022 31, 2022
Total Total $ 6335 906 % $ 6838 978 % $ 8154 11.66 % $ 6,838 9.70 % Total $ 6335 906 % $ 6838 978 % $ 8154 1166 % $ 6838 970 %
capital capital capital
Minimum  Minimum 3,146 4.50 4,195 6.00 5593  8.00 2,819 4.00 Minimum 3,146  4.50 4,195  6.00 5593  8.00 2,819 4.00
for capital for capital for capital
adequacy adequacy adequacy
purposes  purposes purposes
Excess Excess $ 3189 456 % $ 2643 378 % $ 2,561 366 % $ 4,019 570 % Excess $ 3189 456 % $ 2,643 378 % $ 2,561 366 % $ 4019 570 %
The following tables present the actual capital amounts and ratios for the Bank:
Risk-Based Capital Risk-Based Capital
Common Equity Tier 1 Total Leverage Capital
March 31, 2023 Tier 1
June 30, June 30, Common Equity Tier 1 Total Leverage Capital
2023 2023 Tier 1
(dollars in  (dollarsin  Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio (dollarsin  Amount Ratio ~ Amount Ratio ~ Amount Ratio ~ Amount Ratio
millions) millions) millions)
Total Total $ 9288 1082 % $ 9,288 10.82 % $ 9,769 11.38 % $ 9,288 10.08 % Total $ 9587 11.12 % $ 9,587 11.12 % $ 10,128 11.75 % $ 9,587 8.06 %
capital capital capital
Minimum  Minimum 3,863 4.50 5,150 6.00 6,867 8.00 3,688 4.00 Minimum 3,878 4.50 5171 6.00 6,895 8.00 4,759 4.00
for capital for capital for capital
adequacy adequacy adequacy
purposes  purposes purposes
Excess Excess $ 5425 632 % $ 4138 482 % $ 2902 338 % $ 5600 6.08 % Excess $ 5709 662 % $ 4416 512 % $ 3233 375 % $ 4828 406 %
December December December
31, 2022 31, 2022 31, 2022
Total Total $ 7653 109 % $ 7,653 1096 % $ 7,982 1143 % $ 7,653 10.87 % Total $ 7,653 1096 % $ 7,653 1096 % $ 7,982 1143 % $ 7,653 10.87 %
capital capital capital
Minimum  Minimum 3,142 4.50 4,189 6.00 5,585 8.00 2,817 4.00 Minimum 3,142 4.50 4,189 6.00 5,585 8.00 2,817 4.00
for capital for capital for capital
adequacy adequacy adequacy
purposes  purposes purposes
Excess Excess $ 4511 646 % $ 3,464 496 % $ 2,397 343 % $ 4,836 6.87 % Excess $ 451 6.46 % $ 3,464 496 % $ 2397 343 % $ 4836 6.87 %

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, our total risk-based capital ratio exceeded the minimum requirement for capital adequacy purposes by 357395 basis points and the fully
phased-in capital conservation buffer by 107 145 basis points.

The Bank also exceeded the minimum capital requirements to be categorized as “Well Capitalized.” To be categorized as well capitalized, a bank must maintain a minimum
common equity tier 1 ratio of 6.50 percent; a minimum tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8 percent; a minimum total risk-based capital ratio of 10 percent; and a minimum leverage

capital ratio of 5 percent.
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RECONCILIATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY, COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, AND TANGIBLE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY; TOTAL ASSETS AND TANGIBLE
ASSETS; AND THE RELATED MEASURES

While stockholders’ equity, common stockholders’ equity, total assets, and book value per common share are financial measures that are recorded in accordance with U.S.
GAAP, tangible common stockholders’ equity, tangible assets, and tangible book value per common share are not. It is management'’s belief that these non-GAAP measures should
be disclosed in this report and others we issue for the following reasons:

1. Tangible common stockholders’ equity is an important indication of the Company’s ability to grow organically and through business combinations, as well as its ability to
pay dividends and to engage in various capital management strategies.

2. Tangible book value per common share and the ratio of tangible common stockholders’ equity to tangible assets are among the capital measures considered by current
and prospective investors, both independent of, and in comparison with, the Company’s peers.

Tangible common stockholders' equity, tangible assets, and the related non-GAAP measures should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for stockholders’ equity,
common stockholders' equity, total assets, or any other measure calculated in accordance with GAAP. Moreover, the manner in which we calculate these non-GAAP measures may
differ from that of other companies reporting non-GAAP measures with similar names.

Reconciliations of our stockholders’ equity, common stockholders’ equity, and tangible common stockholders’ equity; our total assets and tangible assets; and the related
financial measures for the respective periods follow:

At or for the Three months ended Three Months Ended, Six months ended

(dollars in (dollars in March 31, 2023 March 31,2022  (dollars in June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
millions) millions) millions)

Stockholders’ Stockholders’ $ 10,782 $ 6,909 Stockholders’ $ 11,060 $ 10,782 $ 11,060 $ 6,824
Equity Equity Equity

Less: Goodwill  Less: Goodwill (3,160) (2,426) Less: Goodwill (3,123) (3,160) (3,123) (2,426)
and other and other and other

intangible assets intangible assets intangible assets

Preferred stock Preferred stock (503) (503) Preferred stock (503) (503) (503) (503)
Tangible Tangible $ 7,119 $ 3,980 Tangible $ 7,434 $ 7,119 $ 7,434 $ 3,895
common common common

stockholders’ stockholders’ stockholders’

equity equity equity

Total Assets Total Assets $ 123,706 $ 61,005 Total Assets $ 118,796 $ 123,706 $ 118,796 $ 63,093
Less: Goodwill  Less: Goodwill (3,160) (2,426) Less: Goodwill (3,123) (3,160) (3,123) (2,426)
and other and other and other

intangible assets intangible assets intangible assets

Tangible assets Tangible assets $ 120,546 $ 58,579 Tangible assets  § 115,673 $ 120,546 $ 115,673 $ 60,667
Common Common 8.31 % 10.50 % Common 8.89 % 8.31 % 8.89 % 10.02 %
stockholders’ stockholders’ stockholders’

equity to total  equity to total equity to total

assets assets assets

Tangible Tangible 5,81 6.79 % Tangible 6.43 5.91 % 6.43 % 6.42
common common common

stockholders’ stockholders’ stockholders’

equity to equity to equity to

tangible assets  tangible assets tangible assets

Book value per Book value per $ 14.23 $ 13.72 Book value per $ 14.61 $ 14.23 14.61 $ 13.56
common share common share common share

Tangible book  Tangible book $ 9.86 $ 8.52 Tangible book  $ 10.29 $ 9.86 10.29 $ 8.35

value per

common share

Market Risk

value per

common share

value per

common share

As a financial institution, we are focused on reducing our exposure to interest rate volatility, which represents our primary market risk. Changes in market interest rates
represent the greatest challenge to our financial performance, as such changes can have a significant impact on the level of income and expense recorded on a large portion of our
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and on the market value of all interest-earning assets, other than those possessing a short term to maturity. To reduce our
exposure to changing rates, the Board of Directors and management monitor interest rate sensitivity on a regular or as needed basis so that adjustments to the asset and liability
mix can be made when deemed appropriate.
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The actual duration of held-for-investment mortgage loans and mortgage-related securities can be significantly impacted by changes in prepayment levels and market
interest rates. The level of prepayments may, in turn, be impacted by a variety of factors, including the economy in the region where the underlying mortgages were originated;
seasonal factors; demographic variables; and the assumability of the underlying mortgages. However, the factors with the most significant impact on prepayments are market
interest rates and the availability of refinancing opportunities.

We managed our interest rate risk by taking the following actions: (1) We have continued to emphasize the origination and retention of intermediate-term assets, primarily in
the form of multi-family and CRE loans; (2) We have continued the origination of certain C&I loans that feature floating interest rates; (3) Increased the focus on retaining low costs
deposits; and (4) Obtained new low cost deposits as part of the banking-as-a-service initiative (5) The use of derivatives to manage our interest rate position.

Uninsured Deposits

We manage our liquidity to ensure that our cash flows are sufficient to support our operations, and to compensate for any temporary mismatches between sources and uses
of funds caused by variable loan and deposit demand. As a result, we have $42 billion $37.7 billion of total ready liquidity (cash and cash equivalents, unpledged securities, and Fed
Funds access and FHLB borrowing capacity), which all together exceed approximately matching the balance of our level of uninsured deposits. deposits. Our uninsured deposits
are the portion of deposit accounts that exceed the FDIC insurance limit (currently $250,000). These amounts were estimated based on the same methodologies and assumptions
used for regulatory reporting purposes and excludes internal accounts. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 our deposit base includes $29.2 billion $37.8 billion of uninsured deposits,
reflecting a net increase of $9.6 $18.2 billion as compared to December 31, 2022 due to the Signature Transaction. This represents 3443 percent of our total deposits.

LIBOR Transition Process and Phase Out

The Company has certain loans, interest rate swap agreements, investment securities, and debt obligations whose interest rate is indexed to LIBOR. In 2017, the FCA, which is
responsible for regulating LIBOR, announced that the publication of LIBOR is not guaranteed beyond 2021. In December 2020, the administrator of LIBOR announced its intention
to (i) cease the publication of the one-week and two-month U.S. dollar LIBOR after December 31, 2021, and (ii) cease the publication of all other tenors of U.S. dollar LIBOR (one,
three, six, and 12-month LIBOR) after June 30, 2023, and on March 15, 2021, announced that it will permanently cease to publish most LIBOR settings beginning on January 1, 2022
and cease to publish the overnight, one-month, three-month, six-month, and 12-month U.S. dollar LIBOR settings on July 1, 2023. Accordingly, the FCA has stated that it does not
intend to persuade or compel banks to submit to LIBOR after such respective dates. Until such time, however, FCA panel banks have agreed to continue to support LIBOR. In
October 2021, the Federal bank regulatory agencies issued a Joint Statement on Managing the LIBOR Transition that offered their regulatory expectations and outlined potential
supervisory and enforcement consequences for banks that fail to adequately plan for and implement the transition away from LIBOR. The failure to properly transition away from
LIBOR may result in increased supervisory scrutiny. The implementation of a substitute index for the calculation of interest rates under the Company's loan agreements may result
in disputes or litigation with counterparties over the appropriateness or comparability to LIBOR of the substitute index, which would have an adverse effect on the Company's
results of operations. Even when robust fallback language is included, there can be no assurances that the replacement rate plus any spread adjustment will be economically
equivalent to LIBOR, which could result in a lower interest rate being paid to the Company on such assets.

The Alternative Reference Rates Committee (a group of private-market participants convened by the FRB and the FRB-NY) has identified SOFR as the recommended alternative to
LIBOR. The use of SOFR as a substitute for LIBOR is voluntary and may not be suitable for all market participants. SOFR is calculated and observed differently than LIBOR. Given the
manner in which SOFR is calculated, it is likely to be lower than LIBOR and is less likely to correlate with the funding costs of financial institutions. Market practices related to SOFR
calculation conventions continue to develop and may vary. Inconsistent calculation conventions among financial products may expose is to increased basic rate and resultant
costs.

Other alternatives to LIBOR also exist, but, because of the difference in how those alternatives are constructed, they may diverge significantly from LIBOR in a range of situations
and market conditions.

The Bank established a sub-committee of ALCO to address issues related to the phase out and transition from LIBOR. This sub-committee consists of personnel from various
departments through the Bank including lending, loan administration, credit risk management, finance/treasury, including interest rate risk and liquidity management, information
technology, and operations. The Company has LIBOR-based contracts that extend beyond June 30, 2023. The sub-committee has monitored the Bank’s LIBOR transition progress
and substantially all contracts have been updated. In complying with industry requirements, the Bank has not offered new LIBOR-based products since December 31, 2021.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Interest rate sensitivity is monitored through the use of a model that generates estimates of the change in our Economic Value of Equity (EVE) over a range of interest rate
scenarios. EVE is defined as the net present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet contracts. The EVE ratio, under any interest rate scenario, is
defined as the EVE in that scenario divided by the market value of assets in the same scenario. The model assumes estimated loan and MBS prepayment rates, current market
value spreads, and deposit decay rates and betas.

Based on the information and assumptions in effect at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the following table sets forth our EVE, assuming the changes in interest rates noted:

Estimated Percentage Change in Economic Value of

Change in Interest Rates (in basis points) Equity
-200 over one year (8.82) (3.6)%
-100 over one year (3.09) (1.5)%
+100 over one year 2.59% (0.6)%
+200 over one year 4.65% (1.5)%

The net changes in EVE presented in the preceding table are within the parameters approved by the Boards of Directors of the Company and the Bank.
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Accordingly, while the EVE analysis provides an indication of our interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to, and do not,
provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income, and may very well differ from actual results.

Interest Rate Risk is also monitored through the use of a model that generates Net Interest Income (NII) simulations over a range of interest rate scenarios. Modeling changes
in NIl requires that certain assumptions be made which may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this
regard, the NIl analysis presented below assumes that the composition of our interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant
over the period being measured, and also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve, regardless of the duration to maturity or
repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Furthermore, the model does not take into account the benefit of any strategic actions we may take to further reduce our exposure to
interest rate risk. The assumptions used in the net interest income simulation are inherently uncertain. Actual results may differ significantly from those presented in the following
table, due to the frequency, timing, and magnitude of changes in interest rates; changes in spreads between maturity and repricing categories; and prepayments, among other
factors, coupled with any actions taken to counter the effects of any such changes.

Based on the information and assumptions in effect at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the following table reflects the estimated percentage change in future net interest
income for the next twelve months, assuming the changes in interest rates noted:

Change in Interest Rates (in basis points) Estimated Percentage Change in Future
Q) Net Interest Income

-200 over one year (12.5)(8.9)%
-100 over one year (6.1) (4.9)%
+100 over one year 4.9% 5.0%
+200 over one year 10.3% 10.0%

(1) In general, short- and long-term rates are assumed to increase in parallel instantaneously and then remain unchanged.
The net changes in NIl presented in the preceding table are within the parameters approved by the Boards of Directors of the Company and the Bank.
Future changes in our mix of assets and liabilities may result in greater changes to our EVE, and/or NIl simulations.

In the event that our EVE and net interest income sensitivities were to breach our internal policy limits, we would undertake the following actions to ensure that appropriate
remedial measures were put in place:

+ In formulating appropriate strategies, the ALCO Committee would ascertain the primary causes of the variance from policy tolerances, the expected term of such
conditions, and the projected effect on capital and earnings.

+ Our ALCO Committee would inform the Board of Directors of the variance, and present recommendations to the Board regarding proposed courses of action to restore
conditions to within-policy tolerances.

Where temporary changes in market conditions or volume levels result in significant increases in risk, strategies may involve reducing open positions or employing other
balance sheet management activities including the potential use of derivatives to reduce the risk exposure. Where variance from policy tolerances is triggered by more
fundamental imbalances in the risk profiles of core loan and deposit products, a remedial strategy may involve restoring balance through natural hedges to the extent possible
before employing synthetic hedging techniques. Other strategies might include:

+  Asset restructuring, involving sales of assets having higher risk profiles, or a gradual restructuring of the asset mix over time to affect the maturity or repricing schedule of
assets;

+  Liability restructuring, whereby product offerings and pricing are altered or wholesale borrowings are employed to affect the maturity structure or repricing of liabilities;
+  Expansion or shrinkage of the balance sheet to correct imbalances in the repricing or maturity periods between assets and liabilities; and/or
+  Use or alteration of off-balance sheet positions, including interest rate swaps, caps, floors, options, and forward purchase or sales commitments.

In connection with our net interest income simulation modeling, we also evaluate the impact of changes in the slope of the yield curve. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, our
analysis indicated that a further inversion of the yield curve would be expected to result in a 5.26 3.8 percent decrease in net interest income; conversely, an immediate steepening
of the yield curve would be expected to result in a 1.51 1.5 percent increase in net interest income.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Various elements of our accounting policies, by their nature, are subject to estimation techniques, valuation assumptions and other subjective assessments. Certain
accounting policies that, due to the judgment, estimates and assumptions are critical to an understanding of our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes, are described in
Item 1. These policies relate to: (a) the determination of our ACL, (b) fair value measurements and (c) the acquisition method of accounting. We believe the judgment, estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes are appropriate given the factual circumstances at the time. However, given the
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sensitivity of our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to these critical accounting policies, the use of other judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in

material differences in our results of operations and/or financial condition.

For further information on our critical accounting policies, please refer to our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, which is available on our website, under the

Investor Relations section, or on the website of the Securities and Exchange Commission, at sec.gov.

Signature Transaction - Certain Financial Information

In accordance with the guidance provided in Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1:K, “Financial Statements of Acquired Troubled Financial Institutions” (“SAB 1:K"), and a pending

request for relief submitted by the Company to the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance therewith, the Company has omitted certain financial information on the

Signature Transaction required by Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X and Article 11 of Regulation S-X. SAB 1:K provides relief from the requirements of Rule 3-05 and Article 11 of Regulation
S-X under certain circumstances, including a transaction such as the Signature Transaction, in which the registrant engages in an acquisition of a troubled financial institution for
which historical financial statements are not reasonably available or relevant and in which federal assistance is an essential and significant part of the transaction.

Reportable Segment and Reporting Units

We operate in a single reportable segment and have identified one reporting unit which is the same as our operating segment. Following the acquisition of Flagstar Bank, N.A.
and closing the Signature Transaction, we are currently in the process of reassessing our reportable segments and reporting units, which may result in a change to either or both in

future reporting periods.

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Condition

(in millions, except per share data)
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities:

Debt Securities available-for-sale $825 and $434 pledged at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively)
Equity investments with readily determinable fair values, at fair value
Total securities
Loans held for sale, at fair value
Loans and leases held for investment, net of deferred loan fees and costs
Less: Allowance for credit losses on loans and leases
Total loans and leases held for investment, net
Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost
Premises and equipment, net
Core deposit and otherintangibles
Goodwill
Mortgage servicing rights
Bank-owned life insurance
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Deposits:

Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Non-interest-bearing accounts
Total deposits
Borrowed funds:

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Junior subordinated debentures

Subordinated notes
Total borrowed funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
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March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
(unaudited)

22,250 % 2,032
7,599 9,060
14 14
7,613 9,074
1,305 i1
82,547 69,001
(550) (393)
81,997 68,608
1,356 1,267
628 491
734 287
2,426 2,426
1,034 1,033
1,564 1,561
2,799 2,250
123,706 $ 90,144

32,146 % 22,511
10,302 11,645
19,355 12,510
22,997 12,055
84,800 58,721
20,350 20,325
576 575
434 432
21,360 21,332
6,764 1,267
112,924 81,320
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Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock at par $0.01 (5,000,000 shares authorized): Series A (515,000 shares issued and outstanding) 503 503
Common stock at par $0.01 (900,000,000 shares authorized; 744,461,392 and 705,429,386
shares issued; and 722,150,297 and 681,217,334 shares outstanding, respectively) 7 7
Paid-in capital in excess of par 8,197 8,130
Retained earnings 2,923 1,041
Treasury stock, at cost ($22,311,095 and 24,212,052 shares, respectively) (219) (237)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale, net of tax of $219 and $240, respectively (566) (626)
Net unrealized loss on pension and post-retirement obligations, net of tax of $17 and $18, respectively (44) (46)
Net unrealized (loss) gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax of $5 and $(20), respectively (19) 52
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax (629) (620)
Total stockholders’ equity 10,782 8,824
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 123706  $ 90,144
(unaudited)
June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
(in millions, except per share data)
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15806 $ 2,032
Securities:

Debt Securities available-for-sale $1,275 and $434 pledged at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively) 7,782 9,060
Equity investments with readily determinable fair values, at fair value 14 14
Total securities 7,796 9,074
Loans held for sale ($1,572 and $1,115 measured at fair value, respectively) 2,194 1,115
Loans and leases held for investment, net of deferred loan fees and costs 83,278 69,001
Less: Allowance for credit losses on loans and leases (594) (393)
Total loans and leases held for investment, net 82,684 68,608
Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 1,136 1,267
Premises and equipment, net 660 491
Core deposit and other intangibles 697 287
Goodwill 2,426 2,426
Mortgage servicing rights 1,031 1,033
Bank-owned life insurance 1,567 1,561
Other assets 2,799 2,250
Total assets $ 11879%  $ 90,144
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Deposits:

Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts $ 30,795 $ 22,511

Savings accounts 9,762 11,645

Certificates of deposit 18,188 12,510

Non-interest-bearing accounts 29,752 12,055
Total deposits 88,497 58,721
Borrowed funds:

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 15,400 20,325

Junior subordinated debentures 577 575

Subordinated notes 435 432
Total borrowed funds 16,412 21,332
Other liabilities 2,827 1,267
Total liabilities 107,736 81,320
Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock at par $0.01 (5,000,000 shares authorized): Series A (515,000 shares issued and outstanding) 503 503

Common stock at par $0.01 (900,000,000 shares authorized; 744,506,254 and 705,429,386
shares issued; and 722,475,755 and 681,217,334 shares outstanding, respectively) 7 7
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Paid-in capital in excess of par

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost ($22,030,499 and 24,212,052 shares, respectively)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale, net of tax of $255 and $240, respectively

Net unrealized loss on pension and post-retirement obligations, net of tax of $17 and $18, respectively

Net unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax of $(26) and $(20), respectively

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

(in millions, except per (in millions, except per March 31, 2023

share data)
INTEREST INCOME:
Loans and leases

Securities and
money market

investments

share data)

INTEREST INCOME:

Loans and leases $

Securities and
money market

investments

Total interest income Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest-bearing
checking and
money market
accounts
Savings accounts
Certificates of
deposit
Borrowed funds

Total interest

expense
Net interest
income

Provision for

(recovery of) credit

losses
Net interest
income after
provision for
credit loan losses

NON-INTEREST

INCOME:

Fee income
Bank-owned life
insurance

Net (loss) on

securities

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest-bearing
checking and
money market
accounts
Savings accounts
Certificates of
deposit
Borrowed funds

Total interest

expense
Net interest
income

Provision for

(recovery of) credit

losses
Net interest
income after
provision for
credit loan losses

NON-INTEREST

INCOME:

8,204 8,130

3,205 1,041

217) (237)

(668) (626)

43) (46)

69 52

(642) (620)

11,060 8,824

$ 118,79  $ 90,144

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

Three Months Ended,

Three Months Ended June 30,

Six months ended June 30,

December 31, 2022

March 31, 2022 (in millions, except per
share data) 2023 2022

867

167

92

$ 393

2023

2022

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans and leases $ 1,161 $ 424

36 Securities and 337 49
money market

investments

1,034

157

39

87

196

681

122

27

51

102

$ 2,028

504

817

85

429 Total interest income 1,498 473
INTEREST EXPENSE:
8 Interest-bearing 232 24
checking and
money market
accounts
8 Savings accounts 40 10
1 Certificates of 169 12
deposit

70 Borrowed funds 157 68

479

302

2,532

389

79

256

353

902

32

23

138

97 Total interest 598 114

expense

1,077

21

555)

170

379

124

332 Net interest 900 359
income
) Provision for 49 9
(recovery of) credit

losses

385

1,455

219

691

334 Net interest 851 350
income after
provision for
credit loan losses
NON-INTEREST
INCOME:

Fee income 48 6

Bank-owned life 11 7

insurance

Net (loss) on

securities
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1,236

75

21

(1)

684

M
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Net return on
mortgage
servicing rights
Net gain on loan
sales and

securitizations

Net Loan

administration

income
Bargain purchase Bargain purchase 2,001 159 —
gain gain
Fee income 27 10 6
Net return on mortgage servicing rights 22 6 —
Net gain on loan sales 20 5 —
Other Other " 7 2
Bank-owned life insurance 10 8 7
Loan administration income 7 3 —
Net loss on securities — — m
Total non-interest Total non-interest 2,098 198 14
income income
NON-INTEREST NON-INTEREST
EXPENSE: EXPENSE:
Operating expenses: Operating expenses:
Compensation Compensation 219 116 80
and benefits and benefits
Occupancy and Occupancy and 37 25 23
equipment equipment
General and General and 136 63 il
administrative administrative
Total operating Total operating 392 204 134
expense expense
Intangible asset Intangible asset 17 5 —
amortization amortization
Merger-related expenses 67 60 7
Merger-related
and restructuring
expenses
Total non-interest  Total non-interest 476 269 141
expense expense
Income before Income before 2,007 184 207
income taxes income taxes
Income tax expense Income tax expense 1 12 52
Net income Net income $ 2,006 172 155
Preferred stock Preferred stock 8
dividends dividends
Net income Net income $ 1,998 164 147
available to available to
common common
stockholders stockholders
Basic earnings per Basic earnings per
common share common share  $ 2.88 0.30 0.31
Diluted earnings Diluted earnings
per common per common
share share $ 2.87 0.30 0.31
Net income Net income $ 2,006 172 155

Net return on 25
mortgage

servicing rights

Net gain on loan 25
sales and

securitizations

Net Loan 39
administration

income

Bargain purchase 141

gain

Other 14

47

45

46

2,142

25

Total non-interest 302

income

NON-INTEREST

EXPENSE:

Operating expenses:
Compensation 289
and benefits
Occupancy and 50
equipment
General and 176

administrative

79

22

33

2,400

508

87

312

32

159

45

64

Total operating 515
expense
Intangible asset 37

amortization

Merger-related 109
and restructuring

expenses

134

907

54

176

268

Total non-interest 661

expense

1,137

279

Income before 492

income taxes

Income tax expense 79

59

2,499

80

437

111

Net income $ 413

Preferred stock
dividends

171

$ 2,419

326

Net income $ 405
available to
common

stockholders

163

$ 2,403

310

Basic earnings per

common share $ 0.55

0.34

0.66

Diluted earnings
percommon

share $ 0.55

0.34

0.66

Net income $ 413

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

171

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.

$ 2,419

326

39/210

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
tax:
Change in net unrealized (loss) gain on 60
securities available for sale, net of tax of
$(21); $6; and $82;, respectively
Change in pension and post-retirement 1

obligations, net of tax of $0; $6; and $0;,
respectively

Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on 67)

cash flow hedges, net of tax of $23; $(6);
and $(4);, respectively

Other
comprehensive loss,
net of tax:

Change in net
unrealized loss on
securities available
for sale, net of tax
of $36; $68; $15 and
$150;, respectively
Change in pension
and post-retirement
obligations, net of
tax of $(1); $0; $(1)
and $0;,
respectively

Change in net

unrealized gain on

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $(32);

$(3); $(9) and $(7);,

respectively
Reclassification adjustment for defined 1
benefit pension plan, net of tax of $(1);
$0; and $0;, respectively

Reclassification adjustment for net gain @

on cash flow hedges included in net
income, net of tax $2; $2; and $(2);,
respectively

Total other comprehensive (loss) income, 9)

net of tax

Reclassification
adjustment for
defined benefit
pension plan, net
of tax of $1; $0; $0
and $0;,
respectively
Reclassification
adjustment for
net (loss) gain on
cash flow hedges
included in net
income, net of tax
$1; $0; $3 and
$(2);, respectively

Total other
comprehensive loss,

net of tax

(14)

(18)

(6)

(18)

(215)

(199)

Total comprehensive Total comprehensive $ 1,997
income (loss), net of income (loss), net of

tax tax

154

(44)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

(in millions,  (in millions, preferred  Common

except share except share Shares  Stock (Par  Stock (Par
Value: Value:

data) data) Outstanding  $0,01) $0.01)

Other
comprehensive loss,
net of tax:

Change in net (102) (176)
unrealized loss on

securities available

for sale, net of tax

of $36; $68; $15 and

$150;, respectively

Change in pension 1 0
and post-retirement

obligations, net of

tax of $(1); $0; $(1)

and $0;,

respectively

Change in net 92 6
unrealized gain on

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $(32);

$(3); $(9) and $(7);,

respectively

Reclassification 1
adjustment for

defined benefit

pension plan, net

of tax of $1; $0; $0

and $0;,

respectively

Reclassification @ 1
adjustment for

net (loss) gain on

cash flow hedges

included in net

income, net of tax

$1; $0; $3 and

$(2);, respectively

(42) (391)

25 18

Total other (13) (169)
comprehensive loss,

net of tax

(22) (368)

Total comprehensive $ 400 $ 2
income (loss), net of

tax

$ 2,397 $ (42)

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

Treasury
Retained  Stock, at

Cost

Total (in millions,

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
(unaudited)

Paid-in

Capital

Preferred Common n

Comprehensive Stockholders' except share Shares ~ Stock (Par Stock (Par  excess

Value: Value:

Equity data) Outstanding  $0.01) $0.01) of Par
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Three Months Three Months

Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2023 2023

Balance at Balance at
March 31,2023 March 31,2023
Sharesissued Sharesissued
for restricted for restricted
stock, net of stock, net of
forfeitures forfeitures
Compensation Compensation
expense expense
related to related to
restricted stock restricted stock
awards awards
Netincome Netincome
Dividends paid Dividends paid
on common on common
stock ($0.17) stock ($0.17)
Dividends paid Dividends paid
on preferred on preferred
stock ($15.94) stock ($15.94)
Purchase of Purchase of
common stock common stock
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
loss, net of tax loss, net of tax
Balance atjune Balance atjune
30,2023 30,2023

Three Months Three Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2022 2022

Balance at Balance at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2022
Sharesissued Sharesissued
for restricted for restricted
stock, net of stock, net of
forfeitures forfeitures

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

722150297 $ 503 7 $8197 $ 2923 $ (219) $ (629) $ 10,782
515,635 — — ) — 4 = _
— — 1 = = = 1

= = = 413 = = 413

— = - 23 = — (123)

= = = ® = = ®)

(190,177) — — — — 2 = 2
_ — = — — (13) (13)

722475755 $ 503 7 $8204 $ 3205 $ (217) $ (642) $ 11,060
467,024,144 $ 503 5 $6107 $ 809 $ (231) $ (284 $ 6909

28,930 =
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Compensation
expense
related to
restricted stock
awards
Netincome

Dividends paid
‘on common
stock ($0.17)

Dividends paid
on preferred
stock ($15.94)
Purchase of

common stock
Other
comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Balance atjune

30,2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

(in millions, except share data)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2022

Issuance and exercise of FDIC Equity appreciation instrument

Sharesissued for restricted stock, net of forfeitures
Compensation expense related to restricted stock awards

Netincome

Dividends paid on common stock ($0.34)

Dividends paid on preferred stock ($31.88)

Purchase of common stock
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Balance at June 30, 2023

Six Months Ended June 30, 2022

Balance at December 31, 2021

Sharesissued for restricted stock, net of forfeitures
Compensation expense related to restricted stock awards

Netincome

Dividends paid on common stock ($0.34)

Dividends paid on preferred stock ($31.88)

Purchase of common stock
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Balance at June 30, 2022

Compensation
expense
related to

restricted stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

awards = = = 7 = = = 7
Netincome = = = = 7 = = 17
Dividends paid
on common
stock ($0.17) — - — — (79) = = (79)
Dividends paid
on preferred
stock ($15.94) - - - - 8) = = 8
Purchase of
common stock (809,996) = = = = (7) = 7)
Other
comprehensive
loss, net of tax — — — = = = (169) (169)
Balance atjune
30,2022 466243078 $ 503 5 $6114 $ 893 $ (238 $ 453 $ 6824
New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
(unaudited)
Accumulated
Other Total
Paid-in Capital in Retained Treasury Stock, Comprehensive Stockholders’
Preferred Stock (Par Common Stock (Par
Shares Outstanding Value: $0.01) Value: $0.01) excess of Par Earnings at Cost Loss, Net of Tax Equity
681,217,334 $ 503 $ 7 % 8,130 1,041 $ (237) $ (620) $ 8,824
39,032,006 = = 85 = = = 85
3,393,046 = = (31) = 31 = =
0 = = 20 = = = 20
0 — — — 2,419 — — 2,419
0 = = = (239) = = (239)
0 — = — (16) — = (16)
(1,166,631) = = = = an = (n
0 — = — — = (22) (22)
722475755 $ 503 $ 7 $ 8,204 3205 $ (217) $ (642) $ 11,060
465,015,643 $ 503 $ 5 $ 6,126 741 $ (246) $ (85 $ 7,044
2,939,365 — - (27) — 27 — —
- = - 15 = - = 15
— — — — 326 — — 326
= = = = (158) = = (158)
= = = = (16) = = (16)
(1,711,930) — — — = (19 — (19
_ = = — - = (368) (368)
466,243,078 $ 503 $ 5 % 6,114 893 $ (238) $ (453) $ 6,824
New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, For the Six Months Ended June 30,
42/210
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(in millions) (in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Adjustments to
reconcile net income
to net cash (used in)
provided by operating
activities:

Provision for loan

losses

Provision for loan

losses

Amortization of core deposit intangible

Amortization of
intangibles
Depreciation
Amortization of
discounts and
premiums, net

Net (gain) loss on
securities

Net (gain) loss on
sales of loans

Net gain on sales of
fixed assets

Gain on business
acquisition
Stock-based
compensation
Deferred tax expense

Changes in operating

assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in

other assets

(Decrease) increase in
other liabilities
Purchases of
securities held for
trading

Proceeds from sales
of securities held for

trading

Change in loans held

for sale, net

Depreciation

Amortization of
discounts and

premiums, net

Net (gain) loss on

sales of loans

Gain on business
acquisition
Stock-based
compensation

Deferred tax expense

Changes in operating

assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in

other assets

(Decrease) increase in
other liabilities
Purchases of
securities held for
trading

Proceeds from sales
of securities held for

trading

Change in loans held

for sale, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash (used in)
provided by operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from
repayment of
securities available

for sale

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from
repayment of
securities available

for sale

2023 2022

2,006 $ 155
170 (2)
17 —

8 5

(36) (1)
(20) =
(2,001) —
9 7
1" @)
112 —
2,697 29
(10) (35)

10 35

62 —
3,035 185
664 163

(in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income

Adjustments to
reconcile net income
to net cash (used in)
provided by operating
activities:

Provision for loan

losses

Amortization of

intangibles
Depreciation

Amortization of
discounts and

premiums, net

Net (gain) loss on

securities

Net (gain) loss on

sales of loans

Net gain on sales of

fixed assets

Gain on business
acquisition
Stock-based
compensation
Deferred tax expense

Changes in operating

assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in

other assets

(Decrease) increase in
other liabilities
Purchases of
securities held for
trading

Proceeds from sales
of securities held for

trading

Change in loans held

for sale, net

Net cash (used in)
provided by operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from
repayment of
securities available

for sale

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

2023 2022

2,419 $ 326
219 7
54 =

18 9
(119) @

1 1

(45) =
= 2)
(2,142) =
20 15
(44) (15)
1) 42
(969) 18
(10) 35)

10 35
911) =
(1,570) 399
1,148 397
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Proceeds from sales
of securities
available for sale
Purchase of
securities available

for sale

Redemption of
Federal Home Loan
Bank stock
Purchases of Federal
Home Loan Bank
and Federal Reserve

Bank stock

Proceeds from bank-
owned life
insurance, net
Purchases of loans
Net Proceeds from
sales of MSR's
Other changes in
loans, net
(Purchases)
dispositions of
premises and
equipment, net
Cash acquired in

business acquisition

Proceeds from sales
of securities

available for sale

Purchase of
securities available

for sale

Redemption of
Federal Home Loan
Bank stock
Purchases of Federal
Home Loan Bank
and Federal Reserve

Bank stock

Proceeds from bank-
owned life

insurance, net

Purchases of loans

Other changes in
loans, net
(Purchases)
dispositions of
premises and
equipment, net
Cash acquired in

business acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by

(used in) investing
activities
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease)

increase in deposits

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease)

increase in deposits

Net increase (decrease) in short-term

borrowed funds
Net decrease in
short-term borrowed

funds

Proceeds from long-
term borrowed

funds

Repayments of long-
term borrowed
funds

Net receipt of
payments of loans
serviced for others
Cash dividends paid
on common stock
Cash dividends paid
on preferred stock
Treasury stock

repurchased

Proceeds from long-
term borrowed

funds

Repayments of long-
term borrowed
funds

Net receipt of
payments of loans
serviced for others
Cash dividends paid
on common stock
Cash dividends paid
on preferred stock
Treasury stock

repurchased

1,233
(443) (269)
744 107
(833) 52)

9 5

= (61)
(1,301) (960)
(1) (1)
25,043 —
25,105 (1,068)
2,895

(7,496)

2,400 (1,150)
_ 1,000
@375 (1,075)
(189) =
®) 79

(116)

(©)]

®)

Proceeds from sales
of securities
available for sale
Purchase of
securities available

for sale

Redemption of
Federal Home Loan
Bank stock
Purchases of Federal
Home Loan Bank
and Federal Reserve

Bank stock

Proceeds from bank-
owned life

insurance, net
Purchases of loans

Net Proceeds from
sales of MSR's

Other changes in

loans, net

(Purchases)
dispositions of
premises and
equipment, net
Cash acquired in

business acquisition

Net cash provided by
(used in) investing
activities
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net (decrease)

increase in deposits

Net decrease in
short-term borrowed

funds

Proceeds from long-
term borrowed

funds

Repayments of long-
term borrowed
funds

Net receipt of
payments of loans
serviced for others
Cash dividends paid
on common stock
Cash dividends paid
on preferred stock
Treasury stock

repurchased
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1,341
(1,111) (788)
967 175
(836) (76)
24 5
= (144)
50 -
(2,433) (2,650)
(53) 1
25,043 -
24,140 (3,070)
6,185
(3,809)
(2,050) (1,700)
500 2,955
(3,374) (3,510)
367 _
(239) (158)
(16) (16)
= (7)
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Payments relating to
treasury shares
received for
restricted stock

award tax payments

Payments relating to —
treasury shares

received for

restricted stock

award tax payments

(W)

Payments relating to
treasury shares
received for
restricted stock

award tax payments

(1)

(12)

Net cash (used in) Net cash (used in) (7,793) 1,572 Net cash (used in) (8,632) 3,737
provided by financing  provided by financing provided by financing
activities activities activities
Net increase in cash, Net increase in cash, 20,347 689 Net increase in cash, 13,938 1,066
cash equivalents, and  cash equivalents, and cash equivalents, and
restricted cash () restricted cash () restricted cash ()
Cash, cash equivalents, Cash, cash equivalents, 2,082 2,211 Cash, cash equivalents, 2,082 2,211
and restricted cash at  and restricted cash at and restricted cash at
beginning of yeara) beginning of yeara) beginning of yeara)
Cash, cash equivalents, Cash, cash equivalents, $ 22,429 2,900 Cash, cash equivalents, $ 16,020 $ 3,277
and restricted cash at  and restricted cash at and restricted cash at
end of year o) end of year o) end of year ()
Supplemental Supplemental Supplemental
information: information: information:
Cash paid for Cash paid for $ 489 110 Cash paid for $ 1,043 $ 229
interest interest interest
Cash paid for income taxes 13 —
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Cash paid for income Cash paid for 17 8
taxes income taxes
Non-cash investing and Non-cash investing and
financing activities: financing activities:
Transfers to Transfers to $ 1 — Transfers to $ 1 $ =
repossessed assets repossessed assets repossessed assets
from loans from loans from loans
Securitization of residential mortgage loans — 61
to mortgage-backed securities available for
sale
Securitization of Securitization of 109 144
loans to mortgage- loans to mortgage-
backed securities backed securities
available for sale available for sale
Shares issued for Shares issued for 27 26 Shares issued for 31 27
restricted stock restricted stock restricted stock
awards awards awards
Business Combination: Business Combination: Business Combination:
Fair value of tangible Fair value of tangible 38,172 — Fair value of tangible 37,542 —
assets acquired assets acquired assets acquired
Intangible assets Intangible assets 464 — Intangible assets 464 —
Liabilities assumed Liabilities assumed 36,550 — Liabilities assumed 35,779 —
Issuance of FDIC 85 — 85 —
Issuance of FDIC Equity Equity appreciation Issuance of FDIC Equity
appreciation instrument instrument appreciation instrument
(1) For further information on restricted cash, see Note 14 - Derivative and Hedging Activities. Activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1- Organization and Basis of Presentation
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Organization

New York Community Bancorp, Inc. (on a stand-alone basis, the “Parent Company” or, collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company” or "we") was organized under Delaware
law on July 20, 1993 and is the holding company for Flagstar Bank N.A. (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”). The Company is headquartered in Hicksville, New York with regional
headquarters in Troy, Michigan.

The Company is subject to regulation, examination and supervision by the Federal Reserve. The Bank is a National Association, subject to federal regulation and oversight by
the OCC.

On November 23, 1993, the Company issued its initial offering of common stock (par value: $0.01 per share) at a price of $25.00 per share ($0.93 per share on a split-adjusted
basis, reflecting the impact of nine stock splits between 1994 and 2004). The Company has grown organically and through a series of accretive mergers and acquisitions, culminating
in its acquisition of Flagstar Bancorp, Inc., which closed on December 1, 2022 and the Signature Transaction which closed on March 20, 2023.

Flagstar Bank, N.A. currently operates 435436 branches across nine states, including strong footholds in the Northeast and Midwest and exposure to markets in the
Southeast and West Coast. Flagstar Mortgage operates nationally through a wholesale network of approximately 3000 third-party mortgage originators. Flagstar Bank N.A. also
operates through eight local divisions, each with a history of service and strength: Queens County Savings Bank, Roslyn Savings Bank, Richmond County Savings Bank, Roosevelt
Savings Bank, and Atlantic Bank in New York; Garden State Community Bank in New Jersey; Ohio Savings Bank in Ohio; and AmTrust Bank in Arizona and Florida.

Basis of Presentation

The following is a description of the significant accounting and reporting policies that the Company and its subsidiaries follow in preparing and presenting their consolidated
financial statements, which conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to general practices within the banking industry. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates that are used in
connection with the determination of the allowance for credit losses, mortgage servicing rights, the Flagstar acquisition and the Signature Transaction.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and other entities in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. All
inter-company accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The Company currently has certain unconsolidated subsidiaries in the form of wholly-owned statutory
business trusts, which were formed to issue guaranteed capital securities. See Note 11 “Borrowed Funds,” for additional information regarding these trusts.

Loans

Effective January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2022-02, "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures" (ASU 2022-02), which eliminated the accounting for troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) while expanding loan modification
and vintage disclosure requirements. Under ASU 2022-02, the Corporation assesses all loan modifications to determine whether one is granted to a borrower experiencing financial
difficulty, regardless of whether the modified loan terms include a concession. Modifications granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may be in the form of an interest
rate reduction, an other-than-insignificant payment delay, a term extension, principal forgiveness or a combination thereof (collectively referred to as Troubled Debt Modifications
or TDMs).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Prior to the adoption of ASU 2022-02, the Company accounted for certain loan modifications and restructurings as TDRs. In general, a modification or restructuring of a loan
constituted a TDR if the Company granted a concession to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards
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Standard

Description Effective Date

ASU 2022-02- Financial Instruments -

The Company adopted ASU 2022-02 effective January 1, 2023 using a modified

. X . X retrospective transition approach for the amendments related to the recognition and
ASU 2022-02 eliminates prior accounting guidance for . . . ) )
i . X ) measurement of TDRs. The impact of the adoption resulted in an immaterial change to the
TDRs, while enhancing disclosure requirements for . ] i .
. X . . . allowance for credit losses ("ACL"), thus no adjustment to retained earnings was recorded.
certain loan refinancings and restructurings by creditors

Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt Disclosures have been updated to reflect information on loan modifications given to

Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures

Issued March 2022

ASU 2023-02 Investments - Equity
Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323):

when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. The L o . .
) L borrowers experiencing financial difficulty as presented in Note 6. TDR disclosures are
standard also requires that an entity disclose current- ) ) ) )
. L presented for comparative periods only and are not required to be updated in current
period gross charge-offs by year of origination for
X . . . . periods. Additionally, the current year vintage disclosure included in Note 6 has been
financing receivables and net investments in leases. L
updated to reflect gross charge-offs by year of origination for the three months ended

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.
Permits reporting entities to elect to account for their tax

equity investments, regardless of the tax credit program . .
The Company adopted ASU 2023-02 effective January 1, 2023 and is not expected to have a

Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit from which the income tax credits are received, using

Structures Using the Proportional

. o . . significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
the proportional amortization method if certain

Amortization Method Issued: March 2023 conditions are met.

Note 2- Computation of Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per Common Share (Basic and Diluted)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is computed using the same method as basic EPS, however, the computation reflects the potential dilution that would occur if outstanding in-the-money stock options
were exercised and converted into common stock.

Unvested stock-based compensation awards containing non-forfeitable rights to dividends paid on the Company’s common stock are considered participating securities, and
therefore are included in the two-class method for calculating EPS. Under the two-class method, all earnings (distributed and undistributed) are allocated to common shares and
participating securities based on their respective rights to receive dividends on the common stock. The Company grants restricted stock to certain employees under its stock-based
compensation plan. Recipients receive cash dividends during the vesting periods of these awards, including on the unvested portion of such awards. Since these dividends are non-

forfeitable, the unvested awards are considered participating securities and therefore have earnings allocated to them.

The following table presents the Company’s computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Three Months Ended March 31, Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in millions, (in millions, (in millions,
except share and except share and except share and
per share per share per share
amounts) amounts) 2023 2022 amounts) 2023 2022 2023 2022
Net income Net income Net income
available to available to available to
common common common
stockholders stockholders $ 1,998 $ 147 stockholders $ 405 $ 163 $ 2,403 $ 310
Less: Dividends Less: Dividends Less: Dividends
paid on and paid on and paid on and
earnings earnings earnings
allocated to allocated to allocated to
participating participating participating
securities securities (21) ) securities (4) ) (26) 4)
Earnings Earnings Earnings
applicable to applicable to applicable to
common stock common stock $ 1,977 $ 145 common stock $ 401 $ 161 $ 2,377 $ 306
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
common shares common shares common shares
outstanding outstanding 686,911,555 465,138,238 outstanding 722,264,568 465,811,096 704,685,721 465,476,526
Basic earnings  Basic earnings Basic earnings
per common per common per common
share share $ 2.88 $ 0.31 share $ 0.55 $ 0.34 $ 3.37 $ 0.66
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Earnings Earnings Earnings

applicable to applicable to applicable to

common stock common stock $ 1,977 $ 145 common stock $ 401 $ 161 $ 2,377 $ 306
Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

common shares common shares common shares

outstanding outstanding 686,911,555 465,138,238 outstanding 722,264,568 465,811,096 704,685,721 465,476,526
Potential Potential Potential

dilutive dilutive dilutive

common shares common shares 1,360,056 808,525 common shares 1,462,426 988,976 1,411,524 899,249
Total shares for Total shares for Total shares for

diluted earnings diluted earnings diluted earnings

per common per common per common

share share share

computation computation 688,271,611 465,946,763 computation 723,726,994 466,800,072 706,097,245 466,375,775
Diluted earnings Diluted earnings Diluted earnings

per common per common per common

share and share and share and

common share common share common share

equivalents equivalents $ 2.87 $ 0.31 equivalents $ 0.55 $ 0.34 $ 3.37 $ 0.66

Note 3 - Business Combinations
Signature Bridge Bank

On March 20, 2023, the Company’s wholly owned bank subsidiary, Flagstar Bank N.A. (the “Bank”), entered into a Purchase and Assumption Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC"), as receiver (the "FDIC Receiver") of Signature Bridge Bank, N.A. (“Signature”) to acquire certain assets and assume certain
liabilities of Signature (the “Signature Transaction”). Headquartered in New York, New York, Signature Bank was a full-service commercial bank that operated 29 branches in New
York, seven branches in California, two branches in North Carolina, one branch in Connecticut, and one branch in Nevada. In connection with the Signature Transaction the Bank
assumed all of Signature’s branches. The Bank acquired only certain parts of Signature it believes to be financially and strategically complementary that are intended to enhance
the Company’s future growth.

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company was not required to make a cash payment to the FDIC on March 20, 2023 as consideration for the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities. As the Company and the FDIC remain engaged in ongoing discussions which may impact the assets and liabilities acquired or assumed by the Company in the
Signature Transaction, the Company may be required to make a payment to the FDIC or the FDIC may be required to make a payment to the Company on the Settlement Date,
which will be one year after March 20, 2023, or as agreed upon by the FDIC and the Company.

In addition, as part of the consideration for the Signature Transaction, the Company granted the FDIC equity appreciation rights in the common stock of the Company under
an equity appreciation instrument (the "Equity Appreciation Instrument"). On March 31, 2023, the Company issued 39,032,006 shares of Company common stock to the FDIC
pursuant to the Equity Appreciation Instrument. Under terms of the Equity Appreciation Instrument, On May 19, 2023, the FDIC will use all reasonable efforts to sell these shares
over a 40-day period beginning April 28, 2023. completed the secondary offering of those shares.

The Company has determined that the Signature Transaction constitutes a business combination as defined by ASC 805, Business Combinations ("ASC 805"). ASC 805
establishes principles and requirements as to how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. Accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been recorded based on their estimated fair values based
on initial valuations as of March 20, 2023.

As part of Under the ongoing discussions between the Company and the FDIC, Agreement, the Company is expected to provide certain services to the FDIC to assist the FDIC
in its administration of certain assets and liabilities which were not assumed by the Company and which remain under the control of the FDIC (the “Interim Servicing”). The Interim
Servicing includes activities related to the servicing of loan portfolios not acquired on behalf of the FDIC for a period of up to one year from the date of the Signature Transaction
unless such loans are sold or transferred at an earlier time by the FDIC or until cancelled by the FDIC upon 60-days’ notice. The Interim Servicing may include other ancillary services
requested by the FDIC to assist in their administration of the remaining assets and liabilities of Signature Bank. The FDIC will reimburse the Company for costs associated with the
Interim Servicing based upon an agreed upon fee which approximates the cost to provide such services. As the FDIC intends to reimburse the Company for the costs to service the
loans, neither a servicing asset nor servicing liability was recognized as part of the Signature Transaction.

The Company did not enter into a loss sharing arrangement with the FDIC in connection with the Signature Transaction.

As the Company finalizes its analysis of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, there may be adjustments to the recorded carrying values. In many cases, the
determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed required management to make estimates about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market
conditions and other future events that are highly subjective in nature and subject to change. Due to the timing of the Signature Transaction and the brief period between March
20, 2023 and March 31, 2023, the Company continues to analyze its estimates of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and is subject to adjustment for up to
one year after March 20, 2023. While the Company believes that the information available on March 20, 2023 June 30, 2023, provided a reasonable basis for estimating fair value, the
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Company may obtain additional information and evidence during the measurement period that may result in changes to the estimated fair value amounts. Fair values subject to
change include, but are not limited to, those related to loans and leases, certain deposits, intangibles, deferred tax assets and liabilities and certain other assets and other liabilities.
Further, the Company and the FDIC are in ongoing discussions and a settlement statement reconciled by both parties has not yet been finalized, which may impact which assets
and liabilities were acquired or assumed by the Company, and therefore, the amounts recorded are considered preliminary and are subject to change.

A summary of the net assets acquired and the estimated fair value adjustments resulting in the bargain purchase gain is as follows:

(in millions) March 20, 2023

Net assets acquired before fair value adjustments $ 2,973

Fair value adjustments:

Loans (727)
Core deposit and other intangibles 464
Certificates of deposit 27
Other net assets and liabilities 39
FDIC Equity Appreciation Instrument (85)
Deferred tax liability (690)
Bargain purchase gain on Signature Transaction, as initially reported $ 2,001
Measurement period adjustments, excluding taxes 53
88

Change in deferred tax liability

Bargain purchase gain on Signature Transaction, as adjusted $ 2,142

In connection with the Signature Transaction, the Company recorded a bargain purchase gain, as adjusted, of approximately $2.0$2.1 billion during the six months ended
June 30, 2023, which is included in non-interest income in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31,

2023.Income.

The bargain purchase gain represents the excess of the estimated fair value of the assets acquired (including cash payments received from the FDIC) over the estimated fair
value of the liabilities assumed and is influenced significantly by the FDIC-assisted transaction process. Under the FDIC-assisted transaction process, only certain assets and
liabilities are transferred to the acquirer and, depending on the nature and amount of the acquirers bid, the FDIC may be required to make a cash payment to the
acquirer. Company and the Company may be required to make a cash payment to the FDIC.

The following table provides a preliminary allocation of the consideration paid for the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed from and consideration paid in the
Signature Transaction were initially recorded at their estimated fair values based on management’s best estimates using information available at the date of the Signature
Transaction, and are subject to adjustment for up to one year after the closing date of the Signature Transaction. The Company and the FDIC are engaged in ongoing discussions
and settlement payments have been made that have impacted certain assets acquired or certain liabilities assumed by the Company on March 20, 2023 and are included as of

March 20, 2023: measurement period adjustments in the table below.
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(in millions)

Purchase Price consideration

Fair value of assets acquired:
Cash & cash equivalents
Loans held for sale
Loans held for investment:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Consumer and other
Total loans held for investment
CDI and other intangible assets
Other assets

Total assets acquired
Fair value of liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities assumed
Fair value of net identifiable assets

Bargain purchase gain

(in millions)

Purchase Price consideration

Fair value of assets acquired:
Cash & cash equivalents
Loans held for sale
Loans held for investment:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Consumer and other
Total loans held for investment
CDI and other intangible assets
Other assets

Total assets acquired
Fair value of liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities assumed
Fair value of net identifiable assets

Bargain purchase gain

25,043

232

10,102
1,942

174

12,218
464

679

38,636

33,568

2,982

36,550

2,086

$ 2,001

Measurement Period

As Initially Reported Adjustments As Adjusted
85 $ — 3 85
25,043 — 25,043
232 — 232
10,102 (214) 9,888
1,942 (262) 1,680
174 (1) 173
12,218 (477) 11,741
464 464
679 (153) 526
38,636 (630) 38,006
33,568 — 33,568
2,982 771) 2,211
36,550 (771) 35,779
2,086 141 2,227
2,001 $ 141 $ 2,142

During the three months ended June 30, 2023, the Company recorded preliminary measurement period adjustments to adjust the estimated fair value of loans and leases
acquired and adjust other assets and accrued expenses and other liabilities for balances ultimately retained by the FDIC. Additionally, $449 million of loans were returned to the
FDICin accordance with the purchase and sale agreement. The Company also recognized a net change in the deferred tax liability due to the measurement period adjustments and

the secondary offering of shares completed by the FDIC.

Fair Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, reflecting assumptions that a market participant would use when pricing an asset or liability. In some cases, the estimation of fair values requires management
to make estimates about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market conditions, and other future events that are highly subjective in nature and are subject to change.
Described below are the methods used to determine the fair values of the significant assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Signature Transaction.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The estimated fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their stated face amounts, as these financial instruments are either due on demand or have short-term
maturities.

Loans and leases

The fair value for loans was based on a discounted cash flow methodology that considered credit loss expectations, market interest rates and other market factors such as
liquidity from the perspective of a market participant. Loans were grouped together according to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate when applying various
valuation techniques. The probability of default, loss given default and prepayment assumptions were the key factors driving credit losses which were embedded into the
estimated cash flows. These assumptions were informed by internal data on loan characteristics, historical loss experience, and current and forecasted economic conditions. The
interest and liquidity component of the estimate was determined by discounting interest and principal cash flows through the expected life of each loan. The discount rates used
for loans are based on current market rates for new originations of comparable loans and include adjustments for liquidity. The discount rates do not include a factor for credit
losses as that has been included as a reduction to the estimated cash flows. Acquired loans were marked to fair value and adjusted for any PCD gross up as of the date of the
Signature Transaction.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair value of deposit liabilities with no stated maturity (i.e., non-interest-bearing and interest-bearing checking accounts) is equal to the carrying amounts payable on
demand. The fair value of certificates of deposit represents contractual cash flows, discounted using interest rates currently offered on deposits with similar characteristics and
remaining maturities.

Core Deposit Intangible

Core deposit intangible (“CDI") is a measure of the value of non-interest-bearing and interest-bearing checking accounts, savings accounts, and money market accounts that
are acquired in a business combination. The fair value of the CDI stemming from any given business combination is based on the present value of the expected cost savings
attributable to the core deposit funding, relative to an alternative source of funding. The CDI relating to the Signature Transaction will be amortized over an estimated useful life of
10years using the sum of years digits depreciation method. The Company evaluates such identifiable intangibles for impairment when an indication of impairment exists. CDI does
not significantly impact our liquidity or capital ratios.

PCD loans

Purchased loans that reflect a more than insignificant deterioration of credit from origination are considered PCD. For PCD loans and leases, the initial estimate of expected
credit losses is recognized in the allowance for credit losses (“ACL") on the date of acquisition using the same methodology as other loans and leases held-for-investment. The
following table provides a summary of loans and leases purchased as part of the Signature Transaction with credit deterioration and the associated credit loss reserve at
acquisition:

(in millions) Total

Par value (UPB) $ 633583
ACL at acquisition (13)
Non-credit (discount) (96) (76)
Fair value $ 524 494

Unaudited Pro Forma Information - Signature Transaction

The Company’s operating results for the quarter and year-to-date periods ended June 30, 2023 include the operating results of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of
Signature Bridge Bank, N.A. subsequent to the acquisition on March 20, 2023. Due to the use of multiple systems and integration of the operating activities into those of the
Company, historical reporting for the former Signature operations is impracticable and thus disclosures of the revenue from the assets acquired and income before income taxes is
impracticable for the period subsequent to acquisition.

Signature Bridge Bank, N.A. was only in operation from March 12 to March 20, 2023 and does not have historical financial information on which we could base pro forma
information. Additionally, we did not acquire all assets or assume all liabilities of Signature and the historical operations are not consistent with the transaction. Therefore, it is
impracticable to provide pro forma information on revenues and earnings for the Signature transaction in accordance with ASC 805-10-50-2.

Flagstar Bank

On December 1, 2022, the Company closed the acquisition of Flagstar Bancorp, Inc. (“Flagstar Bancorp”) in an all-stock transaction. The acquisition of Flagstar has been
accounted for as a business combination. The Company recorded the estimate of fair value based on initial valuations available at December 1, 2022. The Company continues to
review these valuations and certain of these estimated fair values are considered preliminary as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, and subject to adjustment for up to one year after
December 1, 2022. While the Company believes that the information available on December 1, 2022 provided a reasonable basis for estimating fair value, the Company expects that
it may obtain additional information and evidence during the measurement period that would result in changes to the estimated fair value amounts. Valuations subject to change
include, but are not limited to, loans and leases, certain deposits, intangibles, deferred tax assets and liabilities and certain other assets and other liabilities.

Note 4- Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
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The following table sets forth the components in accumulated other comprehensive income:

(in millions) Three For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023
Amount Reclassified out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Loss) Affected Line Item in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities: $ — Net gain on securities

— Income tax expense

$ — Net gain on securities, net of tax

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges: $ 612 Interest expense

(2)(4) Income tax benefit

$ 48 Net gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax
Amortization of defined benefit pension plan items:
Past service liability $ — Included in the computation of net periodic credit )
Actuarial losses (2)(1) Included in the computation of net periodic cost

(2) (1) Total before tax

1— Income tax benefit

$ (1) Amortization of defined benefit pension plan items, net of tax

Total reclassifications for the period $ g7

(1) Amounts in parentheses indicate expense items.

(2) See Note 12 - Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits ,” for additional information.
Note 5- Investment Securities

The following tables summarize the Company'’s portfolio of debt securities available for sale and equity investments with readily determinable fair values:

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized

(in millions) (in millions) Amortized Cost Gain Loss Fair Value (in millions) Amortized Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Debt Debt Debt
securities securities securities
available-for- available-for- available-for-
sale sale sale
Mortgage- Mortgage- Mortgage-
Related Debt Related Debt Related Debt
Securities: Securities: Securities:
GSE GSE GSE
certificates  certificates  $ 1,388 $ 1 $ 143 $ 1,246  certificates  $ 1,366 $ = $ 162 $ 1,204
GSECMOs  GSE CMOs 3,562 4 284 3,282  GSE CMOs 3,942 — 369 3,573
Private Label Private Label Private Label
CMOs CMOs 183 6 1 188 CMOs 180 4 1 183
Total Total Total
mortgage- mortgage- mortgage-
related debt related debt related debt
securities securities $ 5,133 $ 1 $ 428 $ 4,716 securities $ 5,488 $ 4 $ 532 $ 4,960
Other Debt  Other Debt Other Debt
Securities: Securities: Securities:
U.S. Treasury U.S. Treasury U. S. Treasury
obligations  obligations  $ = $ = $ = $ —  obligations $ = $ = $ = $ =
GSE GSE GSE
debentures debentures 1,899 — 310 1,589 debentures 1,974 — 330 1,644
Asset-backed Asset-backed Asset-backed
securities 1) securities () 345 = 10 335  securities (1) 332 = 9 323
Municipal Municipal Municipal
bonds bonds 18 — — 18  bonds 7 — — 7
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Corporate Corporate

bonds bonds 864 2 33 833
Foreign notes Foreign notes 20 = 1 19
Capital trust  Capital trust

notes notes 97 5 13 89
Total other  Total other

debt debt

securities securities $ 3,243 $ 7 $ 367 $ 2,883
Total debt Total debt

securities securities

available for available for

sale sale $ 8,376 $ 18 $ 795 $ 7,599
Equity Equity

securities: securities:

Mutual funds Mutual funds $ 16 $ = $ 2 $ 14
Total equity Total equity

securities securities $ 16 $ = $ 2 $ 14
Total Total

securities securities@ ¢ 8,392 $ 18 $ 797 $ 7,613

Corporate
bonds 789

Foreign notes 10

Capital trust

notes 96

39 753

Total other
debt

securities $ 3,208

$ 394 $ 2,822

Total debt

securities

available for

sale $ 8,696
Equity

securities:

Mutual funds $ 16

$ 926 $ 7,782

Total equity

securities $ 16

Total

securities @ $ 8,712

$ 928 $ 7,796

(1) The underlying assets of the asset-backed securities are substantially guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

(2) Excludes accrued interest receivable of $30 $32 million included in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

(in millions)

Debt securities available-for-sale
Mortgage-Related Debt Securities:
GSE certificates

GSE CMOs

Private Label CMOs

Total mortgage-related debt securities
Other Debt Securities:

U. S. Treasury obligations

GSE debentures

Asset-backed securities ()

Municipal bonds

Corporate bonds

Foreign Notes

Capital trust notes

Total other debt securities

Total other securities available for sale
Equity securities:

Mutual funds

Total equity securities

Total securities @

December 31, 2022

Gross Unrealized

Gross Unrealized

Amortized Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
$ 1,457 — % 160 $ 1,297
3,600 1 300 3,301
185 6 — 191
$ 5,242 7 $ 460 $ 4,789
$ 1,491 — 3 4 % 1,487
1,749 — 351 1,398
375 — 14 361
30 — — 30
913 2 30 885
20 — — 20
97 5 12 90
$ 4,675 7 $ 411 $ 4,271
$ 9,917 14 3 871 $ 9,060
$ 16 — 3 2 3 14
$ 16 — 3 2 3 14
$ 9,933 14 3 873 $ 9,074

(1) The underlying assets of the asset-backed securities are substantially guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

(2) Excludes accrued interest receivable of $31 million included in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company had $827 $605 million and $329 million of FHLB-NY stock, at cost and FHLB-Indianapolis stock, at cost, respectively. At
December 31, 2022, the Company had $762 million and $329 million of FHLB-NY stock, at cost and FHLB-Indianapolis stock, at cost, respectively. The Company maintains an
investment in FHLB-NY stock partly in conjunction with its membership in the FHLB and partly related to its access to the FHLB funding it utilizes. In addition, at March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023, the Company had $200 $203 million of Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost. The Company had $176 million of Federal Reserve Bank stock, at December 31, 2022.

There For both the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 there were no net unrealized (loss) gains realized losses on equity securities of $1 million recognized in earnings

for the three months ended March 31, 2023. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, there was a net unrealized loss of $1 million. earnings.
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The following table summarizes, by contractual maturity, the amortized cost of securities at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:

Mortgage- U.S. Government Mortgage- U.S. Government
Related and GSE State, County, Other Debt Related and GSE State, County, Other Debt

Securities Obligations and Municipal  Securities ) Fair Value Securities Obligations and Municipal  Securities () Fair Value
(in millions) (in millions) (in millions)
Available-  Available- Available-
for-Sale for-Sale for-Sale
Debt Debt Debt
Securities:  Securities: Securities:
Due within Due within $ 21 $ 97 $ = $ 20 $ 136 Due within $ 20 $ 247 $ = $ 20 $ 283
oneyear  oneyear one year
Due from  Due from 175 300 - 459 926 Due from 175 200 - 432 795
one to five one to five one to five
years years years
Due from Due from 328 1,377 18 469 1,839 Due from 322 1,377 7 409 1,738
five to ten five to ten five to ten
years years years
Due after Due after 4,609 125 — 378 4,698 Due after 4,971 150 — 367 4,966
ten years  ten years ten years
Total debt Total debt $ 5133 $ 1,899 $ 18 $ 1,326 $ 7,599 Totaldebt $ 5,488 $ 1,974 $ 7 $ 1,228 $ 7,782
securities  securities securities
available  available available
for sale for sale for sale

(1) Includes corporate bonds, capital trust notes, foreign notes, and asset-backed securities.

The following table presents securities having a continuous unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve months or longer as of March 31, 2023 June 30,
2023:

Less than Twelve Twelve Months or

Less than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Longer Total Months Longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) (in millions) Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss (in millions) Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
Temporarily ~ Temporarily Temporarily
Impaired Impaired Impaired
Securities: Securities: Securities:
U. S. Treasury u.s. $ — — 3 — — 3 — 3 —
obligations Treasury
obligations
us. us. $ 343 $ 4 $ 1,19 306 $ 1,539 310 US. $ 221 1 $ 1,39 328 $ 1,620 $ 329
Government  Government Government
agency and agency and agency and
GSE GSE GSE
obligations obligations obligations
GSE GSE 239 5 757 138 996 143  GSE 458 14 739 148 1,197 162
certificates certificates certificates
Private Label = Private Label 4 1 — — 4 1 Private Label 20 1 — — 20 1
CMOs CMOs CMOs
GSE CMOs GSE CMOs 1,378 17 1,215 267 2,593 284 GSE CMOs 2,391 81 1,182 288 3,573 369
Asset-backed = Asset-backed 94 1 241 9 335 10  Asset-backed 34 — 289 9 323 9
securities securities securities
Municipal Municipal — — 7 — 7 — Municipal — — 6 1 6 1
bonds bonds bonds
Corporate Corporate 334 3 373 30 707 33 Corporate 38 5 383 34 421 39
bonds bonds bonds
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Foreign Foreign 19 1 — — 19 1 Foreign 8 2 — — 8 2
notes notes notes

Capital trust ~ Capital trust 23 1 56 12 79 13 Capital trust 1 — 78 14 79 14
notes notes notes

Equity Equity = = 14 2 14 2 Equity = = 14 2 14 2
securities securities securities

Total Total $ 2434 33 $ 3,859 764 $ 6,293 797 Total $ 3,171 $ 104 $ 4,090 $ 824 $ 7,261 $ 928
temporarily temporarily temporarily

impaired impaired impaired

securities securities securities

The following table presents securities having a continuous unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve months or longer as of December 31, 2022:

Less than Twelve Months

Twelve Months or Longer

Total

(in millions) Fair Value Unrealized Loss Fair Value Unrealized Loss Fair Value Unrealized Loss

Temporarily Impaired Securities:
U. S. Treasury obligations 1,487 % 4 3% — — 1,487 $ 4
U.S. Government agency and GSE obligations 243 5 1,156 346 1,399 351
GSE certificates 871 46 420 114 1,291 160
GSE CMOs 2,219 36 925 264 3,144 300
Asset-backed securities 61 2 262 12 323 14
Municipal bonds 9 — 7 — 16 —
Corporate bonds 698 27 97 4 795 31
Foreign notes 20 — — — 20 —
Capital trust notes 46 2 34 10 80 12
Equity securities 4 — 10 2 14 2

Total temporarily impaired securities 5658 $ 122 3 2,911 752 8,569 $ 874

The investment securities designated as having a continuous loss position for twelve months or more at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 consisted of fifty-four fifty-nine agency
collateralized mortgage obligations, six capital trusts notes, seven nine asset-backed securities, gight ten corporate bonds, thirty-three thirty-eight US government agency bonds,
242 249 mortgage-backed securities, one mutual fund, and one municipal bond. The investment securities designated as having a continuous loss position for twelve months or
more at December 31, 2022 consisted of twenty-three agency collateralized mortgage obligations, five capital trusts notes, seven asset-backed securities, two corporate bonds,
thirty-three US government agency bonds, 133 mortgage-backed securities, one mutual fund, and one municipal bond.

The Company evaluates available-for-sale debt securities in unrealized loss positions at least quarterly to determine if an allowance for credit losses is required. We also assess
whether (i) we intend to sell, or (ii) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of these criteria is met,
any previously recognized allowances are charged off and the security’s amortized cost basis is written down to fair value through income. If neither of the aforementioned criteria
are met, we evaluate whether the decline in fair value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash
flows expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit losses is recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost
basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income.

In the first quarter of 2023, the company held a $20 million corporate bond in Signature Bank which was placed into receivership on March 12, 2023. We have taken a
$20 million provision for credit loss and charged-off this security during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

None of the remaining unrealized losses identified as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 or December 31, 2022 relates to the marketability of the securities or the issuers’ ability
to honor redemption obligations. Rather, the unrealized losses relate to changes in interest rates relative to when the investment securities were purchased, and do not indicate
credit-related impairment. Management based this conclusion on an analysis of each issuer including a detailed credit assessment of each issuer. The Company does not intend to
sell, and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the positions before the recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. As such,
no allowance for credit losses remains with respect to debt securities as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

Note 6- Loans and Leases

The Company classifies loans that we have the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity as LHFI. We report LHFI loans at their amortized cost,
which includes the outstanding principal balance adjusted for any unamortized premiums, discounts, deferred fees and unamortized fair value for acquired loans:

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
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(dollars in millions)
Loans and Leases
Held for
Investment:
Mortgage Loans:
Multi-family
Commercial real
estate
One-to-four
family first
mortgage
Acquisition,
development,
and
construction
Total mortgage
loans held for
investment (1)
Other Loans:
Commercial and

industrial

Lease financing, net of unearned
income of $88 and $90, respectively

Lease financing,
net of unearned
income of $219
and $85,
respectively

Total
commercial and
industrial loans
@
Other
Total other loans
held for
investment
Total loans and
leases held for
investment ()
Allowance for
credit losses on
loans and leases
Total loans and
leases held for
investment, net
Loans held for
sale, at fair value
Total loans and
leases, net

M

Percent of Percent of
Loans Loans
Held for Held for
(dollars in millions) Amount Investment Amount Investment  (dollars in millions)
Loans and Leases Loans and Leases
Held for Held for
Investment: Investment:
Mortgage Loans: Mortgage Loans:
Multi-family $ 38,004 46.0 % $ 38,130 55.3 %  Multi-family
Commercial real Commercial real
estate 10,464 12.7 % 8,526 12.4 % estate
One-to-four One-to-four
family first family first
mortgage 5,934 7.2 % 5,821 8.4 % mortgage
Acquisition, Acquisition,
development, development,
and and
construction 2,203 2 % 1,996 29 % construction
Total mortgage Total mortgage
loans held for loans held for
investment (1) 56,605 68.6 % $ 54,473 78.9 % investment (1)
Other Loans: Other Loans:
Commercial and Commercial and
industrial 20,217 24.5 % 10,597 15.4 % industrial
3,140 3.8 % 1,679 2.4 %
Lease financing,
net of unearned
income of $219
and $85,
respectively
Total Total
commercial and commercial and
industrial loans industrial loans
@ 23,357 283 12,276 17.8 @
Other 2,585 3.1 2,252 33 Other
Total other loans Total other loans
held for held for
investment 25,942 31.4 % 14,528 21.1 % investment
Total loans and Total loans and
leases held for leases held for
investment () $ 82,547 100.0 % $ 69,001 100.0 % investment (1)
Allowance for Allowance for
credit losses on credit losses on
loans and leases (550) (393) loans and leases
Total loans and Total loans and
leases held for leases held for
investment, net 81,997 68,608 investment, net
Loans held for Loans held for
sale, at fair value 1,305 1,115 sale, at fair value
Total loans and Total loans and
leases, net $ 83,302 $ 69,723

Statements of Condition.

@

Loans with Government Guarantees

leases, net

Percent of Percent of
Loans Loans
Held for Held for
Amount Investment Amount Investment
$ 37,831 45.4 % $ 38,130 55.3 %
10,613 12.7 % 8,526 12.4 %
5,889 71 % 5,821 8.4 %
2,481 3.0 % 1,996 29 %
56,814 68.2 % $ 54,473 78.9 %
20,869 25.1 % 10,597 15.4 %
2,992 3.6 % 1,679 2.4 %
23,861 28.7 % 12,276 17.8 %
2,603 31 % 2,252 33 %
26,464 31.8 % 14,528 211 %
$ 83,278 100.0 % $ 69,001 100.0 %
(594) (393)
82,684 68,608
2,194 1,115
$ 84,878 $ 69,723

Includes specialty finance loans and leases of $4.8 billion and $4.4 billion at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Excludes accrued interest receivable of $365 $387 million and $292 million at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, which is included in other assets in the Consolidated

Substantially all LGG are insured or guaranteed by the FHA or the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. Nonperforming repurchased loans in this portfolio earn interest at a

rate based upon the 10-year U.S. Treasury note rate from the time the underlying loan becomes 60 days delinquent until the loan is conveyed to HUD (if foreclosure timelines are
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met), which is not paid by the FHA until claimed. The Bank has a unilateral option to repurchase loans sold to GNMA if the loan is due, but unpaid, for three consecutive months
(typically referred to as 90 days past due) and can recover losses through a claims process from the guarantor. These loans are recorded in loans held for investment and the
liability to repurchase the loans is recorded in other liabilities on the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Certain loans within our portfolio may be subject to indemnifications
and insurance limits which expose us to limited credit risk. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, LGG loans totaled $0.7 billion $614 million and the repurchase liability was $0.3 billion.

$333 million.
Repossessed assets and the associated net claims related to government guaranteed loans are recorded in other assets and was $13 million at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.
Loans Held-for-Sale

Loans held-for-sale at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 totaled $1.3 billion, $2.2 billion, up from $1.1 billion at December 31, 2022. The Signature Transaction added contributed
$360 million in Small Business Administration ("SBA") loans to this increase. We classify loans as held for sale when we originate or purchase loans that we intend to sell. We have
elected the fair value option for nearly all of this portfolio, except the SBA loans. We estimate the fair value of mortgage loans based on quoted market prices for securities backed
by similar types of loans, where available, or by discounting estimated cash flows using observable inputs inclusive of interest rates, prepayment speeds and loss assumptions for
similar collateral.

Asset Quality
All asset quality information excludes LGG that are insured by U.S government agencies.

Aloan generally is classified as a non-accrual loan when it is 90 days or more past due or when it is deemed to be impaired because the Company no longer expects to collect
all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, management ceases the accrual of interest owed, and
previously accrued interest is charged against interest income. A loan is generally returned to accrual status when the loan is current and management has reasonable assurance
that the loan will be fully collectible. Interest income on non-accrual loans is recorded when received in cash. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 we had
$13 million of no loans that were nonperforming and still accruing and at December 31, 2022, all of our non-performing loans were non-accrual loans. accruing.

The following table presents information regarding the quality of the Company’s loans held for investment at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:

Loans 90

Days or More

Loans 90

Days or More

Loans Delinquent Loans Delinquent

30-89 Non- and Still Total 30-89 Non- and Still Total

Days Accrual Accruing Past Due Current Total Loans Days Accrual Accruing Past Due Current Total Loans
(in millions) (in millions) Past Due Loans Interest Loans Loans Receivable (in millions) Past Due Loans Interest Loans Loans Receivable
Multi-family  Multi-family $ 72 3% 13 % — $ 8 $ 37919 $ 38,004 Multi-family $ 79 $ 33 % — $ 112 $ 37719 $ 37,831
Commercial Commercial Commercial
real estate real estate 15 21 — 36 10,428 10,464 real estate 147 36 — 183 10,430 10,613
One-to-four ~ One-to-four One-to-four
family first family first family first
mortgage mortgage 20 84 — 104 5,830 5,934 mortgage 17 85 — 102 5,787 5,889
Acquisition, Acquisition, Acquisition,
development, development, development,
and and and
construction  construction — = = = 2,203 2,203 construction 29 - - 29 2,452 2,481
Commercial ~ Commercial Commercial
and and and
industriala) industriala) 57 30 13 100 23,257 23,357 industriala) 45 79 = 124 23,737 23,861
Other Other 11 — 11 2,574 2,585 Other 18 — — 18 2,585 2,603
Total Total $ 175 $ 148 $ 13 $ 336 $ 82211 $ 82547 Total $ 335 $ 233 $ = $ 568 $ 82,710 $ 83278

(1) Includes lease financing receivables, all of which were current.

The following table presents information regarding the quality of the Company’s loans held for investment at December 31, 2022:

Loans 30-89 Days

Loans 90 Days or More

Delinquent and Still

(in millions) Past Due Non- Accrual Loans Accruing Interest Total Past Due Loans Current Loans Total Loans Receivable
Multi-family $ 34 13 3 — 3 47 $ 38,083 $ 38,130
Commercial real estate 2 20 — 22 8,504 8,526
One-to-four family first mortgage 21 92 — 113 5,708 5,821
Acquisition, development, and construction — — — — 1,996 1,996
Commercial and industriala) = 7 — 7 12,269 12,276
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Other

Total

(1) Includes

22

2,230 2,252

70 %

141 $

211 $

68,790 $ 69,001

lease financing receivables, all of which were current.

The following table summarizes the Company'’s portfolio of loans held for investment by credit quality indicator at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:

Mortgage Loans

Other Loans

Mortgage Loans

Other Loans

One-  Acquisition, One-  Acquisition,
to- Development, Total Commercial Total to- Development, Total Commercial 1

Multi- Commercial Four and Mortgage and Other Multi- Commercial Four and Mortgage and C
(in millions) ~ (in millions) ~ Family Real Estate Family Construction Loans Industrialny Other Loans (in millions) Family Real Estate Family Construction Loans Industriala)y Other L
Credit Credit Credit
Quality Quality Quality
Indicator: Indicator: Indicator:
Pass Pass $36,497 $ 9,567 $5,832 $ 2,196 $ 54,092 $ 23,164 $2,566 $25,730 Pass $36,423 $ 9,731 $5785 $ 2,473 $ 54412 $ 23,659 $2,582 $2
Special Special 926 403 8 7 1,344 68 = 68 Special 803 261 9 = 1,073 86 =
mention mention mention
Substandard Substandard 581 494 94 — 1,169 125 19 144 Substandard 605 621 95 8 1,329 109 21
Doubtful Doubtful — — — — — 7 —
Total Total $38,004 $ 10,464 $5934 $ 2,203 $ 56,605 $ 23,357 $2,585 $25,942 Total $37,831 $ 10,613 $5889 $ 2,481 $ 56814 $ 23,861 $2,603 $2
(1) Includes lease financing receivables, all of which were classified as Pass. -

The following table summarizes the Company'’s portfolio of loans held for investment by credit quality indicator at December 31, 2022:
Mortgage Loans Other Loans
Acquisition,
Commercial Real One-to- Four Development, and Total Mortgage Commercial and

(in millions) Multi- Family Estate Family Construction Loans Industriala Other Total Other Loans
Credit Quality Indicator:
Pass $ 36,622 $ 7871 % 5710 $ 1,992 $ 52,195 $ 12,208 $ 2,238 % 14,446
Special mention 864 230 8 4 1,106 18 — 18
Substandard 644 425 103 — 1,172 50 14 64
Doubtful — — — — 0 — — —
Total $ 38,130 $ 8,526 $ 5821 $ 1,99 $ 54,473 $ 12,276 $ 2,252 % 14,528

m

Includes lease financing receivables, all of which were classified as Pass.

The preceding classifications are the most current ones available and generally have been updated within the last twelve months. In addition, they follow regulatory
guidelines and can generally be described as follows: pass loans are of satisfactory quality; special mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close
attention; substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged (these loans have a well-defined
weakness and there is a possibility that the Company will sustain some loss); and doubtful loans, based on existing circumstances, have weaknesses that make collection or
liguidation in full highly questionable and improbable. In addition, one-to-four family loans are classified based on the duration of the delinquency.

The following table presents, by credit quality indicator, loan class, and year of origination, the amortized cost basis of the Company’s loans and leases as of March 31,

2023 June 30, 2023:

Vintage Year

Revolving

Loans

Converted

Prior To Revolving to Term
(in millions) (in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2019 Loans Loans Total
Pass Pass $ 935 $14,349 $10,976 $ 9,217 $5,531 $12,800 $ 279 $ 5 $54,092
Special Special — — 80 168 262 833 1 — 1,344

Mention Mention

Substandard Substandard 12 2 14 46 237 855 — 3 1,169

Vintage Year

Revolv
Loan
Conver
Prior To Revolving to Ter
(in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2019 Loans Loan
Pass $1,903 $13,645 $10,819 $ 9,880 $5,598 $12,288 $ 273 %
Special 2 2 61 142 251 614 1
Mention
Substandard 4 2 31 42 254 993 —
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Doubtful Doubtful — — — — — — —

Total Total $ 947 $14,351 $11,070 $ 9,431 $6,030 $14,488 $ 280 $ 8 $56,605 Total $1,909 $13,649 $10,911 $10,064 $6,103 $13,895 $ 274 %
mortgage  mortgage mortgage

loans loans loans

Current-  Current- — — = = = @ — — (2) Current- - - - - M @ -

period gross period gross period gross

writeoffs writeoffs writeoffs

Pass Pass $5,095 $ 4,728 $ 2667 $ 1,519 $1,246 $ 1,025 $ 9,389 $ 61 $25,730 Pass $6,321 $ 2,338 $ 2514 $ 3,706 $2,036 $ 1,122 $ 7,869 $ 3
Special Special 3 13 3 3 18 17 1 — 68 Special 32 5 4 12 7 21 5
Mention Mention Mention

Substandard Substandard 1 16 8 29 7 45 31 7 144 Substandard 5 5 5 33 2 56 18
Doubtful Doubtful = = = 7 = = =

Total other Total other §5,099 $ 4,757 $ 2,678 $ 1,551 $1,271 $ 1,087 $ 9431 $ 68 $25942 Total other $6,358 $ 2,348 $ 2523 § 3,758 $2,045 $ 1,199 $§ 7,892 $ 3.
loans loans loans

Current- Current- $ — $ — $ — 3 — s — 3 $ — % — % (3) Current- $ — 3 (1) $ M $ ms — s 2 % — 3
period gross period gross period gross

writeoffs writeoffs writeoffs

Total Total $6,046 $19,108 ¢__ $13,748 $10,982 $7,301 $15575 $ 9,711 $ 76 $82,547 Total $8,267 $15997 ¢__ $13,434 $13,822 $8,148 $15094 $ 8,166 $ 3

When management determines that foreclosure is probable, for loans that are individually evaluated the expected credit losses are based on the fair value of the collateral
adjusted for selling costs. When the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty at the reporting date and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the
operation or sale of the collateral, the collateral-dependent practical expedient has been elected and expected credit losses are based on the fair value of the collateral at the
reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate. For CRE loans, collateral properties include office buildings, warehouse/distribution buildings, shopping centers, apartment
buildings, residential and commercial tract development. The primary source of repayment on these loans is expected to come from the sale, permanent financing or lease of the
real property collateral. CRE loans are impacted by fluctuations in collateral values, as well as the ability of the borrower to obtain permanent financing.

The following table summarizes the extent to which collateral secures the Company'’s collateral-dependent loans held for investment by collateral type as of March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023:

Collateral Type Collateral Type

(in millions) (in millions) Real Property Other (in millions) Real Property Other
Multi-family Multi-family $ 13 $ — Multi-family $ 41 $ —
Commercial real Commercial real 18 — Commercial real 33 —
estate estate estate

One-to-four family One-to-four family 92 — One-to-four family 92 —
first mortgage first mortgage first mortgage

Acquisition, development, and — —

construction

Commercial and Commercial and — 3 Commercial and — 39
industrial industrial industrial

Other Other 10 = Other 12 —
Total collateral- Total collateral- $ 133 $ 3 Total collateral- $ 178 $ 39

dependent loans  dependent loans dependent loans

held for investment held for investment held for investment

Other collateral type consists of taxi medallions, cash, accounts receivable and inventory.

There were no significant changes in the extent to which collateral secures the Company’s collateral-dependent financial assets during the three and six months ended March
31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had $93 million and $122 million of residential mortgage loans in the process of foreclosure and no
residential mortgage loans in the process of foreclosure, respectively.

Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2022-02- Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures. For
additional information on the adoption, refer to Note 1 - Organization and Basis of Presentation.

When borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty, the Company may make certain loan modifications as part of loss mitigation strategies to maximize expected payment.
Modifications in the form of principal forgiveness, an interest rate reduction, or an other-than-insignificant payment delay or a term extension that have occurred in the current
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reporting period to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty are disclosed along with the financial impact of the modifications.

The following table summarizes the amortized cost basis of loans modified during the reporting period to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, disaggregated by class
of financing receivable and type of modification:

Amortized Cost Amortized Cost

Combination - Combination -

Percent of Percent of
Interest Rate Term Interest Rate Interest Rate Term Interest Rate

Total Total Loan Total Total Loan
(dollars in (dollars in Reduction Extension Reduction & Term - (dollars in Reduction Extension Reduction & Term -
millions) millions) Extension millions) Extension
Three Three
months months
ended June ended June
30, 2023 30, 2023
Commercial Commercial $ $ — — $ 44 0.42 % Commercial 8 0.08 %
real estate  real estate real estate  $ 8 $ = $
One-to-four One-to-four 1 1 2 0.03 % One-to-four 4 0.07 %
family first ~ family first family first
mortgage mortgage mortgage — 2
Commercial Commercial 7
and and
Industrial Industrial — 7 0.03 %
Total Total $ $ 1 1 $ 46 Total $ 8 $ 9 $ 19
Six months Six months
ended June ended June
30, 2023 30, 2023
Commercial Commercial $ 52 $ = $ 52
real estate real estate 049 %
One-to-four One-to-four $ = $ 3 $ 6
family first family first
mortgage mortgage 010 %
Commercial Commercial  $ — $ 7 $ 7
and and
Industrial Industrial 0.03 %
Total Total $ 52 $ 10 $ 65

The following table describes the financial effect of the modification made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty:

Interest Rate Reduction

Term Extension

Weighted-average contractual interest rate

Weighted-

average Term (in

Interest Rate Reduction

Term Extension

Weighted-average contractual interest rate

Weighted-

average Term (in

From To years) From To years)

Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2023 2023
Commercial real  Commercial real Commercial real
estate estate 10.50 % 4.0 % estate 8.00 % 4.0 %
One-to-four One-to-four One-to-four
family first family first family first
mortgage mortgage 4.84 % 3.97 % 12.7 mortgage 6.05 % 4.8 % 13.6
Commercial and Commercial and
industrial industrial 0.76
Six months Six months
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2023 2023
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Commercial real
estate
One-to-four
family first
mortgage
Commercial and

industrial

Commercial real

estate 10.09 % 4.0
One-to-four

family first

mortgage 5.47 % 4.4

Commercial and

industrial

% 13.0

0.76

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, there was $1 million of were $3 million one-to-four family first mortgages that were modified for borrowers experiencing financial difficulty
that received term extension and subsequently defaulted during the period and $3 million one-to-four family first mortgages that were combination modifications and
subsequently defaulted during the period.

The performance of loans made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty in which modifications were made is closely monitored to understand the effectiveness of
modification efforts. Loans are considered to be in payment default at 90 or more days past due. The following table depicts the performance of loans that have been modified
during the reporting period:

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023

(dollars in (dollars in 30 - 89 Past (dollars in 30 - 89 Past
Current 90+ Past Due Total Current 90+ Past Due Total
millions) millions) Due millions) Due
Commercial real estate $ 44 $ — $ = $ 44
One-to-four One-to-four — — 3 3 One-to-four — — 6 6
family first ~ family first family first
mortgage mortgage mortgage
Total Total $ 44 $ - $ 3 $ 47 Total $ — $ — $ 6 $ 6

Troubled Debt Restructurings Prior to Adoption of ASU 2022-02

Prior to the adoption of ASU 2022-02, the Company accounted for certain loan modifications and restructurings as TDRs. In general, a modification or restructuring of a loan
constituted a TDR if the Company granted a concession to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty. A loan modified as a TDR was generally placed on non-accrual status until the
Company determined that future collection of principal and interest is reasonably assured, which requires, among other things, that the borrower demonstrate performance
according to the restructured terms for a period of at least six consecutive months. In determining the Company’s allowance for loan and lease losses, reasonably expected TDRs
were individually evaluated and consist of criticized, classified, or maturing loans that will have a modification processed within the next three months.

In an effort to proactively manage delinquent loans, the Company has selectively extended to certain borrowers concessions such as rate reductions, extension of maturity
dates, and forbearance agreements. As of March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022, loans on which concessions were made with respect to rate reductions and/or extension of maturity dates

amounted to $47 million. $45 million.

The following table presents information regarding the Company's TDRs as of March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022:

March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022

(dollars in (dollars in (dollars in
millions) millions) Accruing Non- Accrual Total millions) Accruing Non- Accrual Total
Loan Category: Loan Category: Loan Category:
Multi-family Multi-family $ = $ 7 $ 7 Multi-family $ = $ 6 $ 6
Commercial real Commercial real Commercial real
estate estate 16 19 35 estate 16 19 35
Commercial and Commercial and Commercial and
industrial () industrial () — 5 5industrial o) — 4 4
Total Total $ 16 $ 31 $ 47 Total $ 16 $ 29 $ 45
(1) Includes $5 $4 million of taxi medallion-related loans at March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022.
The financial effects of the Company’s TDRs for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022 are summarized as follows:
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
Weighted Average Interest Weighted Average Interest
Rate Rate
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 61/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited
without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

REFINITIV [<

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Pre- Post- Pre- Post-

Number Modification Modification Charge- Number Modification Modification Charge-
(dollars in  (dollars in of Recorded Recorded Pre- Post- off  Capitalized (dollars in of Recorded Recorded Pre- Post- off Ci
millions) millions) Loans Investment Investment Modification Modification Amount Interest millions) Loans Investment Investment  Modification  Modification Amount
Loan Loan Loan
Category: Category: Category:
Three
Months Three
Ended Months
June 30, Ended June
2022 30, 2022
Commercial Commercial Commercial
real estate real estate 19 22 3 19 6.00 % 400 % $ 3 3 — real estate 1% — % - 4.75 % 9.75% $ — $
Six Months
Ended Six Months
June 30, Ended June
2022 30, 2022
Commercial Commercial
real estate real estate 23 22 % 19 6.00 % 4.00% $ 3 %

Note 7 - Allowance for Credit Losses on Loans and Leases

Allowance for Credit Losses on Loans and Leases

The following table summarizes activity in the allowance for loan and lease credit losses for the periods indicated:

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2023 2022 2023 2022
(in millions) ~ (in millions) Mortgage Other Total Mortgage Other Total  (in millions) Mortgage Other Total Mortgage Other Total
Balance, Balance, $ 290 $ 103 $ 393 $ 178 $ 21 $ 199 Balance, $ 290 $ 103 $ 393 $ 178 $ 2 $ 199
beginning of beginning of beginning of
period period period
Adjustment Adjustment — 13 13 0 Adjustment — 13 13 — —
for for for
Purchased  Purchased Purchased
PCD Loans PCD Loans PCD Loans =
Charge-offs Charge-offs 2) (€] (5) 3) — (3) Charge-offs (3) ) ) (4) — 4
Recoveries  Recoveries — 5 5 — 2 2 Recoveries — 9 9 4 5 9
Provision for Provision for (5) 149 144 1 ) (1) Provision for 43 144 187 30 (18) 12
(recovery of) (recovery of) (recovery of)
credit losses credit losses credit losses
on loans and on loans and on loans and
leases leases leases
Balance, end Balance, end $ 283 $ 267 $ 550 $ 176 $ 21 $ 197 Balance end $ 330 $ 264 $ 59 $ 208 $ 8 $ 216

of period of period

of period

At March 31, 2023 As of June 30, 2023, the allowance for credit losses on loans and leases totaled $550$594 million, up $157 $201 million compared to December 31, 2022,
driven primarily by the initial provision for credit losses and the adjustment for PCD loans acquired in the Signature Transaction..

At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the allowance for unfunded commitments totaled $29 million and $23 million, respectively.

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 the The increase in the allowance for credit losses on loans and leases from December 31, 2022 to June 30, 2023 was primarily
driven by a combination of increased loan balances as a result of the Signature Transaction and changes in the macroeconomic environment both on a spot and forecasted basis,
specifically the inflationary pressures leading to sharp increases in interest rates and a slow-down of prepayment activity leading to longer weighted average lives on the balance

sheet. In addition,

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the impact of the forecasted macroeconomic factors had resultant decreases on market level factors in Property Prices on the
Multi-Family, Commercial Real Estate allowance for unfunded commitments totaled $34 million and 1-4 Family loan portfolios reflecting the changing economic landscape.

$23 million, respectively.
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The Company charges off loans, or portions of loans, in the period that such loans, or portions thereof, are deemed uncollectible. The collectability of individual loans is
determined through an assessment of the financial condition and repayment capacity of the borrower and/or through an estimate of the fair value of any underlying collateral. For
non-real estate-related consumer credits, the following past-due time periods determine when charge-offs are typically recorded: (1) closed-end credits are charged off in the
quarter that the loan becomes 120 days past due; (2) open-end credits are charged off in the quarter that the loan becomes 180 days past due; and (3) both closed-end and open-
end credits are typically charged off in the quarter that the credit is 60 days past the date the Company received notification that the borrower has filed for bankruptcy.

The following table presents additional information about the Company’s nonaccrual loans at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:

(in millions) (in millions) Recorded Investment

Related Allowance

Interest Income

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans Nonaccrual loans

with no related  with no related

allowance: allowance:
Multi-family Multi-family — $ 13
Commercial Commercial 18
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 77
family first family first
mortgage mortgage

Acquisition, development, and —

construction

Recorded Investment

Interest Income

Related Allowance Recognized

Nonaccrual
loans with no
related

allowance:

Multi-family ~ $ 32

— Commercial

real estate

— One-to-four

family first

mortgage

— Other (includes

cal)

Other (includes  Other (includes 16
Cal) C&l)
Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 124

loans with no loans with no
related related

allowance allowance

34

78

59

Total nonaccrual $
loans with no
related

allowance

Nonaccrual loans Nonaccrual loans

with an with an

allowance allowance

recorded: recorded:
Multi-family Multi-family  $ =
Commercial Commercial 3
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 7
family first family first
mortgage mortgage

Acquisition, development, and —

construction

203

Nonaccrual
loans with an
allowance

recorded:
Multi-family ~ $
Commercial
real estate
One-to-four
family first
mortgage

Other (includes
C&l)

Other (includes = Other (includes 14
cal) C&l)
Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 24
loans with an loans with an
allowance allowance
recorded recorded

Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual

loans: loans:
Multi-family Multi-family — $ 13
Commercial Commercial 21
real estate real estate

20

Total nonaccrual $
loans with an
allowance

recorded

30

Total nonaccrual

loans:
Multi-family ~ $

Commercial

real estate
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One-to-four One-to-four 84
family first family first
mortgage mortgage

Acquisition, development, and —

construction

One-to-four
family first

mortgage

Other (includes

cal)

Other (includes  Other (includes 30

C&l) C&l)
Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 148 $ 15
loans loans

85

79

Total nonaccrual $

loans

233

The following table presents additional information about the Company’s nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2022:

(in millions) (in millions) Recorded Investment

Related Allowance

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans Nonaccrual loans

with no related  with no related

allowance: allowance:
Multi-family Multi-family $ 13 $ =
Commercial Commercial 19 — 1
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 90 — —
family first family first
mortgage mortgage
Other (includes  Other (includes 3 — —
Ca&l) C&d)

Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 125 $ =

loans with no loans with no

related related

allowance allowance
Nonaccrual Nonaccrual
loans with an loans with an
allowance allowance
recorded: recorded:
Commercial Commercial $ 1 $ =
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 2 — —
family first family first
mortgage mortgage
Other (includes  Other (includes 13 14 —
Ca&l) C&d)

Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 16 $ 14

loans with an loans with an

allowance allowance

recorded recorded

Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual

loans: loans:
Multi-family Multi-family  $ 13 $ =
Commercial Commercial 20 — 1
real estate real estate
One-to-four One-to-four 92 = =
family first family first
mortgage mortgage
Acquisition, development, and — — —
construction
Other (includes = Other (includes 16 14 —
cal) Ca&l)

Recorded Investment

Related Allowance

Interest Income

Recognized

Nonaccrual
loans with no
related

allowance:
Multi-family ~ $

Commercial
real estate
One-to-four
family first
mortgage
Other (includes
ca&dl)

90

Total nonaccrual $
loans with no
related

allowance

125

Nonaccrual
loans with an
allowance
recorded:
Commercial $
real estate
One-to-four
family first
mortgage
Other (includes
c&l)

Total nonaccrual $
loans with an
allowance

recorded

Total nonaccrual
loans:
Multi-family  $
Commercial
real estate
One-to-four
family first

mortgage

Other (includes

cal)
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Total nonaccrual Total nonaccrual $ 141 $ 14 $ 1 Total nonaccrual $ 141 $ 14 $ 1

loans loans loans

Note 8- Leases
Lessor Arrangements

The Company is a lessor in the equipment finance business where it has executed direct financing leases (“lease finance receivables”). The Company produces lease finance
receivables through a specialty finance subsidiary that participates in syndicated loans that are brought to them, and equipment loans and leases that are assigned to them, by a
select group of nationally recognized sources, and are generally made to large corporate obligors, many of which are publicly traded, carry investment grade or near-investment
grade ratings, and participate in stable industries nationwide. Lease finance receivables are carried at the aggregate of lease payments receivable plus the estimated residual value
of the leased assets and any initial direct costs incurred to originate these leases, less unearned income, which is accreted to interest income over the lease term using the interest
method.

The standard leases are typically repayable on a level monthly basis with terms ranging from 24 to 120 months. At the end of the lease term, the lessee usually has the option
to return the equipment, to renew the lease or purchase the equipment at the then fair market value (“FMV") price. For leases with a FMV renewal/purchase option, the relevant
residual value assumptions are based on the estimated value of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, including evaluation of key factors, such as, the estimated remaining
useful life of the leased asset, its historical secondary market value including history of the lessee executing the FMV option, overall credit evaluation and return provisions. The
Company acquires the leased asset at fair market value and provides funding to the respective lessee at acquisition cost, less any volume or trade discounts, as applicable.
Therefore, there is generally no selling profit or loss to recognize or defer at inception of a lease.

The residual value component of a lease financing receivable represents the estimated fair value of the leased equipment at the end of the lease term. In establishing residual
value estimates, the Company may rely on industry data, historical experience, and independent appraisals and, where appropriate, information regarding product life cycle,
product upgrades and competing products. Upon expiration of a lease, residual assets are remarketed, resulting in either an extension of the lease by the lessee, a lease to a new
customer or purchase of the residual asset by the lessee or another party. Impairment of residual values arises if the expected fair value is less than the carrying amount. The
Company assesses its net investment in lease financing receivables (including residual values) for impairment on an annual basis with any impairment losses recognized in
accordance with the impairment guidance for financial instruments. As such, net investment in lease financing receivables may be reduced by an allowance for credit losses with
changes recognized as provision expense. On certain lease financings, the Company obtains residual value insurance from third parties to manage and reduce the risk associated
with the residual value of the leased assets. At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the carrying value of residual assets with third-party residual value insurance for
at least a portion of the asset value was $389 $428 million and $32 million, respectively.

The Company uses the interest rate implicit in the lease to determine the present value of its lease financing receivables.

The components of lease income were as follows:

For the Three Months For the Three Months For the three months For the six months For the three months For the six months

(in millions)  (in millions) Ended March 31, 2023 Ended March 31, 2022 (in millions) ended June 30, 2023 ended June 30, 2023 ended June 30, 2022 ended June 30, 2022
Interest Interest $ 20 $ 12 Interest $ 32 $ 52 $ 12 $ 24
income on income on income on

lease lease lease

financing  financingm financing ()

(1) Included in Interest Income - Loans and leases in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the carrying value of net investment in leases, excluding purchase accounting adjustments was $3.2 billion $3.3 billion
and $1.7 billion, respectively. The components of net investment in direct financing leases, including the carrying amount of the lease receivables, as well as the unguaranteed
residual asset were as follows:

(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 (in millions) June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

Net investment in

the lease - lease

Net investment in

the lease - lease

Net investment in

the lease - lease

payments receivable payments receivable $ 2,790 $ 1,685 payments receivable $ 2,822 $ 1,685
Net investment in Net investment in Net investment in

the lease - the lease - the lease -

unguaranteed unguaranteed unguaranteed

residual assets residual assets 420 60 residual assets 461 60
Total lease payments Total lease payments 3,210 $ 1,745 Total lease payments $ 3,283 $ 1,745

The following table presents the remaining maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease receivables, as well as the reconciliation to the total amount of receivables recognized
in the Consolidated Statements of Condition:

(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 (in millions) June 30, 2023
2023 2023 $ 395 2023 $ 396
2024 2024 533 2024 526
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2025 2025 720 2025 677
2026 2026 578 2026 574
2027 2027 486 2027 473
Thereafter Thereafter 498 Thereafter 637
Total lease payments Total lease payments 3,210 Total lease payments $ 3,283
Plus: deferred origination Plus: deferred origination Plus: deferred origination

costs costs 18 costs 18
Less: unearned income Less: unearned income (88) Less: unearned income (219)
Less: purchase accounting Less: purchase accounting

adjustment adjustment $ (90)
Total lease finance Total lease finance Total lease finance

receivables, net receivables, net $ 3,140 receivables, net $ 2,992

Lessee Arrangements

The Company has operating leases for corporate offices, branch locations, and certain equipment. These leases generally have terms of 20 years or less, determined based on
the contractual maturity of the lease, and include periods covered by options to extend or terminate the lease when the Company is reasonably certain that it will exercise those
options. For the vast majority of the Company’s leases, we are not reasonably certain we will exercise our options to renew to the end of all renewal option periods. The Company
determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities in the Consolidated
Statements of Condition.

ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As the vast majority of
the leases do not provide an implicit rate, the incremental borrowing rate (FHLB borrowing rate) is used based on the information available at commencement date in determining
the present value of lease payments. The implicit rate is used when readily determinable. The operating lease ROU asset is measured at cost, which includes the initial measurement
of the lease liability, prepaid rent and initial direct costs incurred by the Company, less incentives received.

Variable costs such as the proportionate share of actual costs for utilities, common area maintenance, property taxes and insurance are not included in the lease liability and
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred.

The components of lease expense were as follows:

For the Three For the Three For the three For the three

Months Ended Months Ended months ended June For the six months months ended June For the six months

(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022  (in millions) 30, 2023 ended June 30, 2023 30, 2022 ended June 30, 2022
Operating Operating Operating
lease cost lease cost 1 $ 7 lease cost $ 25 $ 35 $ 7 $ 14
Sublease Sublease Sublease
income income = = income = = = =
Total lease Total lease Total lease
cost cost $ 11 $ 7 cost $ 25 $ 35 $ 7 $ 14

Supplemental cash flow information related to the leases for the following periods:

For the Three
Months Ended

For the Three For the three For the three

Months Ended months ended June For the six months months ended June For the six months

(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 (in millions) 30, 2023 ended June 30, 2023 30, 2022 ended June 30, 2022
Cash paid for Cash paid for Cash paid for

amounts included amounts included amounts included

in the in the in the

measurement of measurement of measurement of

lease liabilities:  lease liabilities: lease liabilities:

Operating cash ~ Operating cash Operating cash

flows from flows from flows from

operating leases operating leases $ 10 $ 7 operating leases  $ 20 $ 30 $ 7 $ 14

Supplemental balance sheet information related to the leases for the following periods:
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(in millions, except
lease term and
discount rate)
Operating Leases:
Operating lease
right-of-use
assets (1)
Operating lease
liabilities @
Weighted average
remaining lease
term

Weighted average

discount rate %

(in millions, except
lease term and
discount rate)

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Operating Leases:

Operating lease

right-of-use

assets (1) $ 350 $ 119
Operating lease

liabilities @) $ 353 $ 122
Weighted average

remaining lease

term 8.75 years
Weighted average
discount rate % 3.27 % 3.85

(1) Included in Other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

(2) Included in Other liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.

(in millions)
Maturities of lease
liabilities:

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total lease payments

Less: imputed interest

(in millions) March 31, 2023

(in millions, except
lease term and

discount rate)
Operating Leases:
Operating lease
right-of-use
assets ()
Operating lease
liabilities @
Weighted average

remaining lease

6 years term

Weighted average

% discount rate %

(in millions)

Maturities of lease

June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

529 $ 119
536 $ 122
9years 6 years
4.38 % 3.85 %

June 30, 2023

Maturities of lease

liabilities: liabilities:

2023 $ 43 2023 $ 26
2024 65 2024 79
2025 57 2025 73
2026 48 2026 63
2027 44 2027 59
Thereafter 168 Thereafter 416
Total lease payments $ 425 Total lease payments $ 716
Less: imputed interest $ (72) Less: imputed interest $ (180)

Total present value of lease Total present value of lease Total present value of lease
liabilities $ 353 $ 536

liabilities

liabilities

Note 9 - Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company has investments in MSRs that result from the sale of loans to the secondary market for which we retain the servicing. The Company accounts for MSRs at their
fair value. A primary risk associated with MSRs is the potential reduction in fair value as a result of higher than anticipated prepayments due to loan refinancing prompted, in part,
by declining interest rates or government intervention. Conversely, these assets generally increase in value in a rising interest rate environment to the extent that prepayments are
slower than anticipated. The Company utilizes derivatives as economic hedges to offset changes in the fair value of the MSRs resulting from the actual or anticipated changes in
prepayments stemming from changing interest rate environments. There is also a risk of valuation decline due to higher than expected default rates, which we do not believe can
be effectively managed using derivatives. For further information regarding the derivative instruments utilized to manage our MSR risks, see Note 14 - Derivative and Hedging

Activities.

Changesin

(in millions)

the fair value of residential first mortgage MSRs were as follows:

Balance at beginning of period, December 1, 2022

Additions from loans sold with servicing retained

Decrease in MSR fair value due to pay-offs, pay-downs, run-off, model changes, and other ()

Changes in estimates of fair value due to interest rate risk ()@

Fair value of MSRs

(in millions)

at end of period

Balance at beginning of period

Additions from loans sold with servicing retained

Reductions from sales

Decrease in MSR fair value due to pay-offs, pay-downs, run-off, model changes, and other ()

Changes in estimates of fair value due to interest rate risk 1)
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Three months ended March 31,

2023
$ 1,033
38
(18)
(19)
$ 1,034

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023 Six Months Ended June 30, 2023

$ 1,034 § 1,033
43 81
1) N
(16) 34
21 2
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Fair value of MSRs at end of period $

1,031 $ 1,031

(1) Changes in fair value are included within net return on mortgage servicing rights on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

(2) Represents estimated MSR value change resulting primarily from market-driven changes which we manage through the use of derivatives.

The following table summarizes the hypothetical effect on the fair value of servicing rights using adverse changes of 10 percent and 20 percent to the weighted average of

certain significant assumptions used in valuing these assets:

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
Fair Value Fair Value

(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions) Actual 10% adverse change 20% adverse change  (dollars in millions) Actual 10% adverse change 20% adverse change
Option adjusted Option adjusted Option adjusted

5.8 % $ 1,014 $ 994 5.6 % $ 1,011 $ 993
spread spread spread
Constant Constant Constant

8.1 % 999 966 8.2 % 997 966
prepayment rate prepayment rate prepayment rate
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
cost to service per cost to service per $ 68 $ 1,025 $ 1,015 cost to service per $ 69 $ 1,021 $ 1,011
loan loan loan

December 31, 2022

Fair Value
(dollars in millions) Actual 10% adverse change 20% adverse change
Option adjusted spread 59%$ 1,012 $ 992
Constant prepayment rate 79 % 1,000 970
Weighted average cost to service per loan $ 68 $ 1,023 $ 1,013

The sensitivity calculations above are hypothetical and should not be considered to be predictive of future performance. Changes in fair value based on adverse changes in
assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. To isolate the effect of the
specified change, the fair value shock analysis is consistent with the identified adverse change, while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, a change in one
assumption generally impacts other assumptions, which may either magnify or counteract the effect of the change. For further information on the fair value of MSRs.

Contractual servicing and subservicing fees, including late fees and other ancillary income are presented below. Contractual servicing fees are included within net return on
mortgage servicing rights on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. Contractual subservicing fees including late fees and other ancillary income are
included within loan administration income on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. Subservicing fee income is recorded for fees earned on

subserviced loans, net of third-party subservicing costs.

The following table summarizes income and fees associated with owned MSRs:

Three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2023
Net return on mortgage servicing rights
Servicing fees, ancillary income and late fees) $ 56
Decrease in MSR fair value due to pay-offs, pay-downs, run-off, model changes and other (18)
Changes in fair value due to interest rate risk (19)
Gain on MSR derivatives @) 8
Net transaction costs (]
Total return (loss) included in net return on mortgage servicing rights $ 21
(in millions) Three months ended June 30, 2023  Six months ended June 30, 2023
Net return on mortgage servicing rights
Servicing fees, ancillary income and late fees ) $ 54 $ 110
Decrease in MSR fair value due to pay-offs, pay-downs, run-off, model changes and other (16) (34)
Changes in fair value due to interest rate risk 21 2
Gain on MSR derivatives ) (35) 32)
Net transaction costs 2 1
Total return (loss) included in net return on mortgage servicing rights $ 26 $ 47
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(1) Servicing fees are recorded on an accrual basis. Ancillary income and late fees are recorded on a cash basis.

(2) Changes in the derivatives utilized as economic hedges to offset changes in fair value of the MSRs.

The following table summarizes income and fees associated with our mortgage loans subserviced for others:

Three months ended March 31,
(in millions) 2023

Loan administration income on mortgage loans subserviced

Servicing fees, ancillary income and late fees () $ 36

Charges on subserviced custodial balances @ (29)

Other servicing charges m
Total income on mortgage loans subserviced, included in loan administration $ 6
(in millions) Three months ended June 30, 2023  Six months ended June 30, 2023

Loan administration income on mortgage loans subserviced

Servicing fees, ancillary income and late fees () $ 38 $ 74
Charges on subserviced custodial balances @ (40) (69)
Other servicing charges (1) (2
Total income on mortgage loans subserviced, included in loan administration $ 3)$ 3

(1) Servicing fees are recorded on an accrual basis. Ancillary income and late fees are recorded on a cash basis.

(2) Charges on subserviced custodial balances represent interest due to MSR owner.

Note 10 - Variable Interest Entities
We have no consolidated VIEs as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

In connection with our non-qualified mortgage securitization activities, we have retained a five percent interest in the investment securities of certain trusts ("other MBS")
and are contracted as the subservicer of the underlying loans, compensated based on market rates, which constitutes a continuing involvement in these trusts. Although we have
avariable interest in these securitization trusts, we are not their primary beneficiary due to the relative size of our investment in comparison to the total amount of securities
issued by the VIE and our inability to direct activities that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance. As a result, we have not consolidated the assets and liabilities
of the VIE in our Consolidated Statements of Condition. The Bank’s maximum exposure to loss is limited to our five percent retained interest in the investment securities that had a
fair value of $188 $183 million as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 as well as the standard representations and warranties made in conjunction with the loan transfers.

Note 11- Borrowed Funds

The following table summarizes the Company’s borrowed funds:

(in millions) (in millions) March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 (in millions) June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
Wholesale borrowings: Wholesale borrowings: Wholesale borrowings:
FHLB advances FHLB advances $ 20,350 $ 20,325 FHLB advances $ 15,400 $ 20,325
Total wholesale Total wholesale Total wholesale
borrowings borrowings $ 20,350 $ 20,325 borrowings $ 15,400 $ 20,325
Junior subordinated = Junior subordinated Junior subordinated
debentures debentures 576 575 debentures 577 575
Subordinated notes  Subordinated notes 434 432 Subordinated notes 435 432
Total borrowed funds Total borrowed funds $ 21,360 $ 21,332 Total borrowed funds ¢ 16,412 $ 21,332

Accrued interest on borrowed funds is included in “Other liabilities” in the Consolidated Statements of Condition and amounted to $58$40 million and $37 million,
respectively, at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had $576 million $609 million and $608 million, respectively, of outstanding junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures (“junior subordinated debentures”) held by statutory business trusts (the “Trusts”) that issued guaranteed capital securities. securities, excluding
purchase accounting adjustments.

The following table presents contractual terms of the junior subordinated debentures outstanding at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023:
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Interest Rate

Junior

Interest Rate

Junior

of Capital Subordinated of Capital Subordinated
Securities Debentures Capital Securities Date of Securities Debentures Capital Securities Date of
and Amount Amount Original Stated and Amount Amount Original Stated
Issuer Issuer Debentures Outstanding @) Outstanding Issue Maturity Issuer Debentures Outstanding @ Outstanding Issue Maturity
(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions)
New York New York New York
Community ~ Community Community
Capital Trust V Capital Trust V Capital Trust V
(BONUSES (BONUSES Nov. 4, Nov. 1, (BONUSES Nov. 4, Nov. 1,
Units) (1) Units) (1) 0.06 $ 147 $ 141 2002 2051  Units) (1) 0.06 147 141 2002 2051
New York New York New York
Community  Community Community
Capital Trust X Capital Trust X Dec. 14, Dec. 15, Capital Trust X Dec. 14, Dec. 15,
) ) 6.47 124 120 2006 2036 (2) 7.15 124 120 2006 2036
PennFed PennFed PennFed
Capital Trust Ill Capital Trust [l June 2, June 15, Capital Trust IIl June 2, June 15,
2) ) 8.12 31 30 2003 2033  (2) 8.8 31 30 2003 2033
New York New York New York
Community  Community Community
Capital Trust XI Capital Trust XI April 16, June 30, Capital Trust XI April 16, June 30,
) ) 6.81 59 58 2007 2037 (2) 7.19 58 58 2007 2037
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Dec. 26, Dec. 26, Statutory Trust Dec. 26, Dec. 26,
1) 11(2) 8.38 26 25 2002 2032 11(2) 8.79 26 25 2002 2032
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Feb. 19, April 7, Statutory Trust Feb. 19, April 7,
1(2) 11(2) 8.08 26 25 2003 2033  1lI(2) 8.51 26 25 2003 2033
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Mar. 19, Mar 19, Statutory Trust Mar. 19, Mar 19,
IV (2) IV (2) 7.98 26 25 2003 2033 IV (2) 8.41 26 25 2003 2033
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Dec 29, Jan. 7, Statutory Trust Dec 29, Jan. 7,
V(2) V() 6.83 26 25 2004 2035 V(2 7.26 26 25 2004 2035
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Mar. 30, April 7, Statutory Trust Mar. 30, April 7,
VI(2) VI(2) 6.83 26 25 2005 2035 VI(2) 7.26 26 25 2005 2035
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Mar. 29, June 15, Statutory Trust Mar. 29, June 15,
VI (2) VII(2) 6.62 52 50 2005 2035 VII(2) 7.30 52 50 2005 2035
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Sept. 22, Oct. 7, Statutory Trust Sept. 22, Oct. 7,
VIl (2) VIl (2) 6.33 26 25 2005 2035 VIl (2) 6.76 26 25 2005 2035
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust June 28, Sept. 15, Statutory Trust June 28, Sept. 15,
IX(2) 1X(2) 6.32 26 25 2007 2037 IX(2) 7.00 26 25 2007 2037
Flagstar Flagstar Flagstar
Statutory Trust Statutory Trust Aug. 31, Sept 15, Statutory Trust Aug. 31, Sept 15,
X(2) X(2) 7.37 15 15 2007 2037 X (2) 8.05 15 15 2007 2037
Total junior  Total junior $ 610 $ 589 Total junior 609 589
subordinated subordinated subordinated
debentures) debentures ) debentures @)
(1) Callable subject to certain conditions as described in the prospectus filed with the SEC on November 4, 2002.
(2) Callable at any time.
(3) Excludes Flagstar Acquisition fair value adjustments of $32 million.
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Subordinated Notes

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had a total of $434 $435 million and $432 million subordinated notes outstanding; respectively, of fixed-
to-floating rate subordinated notes outstanding:

Date of Original Issue Stated Maturity Interest Rate Original Issue Amount
November 6, 2018 November 6, 2028 (1) 5.900% $ 300
October 28, 2020 November 1, 2030 (2) 4.125% $ 150

(1) From and including the date of original issuance to, but excluding November 6, 2023, the Notes will bear interest at an initial rate of 5.90 percent per annum payable semi-annually. Unless redeemed,
from and including November 6, 2023 to but excluding the maturity date, the interest rate will reset quarterly to an annual interest rate equal to the then-current three-month LIBOR rate plus 278 basis
point payable quarterly.

(2) From and including the date of original issuance, the Notes will bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.125 percent through October 31, 2025, and a variable rate tied to SOFR thereafter until maturity. The

Company has the option to redeem all or a part of the Notes beginning on November 1, 2025, and on any subsequent interest payment date.

Note 12 - Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

The following table sets forth certain disclosures for the Company'’s pension and post-retirement plans for the periods indicated:

For the Three Months Ended March 31, For the three months ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Pension Post Retirement Pension Post Retirement Pension Post Retirement Pension Post Retirement
(in millions) (in millions) Benefits Benefits @ Benefits Benefits (in millions) Benefits Benefits ) Benefits Benefits
Components Components Components
of net periodic of net periodic of net periodic
pension pension pension
expense expense expense
(credit):m (credit):m (credit):o)
Interest cost  Interest cost ~ $ 1 $ — $ 1 $ — Interest cost ~ $ 2 $ = $ 1 $ =
Expected Expected (4) — (4) — Expected 3) — 4) =
return on plan return on plan return on plan
assets assets assets
Amortization ~ Amortization 2 = = = Amortization 1 = 1 =
of net actuarial of net actuarial of net actuarial
loss loss loss
Net periodic  Net periodic  $ 1) $ — $ 3) $ — Net periodic  $ — $ — $ ) $ —
(credit) (credit) (credit)
expense expense expense

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2023 2022

Pension Benefits Post Retirement Pension Benefits Post Retirement
(in millions) Benefits @ Benefits
Components of net periodic pension expense (credit):n)
Interest cost $ 3 % — 3 2 3 =
Expected return on plan assets (7) = (8) —
Amortization of net actuarial loss 3 - 1 -
Net periodic (credit) expense $ M s — 3 (5) % —

(1) Amounts are included in G&A expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

) Post-retirement benefits balances round to zero.

The Company expects to contribute $1 million to its post-retirement plan to pay premiums and claims for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. The Company does
not expect to make any contributions to its pension plan in 2023.
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Note 13- Stock-Related Benefits Plans

Stock Based Compensation

At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company had a total of 3,613,685 19,213,596 shares available for grants as restricted stock, options, or other forms of related rights under
the 2020 Incentive Plan, which includes the remaining shares available, converted at the merger conversion factor from the legacy Flagstar Bancorp, Inc. 2016 Stock Plan. The
Company granted 5,786,435 6,388,840 shares of restricted stock, with an average fair value of $9.42 $9.57 per share on the date of grant, during the three six months ended March
31,2023 June 30, 2023.

The shares of restricted stock that were granted during the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and 2022, vest over a one- or five years period.
Compensation and benefits expense related to the restricted stock grants is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period and totaled $8 million $18 million and $7
million $14 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, including $9 million and $7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.June 30, 2022.

The following table provides a summary of activity with regard to restricted stock awards:

For the Year Ended March 31, 2023 For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Weighted Average Grant Date Fair
Number of Shares Value Number of Shares Value
Unvested at Unvested at Unvested at
beginning of year  beginning of year 9,576,602 $ 10.92 beginning of year 9,576,602 $ 10.92
Granted Granted 5,786,435 9.42 Granted 6,388,840 9.57
Vested Vested (2,291,571) 11.50 Vested (2,885,476) 11.08
Forfeited Forfeited (298,169) 11.29 Forfeited (592,118) 10.72
Unvested at end of year 12,773,297 $ 10.13
Unvested at end of Unvested at end of
period period 12,487,848 $ 10.20

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, unrecognized compensation cost relating to unvested restricted stock totaled $116 million. $110 million. This amount will be recognized
over a remaining weighted average period of 3.23.1 years.

The following table provides a summary of activity with regard to Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units ("PSUs") in the three six months ended March 31, 2023 june 30,
2023:

Weighted
Average Expected
Number of Grant Date Performance Vesting
Shares Fair Value Period Date
Outstanding at beginning of year 794,984 $ 10.73
Granted 566,656 8.95
Released (143,352) 10.34
Forfeited 0 -
January 1, 2022 - December 31,

Outstanding at end of period 1,218,288 9.95 2025 March 31, 2023 - 2026

PSUs are subject to adjustment or forfeiture, based upon the achievement by the Company of certain performance standards. Compensation and benefits expense related to
PSUs is recognized using the fair value as of the date the units were approved, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period and totaled $1 million, and $0 $2 million for the three
and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, and March 31, 2022, respectively.$1 million for the three and six months June 30, 2022. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023,
unrecognized compensation cost relating to unvested restricted stock totaled $9 million. $7 million. This amount will be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of
1.62.0 years. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company believes it is probable that the performance conditions will be met.

The Company matches a portion of employee 401(k) plan contributions. Such expense totaled $10 million and $3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and June 30,
2022, including $4 million and $1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022.

Note 14 - Derivative and Hedging Activities

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company principally manages its exposure to a wide variety
of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company manages economic risks, including interest rate and liquidity risks, primarily by
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managing the amount, sources, and duration of its assets and liabilities and, the use of derivative financial instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial
instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which are determined by
interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value in other assets and other liabilities on the Consolidated Statements of Condition. The Company's policy is to
present our derivative assets and derivative liabilities on the Consolidated Statement of Condition on a gross basis, even when provisions allowing for set-off are in place. However,
for derivative contracts cleared through certain central clearing parties, variation margin payments are recognized as settlements. We are exposed to non-performance risk by the
counterparties to our various derivative financial instruments. A majority of our derivatives are centrally cleared through a Central Counterparty Clearing House or consist of
residential mortgage interest rate lock commitments further limiting our exposure to non-performance risk. We believe that the non-performance risk inherent in our remaining
derivative contracts is minimal based on credit standards and the collateral provisions of the derivative agreements.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. The Company maintains a derivative portfolio of interest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps, futures and forward
commitments used to manage exposure to changes in interest rates and MSR asset values and to meet the needs of customers. The Company also enters into interest rate lock
commitments, which are commitments to originate mortgage loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is determined prior to funding and the customers have locked into that
interest rate. Market risk on interest rate lock commitments and mortgage LHFS is managed using corresponding forward sale commitments and US Treasury futures. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are recognized on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments. The Company has designated certain interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges on LIBOR and overnight SOFR-based variable
interest payments on federal home loan bank advances. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income on
the Consolidated Statements of Condition and reclassified into interest expense in the same period in which the hedge transaction is recognized in earnings. At March 31, 2023 June
30, 2023, the Company had $69 million$19 million (net-of-tax) of unrealized gains on derivatives classified as cash flow hedges recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss.
The Company had $52 million (net-of-tax) of unrealized gains on derivatives classified as cash flow hedges recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,
2022.

Derivatives that are designated in hedging relationships are assessed for effectiveness using regression analysis at inception and qualitatively thereafter, unless regression
analysis is deemed necessary. All designated hedge relationships were, and are expected to be, highly effective as of March 31, 2023 june 30, 2023.

Fair Value of Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to changes in the fair value of certain of its fixed-rate assets due to changes in interest rates. The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its
exposure to changes in fair value on these instruments attributable to changes in the designated benchmark interest rate. Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges
involve the payment of fixed-rate amounts to a counterparty in exchange for the Company receiving variable-rate payments over the life of the agreements without the exchange
of the underlying notional amount. Such derivatives were used to hedge the changes in fair value of certain of its pools of prepayable fixed rate assets. For derivatives designated
and that qualify as fair value hedges, the gain or loss on the derivative as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in
interest income.

The Company has entered into interest rate swaps with a notional amounts of $2.0 billion to hedge certain real estate loans using the portfolio layer method. For the three
months ended March 31, June 30, 2023, the floating rate received related to the net settlement of this interest rate swap was greater than the fixed rate payments. As such, interest
income from loans and leases in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income was increased by $1 $6 million.

The fair value basis adjustment on our hedged real estate loans is included in loans and leases held for investment on our Consolidated Statements of Condition. The

carrying amount of our hedged loans was $6 $6.4 billion at March 31, June 30, 2023, of which unrealized gains of $2 $34 million were due to the fair value hedge relationship. We have
designated $2.0 billion of this portfolio of loans in a hedging relationship as of March 31, June 30, 2023.

The following tables set forth information regarding the Company’s derivative financial instruments:

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
Fair Value Fair Value

(in millions) (in millions) Notional Amount Other Assets Other Liabilities (in millions) Notional Amount Other Assets Other Liabilities
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
designated as cash  designated as cash designated as cash
flow hedging flow hedging flow hedging
instruments: instruments: instruments:

Interest rate swap on FHLB advances $ 5,500 $ = $ 7

Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps

on FHLB advances on FHLB advances $ 5,500 $ 1 $ —

Total Total $ 5,500 $ = $ 7 Total $ 5,500 $ 1 $ =
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Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

designated as fair  designated as fair designated as fair
value hedging value hedging value hedging
instruments: instruments: instruments:

Interest rate swap on multi-family loans

held for investment $ 2,000 $ — $ 2
Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps
on multi-family on multi-family
loans held for loans held for
investment investment $ 2,000 $ — $ —
Derivatives not Derivatives not Derivatives not
designated as designated as designated as
hedging hedging hedging
instruments: instruments: instruments:
Assets Assets Assets
Futures Futures $ = $ — Futures $ 2,530 $ 3 $ =
Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed
securities securities securities
forwards forwards 542 5 — forwards 2,372 21 —
Rate lock Rate lock Rate lock
commitments commitments 1,759 15 — commitments 1,954 10 —
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
swaps and swaps and swaps and
swaptions swaptions 7,522 159 — swaptions 7,414 136 —
Foreign currency Foreign currency
swaps swaps 19,825 — —
Total Total $ 9,823 $ 179 $ — Total $ 34,095 $ 170 $ =
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed
securities securities securities
forwards forwards $ 1,466 $ — $ 14 forwards $ 727 $ — $ 7
Rate lock Rate lock Rate lock
commitments commitments 218 = 7 commitments 543 = 10
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
swaps and swaps and swaps and
swaptions swaptions 2,247 — 49 swaptions 1,442 — 61
Foreign currency Foreign currency $ 18,213 $ = $ =
swaps swaps
Total derivatives not Total derivatives not $ 3,931 $ — $ 70 Total derivatives not $ 20,925 $ — $ 78
designated as designated as designated as
hedging instruments hedging instruments hedging instruments
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2022
Fair Value Fair Value
(in millions) (in millions) Notional Amount Other Assets Other Liabilities (in millions) Notional Amount Other Assets Other Liabilities
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
designated as cash  designated as cash designated as cash
flow hedging flow hedging flow hedging
instruments: instruments: instruments:
Interest rate swap $ 3,750 $ 5 $ —
Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps $ 3,750 $ 3 $ =
Total Total $ 3,750 $ 5 $ — Total $ 3,750 $ 5 $ —
Derivatives not Derivatives not Derivatives not
designated as designated as designated as
hedging hedging hedging
instruments: instruments: instruments:
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Assets

Futures

Mortgage-backed

securities

forwards

Rate lock

commitments

Interest rate
swaps and

swaptions
Total

Liabilities

Mortgage-backed

securities
forwards
Rate lock
commitments
Interest rate
swaps and

swaptions

Total derivatives not Total derivatives not $

designated as

hedging instrumel

(in millions)

Derivatives

designated

hedging

instruments:
Interest rate
swaps on
FHLB

advances

Interest rate
swaps on
multi-family
loans held for

investment)

Derivatives not
designated as
hedging
instruments:
Assets
Mortgage-
backed
securities

forwards

Assets Assets
Futures $ 1,205 $ 2 $ — Futures $ 1,205 $ 2 $ —
Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed
securities securities
forwards 1,065 36 — forwards 1,065 36 —
Rate lock Rate lock
commitments 1,539 9 — commitments 1,539 9 —
Interest rate Interest rate
swaps and swaps and
swaptions 7,594 182 —  swaptions 7,594 182 —
Total $ 11,403 $ 229 $ — Total $ 11,403 $ 229 $ =
Liabilities Liabilities
Mortgage-backed Mortgage-backed
securities securities
forwards $ 739 $ — $ 61 forwards $ 739 $ — $ 61
Rate lock Rate lock
commitments 527 — 10  commitments 527 = 10
Interest rate Interest rate
swaps and swaps and
swaptions 2,445 — 65 swaptions 2,445 — 65
3,711 $ = $ 136 Total derivatives not § 3,711 $ = $ 136
designated as designated as
nts hedging instruments hedging instruments
The following table presents the derivative subject to a master netting agreement, including the cash pledged as collateral:
March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
Gross Amounts Not Offset in Gross Amounts Not Offset in
the Statements of Condition the Statements of Condition
Gross Net Amount Gross Net Amount
Amounts Presented in Cash Amounts Presented in Cash
Netted in the the Collateral Netted in the the Collateral
Gross Statements of Statements of Financial Pledged Gross Statements of Statements of Financial Pledged
(in millions) Amount Condition Condition Instruments (Received) (in millions) Amount Condition Condition Instruments (Received)
Derivatives Derivatives
designated designated
hedging hedging
instruments: instruments:
Interest rate  $ 7 — $ 7 % = $ 96 Interest rate  $ 1% = $ 1 $ = $ 92
swaps on swaps on
FHLB FHLB
advances advances
Interest rate Interest rate
swaps on swaps on
multi-family multi-family
loans held for loans held
investment) for
$ 2 — $ 2 % — $ 35 investmenta) $ — 5 = $ — % — $ 34
Derivatives not Derivatives not
designated as designated as
hedging hedging
instruments: instruments:
Assets Assets
Mortgage- $ 5 — $ 5 3 — $ (3) Mortgage-  $ 21 $ — $ 21 $ = $ (4)
backed backed
securities securities
forwards forwards
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Interest rate Interest rate 159 — 159 — (24) Interest rate 136 — 136 — (15)
swaptions swaptions swaptions
Futures Futures — — — — — Futures 3 — 3 — —
Total derivative Total derivative $ 164 $ = $ 164 $ = $ 7) Total $ 160 $ — $ 160 — $ (19)
assets assets derivative
assets
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
Futures Futures $ 1 $ = $ 1 $ = $ 3 Futures $ — 3 — $ — — $ —
Mortgage- Mortgage- 14 = 14 = 8 Mortgage- 7 = 7 = 6
backed backed backed
securities securities securities
forwards forwards forwards
Interest rate Interest rate 49 — 49 — 44 Interest rate 61 — 61 - 26
swaps () swaps ) swaps ()
Total derivative Total derivative $ 64 $ — $ 64 3 — $ 55 Total derivative $ 68 $ — $ 68 = $ 32
liabilities liabilities liabilities

(1) Variation margin pledged to, or received from, a Central Counterparty Clearing House to cover the prior days fair value of open positions is considered settlement of the derivative position for

accounting purposes.

The following table presents the derivative subject to a master netting agreement, including the cash pledged as collateral:

December 31, 2022

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the Statements of

Condition

Gross Amounts Netted in the Net Amount Presented in the Financial Cash Collateral Pledged
(in millions) Gross Amount Statements of Condition Statements of Condition Instruments (Received)
Derivatives designated hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps on FHLB advances $ 5 $ — $ 5 % 27
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Assets
Mortgage-backed securities forwards $ 36 $ — % 36 $ 9)
Interest rate swaptions 182 — 182 (36)
Futures 2 2 1
Total derivative assets $ 220 % — 3 220§ (44)
Liabilities
Mortgage-backed securities forwards $ 61 $ — 3 61 $ 54
Interest rate swaps ) 65 = 65 29
Total derivative liabilities $ 126 % — $ 126 $ 83

(1) Variation margin pledged to, or received from, a Central Counterparty Clearing House to cover the prior days fair value of open positions is considered settlement of the derivative position for

accounting purposes.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. Interest rate
swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of amounts subject to variability caused by changes in interest rates from a counterparty in exchange for the Company
making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that
qualify as cash flow hedges are initially recorded in other comprehensive income and are subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged transaction affects

income.

Interest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling $5.5 billion and $2.3 billion as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, were designated as cash flow hedges

of certain FHLB borrowings.

The following table presents the effect of the Company’s cash flow derivative instruments on AOCL:

For the Three Months For the Three Months
Ended March 31, For the Year Ended Ended March 31, For the Six Months
(in millions) (in millions) 2023 December 31, 2022 2022 (in millions) Ended June 30, 2023
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Amount of loss recognized in (90) $ 88 $ 16

AOCL

Amount of gain Amount of gain $ 34 $ 88 $ 25
(loss) (loss)

recognized in recognized in

AOCL AOCL

Amount of Amount of $ (6) $ 4) $ 6 Amount of $ (12) $ 4) $ 7
reclassified reclassified reclassified

from AOCLto from AOCL to from AOCL to

interest interest interest

expense expense expense

Amounts reported in AOCL related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest expense as interest payments are made on the Company’s variable-rate borrowings. During
the next twelve months, additional interest expense reduction of $81 $120 million is expected to be reclassified out of AOCL.

The following table presents the net gain (loss) recognized in income on derivative instruments, net of the impact of offsetting positions:

For the Three Months For the Three Months Three months ended June Six months ended June
(dollars in millions)  (dollars in millions) Ended March 31, 2023 Ended December 31, 2022 (dollars in millions) 30, 2023 30, 2023
Derivatives not Derivatives not Derivatives not
designated as designated as designated as
hedging hedging Location of Gain hedging Location of
instruments instruments (Loss) instruments Gain (Loss)

Net return on

Net return on mortgage
mortgage servicing
Futures Futures servicing rights ~ $ 2) $ (1) Futures rights $ 5 $ 3

Net return on

Net return on mortgage
Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps mortgage Interest rate swaps servicing
and swaptions and swaptions servicing rights 7 a1 and swaptions rights (29) (22)

Net return on

Net return on mortgage

Mortgage-backed = Mortgage-backed mortgage Mortgage-backed servicing

securities forwards = securities forwards servicing rights ) (4) securities forwards rights an (13)

Rate lock Rate lock Rate lock

commitments and commitments and commitments and

US Treasury US Treasury Net gain on loan US Treasury Net gain on

futures futures sales 20 28 futures loan sales 18 38
Other

noninterest

Forward commitments income — (1)
Other Other non-
Interest rate swaps  Interest rate swaps noninterest Interest rate swaps interest
(0] () income = = () income 1 1
Total derivative Total derivative Total derivative
(loss) gain (loss) gain $ 23 $ " (loss) gain $ (16) $ 7

(1) Includes customer-initiated commercial interest rate swaps.

Note 15- Intangible Assets

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level, at least once a year. There was no change in goodwill during the
three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

As a result of the Signature Transaction, the Company recorded $462 million of core deposit intangible and other intangible assets that are amortizable.
At March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, intangible assets consisted of the following:

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
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Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying  Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying
(in millions) ~ (in millions) Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value (in millions) Amount Amortization Value Amount  Amortization Value
Core Core Core
deposit deposit deposit
intangible intangible $ 700 $ a7 s 683 $ 250 $ (4) $ 246 intangible $ 700 $ (500 $ 650 $ 250 $ @4 3 246
Other Other Other
intangible intangible intangible
assets assets 56 5) 51 42 1) 41 assets 56 ) 47 42 (1) 41
Total other Total other Total other
intangible  intangible intangible
assets assets $ 756 $ 22) $ 734 $ 292 $ (5) $ 287 gcets $ 756 $ 59) $ 697 $ 292 $ 5) $ 287

The estimated amortization expense of CDI and other intangible assets for the next five years is as follows:

(in millions)
2023
2024
2025
2026

2027

Total

(in millions)

Amortization Expense

(in millions)

2023 $ 88 2023
2024 108 2024
2025 88 2025
2026 79 2026
2027 71 2027
Total $ 434 Total

Note 16 - Fair Value Measures

Amortization Expense

49

108

88

79

71

395

GAAP sets forth a definition of fair value, establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosure for each major asset and liability category
measured at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis. GAAP also clarifies that fair value is an “exit” price, representing the amount that would be received when selling
an asset, or paid when transferring a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants. Fair value is thus a market-based measurement that should be determined
based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, GAAP establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

+ Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

+ Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

+ Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market

participants use in pricing an asset or liability.

Afinancial instrument’s categorization within this valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following tables present assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and that

were included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Condition at those dates:

(in millions)
Assets:
Mortgage-
related Debt
Securities
Available for

Sale:

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs Netting Total Fair
(in millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Adjustments Value
Assets:

Mortgage-related Debt

Securities Available for Sale:
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(in millions)
Assets:

Mortgage-

related Debt

Securities

Available for

Sale:

June 30, 2023

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets  Significant

for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Total
Assets Inputs Inputs Netting Fair
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Adjustments Value
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GSE

certificates GSE certificates
GSE CMOs GSE CMOs
Private Label
CMOs Private Label CMOs
Total
mortgage-

related debt  Total mortgage-related debt

securities securities

Other Debt
Securities

Available for ~ Other Debt Securities Available

Sale: for Sale:
U. S. Treasury
obligations
GSE
debentures GSE debentures

Asset-backed

securities Asset-backed securities
Municipal

bonds Municipal bonds
Corporate

bonds Corporate bonds

Foreign notes  Foreign notes

Capital trust
notes Capital trust notes
Total other

debt securities Total other debt securities

Total debt

securities

available for  Total debt securities available
sale for sale

Equity
securities: Equity securities:
Mutual funds

and common  Mutual funds and common

stock stock
Total equity
securities Total equity securities

Total securities Total securities

Loans held-for-

sale Loans held-for-sale

Residential

first mortgage Residential first mortgage
loans loans

Acquisition,

development,

and

construction

Commercial

and industrial

loans

Derivative

assets Derivative assets

Interest rate
swaps and Interest rate swaps and

swaptions swaptions
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$

1,246 $

3,282

188

$

1,246

3,282

188

4716 $

$

4,716

$

1,589 $

335

833

89

$

1,589

335

833

89

$

2,883 $

$

2,883 Total other debt §

$

7,599 $

$

7,599

14

14

7,613 $

$

7,613

$

1,305 $

159

$

1,305

159

GSE certificates
GSE CMOs

Private Label
CMOs

Total mortgage-
related debt
securities
Other Debt
Securities
Available for
Sale:
U. S. Treasury
obligations
GSE
debentures
Asset-backed
securities
Municipal
bonds

Corporate

bonds
Foreign notes

Capital trust

notes

securities

Total debt
securities

available for sale

Equity securities:
Mutual funds
and common

stock

Total equity

securities
Total securities

Loans held-for-

sale

Residential
first mortgage
loans
Acquisition,
development,
and
construction
Commercial
and industrial
loans
Derivative
assets
Interest rate
swaps and

swaptions

— $ 1204 $ — 3 — $1,204
= 3,573 = — 3573
= 183 = = 183
— $ 490 $ — % — $ 4,960
- 8 — 5 — 8 - 5 =
= 1,644 = — 1644
= 323 = = 323
= 7 = = 7
= 753 = = 753
= 8 = = 8
= 87 = = 87
— § 282 $ — % — $ 282
— $ 7782 $ — 3 — $7782
= 14 = = 14
= 14 = = 14
— $  77% $ — 3 — $ 7,79
— $ 1,406 $ — 3 — $ 1,406
= 157 = — 157
= 9 = = 9
= 137 = = 137
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Futures Futures — 3 — — 3

Rate lock Rate lock — — 10 — 10

commitments commitments

(fallout- (fallout-
adjusted) adjusted)
Mortgage- Mortgage- = 21 = = 21
backed backed
securities securities
forwards forwards
Mortgage Mortgage — - 1,031 - 1,031
servicing servicing
rights rights
Total assets at Total assetsat  $¢ — $ 9529 $ 1,041 $ — $10,570
fair value fair value
Derivative Derivative
liabilities liabilities
Mortgage- Mortgage- — 7 — — 7
backed backed
securities securities
forwards forwards
Interest rate Interest rate = 61 = = 61
swaps and swaps and
swaptions swaptions
Rate lock Rate lock — — 10 — 10

commitments commitments

(fallout- (fallout-
adjusted) adjusted)
Total liabilities Total liabilities  $ — 3 68 $ 10 $ —  $ 78
at fair value at fair value

December 31, 2022

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets Significant
for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Total
Assets Inputs Inputs Netting Fair
(in millions) (in millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)  Adjustments Value
Assets: Assets:
Mortgage- Mortgage-
related Debt related Debt
Securities Securities
Available for Available for
Sale: Sale:
GSE GSE $ — % 1,297 $ — 3 — $ 1,297
certificates certificates
GSE CMOs GSE CMOs = 3,301 = = 3,301
Private Label Private Label = 191 = = 191
CMOs CMOs
Total Total $ — $ 4789 $ — 3 — $ 4789
mortgage- mortgage-
related debt related debt
securities securities
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Other Debt Other Debt
Securities Securities
Available for Available for
Sale: Sale:
U. S. Treasury U.S. Treasury $ 1,487 $ — — 3 — $ 1,487
obligations obligations
GSE GSE — 1,398 — — 1,398
debentures debentures
Asset-backed Asset-backed — 361 — — 361
securities securities
Municipal Municipal — 30 — — 30
bonds bonds
Corporate Corporate — 885 — — 885
bonds bonds
Foreign notes Foreign notes = 20 = = 20
Capital trust Capital trust — 920 = = 90
notes notes
Total other Total other $ 1,487 $ 2,784 $ — % — $427
debt securities debt securities
Total debt Total debt $ 1487 $ 7573 % — 3 — $ 9,060
securities securities
available for available for
sale sale
Equity Equity
securities: securities:
Mutual funds Mutual funds — 14 — — 14
and common and common
stock stock
Total equity Total equity = 14 = = 14
securities securities
Total securities Total securities $ 1,487 $ 7,587 $ — 3 — $ 9,074
Loans held- Loans held-
for-sale for-sale
Residential Residential  $ — $ 1,115 % — % — $ 1,115
first first
mortgage mortgage
loans loans
Derivative Derivative
assets assets
Interest rate Interest rate - 182 - - 182
swaps and swaps and
swaptions swaptions
Futures Futures = 2 = = 2
Rate lock Rate lock — — 9 — 9
commitments. commitments
(fallout- (fallout-
adjusted) adjusted)
Mortgage- Mortgage- — 36 — — 36
backed backed
securities securities
forwards forwards
Mortgage Mortgage = = 1,033 = 1,033
servicing servicing
rights rights
Total assets at Total assetsat $ 1,487 $ 8,922 $ 1,042 $ —  $11,451
fair value fair value
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Derivative Derivative
liabilities Derivative liabilities liabilities
Mortgage- 61 — — 61 Mortgage- 61 — — 61
backed backed
securities Mortgage-backed securities securities
forwards forwards forwards
Interest rate 65 — — 65 Interest rate 65 — — 65
swaps and Interest rate swaps and swaps and
swaptions swaptions swaptions
Rate lock — 10 — 10 Rate lock — 10 — 10
commitments commitments
(fallout- Rate lock commitments (fallout- (fallout-
adjusted) adjusted) adjusted)
Total liabilities $ = 126 $ 10 % = 136 Total liabilities $ — $ 126 $ 10 $ — $ 136
at fairvalue  Total liabilities at fair value at fair value

The Company reviews and updates the fair value hierarchy classifications for its assets on a quarterly basis. Changes from one quarter to the next that are related to the
observability of inputs for a fair value measurement may result in a reclassification from one hierarchy level to another.

Adescription of the methods and significant assumptions utilized in estimating the fair values of securities follows:

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities include highly liquid government
securities and exchange-traded securities.

If quoted market prices are not available for a specific security, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models. These pricing models primarily use market-based or
independently sourced market parameters as inputs, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, equity or debt prices, and credit spreads. In addition to observable
market information, models incorporate transaction details such as maturity and cash flow assumptions. Securities valued in this manner would generally be classified within Level
2 of the valuation hierarchy, and primarily include such instruments as mortgage-related and corporate debt securities.

Periodically, the Company uses fair values supplied by independent pricing services to corroborate the fair values derived from the pricing models. In addition, the Company
reviews the fair values supplied by independent pricing services, as well as their underlying pricing methodologies, for reasonableness. The Company challenges pricing service
valuations that appear to be unusual or unexpected.

While the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate, and consistent with those of other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair values of certain financial instruments could result in different estimates of fair values at a reporting date.

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs

The following tables include a roll forward of the Consolidated Statements of Condition amounts (including the change in fair value) for financial instruments classified by us
within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy:

Total Gains Total Gains

/ (Losses) / (Losses)

Balance at Recorded Balance Balance at Recorded Balance

(dollars in (dollars in Beginning in Earnings Purchases/ Transfers at End of (dollars in Beginning in Earnings Purchases/ Transfers at End

millions) millions) of Year 1) Originations Sales Settlement In (Out) Year millions) of Year 1) Originations Sales Settlement In(Out) of Year

Three Months Ended March

31,2023

Three Three

Months Months

Ended June Ended June

30, 2023 30, 2023

Assets Assets Assets

Mortgage Mortgage $ 1,034 Mortgage $ 1,031

servicing servicing servicing

rights rights o) $ 1,033 $ (37) $ 38 $ — — rights ) $ 1,034 $ 5 % 43 $ (51) —

Rate lock Rate lock Rate lock —

commitments commitments commitments

(net) @ (net) ) (1) (())] 35 (15) 8 (net)me 8 (17) 25 (16)

Totals Totals $ 1,032 $ (48) $ 73 $ — § — 3 (15) $ 1,042 Totals $ 1,042 $ (12) $ 68 $ (51) $ — % (16) $ 1,031
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Six Months Six Months

Ended June Ended June

30, 2023 30, 2023

Assets Assets

Mortgage Mortgage $ 1,031
servicing servicing

rights ) rights ) $ 1,033 $ (32) $ $ (51) —

Rate lock Rate lock —
commitments commitments

(net)me (net)me) (O] (28) = (31

Totals Totals $ 1,032 $ (60) $ $(51) $ — 3 (31) $ 1,031

(1) We utilized swaptions, futures, forward agency and loan sales and interest rate swaps to manage the risk associated with mortgage servicing rights and rate lock commitments. Gains and losses

forindividual lines do not reflect the effect of our risk management activities related to such Level 3 instruments.

) Rate lock commitments are reported on a fallout-adjusted basis. Transfers out of Level 3 represent the settlement value of the commitments that are transferred to LHFS, which are classified as

Level 2 assets.

The following tables present the quantitative information about recurring Level 3 fair value financial instruments and the fair value measurements as of March 31, 2023 June

30, 2023:
Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input (1) Range (Weighted Average)
(dollars in millions)
Assets
Option adjusted spread 4.9% - 22.5% (5.8)%
Mortgage servicing rights $ 1,034 Discounted cash flows Constant prepayment rate 0%=10.5% (8.1)%
Weighted average cost to service per loan $65 - $90 $(68)
Rate lock commitments (net) $ 7 Consensus pricing Origination pull-through rate 77.20%
Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input (1) Range (Weighted Average)
(dollars in millions)
Assets
Option adjusted spread 5.3% - 21.5% (5.6)%
Mortgage servicing rights $ 1,031 Discounted cash flows Constant prepayment rate 0% - 9.8% (8.2)%

Rate lock commitments (net)

Consensus pricing

Weighted average cost to service per loan

Origination pull-through rate

$65 - $90 $(69)

80.20%

(1) Unobservable inputs were weighted by their relative fair value of the instruments.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

Certain assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Such instruments are subject to fair value adjustments under certain circumstances (e.g., when there is
evidence of impairment). The following tables present assets that were measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
and that were included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Condition at those dates:

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2023 Using Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2023 Using

Quoted Prices in Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant Active Markets Significant Other Significant
for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total Fair  (in for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total Fair
(in millions) (in millions) Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value millions) Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
Other Other $ — $ — $ 42 $ 42 Other $ — $ — $ 45 $ 45
assets()  assets() assets()
Total Total $ — $ — $ 42 $ 42 Total $ — $ — $ 45 $ 45

(1) Represents the fair value of repossessed assets, based on the appraised value of the collateral subsequent to its initial classification as repossessed assets and equity securities without readily

determinable fair values. These equity securities are classified as Level 3 due to the infrequency of the observable prices and/or the restrictions on the shares.

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2022 Using Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2022 Using
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Quoted Prices in

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant Active Markets Significant Other Significant
for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total Fair for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total Fair

(in millions) (in millions) Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value (in millions) Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
Certain Certain $ — $ — $ 28 $ 28 Certain $ = $ — $ 28 $ 28
impaired  impaired impaired

loans@m@ loansme loansm @

Other Other — — 41 41 Other - - a4 41
assets@ assets@ ) assets (@

Total Total $ — $ — $ 69 $ 69  Total $ - $ - $ 69 $ 69

(1) Represents the fair value of impaired loans, based on the value of the collateral.

(2) Represents the fair value of repossessed assets, based on the appraised value of the collateral subsequent to its initial classification as repossessed assets. assets and equity securities without

readily determinable fair values. These equity securities are classified as Level 3 due to the infrequency of the observable prices and/or the restrictions on the shares.

(2) Represents the fair value of impaired loans, based on the value of the collateral.

The fair values of collateral-dependent impaired loans are determined using various valuation techniques, including consideration of appraised values and other pertinent

real estate and other market data.

Other Fair Value Disclosures

For the disclosure of fair value information about the Company's on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments, when available, quoted market prices are used as the
measure of fair value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on present-value estimates or other valuation techniques. Such fair values are
significantly affected by the assumptions used, the timing of future cash flows, and the discount rate.

Because assumptions are inherently subjective in nature, estimated fair values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent market quotes. Furthermore, in many
cases, the estimated fair values provided would not necessarily be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of such instruments.

The following tables summarize the carrying values, estimated fair values, and fair value measurement levels of financial instruments that were not carried at fair value on the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Condition at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022:

(in millions)
Financial
Assets:
Cash and
cash

equivalents

FHLB and

FRB stock ()

Loans and
leases held
for
investment,

net
Financial
Liabilities:
Deposits

Borrowed

funds

(in millions)
Financial
Assets:
Cash and
cash
equivalents
FHLB and
FRB stock (1)
Loans and
leases held
for
investment,
net
Financial
Liabilities:
Deposits
Borrowed

funds

March 31, 2023

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other
Identical Observable Significant
Carrying Estimated Assets Inputs (Level Unobservable
Value Fair Value (Level 1) 2) Inputs (Level 3) (in millions)
Financial
Assets:
$ 22250 $ 22,250 $ 22,250 — $ — Cashand
cash
equivalents
1,356 1,356 — 1,356 — FHLBand
FRB stock (1)
81,997 78,913 — — 78,913 Loans and
leases held
for
investment,
net
Financial
Liabilities:
$ 84800 $ 84,631 $ 65,445 19,186 $ — Deposits
21,360 21,235 — 21,235 — Borrowed
funds

(1) Carrying value and estimated fair value are at cost.

(2) Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts, savings accounts, and non-interest-bearing accounts.

(3) Certificates of deposit.
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June 30, 2023

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted
Pricesin
Active Significant
Markets for Other
Identical Observable Significant
Carrying Estimated Assets Inputs (Level Unobservable
Value Fair Value (Level 1) 2) Inputs (Level 3)
$ 15806 $ 15806 $ 15,806
1,136 1,136 — 1,136
82,684 79,144 — 79,144
@
$ 88497 $ 88245 $ 70,309 $ 17,936
16,412 16,161 16,161
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December 31, 2022

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Assets (Level

Significant Other

Observable Inputs Significant Unobservable

(in millions) Carrying Value Estimated Fair Value 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,032 $ 2,032 % 2,032 $ - $ —
FHLB and FRB stock (1) 1,267 1,267 — 1,267 0
Loans and leases held for investment, net 68,608 65,673 — — 65,673
Financial Liabilities:

Deposits 58,721 $ 58,479 $ 46,211 ¢ $ 12,268 ° $ —
Borrowed funds 21,332 21,231 — 21,231 —

(1) Carrying value and estimated fair value are at cost.

(2) Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts, savings accounts, and non-interest-bearing accounts.

(3) Certificates of deposit.
The methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair values for the Company'’s financial instruments follow:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks and federal funds sold. The estimated fair values of cash and cash equivalents are assumed to equal their carrying
values, as these financial instruments are either due on demand or have short-term maturities.
Securities

If quoted market prices are not available for a specific security, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics,
or discounted cash flows. These pricing models primarily use market-based or independently sourced market parameters as inputs, including, but not limited to, yield curves,
interest rates, equity or debt prices, and credit spreads. In addition to observable market information, pricing models also incorporate transaction details such as maturities and
cash flow assumptions.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Ownership in equity securities of the FHLB is generally restricted and there is no established liquid market for their resale. The carrying amount approximates the fair value.

Loans

The Company discloses the fair value of loans measured at amortized cost using an exit price notion. The Company determined the fair value on substantially all of its loans
for disclosure purposes, on an individual loan basis. The discount rates reflect current market rates for loans with similar terms to borrowers having similar credit quality on an exit
price basis. The estimated fair values of non-performing mortgage and other loans are based on recent collateral appraisals. For those loans where a discounted cash flow
technique was not considered reliable, the Company used a quoted market price for each individual loan.

MSRs

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the MSRs are option adjusted spreads, prepayment rates and cost to service. Significant increases
(decreases) in all three assumptions in isolation result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement. Weighted average life (in years) is used to determine the change in fair
value of MSRs. For March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the weighted average life (in years) for the entire MSR portfolio was 6.9.6.96.

Rate lock commitments

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of the rate lock commitments is the pull through rate. The pull through rate is a statistical analysis of
our actual rate lock fallout history to determine the sensitivity of the residential mortgage loan pipeline compared to interest rate changes and other deterministic values. New
market prices are applied based on updated loan characteristics and new fallout ratios (i.e. the inverse of the pull through rate) are applied accordingly. Significant increases
(decreases) in the pull through rate in isolation result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.

Deposits

The fair values of deposit liabilities with no stated maturity (i.e., interest-bearing checking and money market accounts, savings accounts, and non-interest-bearing accounts)
are equal to the carrying amounts payable on demand. The fair values of CDs represent contractual cash flows, discounted using interest rates currently offered on deposits with
similar characteristics and remaining maturities. These estimated fair values do not include the intangible value of core deposit relationships, which comprise a portion of the
Company's deposit base.

Borrowed Funds

The estimated fair value of borrowed funds is based either on bid quotations received from securities dealers or the discounted value of contractual cash flows with interest
rates currently in effect for borrowed funds with similar maturities and structures.
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Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair values of commitments to extend credit and unadvanced lines of credit are estimated based on an analysis of the interest rates and fees currently charged to enter
into similar transactions, considering the remaining terms of the commitments and the creditworthiness of the potential borrowers. The estimated fair values of such off-balance
sheet financial instruments were insignificant at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

Fair Value Option

We elected the fair value option for certain items as discussed throughout the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements to more closely align the accounting method
with the underlying economic exposure. Interest income on LHFS is accrued on the principal outstanding primarily using the "simple-interest" method.

The following table reflects the change in fair value included in earnings of financial instruments for which the fair value option has been elected:

(dollars in millions)
Assets
Loans held-for-sale

Net gain on loan sales

(dollars in millions)
Assets
Loans held-for-sale

Net gain on loan sales

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

2023

$ 28
For the Three Months ended June 30, For the Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2023
— % —
29 $ 57

The following table reflects the difference between the aggregate fair value and aggregate remaining contractual principal balance outstanding for assets and liabilities for
which the fair value option has been elected:

(dollars in (dollars in

millions) millions)
Assets: Assets:
Nonaccrual

loans:

Loans held-for-

sale

Loans held-for-
investment

Total non-

accrual loans

Other Other
performing performing

loans: loans:

Loans held-for- Loans held-for-

sale sale
Total other
Total other performing

performing loans loans
Total loans: Total loans:
Loans held-for- Loans held-for-
sale sale

Total loans Total loans

(dollars in millions)
Assets:
Other performing loans:

Loans held-for-sale

March 31, 2023

Unpaid Principal Balance

Fair Value

Fair Value Over / (Under) (dol/ars in

UPB millions)

$ 926

945

Assets:
Nonaccrual
loans:

Loans held-for-
sale

Loans held-for-
investment
Total non-
accrual loans
Other
performing
loans:

Loans held-for-

19 sale

$ 926

$ 926

945

945

Total other
performing

19 loans
Total loans:
Loans held-for-

19 sale

$ 926

945

19 Total loans

June 30, 2023

Fair Value Over/ (Under)

Unpaid Principal Balance Fair Value UPB

$ 1 $ 1 $ —
$ 1 $ 1 $ —
$ 1,556 $ 1,571 $ 15
$ 1,556 $ 1,571 $ 15
$ 1,557 $ 1,572 $ 15
$ 1,557 $ 1,572 $ 15

December 31, 2022

Unpaid Principal Balance

Fair Value Fair Value Over / (Under) UPB

1,095

1,115 20
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Total other performing loans $ 1,095 $ 1,115 $ 20

Total loans:

Loans held-for-sale 1,095 1,115 20
Total loans $ 1,095 $ 1,115 $ 20
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Adiscussion regarding our management of market risk is included in "Market Risk" in this report in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations" which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), an evaluation was performed by the
Company's Management, including our principal executive and financial officers, regarding the design and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that
evaluation, the principal executive and financial officers have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in
the Commission's rules and forms as of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls.

Certain assets and liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank were acquired on March 20, 2023. We have extended oversight and monitoring processes that support internal control
over financial reporting to include the acquired operations. There have been no changes in the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(d) of
the Exchange Act) during the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of its business. All such actions in the aggregate involve amounts that are believed by
management to be immaterial to the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Relating Please see “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 and the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2023 for information regarding risk factors that could materially affect the Company's business, financial condition, or future results of operations. Other
than as set forth below, there have been changes with regard to Our Acquisition the risk factors disclosed in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of Certain Assetsthe Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 and Assuming Certain Liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank, N.A.the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023.

On March 20, 2023, NYCB’s banking subsidiary, Flagstar, acquired certain assets Any failure, breach, or interruption in service involving our systems or those of our service
providers could damage our reputation, cause losses, increase our expenses, and assumed certain liabilities of Signature Bridge Bank, National Association (“Signature”)
from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), as receiver, in an assisted transaction (herein, the “Signature Transaction”). Although this is an FDIC-assisted
transaction, we are still subject to some of the same risks we would face in acquiring another bank result in a negotiated transaction. Such risks include risks associated with
maintaining customer relationships and failure to realize the anticipated acquisition benefits loss of customers, an increase in the amounts and within the timeframes we
expect. In addition, because of the expedited nature of the FDIC-assisted transaction which did not allow bidders the time and access to information customarily associated

with preparing for and evaluating a negotiated transaction, we may face additional risks
The success of the Signature Transaction will depend on a number of uncertain factors.

The success of the Signature Transaction will depend on a number of factors, including, without limitation:

+ our ability to integrate the business and operations of the former Signature into NYCB's current operations;

+ our ability to retain employees of Signature Bridge Bank;

+  our ability to limit the outflow of deposits held by our new customers and to successfully retain and manage interest-earning assets (i.e., loans) acquired in the Signature
Transaction;

+ our ability to attract new deposits and to generate new interest-earning assets in the areas previously served by the former Signature branches;

+ our ability to control the incremental non-interest expense from the former Signature branches and other units in a manner that enables regulatory scrutiny, heightened
cyber risk, or expose us to maintain a favorable overall efficiency ratio civil litigation and our ability to effectively manage the on-going relationship with the FDIC related to
the Signature Transaction;
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+ our ability to collect on the loans acquired; and
+ our ability to earn acceptable levels possibly financial liability, any of interest and non-interest income.

Our decisions regarding the fair value of assets acquired could be inaccurate which could materially and adversely affectimpact our business, financial condition, results of
operations, and future prospects.

We are in ongoing discussions with the FDIC regarding the fair value of the assets acquired in the Signature Transaction, and a settlement statement reconciled by both
parties has not yet been finalized, which may impact which assets and liabilities we acquired or assumed in the Signature Transaction. Therefore the fair value estimates we have
made in connection with the Signature Transaction are currently considered preliminary and may be subject to change. In addition, we may obtain additional information and
evidence during the period of one year from the date we completed the Signature Transaction that may result in changes to the estimated fair value amounts recorded on March
20, 2023, which could change the amount of the bargain purchase gain we have recorded.

Bargain purchase gain recorded on the Signature Transaction may increase or decrease during a one-year period following the Signature Transaction's acquisition date.

The bargain purchase gain recorded during the quarter ended March 31, 2023 is preliminary and subject to revision for a period of one year from March 20, 2023.
Adjustments to this gain may be recorded based on additional information received after the acquisition date that affected the acquisition date fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

Asale by an individual shareholder of a significant amount of our common stock could adversely affect the trading price of NYCB’s common stock.

As part of the consideration for the Signature Transaction, the Company granted the FDIC equity appreciation rights in the common stock of the Company under an equity
appreciation instrument (the "Equity Appreciation Instrument"). On March 31, 2023, the Company issued 39,032,006 shares of Company common stock to the FDIC pursuant to the
Equity Appreciation Instrument. Under terms of the Equity Appreciation Instrument, the FDIC will use all reasonable efforts to sell these shares over a 40-day period beginning April
28,2023.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock by existing shareholders, or the perception that sales may occur, could cause the market price of our
common stock stock.

Communication and information systems are essential to decline. Further, a large quantity the conduct of our shares introduced into business, as we use such systems, and
those maintained and provided to us by third-party service providers, to manage our customer relationships, our general ledger, our deposits, and our loans. In addition, our
operations rely on the market, either at once or over time, could increase secure processing, storage, and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer
systems and networks. Although we take protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant, the supply security of our common stock, thereby putting
pressure on our stock price. Pricing pressure could be further exacerbated by low trading volumes computer systems, software, and market conditions, both of which networks
have been, and may impact the time it may take for pricing to rationalize. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales may
occur, also may make it more difficult for us to raise additional capital by selling equity securities in the future at a time be, vulnerable to breaches, unauthorized access, misuse,
computer viruses, or other malicious code and price cyber-attacks that have had and could have an impact on information security. With the rise and permeation of online and
mobile banking, the financial services industry in particular faces substantial cybersecurity risk due to the type of sensitive information provided by customers. We, and our third-
party service providers, have been and may in the future be subject to cybersecurity incidents, including those affecting other financial institutions and industry groups. Our
systems and those of our third-party service providers and customers are regularly the subject of attempted attacks that are increasingly sophisticated, and it is possible that we
deem appropriate.

The loss of our deposit clients or substantial reduction of our deposit balances they could force us to fund our business with more expensive and less stable funding sources.

Deposits represent experience a significant amount of our funding base. Deposit outflows can occur for a number of reasons, including because clients may seek
investments with higher yields, clients with uninsured deposits may seek greater financial security or clients may simply prefer to do business with our competitors, or for other
reasons. If a significant portion of our deposits were withdrawn, we may need to rely more heavily on more expensive borrowings and other sources of funding to fund our
business and meet withdrawal demands, adversely affecting our net interest margin. In more stressed conditions we may need to take more significant actions which event in the
future that could impact our operations and profitability. The occurrence of any of these events could materially and adversely affect our business results or operations. In
addition, breaches of security have in the past and may in the future occur through intentional or unintentional acts by those having authorized or unauthorized access to our
confidential or other information, or that of our customers, clients, or counterparties. Certain previously identified cyber incidents have resulted, and future such events could
result, in the breach of confidential and other information processed and stored in our computer systems and networks. These events could cause interruptions or malfunctions in
our operations or financial condition. As of March 31, 2023, approximately 34 percent the operations of our total deposits customers, clients, or counterparties. Further, we may not
know that an attack occurred until well after the event. Even after discovering an attempt or breach occurred, we may not know the extent of $84.8 billion were the impact of the
attack for some period of time. This could cause us significant reputational damage or result in our experiencing significant losses.

While we diligently assess applicable regulatory and legislative developments affecting our business, laws and regulations relating to cybersecurity have been frequently
changing, imposing new requirements on us. In light of these conditions, we face the potential for additional regulatory scrutiny that will lead to increasing compliance and
technology expenses and, in some cases, possible limitations on the achievement of our plans for growth and other strategic objectives. We may also be required to expend
significant additional resources to modify our protective measures or investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures arising from operational and security risks,
including expenses for third-party expert consultants or outside counsel. We also may be subject to litigation and financial losses that either are not FDIC-insured. insured against
or not fully covered through any insurance we maintain. We believe that the impact of any previously identified cyber incidents, including those subject to ongoing investigation
and remediation, will not have a material financial impact and we have cyber insurance in place.

In March 2023, addition, we routinely transmit and receive personal, confidential, and proprietary information by e-mail and other electronic means. We have discussed, and
worked with our customers, clients, and counterparties to develop secure transmission capabilities, but we do not have, and may be unable to put in place, secure capabilities with
all of these constituents, and we may not be able to ensure that these third parties have appropriate controls in place to protect the Department
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confidentiality of such information. We maintain disclosure controls and procedures to ensure we will timely and sufficiently notify our investors of material cybersecurity risks and
incidents, including the Treasury, the Federal Reserve associated financial, legal, or reputational consequence of such an event, as well as reviewing and the FDIC issued a joint
statement that stated that losses to support uninsured deposits of failed banks would be recovered via a special assessment on banks who utilize deposit insurance. The terms of
that special assessment have not been announced. Our FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessments may increase related updating any prior disclosures relating to the
announced special assessment risk or event. While we have established information security policies and any future increases in assessment rates, required prepayments in FDIC
insurance premiums procedures, including an Incident Response Plan, to prevent or other changes limit the impact of systems failures and interruptions, we may not be able to
anticipate all possible security breaches that could reduce affect our profitability. systems or information and there can be no assurance that such events will not occur or will be
adequately prevented or mitigated if they do.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Shares Repurchased Pursuant to the Company’s Stock-Based Incentive Plans

Participants in the Company’s stock-based incentive plans may have shares of common stock withheld to fulfill the income tax obligations that arise in connection with the
vesting of their stock awards. Shares that are withheld for this purpose are repurchased pursuant to the terms of the applicable stock-based incentive plan, rather than pursuant to
the share repurchase program authorized by the Board of Directors, described below.

Shares Repurchased Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Share Repurchase Authorization
On October 23, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of the Company’s common stock. Under said authorization, shares may be
repurchased on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. As of March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company has approximately $9 million remaining under this

repurchase authorization.

Shares that are repurchased pursuant to the Board of Directors’ authorization, and those that are repurchased pursuant to the Company's stock-based incentive plans, are
held in our Treasury account and may be used for various corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, merger transactions and the vesting of restricted stock awards.

(dollars in millions, except share data)

Total Shares of Common Stock Purchased as

Total Shares of Common Average Price Paid per Part of Publicly Announced Plans or
Period Stock Repurchased Common Share Total Allocation Programs
First Quarter 2023
January 1 - 31, 2023 802,896 $ 9.66 $ 8 =
February 1 - 28, 2023 27,110 9.03 — —
March 1 - 31, 2023 146,448 7.57 1 —
Total First Quarter 2023 976,454 933 $ 9 0

(dollars in millions, except share data)

Total Shares of Common Stock Purchased as

Total Shares of Common Average Price Paid per Part of Publicly Announced Plans or

Period Stock Repurchased Common Share Total Allocation Programs
Second Quarter 2023

April 1 - 30, 2023 26,330 $ 893 $ = =

May 1 - 31, 2023 111,992 10.49 1 —

June 1 - 30, 2023 51,855 10.81 1 —
Total Second Quarter 2023 190,177 $ 1036 $ 2 0
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

The Company had no defaults on senior securities.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None.
Item 5. Other Information
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None. During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2023, none of our directors or officers informed us of the adoption or termination of a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or
“non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” as those terms are defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K.

Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit No.
Purchase
and
Assumption
Agreement
- All
Deposits,
dated
March 20,
2023,
BE among the
FDIC, as
receiver of
Signature
Bridge
Bank, the
FDIC and
Flagstar
Bank, N.A.
(attached
hereto)
Equity
Appreciation
Instrument,
dated March
22 20,2023
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation @) (1)
3.2 Certificates of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation ) 2
33 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation @) @)
Certificate of Designations of the Registrant with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, dated March 16, 2017, filed with the
34 Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and effective March 16, 2017 @) @4
35 Amended and Restated Bylaws) (s)
41 Specimen Stock Certificate (6) 6)
Deposit Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2017, by and among the Registrant, Computershare, Inc, and Computershare Trust
42 Company, N.A, as joint depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts described therein ) )
43 Form of certificate representing the Series A Preferred Stock @) )
44 Form of depositary receipt representing the Depositary Shares ) (7)
Registrant will furnish, upon request, copies of all instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt instruments of the
46 registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries.
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Company in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
31.1 2002 (attached hereto)
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Company in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
31.2 2002 (attached hereto)
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000100547701003143/0001005477-01-003143-0001.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000100547701003143/0001005477-01-003143-0001.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000100547701003143/0001005477-01-003143-0001.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000100547701003143/0001005477-01-003143-0001.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312504042069/dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312504042069/dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312504042069/dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312504042069/dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312516556857/d188430dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312516556857/d188430dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312516556857/d188430dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312516556857/d188430dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517085470/d359896dex34.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517085470/d359896dex34.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517085470/d359896dex34.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517085470/d359896dex34.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312522295967/d405764dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312522295967/d405764dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312522295967/d405764dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312522295967/d405764dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517338619/d419523dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517338619/d419523dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517338619/d419523dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517338619/d419523dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex51.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex51.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex51.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/910073/000119312517087285/d348977dex51.htm

Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in accordance with Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

32 Oxley Act of 2002 (attached hereto)
XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because iXBRL tags are embedded within the Inline

101.INS XBRL document.
101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Date File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

*Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, certain schedules and similar attachments have been omitted. The registrant hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any omitted
schedule or similar attachment to the SEC upon request.

** Management plan or compensation plan arrangement.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2001 (File No. 0-22278)

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed with the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 1-31565)

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27, 2016 (File No. 1-31565)

(4) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File No. 333-210919), as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 16, 2017

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 filed with the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 1, 2022 (File No. 1-31565)

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017 (File No. 1-31565)

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed with the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17, 2017 (File No. 1-31565)

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DATE: May 10, August 9, 2023 New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

(Registrant)

/s/ Thomas R. Cangemi

Thomas R. Cangemi
President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John . Pinto
John . Pinto

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT WHOLE BANK ALL DEPOSITS THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of March 20, 2023, by and among the FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION AS RECEIVER of SIGNATURE
BRIDGE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (the "Receiver"), FLAGSTAR BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, organized under the laws of the United States of America, and having its principal place off
pusiness in Hicksville, New York (the "Assuming Institution"), and the FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, organized under the laws of the United States of America and having its principal office in Washington,|

D.C., acting in its corporate capacity (the "Corporation"). RECITALS A. On March 12, 2023, the Closing Authority closed SIGNATURE BANK ("Signature") pursuant to applicable law and appointed the Corporation Receiver of|
Signature (the "Signature Receiver"), and certain assets and obligations of Signature were transferred to a newly-formed bridge bank, SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, National Association (the "Failed Bank"). B. On the Bani}
losing Date, the Closing Authority closed the Failed Bank pursuant to applicable law and appointed the Corporation Receiver of the Failed Bank. C. The Assuming Institution desires to purchase certain assets and|
assume certain deposits and other liabilities of the Failed Bank on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement and other]
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aluable consideration, the parties agree as follows: AGREEMENT ARTICLE I. GENERAL. 1.1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth requirements regarding, among other things, the terms and conditions|
on which the Assuming Institution purchases certain assets and assumes certain liabilities of the Failed Bank. 1.2. Reserved. 1.3. Defmed Terms. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the meanings set forth|

or referenced in this Section 1.3. As used in this Section 1.3, words imparting the singular include the plural and vice versa. "Accounting Records" means the general ledger and subsidiary ledgers and supporting
Ischedules that support the general ledger balances. Version 13.2 - PIJRCHASH AND ASSt™mos AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York}
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'Acquired Assets" means all assets of the Failed Bank purchased by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement (including all Transferred QFCs whether constituting assets or liabilities). Assets owned by]
[Subsidiaries of the Failed Bank are not "Acquired Assets" within the meaning of this definition by virtue of being owned by Subsidiaries of the Failed Bank. "Acquired Subsidiary" or "Acquired Subsidiaries" means one ol
ore, as applicable, Subsidiaries of the Failed Bank acquired pursuant to Section 3.1. "Affiliate" of any Person means any director, officer, or employee of that Person and any other Person (i) who is directly or indirectly|
ontrolling, or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, that Person, or (ii) who is an affiliate of that Person as the term "affiliate" is defined in§ 2(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as|
amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1841. "Agreement" means this Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among the Assuming Institution, the Corporation and the Receiver, as amended or otherwise modified from time to
time. "Assumed Deposits" means Deposits. "Assuming Institution" is defined in the introduction to this Agreement. "Bank Closing Date" means 12:10 a.m. on March 20, 2023. "Bank Premises" means the banki

buildings, drive-in banking facilities, teller facilities (staffed or automated), storage and service facilities, structures connecting remote facilities to banking houses, land on which the foregoing are located and|
unimproved land, and any adjacent parking (and fixtures located on any of the foregoing) that are owned or leased by the Failed Bank and that have formerly been used, are currently used, or as of the Bank Closing]
Date, are intended to be used in the future by the Failed Bank as shown on the Failed Bank Records. "Bank Premises Operating Costs" means expenses related to Bank Premises, Furniture and Equipment, and Specialty]
Assets, including all taxes, fees, charges, maintenance, utilities, waste disposal, insurance, and assessments, to the extent not included in the rental rate or rent. "Bank Premises Surrender Date" means, with respect to}
leach specific Bank Premises, the date selected by the Assuming Institution to surrender that Bank Premises to the Receiver, which date will be no later than the first day after the Receiver is satisfied that all of the|
conditions for surrender of that Bank Premises set forth in this Agreement have been met; provided that, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, that date will not be more than 150 days after the Bank Closing]
Date. "Bid" means the bid submitted by the Assuming Institution and accepted by the Corporation as the winning bid for the transaction evidenced by this Agreement. "Bid Amount" is defined in Article VII. "Bid
[Valuation Date" means March 10, 2023. "Board" is defined in Recital Error! Reference source not found .. Version 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New Yorl
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'Book Value" means, with respect to any Acquired Asset and any Liability Assumed, the dollar amount thereof stated on the Failed Bank Records. The Book Value of any item will be determined as of the Bank Closin,
Date after adjustments made by the Receiver for differences in accounts, suspense items, unposted debits and credits, and other similar adjustments, charge-off adjustments as provided in Section 8.1, or corrections
and for setoffs, whether voluntary or involuntary. The Book Value of an Acquired Subsidiary will be determined from the investment in subsidiary and related accounts on the "bank only" (unconsolidated) balance sheet|
of the Failed Bank based on the Equity Method of Accounting. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) the Book Value of a Liability Assumed will include all accrued and unpaid interest thereon as of the Bank}
Closing Date, and (ii) the Book Value of a Loan will reflect adjustments for earned interest, or unearned interest (as it relates to the "rule of 78s" or add-on-interest loans, as. applicable), if any, as of the Bank Closi
Date, adjustments for the portion of earned or unearned loan-related credit life or disability insurance premiums, if any, attributable to the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date, and adjustments for Failed Bank|
JAdvances, if any, in each case as determined for financial reporting purposes. The Book Value of an Acquired Asset will not include any adjustment for loan premiums, discounts or any related deferred income, fees or|
expenses, or general or specific reserves on the Failed Bank Records. "Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday, federal legal holiday or legal holiday under the laws of the state where the Failed Bank]
is located, or a day on which the principal office of the Corporation is closed. "Closing Authority" means (i) with respect to a national bank, a federal savings association, or federal savings bank, the Office of the|
IComptroller of the Currency, (ii) with respect to a bank or savings institution chartered by a state, the agency of the state charged with primary responsibility for closing banks or savings institutions, as the case may be,
iii) the Corporation in accordance with 12 U.S.C. § 182l{c)(4), with regard to self-appointment, or (iv) the appropriate federal banking agency in accordance with 12 U.S.C. § 1821{c)(9). "Commitment" means the unfunded
portion of a line of credit or other commitment reflected on the Failed Bank Records to make an extension of credit ( or additional advances with respect to a Loan) that was legally binding on the Failed Bank as of the|
Bank Closing Date, other than extensions of credit pursuant to the credit card business and overdraft protection plans of the Failed Bank, if any. "Corporation" is defined in the introduction to this Agreement.
['Counterclaim" is defined in Section 12.1{b). "Credit Documents" means the agreements, instruments, certificates, or other documents at any time evidencing or otherwise relating to, governing, or executed in|
lconnection with or as security for, a Loan, including notes, bonds, loan agreements, letter of credit applications, lease financing contracts, banker's acceptances, drafts, interest protection agreements, currency exchange]
agreements, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, guarantees, deeds of trust, mortgages, assignments, security agreements, pledges, subordination or priority agreements, lien priority agreements)
undertakings, security instruments, certificates, documents, legal opinions, participation agreements and intercreditor agreements, and all amendments, Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]
ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorkj
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modifications, renewals, extensions, rearrangements, and substitutions with respect to any of the foregoing. "Credit File" means all Credit Documents and all other credit, collateral, or insurance documents in the|
possession or custody of the Assuming Institution, its Subsidiaries, or its Affiliates, relating to an Acquired Asset or a Loan included in a Put Notice, or copies of any of those documents. "Deposit" means a deposit as|
defined in 12 U.S.C. 8 1813(1), including outstanding cashier's checks and other official checks and all uncollected items included in the depositors' balances and credited on the Failed Bank Records; provided that the
erm "Deposit" will not include all or any portion of those deposit balances that, in the discretion of the Receiver or the Corporation, (i) may be required to satisfy it for any liquidated or contingent liability of any|
depositor arising from an unauthorized or unlawful transaction, or (ii) may be needed to provide payment of any liability of any depositor to the Failed Bank or the Receiver, including the liability of any depositor as
director or officer of the Failed Bank, whether or not the amount of the liability is or can be determined as of the Bank Closing Date. "Deposit Secured Loan" means a loan in which the only collateral securing the loan is
Assumed Deposits or deposits at other insured depository institutions. "Electronically Stored Information" means any system backup tapes, any electronic mail (whether on an exchange or other similar system), any|
data on personal computers, and any data on server hard drives. "Eligible Individuals" is defined in Section 4.12. "Eligible Overdraft" means a customer overdraft (i) that was in existence on the Bank Closing Date, (ii)}
ith a balance of greater than $500, and (iii) that was not made pursuant to an overdraft protection plan or similar extension of credit. "Employee Retention Agreements" means the agreements attached hereto as|
Exhibit 4.8(c). "Equity Appreciation Instrument" means the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 7. "Equity Method of Accounting" means the carrying value of a bank's investment in a subsidiary is originally recorded
jat cost but is adjusted periodically to record as income the bank's proportionate share of the subsidiary's earnings or losses and decreased by the amount of cash dividends or similar distributions received from the|
subsidiary. Acquired Subsidiaries with negative equity will be restated to $1 pursuant to the Equity Method of Accounting. "ERISA" is defined in Section 4.12. "Excluded QFC" means a Qualified Financial Contract listed
or described on Schedule 3.5(1) and all QFC Related Items relating to those Qualified Financial Contracts. "Failed Bank" is defined in Recital A. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE|
BANK, NA New York, New York
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"Failed Bank Advances" means the total sums paid by the Failed Bank to (i) protect its lien position, (ii) pay ad valorem taxes and hazard insurance and (iii) pay premiums for credit life insurance, accident and healthj
Reinvestment Act assessment area of the Failed Bank reflected in the Information Package. "Failed|

insurance and vendor's single interest insurance. "Failed Bank Assessment Area" means the most recent
Bank Records" means records as defined in 12 C.F.R. 8 360.1 I(a)(3). "Fair Market Value" means the probable price at which relevant personal property would change hands between a willing buyer and a willing selle

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 101/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited RE FI N ITIV I

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

neither being under any compulsion to buy or sell and both having reasonable knowledge of relevant facts) as determined as of the Bank Closing Date by an appraiser chosen by the Receiver. "FDIC Office Space" means|

dequate and suitable office space (including parking facilities and vault space), furniture, equipment (including photocopying and telecopying machines), email accounts, network access and technology resources (such|
jas shared drives), and utilities (including local telephone service and fax machines) at the Bank Premises occupied by the Assuming Institution (or other location acceptable to the Receiver) for the Receiver and the
Corporation to use in the discharge of their respective functions with respect to the Failed Bank. "Final Legal Notice" is defined in Section 2.4(a). "Furniture and Equipment" means the furniture and equipment ( othel
than Personal Computers, Owned Data Management Equipment, Specialty Assets, and motor vehicles), leased or owned by the Failed Bank and reflected on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date and]|

located on or at Bank Premises, including automated teller machines, furniture, office machinery, shelving, office supplies, telephone, surveillance and security systems, ancillary equipment, and artwork. "GSE" means a

lsovernment sponsored enterprise. "Indemnitees" means, except as provided in Section 12.I(b)(xi), (i) the Assuming Institution, (ii) the Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Assuming Institution, other than any Subsidiaries or]
Affiliates of the Failed Bank or Signature that are or become Subsidiaries or Affiliates of the Assuming Institution, and (iii) the directors, officers, employees, and agents of the Assuming Institution and its Subsidiaries|
and Affiliates who are not also present or former directors, officers, employees or agents of the Failed Bank or Signature or of any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank or Signature. "Information Package" means the
Imost recent compilation of financial and other data with respect to the Failed Bank, including any amendments or supplements, provided to the Assuming Institution by the Corporation on the web site used by the
[Corporation to market the Failed Bank to potential acquirers. "luitial Payment" means the payment made pursuant to Article VII (based on the best information available as of the Bank Closing Date), the amount of|
which will be either (i) if the Bid Amount is positive, the aggregate Book Value of the Liabilities Assumed minus the sum of the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired Assets (including any Bank Premises, Other Real|
ersion 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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[Estate, Other Real Estate Subsidiaries, and Optional Loan Pools purchased at the price set forth on the Bid) as determined pursuant to Section 3.2 and the positive Bid Amount, or (ii) if the Bid Amount is negative, the|
sum of the aggregate Book Value of the Liabilities Assumed and the negative Bid Amount minus the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired Assets (including any Bank Premises, Other Real Estate, Other Real Estate]
Subsidiaries, and Optional Loan Pools purchased at the price set forth on the Bid). The Corporation will pay the Initial Payment to the Assuming Institution if (i) the Liabilities Assumed are greater than the sum of the]
positive Bid Amount and the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired Assets, or if (i) the sum of the Liabilities Assumed and the negative Bid Amount are greater than the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired]
Assets. The Assuming Institution will pay the Initial Payment to the Corporation if (i) the Liabilities Assumed are less than the sum of the positive Bid Amount and the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired Assets, or]
if (ii) the sum of the Liabilities Assumed and the negative Bid Amount is less than the aggregate purchase price of the Acquired Assets. The Initial Payment is subject to adjustment as provided in Article VIII. "Leased]
Data Management Equipment" means any equipment, computer hardware, computer software (and the applicable lease or licensing agreements), computer networking equipment, printers, fax machines, copiers|
document scanners, data tape systems, data tapes, DVDs, CDs, flash drives, telecommunications and check processing equipment, and any other electronic storage media leased by the Failed Bank at Bank Closing Date
hat is, was, or could have been used by the Failed Bank in connection with data management activities. "Liabilities Assumed" is defined in Section 2.1. "Lien" means any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, assignment for
security purposes, security interest or encumbrance of any kind with respect to an Acquired Asset, including any conditional sale agreement or capital lease or other title retention agreement relating to that Acquired
Asset. "Loan" or "Loans" means, individually or collectively, all of the following owed to or held by the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date: (a) loans (including loans that have been charged off the Failed Banl
Records in whole or in part prior to and including the Bid Valuation Date), participation agreements relating to loans, interests in those participations, overdrafts of customers (including overdrafts made pursuant to an|
overdraft protection plan or similar extensions of credit in connection with a deposit account), revolving commercial lines of credit, home equity lines of credit, Commitments, United States or state-guaranteed student]
loans, and lease financing contracts; (b) all Liens, rights (including rights of set-off), remedies, powers, privileges, demands, claims, priorities, equities and benefits owned or held by, or accruing or to accrue to or for the|
benefit of, the holder of the obligations or instruments referred to in clause (a) above, including those arising under or based upon Credit Documents, casualty insurance policies and binders, standby letters of credit,
Imortgagee title insurance policies and binders, payment bonds and performance bonds at any time and from time to time existing with respect to any of the obligations or instruments referred to in clause (a) above;
nd Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York]
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c) all amendments, modifications, renewals, extensions, refinancings, and refundings of or for any of the foregoing. "Market Value" is defined in the regulation prescribing the standards for real estate appraisals used in|
federally related transactions, 12 C.F.R. 8 323.2(g), and, accordingly, means the most probable price that an interest in real property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fai
sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition are the assumed consummation of a sale as of a specified date|
and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions when: (a) Buyer and seller are typically motivated; (b) Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own best
interests; (c) A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (d) Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or comparable financial arrangements; and (e) The price represents the normal|
onsideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale; as determined as of the Bank Closing Date by an appraiser chosen by the

Receiver. With respect to Bank Premises purchased using this valuation method, the Receiver will select the appraiser within seven (7) days after the Bank Closing Date and will pay any costs and fees associated with|
that determination. The Market Value will be determined no later than sixty (60) days after the Bank Closing Date. "New Loan" means a Loan made by the Failed Bank after the Bid Valuation Date that is not (i) a
continuation, amendment, modification, renewal, extension, refinancing, restructuring, or refunding of or for any then-existing Loan, or (ii) a customer overdraft. "Obligor" means each Person liable for the full or partial

[payment or performance of any Loan, whether that Person is obligated directly, indirectly, primarily, secondarily, jointly, or severally. onal Loan Pool" means a grouping of various assets owned by the Failed Banl
and offered to the Assuming Institution, as referenced in the Bid and described in the Information Package. Any continuation, amendment, modification, renewal, extension, refinancing, restructuring or refunding of o
for any asset that was part of an Optional Loan Pool will remain part of that Optional Loan Pool. No asset may be moved between Optional Loan Pools. An asset that had been collateral securing a Loan that is part off
an Optional Loan Pool remains part of that Optional Loan Pool. Any name of, or designation for, any Optional Loan Pool is for convenient reference and may not reflect the quality or nature of the assets that are part of]
hat Optional Loan Pool. Version 13.2 PIJRCHASEAND ASSUMMQN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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"Other Real Estate" means all interests in real estate (other than Bank Premises), including mineral estates, leasehold rights, condominium and cooperative interests, easements, air rights, water rights, and|
[development rights that are owned by the Failed Bank as of Bid Valuation Date. "Other Real Estate Subsidiaries" means those Subsidiaries listed on the Bid, if any, and any Subsidiary that does not own any assets othe
han real estate, cash, and assets incidental to the operation of specific real estate. "Owned Data Management Equipment" means any equipment, computer hardware, computer software, computer networking]
equipment, printers, fax machines, copiers, document scanners, data tape systems, data tapes, DVDs, CDs, flash drives, telecommunications and check processing equipment, and any other electronic storage media|
jowned by the Failed Bank at Bank Closing Date that is, was, or could have been used by the Failed Bank in connection with data management activities. "Payment Date" means March 20, 2023. "Person" means an
individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political
subdivision thereof, excluding the Corporation. "Personal Computer(s)" means computers based on a microprocessor generally designed to be used by one person at a time and that usually store informational data on
hat computer's internal hard drive or attached peripheral, and associated peripherals (such as keyboard, mouse, etc.). A personal computer can be found in various configurations including laptops, notebooks, and|
[desktops. "Primary Indemnitor" means any Person (other than the Assuming Institution or any of its Affiliates) who is required to indemnify or insure, or otherwise make payments (including payments on account of|
laims made against) to or on behalf of any Person| claims covered under Article Xll, including any insurer issuing any directors and officers liability policy or any|
Person issuing a financial institution bond or banker's blanket bond. "Pro Forma Statement" means a balance sheet that reflects a reasonably accurate financial statement_he Failed|

r
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"QFC Contract Value" of a Qualified Financial Contract is its value (whether stated for the individual Qualified Financial Contract or reflected in the valuation shown for the netting set in which|

Qualified Financiall
applicable accounting principles. The|
means a qualified financial contract as;

[Contract is included) reflected in the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date. The Receiver may adjust that value if the Receiver determines that it is inconsistent wi
foregoing is not an undertaking by the Receiver to review the Failed Bank Records for this purpose, and the Receiver may do so in its sole discretion. "Qualified Financial Contract

defined in 12 U.S.C. 8 1821(e)(8)(D). "QFC Related Item" means, with respect to a Qualified Financial Contract, (i) each claim under that Qualified Financial Contract that is described in 12 U.S.C. § 1821 ( e)(9)(A)(i)(In or]
Iin and (ii) all property securing or other credit enhancement for that Qualified Financial Contract or any claim described in 12 U.S.C. § 1821(e)(9)(A)i)(In or (Ill) under that Qualified Financial Contract. "Receiver" is|
defined in the introduction to this Agreement. "Related Liability" with respect to any Acquired Asset means any liability existing and reflected on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date for (i) indebtedness|

secured by mortgages, deeds of trust, chattel mortgages, security interests, or other liens on or affecting that Acquired Asset, (ii) ad valorem taxes applicable to that Acquired Asset and (iii) any other obligation the|
Receiver determines is directly related to that Acquired Asset. "Related Liability Amount" with respect to any Related Liability on the books of the Assuming Institution, means the amount of that Related Liability as|

stated on the Failed Bank Records of the Assuming Institution (as maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles) as of the date as of which the Related Liability Amount is being determined

With respect to a liability that relates to more than one Acquired Asset, the amount of that Related Liability will be allocated among those Acquired Assets determining]
Related Liability Amount with respect to any one of those Acquired Assets. The allocation will be made by specific allocation, where determinable, and otherwise will be pro]

rata based upon the dollar amount of the Acquired Assets stated on the Failed Bank Records of the entity that owns the specific Acquired Asset. "Repurchase Price" means, with respect to any Acquired Asset, an|
mount equal to the sum of (i) the purchase price of the Acquired Asset as determined pursuant to Section 3 .2 and (ii) either minus the pro rata Acquired Asset discount or plus the pro rata Acquired Asset premium, iff
jany, (iii) adjusted (A) for any advances and interest on that Acquired Asset after the Bank Closing Date and (B) by subtracting the total amount received by the Assuming Institution for that Acquired Asset after the Bank}
losing Date, regardless of how applied, (iv) plus total disbursements of principal made by the Receiver not otherwise included

Book Value. For (x) New Loans, Deposit Secured Loans, and Eligible
afts put back to the Receiver pursuant to Section 3 .4 or (y) Acquired Assets sold pursuant to Section 3. 7 and repurchased by the Receiver pursuant to Section 3 .6, the Repurchase Price will not take into account|

the pro rata Acquired Asset Version 13,2 - PURCHASE AND ASSIJMYTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yori}
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ck. "Settlement Date" means]

discount or premium, if any. The Repurchase Price for Eligible Overdrafts will include adjustments for credits or deposits received after the Bank Closing Date and prior to the date of pu
he first Business Day immediately prior to the day that is three hundred sixty-five (365) days after the Bank Closing Date or an earlier date agreed upon by the Receiver and the Assuming Institution. The Receiver, in its|
discretion, may extend the Settlement Date. "Settlement Interest Rate" means, for the first calendar quarter or portion of the quarter during which interest accrues, the Investment Rate on the twenty-six (26)-week]
United States Treasury Bills in effect as of the Bank Closing Date as published by the United States Treasury on the TreasuryDirect.gov website; provided, that if no Investment Rate is published the week of the Ban
Closing Date, the Investment Rate for such Treasury Bills most recently published by the United States Treasury on TreasuryDirect.gov prior to the Bank Closing Date will be used. Thereafter, the rate will be adjusted|
quarterly to the Investment Rate on the twenty-six (26)-week United States Treasury Bills in effect as of the first day of each succeeding calendar quarter during which interest accrues, as published by the United States|
reasury on the TreasuryDirect.gov website. "Specialty Assets" means assets owned by the Failed Bank, reflected on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date, located on or at Bank Premises, and with a
greater value than more traditional furniture and equipment and similar assets, including fine art and high end decorative art, classic and antique motor vehicles, rare books, rare coins, airplanes, boats, jewelry|
collectible firearms, cultural artifacts, sculptures, and Proprietary Software. "Specialty Assets" does not include repossessed collateral. "Subsequently Occupied Space" is defined in Section 4.6(f). "Subsidiary" is defined
in8 3(w)(4) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. 8 1813(w)(4), as amended. "Signature" is defined in Recital A. "Transferred QFC" means a Qualified Financial Contract that is not an Excluded QFC, and all QF(]
Related Items relating to that Qualified Financial Contract. "Underserved Area" means a census track designated as an underserved middle-income nonmetropolitan track on the most recent List of Middle-Income Non:
IMetropolitan Distressed or Underserved Geographies as published by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council ("FFIEC") on the FFIEC website. The attached Schedule 4.1(b) is a list of Bank Premises, if any,
located in Underserved Areas. ARTICLE Il. ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES. 2.1. Liabilities Assumed by Assuming Institution. The Assuming Institution expressly assumes at Book Value (subject to adjustment pursuant to|
Article VIID and will pay, perform, and discharge, all of the following liabilities of the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement (those liabilities, "Liabilities Assumed"):
‘ersion 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYork]
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(2) Assumed Deposits, except those Deposits specifically listed on Schedule 2.l{a); provided, that, as to any Deposits of public money that are Assumed Deposits, the Assuming Institution will properly secure those|
Deposits with (i) Acquired Assets that, before the Bank Closing Date, were pledged as security by the Failed Bank, or (ii) if those securing Acquired Assets are insufficient to properly secure those Deposits, with assets off
he Assuming Institution; (b) liabilities for indebtedness incurred by the Failed Bank, reflected on the Accounting Records of the Failed Bank on the Bank Closing Date, and secured by any perfected Lien ( other than a|
Lien in favor of any Federal Reserve Bank or any Federal Home Loan Bank) on or affecting any Acquired Asset; provided, that the amount of any liability assumed pursuant to this Section 2.1 (b) (i) is limited to the
market value ( as determined by the Receiver) of the Acquired Assets securing that liability and (ii) is not subject to adjustment pursuant to Article VIII; ( c) overdrafts, debit balances, service charges, reclamations and
adjustments to accounts with the Federal Reserve Banks as reflected on the books and records of any such Federal Reserve Bank within ninety (90) days after the Bank Closing Date, if any; ( d) ad valorem taxes|
prorated through the Bank Closing Date), whether or not reflected on the Failed Bank Records, applicable to any Acquired Asset; provided, that the assumption of any ad valorem taxes pursuant to this Section 2.1 ( d) is|

limited to the market value of the Acquired Asset to which those taxes apply as determined by the Receiver; (e) liabilities, if any, for federal funds purchased and overdrafts in accounts maintained with other deposito

jnstitutions (including any accrued and unpaid interest thereon computed to and including the Bank Closing Date); provided, that the assumption of any liability pursuant to this Section 2.1 ( e) will be limited to the|

market value of the Acquired Assets securing that liability as determined by the Receiver; ( f) United States Treasury tax and loan note option accounts, if any; (g) liabilities for any acceptance or commercial letter off

credit, provided, that the assumption of any liability pursuant to this Section 2.1 (g) will be limited to the market value of the Acquired Assets securing that liability as determined by the Receiver; (h) liabilities for anyj

"standby letters of credit" as defined in 12 C.F.R. § 337.2(a) Failed Bank or Signature]
lexcluding any other standby letters of credit; (i) duties and obligations assumed pursuant to this Agreement including those relatin, Failed Bank Reco it card business, debit card business)
tored value and gift card business, overdraft protection plans, safe deposit business, safekeeping business and trust business, if any; G) liabilities, if any, [Commitments with|

respect to Loans that are purchased pursuant to this Agreement; (k) liabilities, if any, for amounts owed to any Acquired Subsidiary; Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA|

New York, New YorH

connection with an Acquired Asset, but]
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1) reserved; (m) liabilities, if any, under any contract pursuant to which loan servicing is provided to the Failed Bank by others; and (n) any deferred revenue, income or fees recorded on the general ledger]
Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date attributable to an

assumed pursuant to Section 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, or 4.5 of this Agreement, excluding any deferred income or revenue]
relative to FASB 91- Loan Fees and Costs associated with originating or acquiring Loans and initial direct costs of leases. 2.2. Liabilities Not Assumed by the Assuming Institution. Except for the Liabilities Assumed

expressly set forth above, the Assuming Institution shall not assume any claims, debts, obligations or liabilities (whether known or unknown, contingent or unasserted, matured or unmatured), however they may be|
characterized, that the Failed Bank has, or may now or in the future have, including, (a) the claims, debts, obligations or liabilities of the Failed Bank relating to the contracts listed on Schedule 2.2 (the "Excluded
Contracts"); (b) any direct or indirect Tax liabilities or obligations of the Failed Bank that are attributable to any taxable period ( or portion thereof) ending on or before the Bank Closing Date; and (c) the SIGNET]|
Network. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, the Assuming Institution shall not assume: (a) any claim against or liability of the FDIC in its capacity as receiver for the Failed Bank that, under and
in accordance with applicable law, was, is or will be subject to the receivership administrative claims processes administered by the FDIC in its capacity as receiver for the Failed Bank pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §182I(d)(3)|
through (13), including claims and liabilities that are affirmative or defensive, now existing or arising in the future, contingent or fixed, monetary or non-monetary, equitable or legal, or declarative or injunctive; or (b) an
laim against or liability based on any alleged act or omission of the Failed Bank which is not provable or allowable, or is otherwise barred against the FDIC as receiver for the Failed Bank under applicable law)
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including claims and liabilities that are barred under 12 U.S.C. 88182I(c), (d), (e) (including 8182I(e)(3)), (i), or G); 12 U.S.C. 81822; 12 U.S.C. 81823; or 12 U.S.C. 81825); or (c) any claim against or liability of the FDIC in its|
capacity as receiver for the Failed Bank that, under and in accordance with applicable law, was, is or will be subject to other similar federal and state laws (including statutory and common law) doctrines that protect
financial institution receivers and their assignees (for example, the so-called "D'Oench Doctrine," statutory bona fide purchaser status, involuntary assignee protection, etc.), regardless of whether any of the foregoing]
[powers, immunities, defenses, privileges or other rights are ( or are asserted, claimed or purported to be) available to an assignee of the Failed Bank (including a purchaser of assets from the Failed Bank). The claims)
debts, obligations and liabilities referred to in this Section 2.2 are collectively referred to as the "Excluded Liabilities". 2.3. Interest on Deposit Liabilities. The Assuming Institution, from and after the Bank Closing Date,
will accrue and pay interest on Assumed Deposits pursuant to Section 2.1 at a rate( s) it determines; provided, that for non-transaction Deposit liabilities, the rate( s) will not be less than the lowest rate offered by the

Assuming Institution to its depositors for non-transaction deposit accounts. The Assuming Institution will permit each depositor to withdraw, without penalty for early withdrawal, all or any portion of that depositor's
Deposit, whether or not the Assuming Version 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New Yor
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Institution elects to pay interest in accordance with any deposit agreement formerly existing between the Failed Bank and that depositor; and further provided, that if the Deposit has been pledged to secure an|
obligation of the depositor or other party, any withdrawal of that Deposit will be subject to the terms of the agreement governing the pledge. The Assuming Institution will give notice to those depositors as provided in|
[Section 5.3 of the rate(s) of interest that it has determined to pay and of those withdrawal rights. 2.4. Unclaimed Deposits. (a) Final Legal Notice. Fourteen (14) months following the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming]
Institution will provide the Receiver a listing of all deposit accounts, including the type of account, not claimed by the depositor. The Receiver will review the list and authorize the Assuming Institution to act on behalf]
of the Receiver to send a Final Legal Notice in a form substantially similar to Exhibit 2.3A (the "Final Legal Notice") to each owner of the unclaimed deposits with a reminder of the need to claim or arrange to continue
their account(s) with the Assuming Institution. The Assuming Institution will send the Final Legal Notice to the depositors within fifteen (15) days following notification of the Receiver's authorization. The Assuming]
Institution will prepare an Affidavit of Mailing in a form substantially similar to Exhibit 2.3B and will forward the Affidavit of Mailing to the Receiver after mailing out the Final Legal Notice to the owners of unclaimed|
deposit accounts. (b) Unclaimed Deposits. If, within eighteen (18) months after the Bank Closing Date, any depositor of the Failed Bank does not claim or arrange to continue that depositor's Assumed Deposits at the|
Assuming Institution, the Assuming Institution will, within fifteen (15) Business Days after the end of that eighteen (18) month period, (i) refund to the Receiver the full amount of each such Deposit (without reduction for|
service charges), (ii) provide to the Receiver a schedule of all refunded Deposits in the form prescribed by the Receiver, and (iii) assign, transfer, convey, and deliver to the Receiver, all right, title, and interest of the|
Assuming Institution in and to the Failed Bank Records previously transferred to the Assuming Institution and other records generated or maintained by the Assuming Institution pertaining to those Deposits. During]
hat eighteen (18) month period, at the request of the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will promptly provide to the Receiver schedules of unclaimed Deposits in the form prescribed by the Receiver. 2.5. Employee|
Plans. Except as provided in Section 4.8 and Section 4.12, the Assuming Institution will have no liabilities, obligations, or responsibilities under the Failed Bank's health care, bonus, vacation, pension, profit sharing|
[deferred compensation, 401k, stock purchase plans, or similar plans, if any, unless the Receiver and the Assuming Institution agree otherwise subsequent to the date of this Agreement. ARTICLE IIl. PURCHASE OF ASSETH
AND QUALIFIED FINANCIAL CONTRACTS. 3.1. Assets and Qualified Financial Contracts Purchased by Assuming Institution. With the exception of assets and (to the extent not constituting assets) Qualified Financial
Contracts and QFC Related Items that are expressly excluded in Sections 3.5 and 3.6, the Assuming Institution purchases from the Receiver, and the Receiver sells, assigns, transfers, conveys, and delivers to the]
Assuming Institution all right, title, and interest of the Receiver in and Version 13.2 - PIJRCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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to all assets (real, personal, and mixed, wherever located and however acquired) and (to the extent not constituting assets) all Qualified Financial Contracts and all QFC Related Items relating to each Qualified|
Financial Contract (in each case, wherever located and however acquired), including all subsidiaries, joint ventures, partnerships, and any and all other business combinations or arrangements, whether active, inactive|
dissolved, or terminated, of the Failed Bank whether or not reflected on the books of the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date. The Assuming Institution purchases all Acquired Assets subject to all liabilities for|
indebtedness collateralized by Liens affecting those Acquired Assets to the extent provided in Section 2.1. The Receiver will cooperate with the Assuming Institution to remove any Liens in favor of the Federal Reserve
Banks and Federal Home Loan Banks on any Acquired Assets . 3.2. Asset Purchase Price. (a) Determination of Asset Purchase Price. All Acquired Assets and assets of the Failed Bank subject to an option to purchase b
he Assuming Institution will be purchased for the amount, or the amount resulting from the method specified for determining the amount, as specified on Schedule 3.2, except as otherwise may be provided in this|
Agreement. Any Acquired Asset for which no purchase price is specified on Schedule 3.2 or otherwise in this Agreement will be purchased at its Book Value. The purchase price for Acquired Subsidiaries will be adjusted
pursuant to Section 4.6(i)(iv), if applicable. (b) Purchase Price for Securities. The purchase price of any security (other than the capital stock of any Acquired Subsidiary, Federal Home Loan Bank stock, repossessed|
securities, and any Qualified Financial Contract that constitutes a security) purchased under Section 3.1 by the Assuming Institution consists of the market price (as defined below) of the security as of the Bank Closing
Date, multiplied by the Failed Bank's ownership interest in the security (see Calculation of Purchase Price below) and includes accrued interest, where applicable, as noted below. (i) Definition of Market Price: The|
market price of any security is (i) the market price for that security quoted at the close of the trading day effective on the Bank Closing Date as published electronically by Bloomberg, L.P ., or alternatively, at the|
discretion of the Receiver, by Intercontinental Exchange (ICE) Data Services' Continuous Evaluated Pricing Services (CEP), or (ii) provided that if that market price is not available for that security, the Receiver will notify|
he Assuming Institution and the Assuming Institution will submit a purchase price bid for that security within three (3) days of notification (unless the Assuming Institution and the Receiver agree to a different time|
period) and the Receiver, in its sole and absolute discretion, will accept or reject that purchase price bid. In the absence of a market price or an acceptable purchase price bid from the Assuming Institution, or if a
security is deemed essential to the Receiver as determined by the Receiver in its discretion under Section 3.6 of this Agreement, that security will not pass to the Assuming Institution and will be an excluded asset|
under this Agreement and listed on Schedule 3.5(1). (i) Calculation of Purchase Price: The bank's ownership interest in a security will be quantified as either: (i) number of shares or other units, as applicable (in the|
case of equity securities) or (ii) par value or notational amount, as applicable (in the case of non-equity securities). As a result, the purchase price ( except where determined Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION
AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York|
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pursuant to clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph) will be calculated as either, depending on whether or not the security is an equity security: (i) the purchase price for an equity security will be calculated b
multiplying the number of shares or other units by the applicable market price per unit; and (ii) the purchase price for a non-equity security will be an amount equal to the applicable market price (expressed as a
Jdecimal), multiplied by the par value for that security (based on the payment factor most recently widely available). The purchase price also will include accrued interest as calculated in accordance with the following]
paragraph, except to the extent the parties may otherwise expressly agree pursuant to clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph. If the factor used to determine the par value of any security for purposes of calculating the
purchase price, is not for the period in which the Bank Closing Date occurs, then the purchase price for that security will be subject to adjustment post-closing based on a "cancel and correct" procedure. Under this|
procedure, after that current factor becomes publicly available, the Receiver will recalculate the purchase price utilizing the current factor and related interest rate, and will notify the Assuming Institution of any|
difference and of the applicable amount due from one party to the other. The resulting amount will then be paid as part of the settlement process pursuant to Article VIIL. (iii) Calculation of Accrued Interest for|
[Securities: Accrued interest will be calculated for a non-equity security by multiplying the interest rate ( expressed as a decimal point) paid on the security as then most recently publicly available, by the most recent
par value (or notational amount, as applicable) of that security, multiplied by the number of days from and including the first interest day of the accrual period in which the Bank Closing Date occurs, through the Bani
[Closing Date. (c) Purchase Price for Qualified Financial Contracts. Qualified Financial Contracts that are Transferred QFCs will be valued and purchased at QFC Contract Value (positive or negative). The Receiver and the
Assuming Institution will equally share any costs associated with the determination ofQFC Contract Value. 3.3. Manner of Conveyance; Limited Warranty; Nonrecourse; Etc. THE CONVEYANCE OF ALL ACQUIRED ASSETS)
INCLUDING REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY INTERESTS, PURCHASED BY THE ASSUMING INSTITUTION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE MADE, AS NECESSARY, BY RECEIVER'S DEED OR RECEIVER'S BILL OF SALE, "AS IS" |
"WHERE IS", WITHOUT RECOURSE, AND, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO THOSE ACQUIRED ASSETS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED |
WITH RESPECT TO TITLE, VALUE, COLLECTIBILITY, GENUINENESS, ENFORCEABILITY, DOCUMENTATION, CONDITION, OR FREEDOM FROM LIENS OR ENCUMBRANCES (IN WHOLE OR IN PART), OR ANY OTHER MATTERS. 3.4,
Puts of Assets to the Receiver. (a) Puts Within 30 Days or 40 Days After the Bank Closing Date. (i) During the thirty (30)-day period following the Bank Closing Date (which thirty (30)-dayperiod may be extended in writi

in the sole and absolute discretion Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTTOS AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York, New York
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of the Receiver for any Loan), the Assuming Institution may require the Receiver to purchase (x) any Deposit Secured Loan transferred to the Assuming Institution pursuant to Section 3.1 that is not fully secured by
Assumed Deposits or deposits at other insured depository institutions due to either insufficient Assumed Deposit or deposit collateral or deficient documentation regarding that collateral or (y) any New Loan; provided
hat, (1) the Assuming Institution may not require the purchase of a Deposit Secured Loan that is secured by an Assumed Deposit until any Deposit setoff determination, whether voluntary or involuntary, has been made

and (1) the Assuming Institution may not require the purchase of any Loan (x) that is a Transferred QFC, or (y) in respect of which a Related Liability constituting a Transferred QFC exists. (ii) During the forty ( 40)-da
period following the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution may require the Receiver to purchase, any Eligible Overdraft transferred to the Assuming Institution pursuant to Section 3.1 that existed on the thirtieth|

30th) day following the Bank Closing Date. (iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Assuming Institution may not require the Receiver to purchase any Loan pursuant to Section 3 .4( a) if (x) the Obligor with respect to|

hat Loan is an Acquired Subsidiary or (y) the Assuming Institution has: (A) made any advance in accordance with the terms of a Commitment or otherwise with respect to that Loan; (B) taken any action that caused an|
increase in the amount of a Related Liability with respect to that Loan; (C) created or permitted to be created any Lien on that Loan that secures indebtedness for money borrowed or that constitutes a conditional|
lsales agreement, capital lease or other title retention agreement; (D) entered into, agreed to make, grant or permit, or made, granted or permitted any modification or amendment to, any waiver or extension with|

respect to, or any renewal, refinancing or refunding of, that Loan or related Credit Documents or collateral, including any act or omission that diminished that collateral; or (E) sold, assigned, or transferred all or a
portion of that Loan to a third party (whether with or without recourse). (b) Puts Prior to the Settlement Date. During the period from the Bank Closing Date to and including the Business Day immediately preceding the|
Settlement Date, the Assuming Institution may require the Receiver to purchase any Acquired Asset that the Assuming Institution can establish is evidenced by forged or stolen instruments as of the Bank Closing Date;|

provided that the Assuming Institution may not require the Receiver to purchase any Acquired Asset with respect to which the Assuming Institution has taken any action referred to in Section 3.4(a)(iii). Version 13.2
PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York}
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c) Notices to the Receiver. If the Assuming Institution elects to require the Receiver to purchase one or more Acquired Assets pursuant to this Section 3.4, the Assuming Institution will deliver to the Receiver a notice
"Put Notice") which must include: (i) a list of all Acquired Assets that the Assuming Institution requires the Receiver to purchase; (ii) a list of all Related Liabilities with respect to the Acquired Assets identified in the|
nd (iii) a statement of the estimated Repurchase Price of each Acquired Asset identified in the Put Notice as of the applicable Put Date (defined below). The Put Notice must be in the form prescribed b
he Receiver or other form to which the Receiver has consented. As provided in Section 9.6, the Assuming Institution will deliver to the Receiver all documents, Credit Files, and additional information relating to the|
subject matter of the Put Notice as the Receiver may request, and the Assuming Institution will provide the Receiver with full access to all other relevant books and records. ( d) Purchase by Receiver. The Receiver will
pburchase the Acquired Assets that are specified in the Put Notice and will assume Related Liabilities with respect to those Acquired Assets. The transfer of those Acquired Assets and Related Liabilities will be effective|
jas of a date determined by the Receiver, which date will not be later than thirty (30) days after receipt by the Receiver of the Put Notice (the "Put Date"). (e) Purchase Price and Payment Date. The Receiver will

Put Notic

purchase each Acquired Asset pursuant to this Section 3.4 at a purchase price equal to the Repurchase Price of the Acquired Asset minus the Related Liability Amount applicable to the Acquired Asset, determined as off
he applicable Put Date. If the difference between the Repurchase Price and the Related Liability Amount is positive, then the Receiver will pay to the Assuming Institution the amount of the difference; if the difference
between those amounts is negative, then the Assuming Institution will pay to the Receiver the amount of the difference. The Assuming Institution or the Receiver, as the case may be, will pay the amount determined|
pursuant to this Section 3.4 no later than the twentieth (20th) Business Day following the applicable Put Date, plus interest on that amount at the Settlement Interest Rate for the period from and including that Put]
Date to and including the day preceding the date on which payment is made. (f) Servicing. The Assuming Institution will administer and manage any Acquired Asset subject to purchase by the Receiver in accordance
ith usual and prudent banking standards and business practices until the Receiver purchases that Acquired Asset. (g) Reversals. If the Receiver purchases an Acquired Asset that it is not required to purchase pursuant|
to this Section 3.4, the Assuming Institution will repurchase that Acquired Asset (and assume any Related Liability with respect to that Acquired Asset that was assumed by the Receiver) from the Receiver at a price]

lcomputed so as to achieve the same economic result as would apply if the Receiver had never purchased that Acquired Asset pursuant to this Section 3.4. Version 13.2 - PJRCHASEAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]
SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New YorK
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h) Transfer to Receiver without Recourse. The Assuming Institution will transfer any Acquired Asset pursuant to this Section 3.4 to the Receiver without recourse and will indemnify the Receiver against any and all
laims of any Person claiming by, through or under the Assuming Institution with respect to that Acquired Asset, as provided in Section 12.4. 3.5. Assets Not Purchased by Assuming Institution. The Assuming Institution|
[does not purchase, acquire or assume, or (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement) obtain an option to purchase, acquire or assume under this Agreement: (a) any financial institution bonds, banker's|
blanket bonds, or public liability, fire, extended coverage insurance policy, bank owned life insurance or any other insurance policy of the Failed Bank, or premium refund, unearned premium derived from cancellation, or]
any proceeds payable with respect to any of the foregoing; (b) any interest, right, action, claim, or judgment against (i) any officer, director, employee, accountant, attorney, or any other Person employed or retained by}
he Failed Bank or any Subsidiary of the Failed Bank on or prior to the Bank Closing Date arising out of any act or omission of that Person in that capacity, (ii) any underwriter of financial institution bonds, banker's|
blanket bonds or any other insurance policy of the Failed Bank in that capacity, (iii) any shareholder or holding company of the Failed Bank in that capacity, or (iv) any other Person for any loss arising from a breac|

lany duty, tortious conduct of any kind whatsoever, violation of any law, or any other wrongdoing ( exclusive of any loss resulting from that Person's failure to pay on a Loan made by the Failed Bank); provided, that fo

the purposes of this Section 3.2(b), the acts, omissions, or other events giving rise to any claim must have occurred on or before the Bank Closing Date, regardless of when that claim is discovered and regardless o

hether that claim is made with respect to a financial institution bond, banker's blanket bond, or any other insurance policy of the Failed Bank in force as of the Bank Closing Date; (c) prepaid regulatory assessments of}
the Failed Bank, if any; (d) legal or equitable interests in tax receivables of the Failed Bank, if any, including any claims arising as a result of the Failed Bank having entered into any agreement or otherwise being j

with another Person with respect to the filing of tax returns or the payment of taxes; (e) amounts reflected on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date as a general or specific loss reserve or contingenc!

account, if any; (f) leased or owned Bank Premises, Furniture and Equipment, and Specialty Assets that were not purchased according to the Bid, if any; however, nothing in this Section 3.2(f) precludes the Assuming]
Institution from exercising any option provided under Sections 4.6, 4.7, or 4.8 to purchase those assets; (g) owned Bank Premises that the Receiver, in its discretion, determines may contain environmentally hazardous|

substances; (h) any "goodwill" (as that term is defined in the instructions to the report of condition prepared by banks examined by the Corporation in accordance with 12 C.F.R. § 304.3) and other intangibles (othe

than intellectual property); Version 13.2 PtJRCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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i) any criminal restitution or forfeiture orders issued in favor of the Failed Bank; G) any and all prepaid fees or any other income as shown on the Failed Bank Records, but not taken into income as of the Bank Closing]
Date, associated with a line of business of the Failed Bank that is not assumed pursuant to this Agreement; (k) any asset essential to the Receiver in accordance with Section 3.6; (1) any banker's bank stock, the]
securities listed or described on Schedule 3.5(1), and the Excluded QFCs described in Schedule 3.5(1); (m) reserved; (n) prepaid accounts associated with any contract or agreement that the Assuming Institution neithe
does not directly assume pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, nor has an option to assume under Section 4.8; (o) servicing for others; any contract pursuant to which the Failed Bank provides loan (p) all assets that]

ere fully charged-off by the Failed Bank prior to the Bid Valuation Date (including any subsequent judgments arising therefrom) that (i) had been secured by collateral that (A) was foreclosed upon by the Failed Bank]

land (B) is not an Acquired Asset, (ii) are secured by collateral that also secures an asset that is not an Acquired Asset, or (iii) have an Obligor that is also an Obligor for an asset that is not an Acquired Asset; ( q) an)
Loan that was secured by collateral that is an asset retained by the Receiver under this Agreement; (r) all assets related to any plan of the Failed Bank described in Section 2.5 or any plan of the type described in|
[Section 2.5 under which the Failed Bank has any liability, obligation or responsibility, unless the Assuming Institution assumes liability, obligations or responsibilities under that plan subsequent to the date of this|
Agreement; (s) any asset not shown on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bank Closing Date and discovered after the Settlement Date; (t) loans secured by non owner-occupied commercial real estate, specifically|
including multifamily and one-to-four-family residential development and construction loans; (u) acquisitions, development, and construction loans; (v) any cryptocurrency or digital assets or loans secured b
cryptocurrency or digital assets; (w) credit card loans; Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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(y) Other Real Estate|

(x) fund banking, defined as subscription lines of credit, management company lines of credit and general partner loans for private equity firms and venture capital firms and their general partner:
land Other Real Estate Subsidiaries; (z) all Subsidiaries except for Signature Financial, LLC; Signature Securities Group Corporation; Signature Public Funding Corporation; Signature Preferred Capital (a REIT); SB Insurance]
Agency Inc.; Other subsidiaries to the extent necessary to own or operate the Acquired Assets; and (aa) the SIGNET Network; provided, that, the foregoing provisions of this Section 3 .5 do not apply to any Qualified|
Financial Contract or QFC Related Item, other than an Excluded QFC or a QFC Related Item included as part of that Excluded QFC. 3.6. Retention or Repurchase of Assets Essential to Receiver. (a) The Receiver ma
refuse to sell to the Assuming Institution, or the Assuming Institution, at the request of the Receiver set forth in a written notice to the Assuming Institution, will sell, assign, transfer, convey, and deliver to the Receiver|
all of the Assuming Institution's right, title, and interest in and to any Acquired Asset or asset essential to the Receiver as determined by the Receiver in its discretion (and all related Credit Documents), which ma

include any Acquired Asset or asset that the Receiver determines to be: (i) made to or entered into with an officer, director, or other Person engaging in the affairs of the Failed Bank, its Subsidiaries, Affiliates, or an
related entities of any of the foregoing; (ii) the subject of any investigation relating to any claim with respect to any item described in Section 3.5(a) or (b), or the subject of, or potentially the subject of, any legall
proceedings; (iii) made to or entered into with a Person who is an Obligor on a loan owned by the Receiver or the Corporation in its corporate capacity or its capacity as receiver of any institution; (iv) secured by
collateral that also secures any asset or (to the extent not included as an asset) any Qualified Financial Contract or QFC Related Item owned by the Receiver; or (v) related to any asset or (to the extent not includ~d as]
an asset) any Qualified Financial Contract or QFC Related Item of the Failed Bank not purchased by the Assuming Institution under this Article Ill or any liability of the Failed Bank not assumed by the Assuming]
Institution under Article Il. (b) The Receiver will purchase each Acquired Asset or other asset at a purchase price equal to its Repurchase Price less the Related Liability Amount with respect to any Related Liabilities|
related to that Acquired Asset or asset, in each case determined as of the date Version 13.2 PI.JRCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYork
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of the notice provided by the Receiver pursuant to Section 3.6(a). The Receiver will pay the Assuming Institution no later than the twentieth (20th) Business Day following receipt of related Credit Documents and Credit]
Files plus interest on that amount at the Settlement Interest Rate for the period from and including the date of receipt of those documents to and including the day preceding the day on which payment is made. The|

Assuming Institution will administer and manage each Acquired Asset or other asset in accordance with usual and prudent banking standards and business practices until each Acquired Asset or other asset is|
. The Assuming Institution will transfer all Acquired Assets or other]

purchased by the Receiver. All transfers with respect to Acquired Assets or other assets under this Section 3.6 will be made as provided in Section 9
assets and Related Liabilities to the Receiver without recourse and will indemnify the Receiver against any and all claims of any Person claiming by, through, or under the Assuming Institution with respect to any|

Acquired Asset or asset, as provided in Section 12.4. 3.7. Receiver's Offer to Sell Withheld Loans. For the period of thirty (30) days commencing the day after the Bank Closing Date, the Receiver may, in its sole and|
absolute discretion, sell any Loan withheld from sale pursuant to Section 3.5 or Section 3.6 of this Agreement that the Assuming Institution desires to purchase. Any Loan sold pursuant to this Section 3.7 will, at the]
sole and absolute discretion of the Receiver, either (x) be treated as if initially sold pursuant to Section 3.1 of this Agreement, or (y) sold pursuant to the standard loan sale agreement used by the Receiver for the sale|

ofloan pools. (a) If treated as if initially sold pursuant to Section 3.1 of this Agreement, the purchase price for that Loan will be the Book Value as of the Bank Closing Date, adjusted (i) for any advances and interest on|
hat Loan after the Bank Closing Date, (ii) by subtracting the total amount received by the Assuming Institution for that Loan after the Bank Closing Date, and (iii) by adding total disbursements of principal made by the|
Receiver and not otherwise included in the Book Value. The sale will be subject to all applicable terms of this Agreement, except that any Loan purchased pursuant to this Section 3.7 will not be included in the|
[calculation of the pro rata Acquired Asset discount or pro rata Acquired Asset premium used for the repurchase of other Acquired Assets. Payment for any Loan will be handled through the settlement process pursuant]
to Article VIII. (b) Any Loan sold pursuant to the standard loan sale agreement will be governed by and paid for in accordance with that instrument. ARTICLE IV. ASSUMPTION OF CERTAIN DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS. 4.1
Continuation of Banking Business. (a) Full Service Banking. The Assuming Institution will (i) provide full service banking in the Failed Bank Assessment Area for at least ninety (90) days commencing on the first Business
Day after the Bank Closing Date and (ii) satisfy applicable regulatory or statutory requirements before it ceases to provide full service banking in the Failed Bank Assessment Area. At the option of the Assuming]
Institution, it may provide that full service banking at one or more Bank Premises or Assuming Institution branches located within the Failed Bank Assessment Area. So long as the Assuming Institution ( or its]
successors) continues to provide full service banking in the Failed Bank Assessment Area for the period required to comply with this Section 4.1(a), the Assuming Institution may close or sell any Bank Premises during]
his period with the prior written Version 13.2 PURCHASB AND ASS{IMPTIQN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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onsent of the Receiver (which consent may be withheld in Receiver's sole discretion) and after receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals and satisfaction of applicable regulatory or statutory requirements. (b) Bank]
Premises Located in an Underserved Area. If any Bank Premises is currently used and located in an Underserved Area, the Receiver will not consent to the Assuming Institution's closing or selling that Bank Premises
unless the Assuming Institution provides full service banking at one or more Bank Premises or Assuming Institution branches located within the same Underserved Area. ( c) Failure to Exercise Option to Purchase Bank]
Premises. If any owned Bank Premises is currently used and located in an Underserved Area and the Assuming Institution does not exercise its option to purchase it under Section 4.6(a), the Receiver will continue to
rent that owned Bank Premises to the Assuming Institution for the amount provided in Section 4.6(e) in order to allow the Assuming Institution to comply with Section 4.1 (a). (d) Sale of Bank Premises. The Assumin;
Institution will pay to the Receiver, upon the sale of any Bank Premises within twelve months following the Bank Closing Date, fifty percent (50%) of the amount by which (a) the proceeds of that sale attributable to any|
ranchise or deposit premium (without deducting any expenses related to that sale) exceed (b) the deposit premium paid by the Assuming Institution with respect to each Bank Premises sold. 4.2. Credit Card Business.
[The Assuming Institution will NOT acquire or assume, from and after the Bank Closing Date, any and all duties and obligations with respect to the Failed Bank's credit card business (including issuer or merchant]
acquirer) debit card business, stored value and gift card business, and processing related to credit cards, if any. 4.3. Safe Deposit Business. The Assuming Institution will honor and discharge, from and after the Bani
losing Date, in the usual course of conducting a banking business, the duties and obligations of the Failed Bank under customer safe deposit box rental agreements. The Assuming Institution may relocate the safe
deposit boxes of the Failed Bank to any office of the Assuming Institution located in the Failed Bank Assessment Area in which those safe deposit boxes were located. The Assuming Institution will (a) locate and|
Imaintain the safe deposit boxes in the Failed Bank Assessment Area for at least ninety (90) days commencing on the first Business Day after the Bank Closing Date and (b) satisfy applicable regulatory or statutory|
requirements before it ceases to maintain the safe deposit boxes in the Failed Bank Assessment Area. 4.4. Safekeeping Business. The Receiver transfers, conveys and delivers to the Assuming Institution and the|
Assuming Institution accepts all securities and other items, if any, held by the Failed Bank in safekeeping for its customers as of the Bank Closing Date. The Assuming Institution will honor and discharge, from and afte
he Bank Closing Date, the duties and obligations of the Failed Bank with respect to those securities and items held in safekeeping. The Assuming Institution will provide to the Receiver written verification of all assets|
held by the Failed Bank for safekeeping within sixty (60) days after the Bank Closing Date. The Assuming Institution will (a) hold for safekeeping and maintain in the Failed Bank Assessment Area for at least ninety (90
[days commencing on the first Business Day after the Bank Closing Date the assets held and maintained by the Failed Bank for safekeeping and (b) satisfy applicable regulatory or statutory requirements before it ceases
0 hold for safekeeping and maintain those assets in the Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York, New York]
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Failed Bank Assessment Area. At the option of the Assuming Institution, it may provide the safekeeping business at any or all of the Bank Premises or at other premises within the Failed Bank Assessment Area. The]
Assuming Institution will be entitled to all rights and benefits that accrue after the Bank Closing Date with respect to securities and other items held in safekeeping. 4.5. Trust Business. (a) Assuming Institution as|
uccessor. The Assuming Institution will, without further transfer, substitution, act, or deed, to the full extent permitted by law, succeed to the rights, obligations, properties, assets, investments, deposits, agreements,)

nd trusts of the Failed Bank under trusts, executorships, administrations, guardianships, agencies, and other fiduciary or representative capacities, all to the same extent as though the Assuming Institution had|
assumed the same from the Failed Bank prior to the Bank Closing Date; provided, that the Assuming Institution does not assume any liability based on the misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance of the Failed Bank|
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its directors, officers, employees, or agents with respect to the trust business. (b) Wills and Appointments. The Assuming Institution, to the full extent permitted by law, succeeds to, and is entitled to take and execute,
he appointment to all executorships, trusteeships, guardianships, and other fiduciary or representative capacities to which the Failed Bank is or may be named in wills, whenever probated, or to which the Failed Bank]
is or may be named or appointed by any other instrument. ( c) Transfer of Trust Business. If additional proceedings of any kind are necessary to accomplish the transfer of the Failed Bank's trust business, the Assuming]
Institution will, at its own expense, take whatever action is necessary to accomplish the transfer. The Receiver will use reasonable efforts to assist the Assuming Insti
Verification of Assets. The Assuming Institution will provide to the Receiver written verification of the assets held in connection with the Failed Bank's trust business within sixty (60) days after the Bank Closing Date,

tion in accomplishing the transfer. ( d)

4.6. Bank Premises. (a) Option to Purchase. (i) Subject to Section 3.5, the Receiver grants to the Assuming Institution an exclusive option for the period of ninety (90) days commencing the day after the Bank Closing]
Date to purchase any or all owned Bank Premises. The Assuming Institution will give written notice to the Receiver within the option period of its election to purchase or not to purchase any of the owned Bank]
Premises. Any purchase of owned Bank Premises will be consummated as soon as practicable thereafter (and no later than the Settlement Date). (i) The Receiver may, in its sole and absolute discretion, manage and|
Imaintain each owned Bank Premises with one or more tenants ( other than the Assuming Institution) during the period from the Bank Closing Date until the date the Receiver receives the purchase price for that Bank]
Premises from the Assuming Institution. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYork
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b) Option to Lease. The Receiver grants to the Assuming Institution an exclusive option for the period of sixty ( 60) days commencing the day after the Bank Closing Date to cause the Receiver to assign to the Assuming
Institution any or all leases for leased Bank Premises, if any, to the extent those leases can be assigned; provided that the exercise of this option with respect to any lease must be as to all premises or other propert:
subject to that lease. To the extent the lease payments provided for in any assigned lease are minimal in relation to the current market rate as determined by the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will pay the]
Receiver the Market Value of the Receiver's interest in that assigned lease. The Assuming Institution will give written notice to the Receiver within the option period of its election to accept or not to accept an|
lassignment of any or all leases ( or enter into new leases in lieu thereof). The Assuming Institution will assume all leases assigned ( or enter into new leases in lieu thereof) pursuant to this Section 4.6. (c) Facilitation,|
he Receiver will facilitate the assumption, assignment, or sublease of leases, or the negotiation of new leases by the Assuming Institution; provided that neither the Receiver nor the Corporation is required to engage|
in litigation, make payments to the Assuming Institution or to any third party in connection with facilitating any assumption, assignment, sublease, or negotiation, or commit to any other obligations to third parties. (d)
Notice of Surrender of Bank Premises. The Assuming Institution will give the Receiver at least fifteen (15) days' prior written notice of its intent to surrender to the Receiver any Bank Premises with respect to which the|
Assuming Institution has not exercised the options provided in Sections 4.6(a) and 4.6(b). The notice must designate the intended Bank Premises Surrender Date and will terminate the Assuming Institution's option|
with respect to that Bank Premises. (e) Occupancy Costs. (i) The Assuming Institution will pay the following amounts to the Receiver (or to appropriate third parties at the direction of the Receiver): (A) for owned Bank
Premises, the rental rate, as determined by the Receiver, and all Bank Premises Operating Costs (each for the space not occupied by other tenants) for the period from the Bank Closing Date until (1) the date the|
Receiver receives written notice from the Assuming Institution of its election to purchase that Bank Premises under Section 4.6(a), or (2) the Bank Premises Surrender Date for owned Bank Premises the Assumin;

Institution elects not to purchase; and (B) for leased Bank Premises, rent, as provided in the applicable lease, and all Bank Premises Operating Costs for the period from the Bank Closing Date until (1
Receiver receives written notice from the Assuming Institution of its election to accept an assignment of the lease for that Bank Premises under Section 4.6(b), or (2) the Bank Premises Surrender Date for leased Bankj
Premises for which the Assuming Institution does not elect to assume the lease. The Assuming Institution will comply with the terms of applicable leases on leased Bank Premises, including the timely payment of all
rent. (i) The Assuming Institution will pay the following amounts to the Receiver ( or to appropriate third parties at the direction of the Receiver): rent for the period from the Bank Closing Date until the Bank Premises|
Surrender Date for all owned or leased Furniture and Equipment and all Specialty Assets located in space not occupied by other Version 13.2 - PURCHASBAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA
New York, New YorH
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enants and on or at either (A) owned Bank Premises the Assuming Institution elects not to purchase or (B) leased Bank Premises for which the Assuming Institution does not elect to assume the lease. No later than
Isixty (60) days after the Bank Closing Date, the Receiver will determine the rent for that property owned by the Failed Bank. Rent for that property leased by the Failed Bank will be an amount equal to all rent and othe
lamounts that the Receiver incurs or accrues as an obligation or is obligated to pay for that period pursuant to all leases and contracts with respect to that property. (iii) Subject to Section 4.1, if the Assuming]
Institution gives notice of its election not to accept an assignment of a lease for one or more of the leased Bank Premises, or not to purchase one or more of the owned Bank Premises, within two Business Days of the|
Bank Closing Date, and the Receiver is satisfied that all of the conditions for surrender of that Bank Premises set forth in this Agreement have been met within fifteen (15) days of the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming
Institution will not be liable for any of the costs imposed by Sections 4.6( e)(i) or 4.6( e)(ii). If the Assuming Institution elects not to accept an assignment of any lease or purchase one or more of the owned Banij
Premises under this Section 4.6(e)(iii), the provisions of Section 4.8(a) will not apply to service agreements related to those Bank Premises. (t) Certain Requirements as to Furniture and Equipment, and Certain Specialt
Assets. If the Assuming Institution (i) purchases owned Bank Premises (including any Bank Premises purchased at the fixed price shown on the Bid) as provided in Section 4.6(a) or (ii) accepts an assignment of the lease
or enters into a sublease or a new lease in lieu thereot) for leased Bank Premises as provided in Section 4.6(b ), or (iii) does not exercise either option, but within twelve (12) months following the Bank Closing Date|
obtains the right to occupy all or any portion of any Bank Premises, whether by assignment, lease, sublease, purchase, or otherwise, other than in accordance with Section 4.6(a) or Section 4.6(b) (each of the preceding
a "Subsequently Occupied Space"), the Assuming Institution will (A) effective as of the Bank Closing Date, purchase from the Receiver, at the item's purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2, all Specialty Assets with an|
ppraised value (as determined in accordance with Section 4.6G)) of less than $10,000, and all Furniture and Equipment owned by the Failed Bank and located on or at the Subsequently Occupied Space as of the Bank}
Closing Date, (B) accept an assignment or a sublease of the leases or negotiate new leases for all Furniture and Equipment leased by the Failed Bank and located on or at the Subsequently Occupied Space, and (C) if|
applicable, accept an assignment or a sublease of any ground lease or negotiate a new ground lease with respect to any land on which the Subsequently Occupied Space is located; provided that the Receiver has not
previously disposed of that Furniture and Equipment or Specialty Assets or repudiated the leases referred to in clause (B) or clause (C). (g) Surrendering Bank Premises. (i) If the Assuming Institution elects not to
purchase any owned Bank Premises, the notice of that election in accordance with Section 4.6(a) must specify the Bank Premises Surrender Date. The Assuming Institution will be responsible for promptly relinquishin;
and releasing to the Receiver that Bank Premises, the Furniture and Equipment, and the Specialty Assets located there on the Bank Closing Date, in the same condition as on the Bank Closing Date, normal wear and

ear excepted. Any of the Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York. New York}
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laforementioned that is missing will be charged to the Assuming Institution at the item's purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2. By remaining in any Bank Premises more than 150 days after the Bank Closing Date, the]
Assuming Institution will be required to, at the Receiver's option, (x) purchase that Bank Premises and assume all leases, obligations, and liabilities with respect to leased Furniture and Equipment located thereon and|
any ground lease with respect to the land on which that Bank Premises is located, and (y) purchase all Furniture and Equipment owned by the Failed Bank and located on or at the Bank Premises as of the Bank Closing]
Date at the purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2. (ii) If the Assuming Institution elects not to accept an assignment of the lease or sublease of any leased Bank Premises, the notice of that election in accordance]
ith Section 4.6(b) must specify the Bank Premises Surrender Date. The Assuming Institution will promptly relinquish and release to the Receiver that Bank Premises, the Furniture and Equipment, and the Specialty|
Assets located there on the Bank Closing Date, in the same condition as on the Bank Closing Date, normal wear and tear excepted. Any of the aforementioned that is missing will be charged to the Assuming Institution|
lat the item's purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2. By failing to provide notice of its intention to surrender that Bank Premises prior to the expiration of the option period specified in Section 4.6(b ), or by remaini

in any Bank Premises more than 150 days after the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will be required to, at the Receiver's option, (x) assume all leases, obligations, and liabilities with respect to that Bank}
Premises (including any ground lease with respect to the land on which that Bank Premises is located), leased Furniture and Equipment located thereon, in accordance with this Section 4.6 (unless the Receiver
previously repudiated that lease), and (y) purchase all Furniture and Equipment owned by the Failed Bank and located on or at the Bank Premises as of the Bank Closing Date at the purchase price specified on Schedule|
3 .2. (h) Furniture and Equipment. The Receiver grants to the Assuming Institution an option to purchase all Furniture and Equipment owned by the Failed Bank and located at any leased or owned Bank Premises at the|
item's purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2 (i) that the Assuming Institution does not elect to purchase pursuant to Section 4.6(a), or (i) for which Assuming Institution does not elect to take assignment of its lease|
pursuant to Section 4.6(b ); provided that, the Assuming Institution will give the Receiver notice of its election to purchase that Furniture and Equipment at the time it gives notice of its intention to surrender that Bank}
Premises. (i) Option to Put Bank Premises and Furniture and Equipment. (i) For a period of ninety (90) days following the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution is entitled to require the Receiver to purchase an:
Bank Premises that is owned, directly or indirectly, by an Acquired Subsidiary, and the Receiver will pay the Market Value of the Bank Premises as its purchase price. (ii) If the Assuming Institution elects to require the|
Receiver to purchase any Bank Premises that is owned, directly or indirectly, by an Acquired Subsidiary, the Assuming Institution will also have the option, exercisable within the same ninety (90) day time period, to|
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require the Receiver to purchase any Furniture and Equipment, and any Specialty Assets that are owned, directly or indirectly, by an Acquired Subsidiary and are Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]

ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New YorH

I=

slide30

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited
without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.

129/210

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

located on or at that Bank Premises and were used by the Failed Bank for banking purposes. The purchase price paid by the Receiver will be the purchase price specified on Schedule 3.2. (iii) If the Assuming Institution|
elects to exercise its options under this Section 4.6(i), the Assuming Institution will pay the Receiver those occupancy costs described in Section 4.6(e) and will surrender the Bank Premises in accordance with Section|
4.6(g)(i). (iv) Regardless of whether the Assuming Institution exercises any of its options under this Section 4.6(i), the purchase price for the Acquired Subsidiary will be adjusted by the difference between (A) the Market|
[Value of the Bank Premises ( other than automated teller machines) and (B) their respective Book Value as reflected on the books and records of the Acquired Subsidiary. That adjustment will be made in accordance
ith Article VIII of this Agreement. G) Option to Purchase Specialty Assets. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.6(f), the Receiver grants to the Assuming Institution an exclusive option for a period of thirty (30)
[days commencing the day after the Receiver provides the Assuming Institution the appropriate appraisal to purchase at Fair Market Value all, some, or none of the Specialty Assets. (k) Data Removal. The Assuming]
Institution will, prior to returning any automated teller machine to Receiver and unless otherwise requested by the Receiver, (i) remove all data from that automated teller machine and (ii) provide a written statement

o the Receiver that all data have been removed in a manner that renders it unrecoverable. 4.7. Agreement with Respect to Leased Data Management Equipment. (a) Option. The Receiver grants to the Assuming]
Institution an exclusive option for the period of ninety (90) days commencing the day after Bank Closing Date to accept an assignment from the Receiver of all Leased Data Management Equipment. (b) Notices|
Regarding Leased Data Management Equipment. The Assuming Institution will (i) give written notice to the Receiver within the option period specified in Section 4.7(a) of its election to accept or decline an assignment|
or sublease of all Leased Data Management Equipment and promptly accept an assignment or sublease of that Leased Data Management Equipment, and (ii) give written notice to the appropriate lessor( s) that it has
laccepted an assignment or sublease of the Leased Data Management Equipment that is subject to a lease. (c) Facilitation by Receiver. The Receiver will facilitate the assignment or sublease of Leased Data|
Management Equipment, or the negotiation of new leases or license agreements by the Assuming Institution; provided, that neither the Receiver nor the Corporation is required to engage in litigation, make payments
to the Assuming Institution or to any third party in connection with facilitating any assumption, assignment, sublease, or negotiation, or commit to any other obligations to third parties. ( d) Operating Costs. The]
Assuming Institution will pay the Receiver or appropriate third parties at the direction of the Receiver all operating costs with respect to Leased Data Management Equipment and comply with all relevant terms of an:
existing Leased Data Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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IManagement Equipment leases entered into by the Failed Bank, including the timely payment of all rent, taxes, fees, charges, maintenance, utilities, insurance, and assessments, beginning on the Bank Closing Date and|
ending on the date that is thirty (30) days after the Assuming Institution has given notice to the Receiver of its election not to assume that lease. (e) Assuming Institution's Obligation. The Assuming Institution will, no|
later than fifty (50) days after giving the notice provided in Section 4. 7(b), (i) relinquish and release to the Receiver or, at the direction of the Receiver, to a third party, all Leased Data Management Equipment, in the]
jsame condition as at Bank Closing Date, normal wear and tear excepted, or (ii) accept an assignment or a sublease of any existing Leased Data Management lease or negotiate a new lease or license agreement under]

this Section 4.7 with respect to Leased Data Management Equipment. (f) Data Removal. The Assuming Institution will, prior to returning any Leased Data Management Equipment, and unless otherwise requested by the|

Receiver, (i) remove all data from the Leased Data Management Equipment and (ii) provide a written statement to the Receiver that all data have been removed in a manner that renders it unrecoverable. 4.8. Certain|
Existing Agreements. (a) Assumption of Agreements. Except as provided in Section 4.8(b) or Section 4.8(c), with respect to agreements existing as of the Bank Closing Date that provide for the rendering of services by or]

o the Failed Bank, within ninety (90) days after the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will give the Receiver (i) written notice specifying each agreement it elects not to assume and (ii) a copy of each
agreement (including all amendments and other modifications, exhibits, schedules, and other attachments) it elects not to assume. The Assuming Institution will assume all agreements for which it does not give timely|
notification of its election not to assume. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.6(e), the Assuming Institution will comply with the terms of each agreement for a period commencing on the day after the Banl
losing Date and ending on: (i) if an agreement provides for the rendering of services by the Failed Bank, the date that is ninety (90) days after the Bank Closing Date, and (ii) if an agreement provides for the rendering off
services to the Failed Bank, the date that is thirty (30) days after the Assuming Institution has given notice to the Receiver of its election not to assume that agreement. The Receiver will assign, transfer, convey, and|
deliver to the Assuming Institution all right, title, and interest of the Receiver, if any, in and to agreements the Assuming Institution assumes under this Section 4.8(a). The Assuming Institution will, during the period it|

has the use or benefit of an agreement, promptly pay to the Receiver or to appropriate third parties at the direction of the Receiver all related operating costs and comply with all relevant terms of that agreement. (b)
Excluded Agreements. The provisions of Section 4.8(a) regarding the Assuming Institution's election not to assume certain agreements do not apply to: (i) any agreement related to Bank Premises described in Section|

.6(e)(iii); (i) any agreement between the Failed Bank and MERSCORP, Inc., or its wholly owned subsidiary, Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc.; Version 13.2 - PURCHASBAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]
SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New YorK
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(i) any insurance policy or bond referred to in Section 3.5(a); (iv) any other agreement specified in Section 3.5; (v) any consulting, management, or employment agreement between the Failed Bank and its employees o
other Persons, except for the Employee Retention Agreement in Exhibit 4.8(c); or (vi) any agreement related to cryptocurrency or digital assets. The Assuming Institution does not assume any liabilities or acquire an
rights under any of the agreements described in this Section 4.8(b ). (c) Assumed Agreements. The provisions of Section 4.8(a) regarding the Assuming Institution's election not to assume certain agreements do notj
lapply to: (i) any agreement that is subject to Sections 4.1 through 4.7; (i) any agreement (A) pursuant to which the Failed Bank provides loan servicing for others or loan servicing is provided to the Failed Bank by othersj
and (B) for which the Assuming Institution assumes any liability, duty, or obligation under Section 2.I(m); (i) any lease under which the Failed Bank is the lessor of Bank Premises that is an Acquired Asset or any Other]
Real Estate that is an Acquired Asset; or (iv) the transferred Employee Retention Agreement, which is hereby assumed by the Assuming Institution; provided that the aggregate liability of the Employee Retention|

IAgreement shall not exceed $50,830,000.00; or (v) any Transferred QFC. 4.9. Informational Tax Reporting. The Assuming Institution will perform all obligations of the Failed Bank (and, for the term of the Interim Asset]
[Servicing Arrangement attached as Exhibit 4.13, all obligations of the Receiver) with respect to federal and state income tax informational reporting related to (i) the Acquired Assets and the Liabilities Assumed, (ii
deposit accounts that were closed and loans that were paid off or related collateral obtained prior to the Bank Closing Date, (iii) miscellaneous payments made to vendors of the Failed Bank, and (iv) any other asset o
liability of the Failed Bank, including loans not purchased by the Assuming Institution and Deposits not assumed by the Assuming Institution, as may be required by the Receiver. 4.10. Insurance. (a) Assuming Institution|
to Insure. The Assuming Institution will obtain and maintain insurance coverage acceptable to the Receiver (including public liability, fire, and extended coverage insurance) naming the Assuming Institution as the|
insured and the Receiver as additional insured, effective from and after the Bank Closing Date, with respect to all (i) Bank Premises, and (ii) Furniture and Equipment, Specialty Assets, and Leased Data Management]
Equipment located on or at those Bank Premises. The Assuming Institution's obligation to insure Version 13.2 PURCHASEAN DASSUMPTIQNAGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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land to maintain the Receiver as an additional insured on Bank Premises insurance coverage will cease upon either: (x) Bank Premises Surrender Date or (y) the date the Assuming Institution receives a deed from the|
Receiver for owned Bank Premises or assumes the lease for leased Bank Premises. (b) Rights of Receiver. If the Assuming Institution at any time from or after the Bank Closing Date fails to (i) obtain or maintain any o
the insurance policies required by Section 4.10( a), (i) pay any premium in whole or in part related to those insurance policies, or (iii) provide evidence of those insurance policies acceptable to the Receiver, then the|
Receiver may in its sole and absolute discretion, without notice, and without waiving or releasing any obligation or liability of the Assuming Institution, obtain and maintain insurance policies, pay insurance premiums
and take any other actions with respect to the insurance coverage as the Receiver deem advisable. The Assuming Institution will reimburse the Receiver for all sums disbursed in connection with this Section 4.10(b).
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4.11. Office Space for Receiver and Corporation; Certain Payments. (a) FDIC Office Space. For the period commencing on the day following the Bank Closing Date and ending on the one hundred fiftieth (150th) da:
following the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will provide to the Receiver and the Corporation, without charge, FDIC Office Space. (b) Receiver's Right to Extend. Upon written notice by the Receiver or the|
Corporation, for the period commencing on the one hundred fifty-first (151st) day following the Bank Closing Date and ending no later than the three hundred and sixty-fifth (365th) day following the Bank Closing Date,

lthe Assuming Institution will continue to provide to the Receiver and the Corporation FD IC Office Space. During the period from the 151 st day following the Bank Closing Date until the day the FDIC and the Corporation|
acate FDIC Office Space, the Receiver and the Corporation will pay to the Assuming Institution their respective pro rata share (based on square footage occupied) of (A) the market rental rate as determined by the|

Receiver for the FDIC Office Space iflocated at owned Bank Premises, or (B) the actual rent paid for the FDIC Office Space iflocated at leased Bank Premises or other location. (c) Receiver's Relocation Right. If the|
Receiver or the Corporation determines that the space provided by the Assuming Institution is inadequate or unsuitable, the Receiver and the Corporation may relocate to other quarters having adequate and suitable|
[FDIC Office Space, and the Assuming Institution will pay all costs of relocation. Any rental and utility costs will be paid in accordance with Sections 4.11 (a) or 4.11 (b)), as applicable. ( d) Expenditures. The Assuming]
|nstitution will pay those bills and invoices on behalf of the Receiver and the Corporation as the Receiver or the Corporation directs for the period beginning on the date of the Bank Closing Date and ending on|
Settlement Date. The Assuming Institution will submit its requests for reimbursement of those expenditures pursuant to Article VIl of this Agreement. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASStJMPTIQN AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE]
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.12. Continuation of Group Health Plan Coverage for Former Employees of the Failed Bank. (a) Continuatiol verage. The Assuming Institution will assist the Receiver in offering individuals who were employees or]
‘ormer employees of the Failed Bank, or any of its Subsidiaries, and who, immediately prior to the Bank Closing Date, were receiving, or were eligible to receive, health insurance coverage or health insurance

continuation coverage from the Failed Bank ("Eligible Individuals"), the opportunity to obtain health insurance coverage in the Corporation's Federal Insurance Administration Continuation Coverage Plan that provides|
or health insurance continuation coverage to those Eligible Individuals and other persons who are qualified beneficiaries of the Failed Bank ("Qualified Beneficiaries") as defined in the Employee Retirement Income|
ecurity Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") 8 607, 29 U.S.C. 8 1167. The Assuming Institution will consult with the Receiver and no later than five (5) Business Days after the Bank Closing Date will provide written notice
0 the Receiver of the number (if available), identity (if available), and addresses (if available) of the Eligible Individuals who are Qualified Beneficiaries of the Failed Bank and for whom a "qualifying event" (as defined in|
ERISA § 603, 29 U.S.C. § 1163) has occurred and with respect to whom the Failed Bank's obligations under Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title | ofERISA, 29 U.S.C. 88 1161-1169 have not been satisfied in full, and any o
information as the Receiver may reasonably require. The Receiver will cooperate with the Assuming Institution in order to permit the Assuming Institution to prepare the notice and will provide to the Assumi
Institution the data in its possession as may be reasonably required for purposes of preparing the notice. (b) Qualified Beneficiaries: Expenses. The Assuming Institution will take any further action to assist the|
Receiver in offering the Eligible Individuals who are Qualified Beneficiaries of the Failed Bank the opportunity to obtain health insurance coverage in the Corporation's Federal Insurance Administration Continuation|
[Coverage Plan as the Receiver directs. The Assuming Institution will pay all expenses incurred (i) in connection with the obligations of the Assuming Institution under this Section 4.12 and (ii) in providing health|
insurance continuation coverage to any Eligible Individuals hired by the Assuming Institution and those employees' Qualified Beneficiaries. (c) Failed Bank Employees. Unless otherwise agreed by the Receiver and the|
Assuming Institution, the Assuming Institution is responsible for all salaries and payroll costs, including benefits, for all Failed Bank employees from the Bank Closing Date until the Assuming Institution makes a final
[determination as to whether the Assuming Institution will retain that employee. The Assuming Institution will offer to the Failed Bank employees it retains employment benefits comparable to those that the Assuming]
Institution offers its current employees. If the Receiver uses the services of any Failed Bank employee, the Receiver will reimburse the Assuming Institution for that cost through the settlement process described in|
Article VIII. (d) No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Section 4.12 is for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties to this Agreement and for the benefit of no other Person (including any former employee of the Failed
Bank or any Failed Bank Subsidiary, any Eligible Individual, or any Qualified Beneficiary of that former employee). Nothing in this Section 4.12 gives, or will be construed to give, any Person (including any forme
employee of the Failed Bank or any Failed Bank.Subsidiary, any Eligible Individual, or any Qualified Beneficiary of that former employee) Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIONA TIJRE BRIDGE BANK.
INA New York, New York|
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other than the Corporation, the Receiver, and the Assuming Institution, any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or with respect to the provisions of this Section 4.12. 4.13. Interim Asset Servicing. At any time|
after the Bank Closing Date, the Receiver may establish on its books one or more asset pools and may transfer into those asset pools (by means of accounting entries on the books of the Receiver) all or any assets and|
liabilities of the Failed Bank that are not acquired by the Assuming Institution, including wholly unfunded Commitments, and assets and liabilities that may be acquired, funded, or originated by the Receiver subsequent]
o the Bank Closing Date. The Receiver may remove assets (and liabilities) from or add assets ( and liabilities) to those pools at any time in its discretion. At the option of the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will
service, administer, and collect those pool assets in accordance with, and for the term set forth in, Exhibit 4.13. 4.14. Loss Sharing. The parties to this Agreement are not parties to any Shared-Loss Agreement,
ARTICLEV. DUTIES WITH RESPECT TO DEPOSITORS OF THE FAILED BANK. 5.1. Payment of Checks, Drafts, Orders and Deposits. Subject to Section 9.5, the Assuming Institution will pay all properly drawn checks, drafts|

the check or draft forms provided by the Failed Bank or by the Assuming Institution, to the extent|

ithdrawal orders, and Assumed Deposits of depositors of the Failed Bank presented for payment, whether draw
hat the Deposit balances to the credit of the respective makers or drawers assumed by the Assuming Institution under this Agreement are sufficient to permit the payment thereof, and in all other respects to|

discharge, in the usual course of conducting a banking business, the duties and obligations of the Failed Bank with respect to the Deposit balances due and owing to the depositors of the Failed Bank assumed by the|
Assuming Institution under this Agreement. 5.2. Certain Agreements Related to Deposits. Except as may be modified pursuant to Section 2.3, the Assuming Institution will honor the terms and conditions of any written|
escrow or loan servicing agreement or other similar agreement relating to a Deposit liability assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement. 5.3. Notice to Depositors. (a) Assumption of Deposits.|
Within seven (7) days after the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will give notice by mail to each depositor of the Failed Bank of (i) the assumption of the Deposit liabilities of the Failed Bank, and (ii) the|
procedures to claim Deposits (the Receiver will provide item (ii) to Assuming Institution). The Assuming Institution will also publish notice of its assumption of the Deposit liabilities of the Failed Bank in a newspaper of
eneral circulation in the county or counties in which the Failed Bank was located. (b) Notice to Depositors. Within seven (7) days after the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will give notices by mail to each|
depositor of the Failed Bank, as required under Section 2.3. Version 13.2 PIJRCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New YorH
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) Fee Schedule. If the Assuming Institution proposes to charge fees different from those fees formerly charged by the Failed Bank, the Assuming Institution will include its fee schedule in its mailed notice. (d) Approvall
ofNotices and Publications. The Assuming Institution will obtain approval of all notices and publications required by this Section 5.3 from counsel for the Receiver prior to mailing or publication. (e) Validation. Tol
validate the notice requirements outlined in Section 5.3, the Assuming Institution will provide the Receiver (i) an Affidavit of Publication attesting that it complied with the publication requirements outlined in Section|
.3, and (ii) an Affidavit of Mailing (in a form similar to Exhibit 2.3B) attesting that it mailed the notice to depositors as required by Section 5.3. ARTICLE VI. FAILED BANK RECORDS. 6.1. Ownership of Failed Bank Records.
In accordance with Sections 2.1 and 3 .1, the Receiver conveys to the Assuming Institution, wherever located, any and all Failed Bank Records, other than the following: (a) Failed Bank Records pertaining to (i) forme
employees of the Failed Bank who were no longer employed by the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date, and (ii) employees of the Failed Bank who were employed by the Failed Bank as of the Bank Closing Date and|
‘or whom the Receiver is unable to obtain a waiver to release those Failed Bank Records to the Assuming Institution; (b) Failed Bank Records pertaining to any asset or liability of the Failed Bank retained, acquired, or]

jassumed by the Receiver pursuant to this Agreement; and (c) any other Failed Bank Records as determined by the Receiver. 6.2. [Reserved.] 6.3. Custody of Failed Bank Records. (a) Assuming Institution Failed Bank|
Records Retention. The Assuming Institution will preserve and maintain, at its sole expense, for the joint benefit of the Receiver, the Signature Receiver, the Corporation, and the Assuming Institution, all Failed BanK
Records, regardless of whether the ownership of the Failed Bank Records was conveyed to the Assuming Institution under Section 6.1 or retained by the Receiver under Sections 6.(a) through (c), except those Failed|
Bank Records that either of the Receiver or the Signature Receiver, in its sole and absolute discretion, takes possession of or removes from Bank Premises. The Assuming Institution has the primary responsibility to|
respond to subpoenas, discovery requests, and other similar official inquiries and customer requests for lien releases with respect to the Failed Bank Records of which it has custody. If the Assuming Institution receives|
la subpoena addressed to the Assuming Institution seeking any Failed Bank Records of which it has custody, but are Failed Bank Records retained by the Receiver or the Signature Receiver, the Assuming Institution will
[promptly provide the Receiver with a copy of that subpoena by delivering it as provided in Section 13.6(b). With respect to its obligations under this Section 6.3 regarding Electronically Stored Information, the Version|
13.2 - PIJRCHASEAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorl

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 137/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated RE FI N ITIV I <

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Fﬁ slide37

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited
without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.

138/210

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Assuming Institution will complete the Data Retention Catalog attached to this Agreement as Schedule 6.3 and submit it to the Receiver within thirty (30) days after the Bank Closing Date. With respect to Electronically]
Stored Information, the Assuming Institution will maintain those Failed Bank Records in an easily accessible and useable format. If those Failed Bank Records are maintained by a third party vendor, the Assuming]
Institution is responsible for ensuring that the third party complies with this Article VI. (b) Destruction of Certain Failed Bank Records. With regard to all Failed Bank Records of which the Assuming Institution has|
custody that are at least ten (10) years old as of the date of the appointment of the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will request written permission to destroy those Failed Bank Records by submitting a written|

request to destroy, specifying precisely which Failed Bank Records are included in the request, as indicated in Section 13.6(b) for those requests. (c) Destruction of Failed Bank Records after Six Years. With regard to all

Failed Bank Records of which the Assuming Institution has custody that have been maintained in its custody after six (6) years from the date of the appointment of the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will request|
written permission to destroy those Failed Bank Records by submitting a written request to destroy, specifying precisely which Failed Bank Records are included in the request, as indicated in Section 13.6(b) for those|
requests. 6.4. Access to Failed Bank Records; Copies. The Assuming Institution will permit the Receiver, the Signature Receiver, and the Corporation access to all Failed Bank Records of which the Assuming Institution|
has custody, and to use, inspect, make extracts from, or request copies of those Failed Bank Records in the manner and to the extent requested, and to duplicate, in the discretion of the Receiver, the Signature Receiver,
or the Corporation, any Failed Bank Record; provided, that if the Failed Bank maintained one or more duplicate copies of those Failed Bank Records, the Assuming Institution assigns, transfers, and conveys to the]
ICorporation one duplicate copy of those Failed Bank Records without cost to the Corporation, and will deliver to the Corporation all Failed Bank Records assigned and transferred to the Corporation under this Article VI|
as soon as practicable on or after the date of this Agreement. The party requesting a copy of any Failed Bank Record will bear the cost (based on standard accepted industry charges to the extent applicable, as]
[determined by the Receiver) for providing that duplicate Failed Bank Record. The Assuming Institution will provide a copy of each Failed Bank Record upon the request of the Receiver or the Signature Receiver. If the|
Receiver, the Signature Receiver, or Corporation is seeking access to a Failed Bank Record from the Assuming Institution, the Receiver, Signature Reciever or Corporation need not provide a subpoena to obtain access to
he Failed Bank Records in the Assuming Institution's custody. The Signature Receiver is an express third party beneficiary for purposes of enforcing its rights under this Section 6.4. 6.5. Failed Bank Record Privacy. The|
Assuming Institution will comply with any law or regulation or any order, writ, or decree of any court or governmental authority applicable to Failed Bank Records. ARTICLE VII. BID; INITIAL PAYMENT. The Assuming}
Institution has submitted to the Receiver a Deposit premium bid of Zero Percent Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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0%) and an Acquired Asset discount bid of Two Billion Seven Hundred Twenty Five Million dollars ($2,725,000,000) (the "Bid Amount"). The Deposit premium bid will be applied to the total of all Assumed Deposits]
lexcept for those Assumed Deposits as reflected on Schedule 7. On the Payment Date, the Assuming Institution will pay to the Corporation, or the Corporation will pay to the Assuming Institution, as the case may be, the]
Initial Payment, plus interest on that amount (if the Payment Date is not the day following the Bank Closing Date) from and including the day following the Bank Closing Date to and including the day preceding the,
Payment Date at the Settlement Interest Rate. In addition to the Initial Payment, the Assuming Institution will also deliver to the Receiver on the date hereof an executed Equity Appreciation Instrument in the form
lattached hereto as Exhibit 7. It is the policy of the FDIC Receiver not to vote common stock of publicly traded banks or a bank holding company held by the FDIC Receiver except for purposes of establishing a quorum fol
annual or special meetings. ARTICLE VIII. ADJUSTMENTS; SETTLEMENT PROCESS. 8.1. Pro Forma Statement. The Receiver, as soon as practicable after the Bank Closing Date, in accordance with the best information then|
available, will provide to the Assuming Institution a Pro Forma Statement reflecting any adjustments of those liabilities and assets as may be necessary so that the Pro Forma Statement is consistent with the|
requirements of this Agreement. That Pro Forma Statement will take into account, to the extent possible, among other items, (a) liabilities and assets ofa nature similar to those contemplated by Section 2.1 or Section|
3.1, respectively, that on the Bank Closing Date were carried in the Failed Bank's suspense accounts, (b) accruals as of the Bank Closing Date for all income related to the Acquired Assets and business of the Failed Ban
lacquired by the Assuming Institution, whether or not those accruals were reflected on the Failed Bank Records in the normal course of its operations, and (c) adjustments to determine the Book Value of any investment
in an Acquired Subsidiary and related accounts on the "bank only" (unconsolidated) balance sheet of the Failed Bank based on the Equity Method of Accounting, whether or not the Failed Bank used the Equity Method
of Accounting for investments in subsidiaries, except that the resulting amount cannot be less than the Acquired Subsidiary's recorded equity as of the Bank Closing Date as reflected on the Failed Bank Records of the|
Acquired Subsidiary. Acquired Subsidiaries with negative equity will be restated to $1 pursuant to the Equity Method of Accounting. Any Acquired Asset purchased by the Assuming Institution or any asset of an Acquired
Subsidiary purchased by the Assuming Institution pursuant to Section 3.1 that was partially or wholly charged off during the period beginning the day after the Bid Valuation Date and ending on the Bank Closing Date|
will be deemed not to be charged off for the purposes of the Pro Forma Statement, and the purchase price will be determined pursuant to Section 3.2. In accordance with Section 3.2(c), in preparing the Pro Forma|
[Statement each Qualified Financial Contract will be included at QFC Contract Value (positive or negative) and, if a Qualified Financial Contract is a liability, no further liability amount will be included for purposes off
preparing the Pro Forma Statement. 8.2. Correction of Errors and Omissions; Adiustments for Certain Liabilities. ( a) Adjustments to Correct Errors. If any bookkeeping omissions or errors are discovered in preparing the
Pro Forma Statement or in completing the transfers and assumptions contemplated by this Agreement, the parties to this Agreement will correct those Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMEITT]
SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York]
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lerrors and omissions, and, as far as practicable, all adjustments will be made consistent with the judgments, methods, policies, or accounting principles used by the Failed Bank in preparing and maintaining Failed Bank]
Records, except that adjustments made pursuant to this Section 8.2( a) are not intended to bring the Failed Bank Records into accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. (b) Adjustments for Certain|
Liabilities. (i) If the Receiver discovers at any time subsequent to the date of this Agreement that any claim exists against the Failed Bank that is of such a nature that it would have been included in the liabilities|
assumed under Article Il had the existence of that claim or the facts giving rise to that claim been known as of the Bank Closing Date, the Receiver may, in its discretion, at any time, require that claim be assumed by
he Assuming Institution in a manner consistent with the intent of this Agreement. The Receiver will make appropriate adjustments to the Pro Forma Statement provided by the Receiver to the Assuming Institution|
pursuant to Section 8.1 as may be necessary. (ii) If the Assuming Institution returns all or a portion of any Deposit to the Receiver or the Corporation at the direction of the Receiver or the Corporation pursuant to|
[Section 9.5, the Receiver will make appropriate adjustments pursuant to Article VIII for the portion of the Bid Amount applicable to that returned Deposit and any related Deposit premium. (c) Other Adjustments. If the|
Failed Bank transferred, after the Bid Valuation Date, an asset to a Subsidiary that is not an Acquired Subsidiary and the Assuming Institution would have purchased that asset under Section 3.1 but for that transfer, the|
Receiver will make an adjustment to the Initial Payment (or subsequent payments) in an amount equal to (i) the Book Value of that transferred asset divided by (ii) the Book Value of all Acquired Assets plus the Bool
Value of that transferred asset plus the Book Value of other similarly transferred assets, then multiplied by (iii) the Acquired Asset premium (discount) bid set forth in Article VII. This adjustment will be as a credit to]
he Assuming Institution in the case of an Acquired Asset premium bid and a credit to the Receiver in the case of an Acquired Asset discount bid. For purposes of this Section 8.2(c), Book Value means, solely with
respect to the applicable asset transferred to a Subsidiary that is not an Acquired Subsidiary, that value stated on the Failed Bank Records as of the Bid Valuation Date. 8.3. Payments. Either the Receiver will cause to]
e paid to the Assuming Institution or the Assuming Institution will pay to the Receiver, as the case may be, on the Settlement Date, a payment in an amount that reflects net adjustments (including any costs|
lexpenses, and fees associated with determinations of value as provided in this Agreement) made pursuant to Section 8.1 or Section 8.2, plus interest as provided in Section 8.4. The Receiver and the Assuming]
Institution will effect on the Settlement Date any further transfer of assets to or assumption of liabilities or claims by the Assuming Institution as may be necessary in accordance with Section 8.1 or Section 8.2. 8.4,
Interest. Any amounts paid under Section 8.3 or Section 8.5 will bear interest for the period from and including the day following the Bank Closing Date to and including the day preceding the payment at the Settlement]
Interest Rate. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New YorH
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8.5. Subsequent Adiustments. If the Assuming Institution or the Receiver discovers any errors or omissions as contemplated by Section 8.2 or any error with respect to the payment made under Section 8.3 after the|
Settlement Date, the Assuming Institution and the Receiver will promptly correct those errors or omissions, make any payments, and effect any transfers or assumptions as may be necessary to reflect any correction|
plus interest as provided in Section 8.4. ARTICLE IX. CONTINUING COOPERATION. 9.1. General Matters. The parties to this Agreement will, in good faith and with their best efforts, cooperate with each other to carryj
out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to effect the purposes of this Agreement. 9.2. Additional Title Documents. (a) Mutual Cooperation. The Receiver, the Corporation, and the Assuming Institution|
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each will, at any time and from time to time, upon the request of any party to this Agreement, execute and deliver any additional instruments and documents of conveyance reasonably necessary to vest in the|
ppropriate party its full legal or equitable title in and to the property conveyed pursuant to this Agreement or to be conveyed in accordance with this Agreement. The Assuming Institution will prepare those,
instruments and documents of conveyance (in form and substance satisfactory to the Receiver) necessary to vest title to the Acquired Assets in the Assuming Institution. The Assuming Institution will prepare and|
record those instruments and documents of conveyance at its own expense. (b) Timely Preparation and Recordation of Vesting Instruments and Deeds. Within thirty (30) days of either (i) the Bank Closing Date or (ii) the
date the Assuming Institution exercises any option to acquire any Bank Premises or Other Real Estate, whichever is applicable under this Agreement, the Assuming Institution will prepare and deliver to the Receiver for]
Receiver's execution all necessary conveyance instruments and documents. No later than thirty (30) days after Assuming Institution's receipt of any executed conveyance instrument or document from the Receiver, the|

Assuming Institution will file it with the appropriate recording agencies and provide the Receiver with a copy of the document containing the recording information. If the Assuming Institution does not timely deliver tof
he Receiver executable conveyance instruments or documents and a copy of the recorded document with the recording information as contemplated by this Section for each Bank Premises and Other Real Estate to be
acquired by the Assuming Institution, the Receiver may elect to prepare, execute, and file any conveyance instruments or documents, and the Assuming Institution will promptly reimburse the Receiver $1,000 for each|
onveyance instrument or document deemed desirable or necessary, in the Receiver's sole discretion, to vest legal title in the Assuming Institution, plus all costs incurred by the Receiver to do so, including outside|
counsel fees, title searches and reports, filing fees and taxes, transfer fees, and document stamps. 9.3. Claims and Suits. (a) Defense and Settlement. The Receiver is entitled, in its discretion, to (i) defend or settle an
laim or suit against the Assuming Institution with respect to which the Receiver has indemnified the Assuming Institution in the same manner and to the same extent as provided in Article XII, and (ii) defend or settle|
lany claim or suit against the Assuming Institution Version 13,2 - PIJRCHASEAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorl
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ith respect to any Liability Assumed, which claim or suit may result in a loss to the Receiver arising out of or related to this Agreement, or that existed against the Failed Bank on or before the Bank Closing Date. The
lexercise by the Receiver of any rights under this Section 9.3(a) will not release the Assuming Institution with respect to any of its obligations under this Agreement. (b) Removal of Actions. If any Person institutes an|
action at law or in equity against the Receiver and the Corporation as codefendants with respect to any asset or (to the extent not included as an asset) Qualified Financial Contract or its QFC Related Item of the|
Failed Bank retained or acquired pursuant to this Agreement by the Receiver, the Receiver will, at the request of the Corporation, join with the Corporation in a petition to remove the action to the United States Distri
[Court for the proper district. The Receiver will institute, with or without joinder of the Corporation as co-plaintiff, any action with respect to any retained or acquired asset, or Qualified Financial Contract or its QF(]
Related Item, or any matter connected with either of the foregoing when the Corporation directs the Receiver to institute that action. 9.4. Payment of Deposits. If any depositor does not accept the obligation of the|
Assuming Institution to pay any Deposit liability of the Failed Bank assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement and asserts a claim against the Receiver for all or any portion of any Deposit liability,
the Assuming Institution, upon demand from the Receiver, will provide to the Receiver funds sufficient to pay that claim in an amount not in excess of the Deposit liability reflected on the books of the Assuming
Institution at the time that claim is made. Upon payment by the Assuming Institution to the Receiver of that amount, the Assuming Institution will be discharged from any further obligation under this Agreement to pa:
to that depositor the amount of that Deposit liability paid to the Receiver. 9.5. Withheld Payments. At any time, the Receiver or the Corporation may, in its discretion, determine that all or any portion of any deposit]
balance assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement does not constitute a "Deposit" ( or otherwise, in its discretion, determine that it is the best interest of the Receiver or Corporation to withhold
all or any portion of any deposit), and may direct the Assuming Institution to withhold payment of all or any portion of that deposit balance. Upon that direction, the Assuming Institution will hold that deposit and not
o make any payment of that deposit balance to or on behalf of the depositor, or to itself, whether by way of transfer, set-off or otherwise. The Assuming Institution will maintain the "withheld payment" status of that
[deposit balance until directed in writing by the Receiver or the Corporation as to its disposition. At the direction of the Receiver or the Corporation, the Assuming Institution will return all or any portion of that deposit]
balance to the Receiver or the Corporation, as appropriate, and thereupon the Assuming Institution will have no further liability to that depositor with respect to that returned deposit balance. If that deposit balance
has been paid to the depositor prior to a demand for return by the Corporation or the Receiver, and payment of that deposit balance had not been previously withheld pursuant to this Section 9.5, the Assuming]
Institution will not be required to return that deposit balance to the Receiver or the Corporation. The Assuming Institution will reimburse the Corporation or the Receiver, as the case may be, for the amount of anyj
[deposit balance or portion of any deposit balance paid by the Assuming Institution in contravention of any previous direction to withhold payment of that deposit balance or return that deposit balance the payment of
which was withheld pursuant to this Section 9 .5. 9.6. Proceedings with Respect to Certain Assets and Liabilities. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTJON AGREEMEITT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, Ne
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(a) Cooperation by Assuming Institution. In connection with any investigation, proceeding, or other matter with respect to any asset or liability of the Failed Bank retained by the Receiver, or any asset or liability of the|

Failed Bank acquired by the Receiver pursuant to this Agreement, the Assuming Institution will cooperate to the extent reasonably required by the Receiver. (b) Access to Records. In addition to its obligations unde

Section 6.4, the Assuming Institution will provide representatives of the Receiver access at reasonable times and locations without other limitation or qualification to (i) its directors, officers, employees, and agents
nd those of the Acquired Subsidiaries, and (ii) its books and records, the books and records of those Acquired Subsidiaries and all Credit Files, and copies thereof The Assuming Institution will promptly provide copies

of books, records, and Credit Files as requested by the Receiver, and the Receiver will pay the costs of duplication. (c) Loan Documents. No later than ten (10) days after the Put Notice pursuant to Section 3 .4 or the|
date of the notice of transfer of any Loan by the Assuming Institution to the Receiver pursuant to Section 3.6, the Assuming Institution will deliver to the Receiver those documents with respect to that Loan as the
Receiver may request, including the following: (i) all related Credit Documents (other than certificates, notices and other ancillary documents), (ii) a certificate setting forth the principal amount on the date of the|
transfer and the amount of interest, fees and other charges then accrued and unpaid thereon, and any restrictions on transfer to which that Loan is subject, and (iii) all Credit Files, and all documents, microfic

microfilm and computer records (including magnetic tape, disc storage, card forms and printed copy) maintained by, owned by, or in the possession of the Assuming Institution or any Affiliate of the Assuming Institution
relating to the transferred Loan. 9.7. Information. The Assuming Institution will promptly provide to the Corporation any other information, including financial statements and computations, relating to the performance|
of the provisions of this Agreement as the Corporation or the Receiver may request from time to time, and, at the request of the Receiver, make available employees of the Failed Bank employed or retained by the|
JAssuming Institution to assist in preparation of the Pro Forma Statement pursuant to Section 8.1. 9.8. Tax Ruling. The Assuming Institution will not at any time, without the Corporation's prior consent, seek a private]
letter ruling or other determination from the Internal Revenue Service or otherwise seek to qualify for any special tax treatment or benefits associated with any payments made by the Receiver or Corporation pursuant]
o this Agreement. 9.9. Limited Power of Attorney. The Receiver may, in its sole discretion, provide the Assuming Institution with a limited power of attorney designating certain employees of the Assuming Institution as|
the Receiver's attorneys-in-fact for the purposes of(i) executing, on behalf of the Receiver, lien releases required by Section 6.3, and (ii) taking certain actions, on behalf of the Receiver, to vest title to the Acquired Assets|
in the Assuming Institution as required by Section 9.2. The Assuming Institution will use its best efforts to complete all actions required to vest title to the Acquired Assets in the Assuming Institution as quickly as|
possible, but no later than the earlier of ( a) the second anniversary of the Bank Closing Date or (b) the date the Receiver chooses, in its sole discretion, to terminate the receivership of the Failed Bank. Version 13.2
[PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New Yorl4 New YorK
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ARTICLEX. CONDITION PRECEDENT. This Agreement is not effective until the Corporation has received satisfactory evidence of the following ( collectively, the "Conditions Precedent"): (a) Any necessary approval, waiver,
or other action by any governmental authority with respect to this Agreement; (b) The approval of the board of directors of the Assuming Institution, or other third party, with respect to this Agreement and the|
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (c) The closing of the Failed Bank; (d) The appointment of the Receiver; (e) The chartering of the Assuming Institution; (f) The receipt by the Receiver of the final, executed|
Equity Appreciation Instrument; and (g) The execution or completion of any agreements, documents, matters or proceedings contemplated in this Article X. If the Conditions Precedent have not been satisfied by March|
20, 2023, the Corporation may, in its sole discretion, extend the date for satisfaction of the Conditions Precedent for up to an additional fourteen (14) days. In that case, the Corporation may amend, supplement|

ptherwise modify, or replace this Agreement and any ancillary documents to reflect the appropriate Bank Closing Date, and the Assuming Institution will either execute documents as revised or otherwise affirm anyj
alteration in writing, as may be required by the Corporation. ARTICLEXI. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE ASSUMING INSTITUTION. The Assuming Institution represents and warrants to the Corporation and|
he Receiver as follows: 11.1. Corporate Existence and Authority. The Assuming Institution (a) is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of its chartering authority and has full power and
authority to own and operate its properties and to conduct its business as now conducted by it, and (b) has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations under this|
Agreement. The Assuming Institution has taken all necessary corporate (or other applicable governance) action to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the performance of the
ransactions contemplated by this Agreement. 11.2. Third Party Consents. No governmental authority or other third party consents (including approvals, licenses, registrations, or declarations) are required in|
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lconnection with the execution, delivery, or performance by the Assuming Institution of this Agreement, other than the consents that have been duly obtained and are in full force and effect. Version 13.2]
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[11.3. Execution and Enforceability. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Assuming Institution and w

his Agreem has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Corporation and|
he Receiver, this Agreement will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Assuming Institution, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 11.4. Compliance with Law. (a) No Violations. Neither the|
Assuming Institution nor any ofits Subsidiaries is in violation of any statute, regulation, order, decision, judgment, or decree of, or any restriction imposed by, the United States of America, any state, municipality, o

other political subdivision or any agency of any of the foregoing, or any court or other tribunal having jurisdiction over the Assuming Institution or any of its Subsidiaries or any assets of that Person, or any foreign|
government or agency thereof having that jurisdiction, with respect to the conduct of the business of the Assuming Institution or of any of its Subsidiaries, or the ownership of the properties of the Assuming Institution|
or any of its Subsidiaries, that, either individually or in the aggregate with all other violations, would materially and adversely affect the business, operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Assuming]
Institution or the ability of the Assuming Institution to perform, satisfy or observe any obligation or condition under this Agreement. (b) No Conflict. Neither the execution and delivery nor the performance by the|
JAssuming Institution of this Agreement will result in any violation by the Assuming Institution of, or be in conflict with, any provision of any applicable law or regulation, or any order, writ or decree of any court o
governmental authority. 11.5. Insured or Guaranteed Loans. If any Loans being transferred pursuant to this Agreement are insured or guaranteed by any department or agency of any federal, state, or local
lgovernmental unit, the Assuming Institution represents that the Assuming Institution has been approved by that department or agency, and is an approved lender or mortgagee, as appropriate, if approval is required.|
he Assuming Institution assumes full responsibility for determining whether or not those insurance or guarantees are in full force and effect on the date of this Agreement, and, with respect to those Loans whose|
insurance or guaranty is in full force and effect on the date of this Agreement, the Assuming Institution assumes full responsibility for doing all things necessary to insure that insurance or those guarantees remain in|
ull force and effect. The Assuming Institution assumes all of the obligations under the contract( s) of insurance or guaranty and will cooperate with the Receiver whenever necessary to complete forms required by the
insuring or guaranteeing department or agency to effect or complete the transfer to the Assuming Institution. 11.6. Representations Remain True. The Assuming Institution represents and warrants that it has executed
land delivered to the Corporation a Purchaser Eligibility Certification and Confidentiality Agreement, and that all information provided and representations made by or on behalf of the Assuming Institution in connectionf
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the Purchaser Eligibility Certification and Confidentiality Agreement (which are affirmed and ratified by this Section 11.6) are and]|
remain true and correct in all material respects and do not fail to state any fact required to make the information contained in them not misleading. Version 13,2 - PURCHASE AND Asst)JMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE
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11.7. No Reliance; Independent Advice. The Assuming Institution (i) is not relying on the Receiver or the Corporation for any business, legal, tax, accounting, investment, or other advice in connection with this Agreement]
and its Exhibits and documents delivered in connection with the foregoing, and (ii) has had adequate opportunity to consult with advisors of its choice in connection with this Agreement. ARTICLE XII. INDEMNIFICATION.
[12.1. Indemnification of Indemnitees. From and after the Bank Closing Date, subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 12.1 and Section 12.6, and subject to compliance by the Indemnitees with Section 12.2, the
Receiver will indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees against any and all costs, losses, liabilities, expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred prior to the assumption of defense by the Receiver pursuant to|
Section 12.2(d), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with claims against any Indemnitee based on liabilities of the Failed Bank that are not assumed by the|
JAssuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement or subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by the Assuming Institution or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution for which indemnification is|

provided: (a) under this Section 12.1, subject to certain exclusions as provided in Section 12.1(b), such indemnification is limited to: (i) claims based on the rights of any shareholde former shareholder (as such) of(A)|
he Failed Bank, or (B) any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank; (ii) claims based on the rights of any creditor (as such) of the Failed Bank, or any creditor (as such) of any director, officer, employee, or agent of the|
Failed Bank, with respect to any indebtedness or other obligation of the Failed Bank arising prior to the Bank Closing Date; (iii) claims based on the rights of any present or former director, officer, employee, or agent (as|
lsuch) of the Failed Bank or of any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank; (iv) claims based on any action or inaction prior to the Bank Closing Date of the Failed Bank, its directors, officers, employees, or agents (as|
such), or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank, or the directors, officers, employees, or agents (as such) of that Subsidiary or Affiliate; (v) claims based on any malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance of the
Failed Bank, its directors, officers, employees, or agents with respect to the trust business of the Failed Bank, if any; (vi) claims based on any failure or alleged failure (not in violation of law) by the Assuming Institution|
to continue to perform any service or activity previously performed by the Failed Bank that the Assuming Institution is not required to perform pursuant to this Agreement or that arise under any contract to which the|
Failed Bank was a party that the Assuming Institution elected not to assume in accordance with this Version 13.2 - PIIRCUASB AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York, New York]
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Agreement and that neither the Assuming Institution nor any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution has assumed subsequent to the execution of this Agreement; (vii) claims arising from any action or]
inaction of any Indemnitee, including for purposes of this Section 12.I(a)(vii) the former officers or employees of the Failed Bank or of any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank that is taken upon the specific written|
direction of the Corporation or the Receiver, other than any action or inaction taken in a manner constituting bad faith, gross negligence or willful misconduct; and (viii) claims based on the rights of any depositor of the
Failed Bank whose deposit has either been accorded "withheld payment" status or returned to the Receiver or Corporation in accordance with Section 9.5, or, has become an "unclaimed deposit" or has been returned
o the Corporation or the Receiver in accordance with Section 2.3; (b) provided that with respect to this Agreement, except for Section 12.I(a)(vii) and (viii), no indemnification will be provided under this Agreement for

udgment or fine against, or any amount paid in settlement (without the written approval of the Receiver) by, any Indemnitee in connection with any action that seeks damages against any Indemnitee (a|

["Counterclaim") arising with respect to any Acquired Asset and based on any action or inaction of either the Failed Bank, its directors, officers, employees, or agents (as such) prior to the Bank Closing Date, unless that
udgment, fine, or amount paid in settlement exceeds the greater of (A) the Repurchase Price of that Acquired Asset or (B) the monetary recovery sought on that Acquired Asset by the Assuming Institution in the cause
of action from which the Counterclaim arises; and in that event the Receiver will provide indemnification only in the amount of that excess; and no indemnification will be provided for any costs or expenses other than|
lany costs or expenses (including attorneys' fees) that, in the determination of the Receiver, have been actually and reasonably incurred by that Indemnitee in connection with the defense of that Counterclaim; and it is]
lexpressly agreed that the Receiver reserves the right to intervene, in its discretion, on its behalf or on behalf of the Receiver, in the defense of that Counterclaim; (ii) claims with respect to any liability or obligation of

he Failed Bank that is (A) expressly assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement or (B) assumed by the Assuming Institution or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution subsequent to|
he execution of this Agreement; (iii) claims with respect to any liability of the Failed Bank to any present or former employee (as such) of the Failed Bank or of any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank, which liabilit
is (A) expressly assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement or (B) assumed by the Assuming Institution or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution subsequent to the execution of this

[Agreement; (iv) claims based on the failure of any Indemnitee to seek recovery of damages from the Receiver for any claims based upon any action or inaction of the Failed Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION]|
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Bank, its directors, officers, employees or agents as fiduciary, agent or custodian prior to the Bank Closing Date; (v) claims based on any violation or alleged violation by any Indemnitee of the antitrust, branching,
banking or bank holding company or securities laws of the United States of America or any state thereof; (vi) claims based on the rights of any present or former creditor, customer, or supplier (as such) of an
Indemnitee; (vii) claims based on the rights of any present or former shareholder (as such) of any Indemnitee; (viii) claims, if the Receiver determines that the effect of providing indemnification would be to (A) expand
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or alter the provisions of any warranty or disclaimer thereof provided in Section 3 .3 or any other provision of this Agreement, or (B) create any warranty not expressly provided under this Agreement; (ix) claims that|
x) claims based on any liability for taxes or fees assessed with respect to the consummation of the

ould have been enforced against any Indemnitee had the Assuming Institution not entered into this Agreeme
ransactions contemplated by this Agreement, including any subsequent transfer of any Acquired Assets or Liabilities Assumed to any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution; (xi) except as expressly provided|

in this Article XII, claims based on any action or inaction of any Indemnitee, and the Receiver will not provide indemnification for (i) the Failed Bank, (ii) any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Failed Bank, or (iii) any present or]
former director, officer, employee, or agent of the Failed Bank or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates unless the Receiver, in its sole and absolute discretion, provides indemnification under this Article XII for any present o

former director, officer, employee, or agent of the Failed Bank or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates who is also or becomes a director, officer, employee, or agent of the Assuming Institution or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates; (xii)
laims or actions that constitute a breach by the Assuming Institution of the representations and warranties contained in Article XI; (xiii) claims arising out of or relating to the condition of or generated by an Acquired|
Asset arising from or relating to the presence, storage or release of any hazardous or toxic substance, or any pollutant or contaminant, or condition of that Acquired Asset that violate any applicable federal, state or]
local law or regulation concerning environmental protection; and (xiv) claims based on, related to, or arising from any asset acquired or liability assumed, other than pursuant to this Agreement. 12.2. Conditions]
Precedent to Indemnification. It is a condition precedent to the obligation of the Receiver to indemnify any Indemnitee pursuant to this Article XII that the Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMEN
ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]

slide48

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 152/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited RE FI N ITIV I

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Indemnitee will, with respect to any claim made or threatened against that Indemnitee for which that Indemnitee is or may be entitled to indemnification under this Article XII: (a) give written notice to the Supervisol
[Counsel (Resolution and Receivership Unit) of the Corporation in the manner and at the address provided in Section 13.6 of that claim as soon as practicable after that claim is made or threatened; provided that notice
Imust be given on or before the date that is six (6) years from the date of this Agreement; (b) provide to the Receiver the information and cooperation with respect to that claim as the Receiver may reasonably require;|

) cooperate and take all steps, as the Receiver may reasonably require, to preserve and protect any defense to that claim; ( d) if suit is brought with respect to that claim, upon reasonable prior notice, afford to the|
Receiver the right, that the Receiver may exercise in its sole and absolute discretion, to conduct the investigation, control the defense and effect settlement of that claim, including the right to designate counsel and to

control all negotiations, litigation, arbitration, settlements, compromises, and appeals of that claim, all of which will be at the expense of the Receiver; provided that, the Receiver is required to notify the Indemnitee|
laiming indemnification in writing that the claim is a claim for which that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification under this Article XII; (e) not incur any costs or expenses in connection with any response or suit with|

respect to that claim, unless those costs or expenses were incurred upon the written direction of the Receiver; provided that the Receiver is not required to reimburse the amount of those costs or expenses unless|
those costs or expenses were incurred upon the written direction of the Receiver; (f) not release or settle that claim or make any related payment or admission, unless the Receiver consents; provided that the Receive
is not required to reimburse the amount of that settlement or payment unless that settlement or payment was effected upon the written direction of the Receiver; and (g) take any reasonable action the Receiver|
requests in writing as necessary to preserve, protect, or enforce the rights of the Indemnitee against any Primary Indemnitor. 12.3. No Additional Warranty. Nothing in this Article XII (a) expands or otherwise alters any]
arranty or disclaimer thereof provided under Section 3 .3 or any other provision of this Agreement with respect to, among other matters, the title, value, collectability, genuineness, enforceability, documentation,
condition or freedom from liens or encumbrances, of any (i) Acquired Asset or (ii) asset or (to the extent not included as an asset) Qualified Financial Contract or QFC Related Item of the Failed Bank purchased by the]
Assuming Institution subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by the Assuming Institution or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution, or (b) creates any warranty not expressly provided under this|
Agreement. 12.4. Indemnification of Receiver and Corporation. From and after the Bank Closing Date, the Assuming Institution will indemnify and hold harmless the Corporation and the Receiver Version 13.2 PURCHASE
JAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor|
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and their respective directors, officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all costs, losses, liabilities, expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred in connection with any of the following: (a) claims based on any and all liabilities or obligations of the Failed Bank assumed by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Agreement or subsequent to

the execution of this Agreement by the Assuming Institution or any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Assuming Institution, whether or not those liabilities subsequently are sold or transferred, other than any claim based
upon any action or inaction of any Indemnitee as provided in Section 12.I(a)(vii) or (viii); (b) claims based on any act or omission of any Indemnitee (including claims of any Person claiming any right or title by or throu,
he Assuming Institution with respect to Acquired Assets transferred to the Receiver pursuant to Section 3.4 or Section 3.6), other than any action or inaction of any Indemnitee as provided in (vii) or (viii) of Section|

on of Article VI. 12.5. Obligations Supplemental. The obligations of the Receiver, and the Corporation as guarantor in|

[12.1(a); and (c) claims based on any failure of the Assuming Institution to comply with any provi
accordance with Section 12. 7, to provide indemnification under this Article XII are to supplement any amount payable by any Primary Indemnitor to the Indemnitee indemnified under this Article XII. Consistent with

hat intent, the Receiver will only make payments pursuant to that indemnification to the extent not payable by a Primary Indemnitor. If the aggregate amount of payments by the Receiver, or the Corporation as

jguarantor in accordance with Section 12.7, and all Primary Indemnitors with respect to any item of indemnification under this Article Xl exceeds the amount payable with respect to that item, the Indemnitee bein;
indemnified will notify the Receiver thereof and, upon the request of the Receiver, will promptly reimburse the Receiver, or the Corporation as appropriate, the amount of the Receiver's (or the Corporation's) payments|
to the extent of that excess. 12.6. Criminal Claims. Notwithstanding any provision of this Article XII to the contrary, if any Indemnitee is or becomes involved in any criminal action, suit, or proceeding, whether judicial
ladministrative, or investigative, the Receiver is not required to indemnify that Indemnitee for liability with respect to any criminal act or to the extent any costs or expenses are attributable to the defense against the|
llegation of any criminal act, unless (a) the Indemnitee is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense against the action, suit, or proceeding, or (b) the action, suit, or proceeding is terminated without the
imposition ofliability on the Indemnitee. 12. 7. Limited Guaranty of the Corporation. The Corporation guarantees performance of the Receiver's obligation to indemnify any Indemnitee as set forth in this Article XII. It is}
la condition to the Corporation's obligation under this Section 12.7 that each Indemnitee comply in all respects with the applicable provisions of this Article XII. The Corporation is liable under this Section 12.7 only for
the amounts, if any, that the Receiver is required to pay under the terms of this Article XII but fails to pay. Except as otherwise provided above in this Section 12.7, nothing in this Article XIl is intended or will be]
construed to create any liability or obligation on the part of the Corporation, the United States of America, or any department or agency thereof under or with respect to this Article XII or any of its provisions. The|
obligations undertaken by the Receiver Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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under this Article Xl are the sole and exclusive responsibility of the Receiver and no other Person or entity. 12.8. Subrogation. Upon payment by the Receiver, or the Corporation as guarantor in accordance with Section|
12. 7, to any Indernnitee for any claims indemnified by the Receiver under this Article XIl, the Receiver, or the Corporation as appropriate, will become subrogated to all rights of the Indemnitee against any other Person|
to the extent of that payment. ARTICLE XIIl. MISCELLANEOUS. 13.1. Costs, Fees, and Expenses. Each party is responsible for all fees, costs, and expenses it incurs in connection with this Agreement (including the]
performance of any obligations or the exercise of any rights under this Agreement) unless expressly otherwise provided; provided that the Assuming Institution will pay all fees, costs, and expenses (other than|
lattorneys' fees incurred by the Receiver) incurred in connection with the transfer to it of any Acquired Assets or Liabilities Assumed under or in accordance with this Agreement. The Assuming Institution is responsible|
or the payment ofMERS routine transaction charges. 13.2. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ALL RIGHT TO
RIAL BY JURY IN OR TO HA VE A JURY PARTICIPATE IN RESOLVING ANY DISPUTE, ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO|

JOR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 13.3. Consent; Determination or Discretion. When the consent or approval of a party is required|
under this Agreement, that consent or approval must be obtained in writing and, unless expressly otherwise provided, will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. When a determination or decision is to be made by
ja party under this Agreement, that party will make that determination or decision in its reasonable discretion unless expressly otherwise provided. 13.4. Rights Cumulative. Except as expressly otherwise provided in|
his Agreement, the rights of each of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative, may be exercised as often as that party considers appropriate, and are in addition to that party's rights under this Agreement, any|
of the agreements related to this Agreement, or under applicable law. Any failure to exercise or any delay in exercising any of those rights, or any partial or defective exercise of those rights, will not operate as a waive
or variation of that or any other right, unless expressly otherwise provided. 13.5. References. References in this Agreement to Recitals, Articles, Sections, Schedules, and Exhibits are to Recitals, Articles, Sections,
ISchedules, and Exhibits of this Agreement, respectively. References to parties are to the parties to this Agreement. Unless expressly otherwise provided, references to days and months are to calendar days and monthsj
respectively. If a notice or other action is due on a day that is not a Business Day, that notice or other action may be delayed until the next-succeeding Business Day. Article and Section headings are for convenient|
reference and do not affect the meaning of this Agreement. References to the Version 13.2 - PtrRCHASEAND ASS{JMPTJON AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New YorK
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singular include the plural, as the context may require, and vice versa. Any use of any form of the word "including" includes the phrase "but not limited to" or its appropriate variation. 13.6. Notice. (a) Form of Notices.

All notices must be given in writing and provided in accordance with the provisions of this Section 13 .6, unless expressly otherwise provided. (b) under this Agreement: Notice to the Receiver or the Corporation. With
respect to a notice Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 600 North Pearl Street, Suite 700 Dallas, Texas 75201 Attention: Settlement Agent In addition, with respect to notices under Section 4.6, a copy to:
BankPremiseNotice@fdic.gov In addition, with respect to notices under Article XII, a copy to: Supervisory Counsel (Resolution and Receivership Unit) 600 North Pearl Street, Suite 700 Dallas, Texas 75201 In addition,

ith respect to communications under Exhibit 4.13, a copy to: Attention: Interim Servicing Manager, ggodwin@FDIC.gov In addition, with respect to communications under Section 6.3(a) regarding any subpoena
laddressed to the Assuming Institution seeking Failed Bank Records of which it has custody, but are Failed Bank Records retained by the Receiver, a copy of that subpoena to: and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation}
600 North Pearl Street, Suite 700 Dallas, Texas 75201 Attention: Regional Counsel Attention: Supervisory Counsel (Resolution and Receivership Unit) And with respect to written requests to destroy Failed Bank Records|
under Sections 6.3 (b) and 6.3( ¢ ), a copy to: DRR - Customer Service (through the FDIC Portal) https://ask.fdic. gov/fdicinformationandsupportcenter/s/ Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]
ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorl
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(c) Notice to Assuming Institution. With respect to a notice under this Agreement: Flagstar Bank, N.A. 102 Duffy Avenue Hicksville, New York 11801 Attention: Thomas R. Cangemi and John . Pinto with a copy toj|
_13.7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the Schedules and Exhibits, embodies the entire agreement of the parties to this Agreement in relation to the subject matter in this Agreement and
lsupersede all prior understandings or agreements, oral or written, between the parties. 13.8. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the duly authorized representative o
ja different party to this Agreement on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed will be deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together will constitute one and the same Agreement. 13.9,|
OVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FEDERAL LAW OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
AND, IN THE ABSENCE OF CONTROLLING FEDERAL LAW, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH THE MAIN OFFICE OF THE FAILED BANK IS LOCATED. 13.10. Successors and Assigns. (a) Binding on|

Successors and Assigns: Assignment. All terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding on the successors and assigns of the Receiver, the Corporation, and the Assuming Institution. The Receiver may assign or]
otherwise transfer this Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Receiver under this Agreement (in whole or in part) to the Corporation in its corporate capacity without the consent of Assuming Instituti

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Assuming Institution may not assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of the Assuming Institution's rights or obligations under this

Agreement (in whole or in part) without the prior written consent of the Receiver, which consent may be granted or withheld by the Receiver in its sole and absolute discretion. (b) No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing]

expressed or referred to in this Agreement is intended or will be construed to give any Person other than the Receiver, the Corporation, and the Assuming Institution any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under]
or with respect to this Agreement or any provisions contained in this Agreement, it being the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement, the obligations, and statements of responsibilities under this|

IAgreement, and all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Receiver, the Corporation, and the Assuming Institution and for the benefit of no other Person. Version}

13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMBIT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York, New York}
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13.11. Modification. No amendment or other modification, rescission, or release of any part of this Agreement be effective except pursuant to a written agreement signed by the duly authorized representatives of the|
parties. 13.12. Manner of Payment. All payments due under this Agreement will be in lawful money of the United States of America in immediately available funds as each party may specify to the other parties;|
provided that if the Receiver or the Corporation is obligated to make any payment under this Agreement in the amount 0f$25,000.00 or less, that payment may be made by check. 13.13. Waiver. Each of the Receiver,
he Corporation, and the Assuming Institution may waive its respective rights, powers, or privileges under this Agreement; provided that (a) the waiver must be in writing, (b) no failure or delay on the part of the|
Receiver, the Corporation, or the Assuming Institution to exercise any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement will operate as a waiver, ( c) no single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege under this|
Agreement will preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege by the Receiver, the Corporation, or the Assuming Institution under this Agreement, and ( d) no waiver|

ill operate or be construed as a future waiver of that right, power, or privilege under this Agreement. 13.14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, then, to the extent|
possible, all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will be binding upon the parties to this Agreement. 13.15. Term of Agreement. This Agreement will continue in full force]
nd effect until the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Bank Closing Date; provided that (a) the provisions of Section 6.3 and Section 6.4 survive the expiration of the term of this Agreement, and (b) the receivership of the|
Failed Bank may be terminated prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement, and, in that event, the guaranty of the Corporation, as provided in and in accordance with the provisions of Section 12.7, will be in|
leffect for the remainder of the term of this Agreement. Expiration of the term of this Agreement will not affect any claim or liability of any party with respect to any (x) amount that is owing at the time of the expiration,
regardless of when the amount becomes payable, and (y) breach of this Agreement occurring prior to expiration, regardless of when that breach is discovered. 13.16. Survival of Covenants, Etc. The covenants,
representations, and warranties in this Agreement survive the execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement. 13.17. Right of Receiver or Corporation to]
JAudit. The Receiver or the Corporation, their respective agents, contractors, and employees, may perform an audit to determine the Assuming Institution's compliance with this Agreement at any time, by providing not
less than ten (10) Business Days' prior notice. The scope and duration of any audit will be at the discretion of the Receiver or the Corporation, as the case may be. The Receiver or the Corporation, as the case may be|

ill bear the expense of that audit. If any corrections are necessary due to the audit, the Assuming Institution and the Receiver will make those accounting adjustments, payments, and withholdings as necessary to give|
retroactive effect to those corrections. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]

slide54

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 159/210
©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited RE FI N ITIV I ‘

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated
companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

[Signature Page Follows] Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYor|

slide55

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 160/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited RE FI N ITIV I

without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives to be effective as of the date first above written. Version 13.2 - PtJRQIASE AND|
IASS\JMPIION AGREEMENT FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, RECEIVER OF SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, NEW YORK, NEW YORK BY: NAME: TITLE: | Digitally signed by JOHN JOHN CON
INEEL 'ff,cONNEELY J Date- 2023 03 19 23:42:17 -04'00' FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION BY: NAME: TITLE: JOHN CONN EELV~ Digitally signed by JOHN CONNEELY 1/ 'Date: 2023.03.19 23:42:46 -04'00
FLAGSTAR BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION BY: NAME: TITLE: SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NcwYork,NcwYork]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives to be effective as of the date first above written. Version 13.2- PURCIFASEAND
Assmtr:UON AcmEg).JENI FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, RECEIVER OF SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, NEW YORK, NEW YORI( BY: NAME: TITLE: FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
ORPORATION BY: NAME: TITLE: FLAGSTAR BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 50 SIONATUREDRIDOI!DANK, NA Now Yodc, New York]
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ptocurrency or a cryptocurrency business. Version 13.2 - P1mCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AQREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK(|

[SCHEDULE 2.I(a) EXCLUDED DEPOSIT LIABILITY ACCOUNTS Any Deposit that is related to c
INA New York, New York]
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SCHEDULE 2.2 EXCLUDED CONTRACTS Any contract in regards to cryptocurrency or digital assets. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNA TIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York
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[SCHEDULE 3.2 PURCHASE PRICE OF ACQUIRED ASSETS (a) cash and receivables from depository institutions, including cash items in the Book Value process of collection, plus interest thereon: (b) reserved: (c) federal
unds sold and repurchase agreements, if any, including interest Book Value thereon: (d) Loans, other than those in Optional Loan Book Value Pools: (e) reserved: (f) safe deposit business, safekeeping business, BooK

alue and trust business, if any: (g) Failed Bank Records and other documents: Book Value (h) Other Real Estate: As set forth on the Bid (i) Other Real Estate Subsidiaries: As set forth on the Bid (j) Loans in Optional Lo.
Pools: As set forth on the Bid (k) all repossessed collateral ( other than repossessed securities), such as boats, motor Book Value vehicles, aircraft, trailers, and firearms: (1) capital stock of any Acquired Subsidiaries |
Book Value FHLB stock, and repossessed securities: (m) amounts owed to the Failed Bank by any Book Value Acquired Subsidiary: (n) assets securing Deposits of public money, to the extent not otherwise purchased|
(0) overdrafts of customers: Book Value Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorl

under Book Value this Agreeme
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p) reserved: (q) rights of the Failed Bank to have loan servicing provided to the Failed Bank by others and related contracts: (r) Personal Computers and Owned Data Management Equipment: (s) Bank Premises with a
ixed price: (t) All other Bank Premises: (u) automated teller machines: (v) Furniture and Equipment: (w) Specialty Assets: Version 13.2 PIIBCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT Book Value Book Value As set forth on the]
Bid Market V alue BookValue BookValue Fair Market Value SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New Yorl
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SCHEDULE 3.50} EXCLUDED SECURITIES AND EXCLUDED QUALIFIED FINANCIAL CONTRACTS EXCLUDED SECURITIES All securities are excluded and will be retained by the Receiver. EXCLUDED QUALIFIED FINANCIAI
ONTRACTS All Qualified Financial Contracts are excluded and will be retained by the Receiver. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AQREEME?'IT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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[SCHEDULE 3.5(m) EXCLUDED OTHER REAL ESTATE AND EXCLUDED OTHER REAL ESTATE SUBSIDIARIES NONE Version 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSIJMPTIQN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New YorK
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ISCHEDULE 4.1(b) BANK PREMISES IN UNDERSERVED AREAS Branch Name Branch Address Income Level Main Office 565 5th Ave New York, NY 10017 Uooer 261 Madison Avenue 261 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10017
Uooer Third Branch 950ThirdAvenueNewYork,NY 10022 Uooer Remson Branch 26 Court Street And Remson Street Brooklyn, NY Upper 11242 300 Park Avenue Branch 485 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10022 Unkow n|
111 Broadway Branch 111 Broadway Suite 903 New York, NY 10006 Upper Office 1-C Quaker Ridge Road 1-C Quaker Ridge Road New Rochelle, NY 10804 Upper Branch Rockville Centre Branch 53 North Park Avenue
Rockville Centre, NY 11570 Middle Melville Branch 68 South Service Road Melville, NY 11747 Middle 923 Broadway 923 Broadway Woodmere, NY 11598 Upper 36-36 33rd Street Long 36-36 33rd Street Long Island City,|
INY 11106 Middle Island City Hunst Point Avenue Branch 1360 East Bay Avenue Bronx, NY 10474 Unkow Office n Hamilton Avenue Branch 360 Hamilton Avenue, Reckson Metro Center, Upper White Plains, NY 10601 Park}

IAvenue South Branch 200 Park Avenue South, New York, NY 10003 Upper Madison Avenue Office 1020 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10021 Upper Great Neck Branch 40 Cuttermill Road Great N eek, NY 11021 Middle|
ackson Heights Branch 78-37 37th Street Jackson Heights, NY 11372 Middle New Utrecht Avenue Branch 6321 New Urecht Avenue Brooklyn, NY 11219 Modera te Jericho Branch 100 Jericho Quadrangle Jericho, NY 117
3 Upper Staten Island Branch 2066 Hylan Blvd. Staten Island, NY 10306 Middle West 57th Street Branch 50 West 57th Street New York, NY 10019 Upper Sutphin Blvd. Branch 89-36 Sutphin Blvd. Jamaica, NY 11435|
Modera te 1400 Broadway Branch 1400 Broadway New York, NY 10018 Unkow Office n 185 Broadway Branch 185 Broadway Brooklyn, NY 11211 Low Office Hauppauge Branch 360 Motor Parkway Hauppauge, NY 11788]
Middle 1688 Victory Blvd Branch 1688 Victory Blvd Ste 301 Staten Island, NY 10314 Upper Queens Blvd 118-35 Queens Blvd. Forest Hills, NY 11375 Upper Greenwich Branch 75 Holly Hill Lane Greenwich, CT 06830]
Modera Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AQREEMEITT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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e Third Avenue Branch 9003 Third Avenue Brooklyn, NY 11209 Middle Garden City Branch 900 Stewart Avenue Garden City, NY 11530 Middle 201 Mission Street, Suite 201 Mission Street San Francisco, CA 94105 Unkow|
600 n Charlotte Branch Office 121 West Trade Street, Suite 1150, Charlotte, NC Upper 28202 Woodland Hills Branch 21255 Burbank Blvd., Suite 320, Woodland Hills, Upper Office CA91367 Ontario Branch Office 3257 E.
Guasti Road, Suite 320, Ontario, CA 91761 Upper Durham Branch Office 110 Corcoran Street Durham, NC 27701 Upper Newport Beach Branch 100 Bayview Circle Suite 3400 Newport Beach, CA Upper Office 92660

Beverly Hills Branch 9665 Wilshire Boulevard Suite 300 Beverly Hills, Upper CA90212 El Segundo Branch Office 1960 E. Grand Avenue Suite 1100 El Segundo, CA Unkow 90245 n San Jose Branch Office 111 W. St. John|
treet Suite 1120 San Jose, CA Middle 95113 Reno Branch Office 100 W. Liberty Street Suite 190 Reno, NV 89501 Unkow n Total - 40; Upper - 20; Middle - 10; Moderate - 3; Unknown - 6; Low - 1 Version 13.2 - PURCHASE
AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor!
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Failed Institution Name Data Center Address Assuming Institution Name Address DRC Preparation Date DRC Prepare r's Contact Name Designation Phone Email SCHEDULE 6.3 DATA RETENTION CATALOG FDIC Failed]
Bank Data Services (FBDS} Acquirer Data Retention Catalog Version 3.01 Alternate Contact for Subsequent Data Requests /if different from above} Name Phone Email Instructions 1. Provide preparers contact|

information and Bank information on the *cover Page* tab. 2. Provide point of contact and desired procedure for data requests on the "Data Request Procedure” Tab. 3. Provide the requested application retention|

etails on "Data Retention"tab of this workbook. o. Update provided application fist with any additional systems that were not included b. Select the most appropriate value from the drop down list when the list is|

provided with applicable column. ff you need additional clarification while recording the information, please call Jeff Boer(FDIC} at 703-516-1256 or Ericka Gilbert (FDIC} at (214} 362-2367. Send the final copy of this|
[document to Jay Brown JameBrown@FDIC.gov. Version 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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Example of Information Required Application Classification Applicatio Sub- Business nName Category Usage Provide the Select the Describe name of the most the application. appropriate business category uses and|
represented key by the processes application supported by the application Vendo r Provide the name of the vendor. Time Duration for Time Duration for Application in Oneration Online Data From | To From | To|
Provide the time Provide the time duration (Month & duration (Month & Year) for which the Year) for which data is application is available online. operation. Electronic Data Retention Plan Acquirer Plan Migration|

Details Select the most Provide the Provide appropriate option details of data details of that defines the being migrated the data acquirer plan for to the target not being the application. system (type of migrated data
olume, to the Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT Explain if Data exists partial in the Core data exists Hosting Banking in Core application Banking Platform ? applicatio n Indicate Provide an Select]
he whether the explanation deployment application if partial model of data also data exist the exists in the in the core application core banking banking application application Time Duration for Offline Data Offline
Data Details From | To Provide the time Select the duration (Month & appropriate Year) for which data is mechanism available ofjline Decommission Schedule Select the appropriate timeline if application|
decommissioning is planned in future. representing the offline data. Comments Provide any additional comments related to the retention plans associated with SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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ge). Version 13.2 - PIJRCHASEAND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT target system. the application's data SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New Yorl
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[SCHEDULE7 This schedule is NOT APPLICABLE. Failed Bank Accounts Excluded from Calculation of Deposit Franchise Bid Premium The accounts identified below will pass to the Assuming Institution (unless otherwise|
noted). When calculating the premium to be paid on Assumed Deposits in a purchase and assumption transaction, the FDIC will exclude the following categories of deposit accounts: Il Non-DTC Brokered Deposits Non:
Brokered Reciprocal Deposits and Non- Brokered Sweep Deposits Listing Service Deposits Total de osits excluded om calculation o remium Category Description I. Brokered Deposits Amount $_,_,
Brokered deposits are deposits obtained, directly or indirectly, from or through the mediation or assistance of a deposit broker. The FDIC separates brokered deposit accounts into two categorie:
[Nominee for Depository Trust Company (DTC) and 2) Non-DTC Brokered Deposits. The FDIC makes this distinction to facilitate its role as Receiver and Insurer. Non-DTC Brokered Deposits pass to the Assuming]

Institution, but they are excluded from Assumed Deposits when the deposit premium is calculated. Please see the attached "Schedule 7 - Non-DTC Broker Deposit Detail Report" for a listing of these accounts. This list
ill be updated post-closing with balances as of the Bank Closing Date. If [Failed Bank] had any brokered deposit accounts with Cede & Co as Nominee for DTC, they are excluded from Assumed Deposits in the Purchase
land Assumption Agreement. Il. Non-Brokered Reciprocal Deposits and Non-Brokered Sweep Deposits Non-brokered reciprocal deposits and non-brokered sweep deposits pass to the Assuming Institution, but they are|
excluded from Assumed Deposits when the deposit premium is calculated. [Failed Bank] did not participate in any network program as of the date of the deposit download. If non-brokered deposits are taken between|
the date of the deposit download and the Bank Closing Date, they will be identified post-closing and made part of Schedule 7 to the Purchase and Assumption Agreement. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION]|
AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York|
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ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYork]

lIl. Listing Service Deposits Listing service deposits are deposits that may have been solicited via a money desk, internet subscription service (for example, QwickRate®), or similar programs. [Failed Bank] does have|
QwickRate® deposits as identified above. [Please see the attached "Schedule 7 - QwickRate® Deposit Detail Report" for a listing of these accounts as of , 20 . ] This list will be updated post-closing with balances as of]
the Bank Closing Date. This schedule provides account categories and balances as of the date of the deposit download, or as indicated. The deposit franchise bid premium will be calculated using account categories|
and balances as of the Bank Closing Date that are reflected in the general ledger or subsystem as described above. The final numbers for Schedule 7 will be provided post-closing. [NOTE: ATTACH APPLICABLE REPORTS]
0 Schedule 7: Deposit Detail Report, Non DTC Brokered, Non-Brokered reciprocal deposits, Non-Brokered Sweep Accounts and Listing Service Deposits] Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT]
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EXHIBIT 2.3A FINAL LEGAL NOTICE Claiming Requirements for Deposits Under 12 U.S.C. 1822(e) [Name of Unclaimed Depositor] [Address of Unclaimed Depositor] [Anytown, USA] Subject: [XXXXX- Name of Bank City, State]|
- In Receivership Dear [Sir/Madam]: [Date] As you may know, on [Date: Closing Date], the [Name of Bank ("The Bank")] was closed and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") transferred [The Bank's] accounts]
o [Name of Assuming Institution]. According to federal law under 12 U.S.C., 1822(e), on [Date: eighteen months from the Closing Date], [Name of Assuming Institution] must transfer the funds in your account(s) back to|
he FDIC if you have not claimed your account(s) with [Name of Assuming Institution]. Based on the records recently supplied to us by [Name of Assuming Institution], your account(s) currently fall into this category. This]

letter is your formal Legal Notice that you have until [Date: eighteen months from the Closing Date], to claim or arrange to continue your account(s) with [Name of Assuming Institution]. There are several ways that youl
can claim your account(s) at [Name of Assuming Institution]. It is only necessary for you to take any one of the following actions in order for your account(s) at [Name of Assuming Institution] to be deemed claimed. In|
laddition, if you have more than one account, your claim to one account will automatically claim all accounts: 1. Write to [Name of Assuming Institution] and notify them that you wish to keep your account(s) active withf
them. Please be sure to include the name of the account(s), the account number(s), the signature of an authorized signer on the account(s), name, and address. [Name of Assuming Institution] address is: [123 Main)|
[Street Anytown, USA] 2. Execute a new signature card on your account(s), enter into a new deposit agreement with [Name of Assuming Institution], change the ownership on your account(s), or renegotiate the terms of
your certificate of deposit account(s) (if any). Version 13.2 - PYRCHASB ANO ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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3. Provide [Name of Assuming Institution] with a change of address form. 4. Make a deposit to or withdrawal from your account(s). This includes writing a check on any account or having an automatic direct deposit|
credited to or an automatic withdrawal debited from an account. If you do not want to continue your account(s) with [Name of Assuming Institution] for any reason, you can withdraw your ds and close your account(|
s ). Withdrawing funds from one or more of your account( s) satisfies the federal law claiming requirement. If you have time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, [Name of Assuming Institution] can advise you how to

ithdraw them without being charged an interest penalty for early withdrawal. If you do not claim ownership of your account(s) at [Name of Assuming Institution by Date: eighteen months from the Closing Date] federall
law requires [Name of Assuming Institution] to return your deposits to the FDIC, which will deliver them as unclaimed property to the state indicated in your address in the Failed Institution's records. If your address is|
outside of the United States, the FDIC will deliver the deposits to the state in which the Failed Institution had its main office. 12 U.S.C. § 1822(e). If the state accepts custody of your deposits, you will have 10 years from|
he date of delivery to claim your deposits from the state. After 10 years, you will be permanently barred from claiming your deposits. However, if the state refuses to take custody of your deposits, you will be able to|
laim them from the FDIC until the receivership is terminated. If you have not claimed your insured deposits before the receivership is terminated, and a receivership may be terminated at any time, all of your rights in|
hose deposits will be barred. If you have any questions or concerns about these items, please contact [Bank Employee] at [Name of Assuming Institution] by phone at [(XXX) XXX-XXXX]. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND)
JASSUMPTION AGREEMENT Sincerely, [Name of Claims Specialist] [Title] SGNATURE BRIDGE BANK. NA New York, New Yorl
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ISTATE OF COUNTY OF EXHIBIT 2.3B AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING | am employed as a [Title of Office] by the [Name of Assuming Institution]. This will attest that on [Date of mailing], | caused a true and correct copy of the Finall

Legal Notice, attached hereto, to owners of unclaimed deposits of [Name of Failed Bank], City, State, to be prepared for deposit in the mail of the United States of America on behalf of the Federal Deposit Insurance|
the notice was mailed is attached. This notice was mailed to the depositor's last address as reflected on the books and records of the [Name of Failed Bank] as of the date of

[Corporation. A list of depositors to whol
ailure. [Name] [Title of Office] [Name of Assuming Institution] Subscribed and sworn to before me this __ day of [Month, Year]. My commission expires: [Name], Notary Public Version 13.2 PPRCUASE AND ASSUMPTION
AQREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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EXHIBIT 4.5(C) EMPLOYEE RETENTION AGREEMENTS Dear Colleagues, We know the past few days have been challenging so | wanted to take a moment and reach out to this group specifically. Each of you plays a vital
role in our business. First, | want to assure you that the senior leadership changes have been completed and that we have no plans for further action at this time. This means you - and all our other colleagues - will
ontinue to be employed by the Bank and remain eligible for benefits for the foreseeable future. Second, we want to recognize you for the extraordinary contributions you are making to the business. | cannot|
emphasize enough your importance to keeping the Bank a valuable and viable operation. We want to provide financial recognition for the effort and focus we all need to bring to our jobs in the coming weeks. This will
ome in the form of two cash Retention Payments, subject to your remaining employed by the bank on April 24, 2023, to qualify for the first payment, and May 22, 2023, to qualify for the second payment: « The first half]

ill be paid to you the week of April 24. « The second half will be paid the week ofMay 22. In the coming weeks, we'll provide you with the details of your individual compensation plan. If you have further questions|
about this, please reach out to Ana M. Harris, Chief Human Resources Officer, Senior Vice President (SVP), so that we can aggregate your questions to respond to as many as possible. While the process of seeking
Istrategic alternatives for the Bank continues, it's crucial that our operations continue to run smoothly and that we demonstrate the resilience and value of our organization by remaining focused on our work, reassuring
our customers, and providing support to each other. Doing this is in the best interests of the Bank and each of you. NOTE: In adherence with our social media policy, we remind you not to post, comment, or engage with|
others online regarding Signature on your personal accounts. In addition, do not engage with members of the media or press. You may refer media inquiries to Brian Wyremski, SVP & Director of Investor Relations and|
[Corporate Development. At this time, a select group of individuals is participating in this Retention Plan, so it is important to keep this information confidential. Thank you for your professionalism and continued
dedication to the Bank and its customers. Regards, Greg Carmichael Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York}
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Greg D. Carmichael | Chief Executive Officer SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, N.A. 565 Fifth Ave, 8th Floor, New York, NY 10017 GCarmichael@signatureNY.com ~u/L SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, N.A. Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND|
ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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Dear Colleagues, We know the past few days have been very challenging, so | wanted to take a moment and reach out to you to recognize the vital role you play in our business and the extraordinary contributions you|
are making. | cannot emphasize enough your importance to keeping the Bank a valuable and viable operation. We want to provide financial recognition for the effort and focus we all need to bring to our jobs in the|
coming weeks. This will come in the form of cash Retention Payments equal to 50% of your weekly base salary for each week you work through May 31. To receive these payments, you must remain employed by the|

bank on April 28, 2023, to qualify for the first payment, and May 31, 2023, to qualify for the second payment: * The first payment will be made on or about April 28, 2023. * The second payment will be made on or about|

May 31, 2023. If you have further questions about this, submit them through the Signature Bridge Bank Colleague F AO space on the intranet so that we can aggregate your questions to respond to as many as possible.

[While the process of seeking strategic alternatives for the Bank continues, it's crucial that our operations continue to run smoothly and that we demonstrate the resilience and value of our organization by remaining
‘ocused on our work, reassuring our customers, and providing support to each other. Doing this is in the best interests of the Bank and each of you. NOTE: In adherence with our social media policy, we remind you not|
[to post, comment, or engage with others online regarding Signature on your personal accounts. In addition, do not engage with members of the media or press. You may refer media inquiries to Brian Wyremski, SVP &}
Director of Investor Relations and Corporate Development. At this time, a select group of individuals is participating in this Retention Plan, so it is important to keep this information confidential. Thank you for your]
professionalism and continued dedication to the Bank and its customers. Regards, Greg Carmichael Greg D. Carmichael | Chief Executive Officer SSIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, N.A. 565 Fifth Ave, 8th Floor, New York, NY]
10017 GCarmichael@signatureNY.com Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYorK
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EXHIBIT 4.13 INTERIM ASSET SERVICING ARRANGEMENT This Interim Asset Servicing Arrangement is made pursuant to and as of the date of that certain Purchase and Assumption Agreement (the "Purchase and|
Assumption Agreement") among the Receiver, the Assuming Institution, and the Corporation, to which this Arrangement is attached. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Exhibit 4.13 will have the|
[meanings assigned to those terms in the Purchase and Assumption Agreement. (a) With respect to each asset or liability designated from time to time by the Receiver to be serviced by the Assuming Institution|
pursuant to this Interim Asset Servicing Arrangement (the "Arrangement"), including any assets or liabilities sold or conveyed by the Receiver to any party other than the Assuming Institution ( each party, a "Successor}
[Owner") but with respect to which the Receiver has an obligation to service or provide servicing support (those assets and liabilities, the "Pool Assets"), for certain loans (the "Loans") during the term of this|

Arrangement the Assuming Institution will service or provide servicing support to the Pool Assets as described in this Exhibit 4.13. If the Assuming Institution is an approved or qualified servicer for any government:

sponsored entity ( each, a "GSE"), and if any of the Loans are owned by a GSE, the Assuming Institution will service or provide servicing support for the Loans owned by a GSE in accordance with the guidelines
ed servicer for a GSE or the Loans are not owned by a GSE, then the Assuming Institution will service

jpromulgated by and its agreements with the applicable GSE. If the Assuming Institution is not an approved or qual
or provide servicing support for the Loans in accordance with the following: (i) promptly post and apply payments received to the applicable system of record; (ii) reverse and return insufficient funds checks; (iii) pay (A)

participation payments to participants in Loans, as and when received; (B) tax and insurance bills, as they come due, out of any escrow funds maintained for those purposes; and (C) unfunded commitments and|
protective advances out of any escrow funds created for those purposes; (iv) process funding draws under Loans and protective advances in connection with collateral and acquired property, in each case, as and to the|
lextent authorized and funded by the Receiver; (v) maintain in use all data processing equipment and systems and other systems of record on which any activity with respect to any Pool Assets are, or prior to the Ban
Closing Date, were, recorded, and maintain all historical data on those systems as of the Bank Closing Date and not, without the express consent of the Receiver (which consent must be sought Version 13.2 - PURCHASE]|
JAND AssUMmMQN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorld
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jat least sixty (60) days prior to taking any action), deconvert, remove, transfer or otherwise discontinue use of any of the Failed Bank's systems of record with respect to any Pool Asset; (vi) maintain accurate records|
reflecting (A) payments received by the Assuming Institution, (B) information received by the Assuming Institution concerning changes in the address or identity of any Obligor and (C) other servicing actions taken by the|
Assuming Institution, including checks returned for insufficient funds; (vii) send (A) billing statements to Obligors on Pool Assets (to the extent that those statements were sent by the Failed Bank or as are requested by]
the Receiver) and (B) notices to Obligors who are in default on Loans (in the same manner as the Failed Bank or as are requested by the Receiver); (viii) employ a sufficient number of qualified employees to provide the
services required to be provided by the Assuming Institution pursuant to this Arrangement (with the number and qualifications of those employees to be not less than the number and qualifications of employees|
employed by the Failed Bank to perform those functions as of the Bank Closing Date); (ix) hold in trust any Credit Files and any servicing files in the possession or on the premises of the Assuming Institution for the
Receiver or the Successor Owner (as applicable) and segregate from the other books and records of the Assuming Institution and appropriately mark those Credit Files and servicing files to clearly reflect the ownership

interest of the Receiver or the successor owner (as applicable); (x) send to the Receiver (indicating closed bank name and number), Attn: Interim Servicing Manager, at the email address provided in Section 13.6 of the
Purchase and Assumption Agreement, or to another person at the address the Receiver designates, via overnight delivery: (A) on a weekly basis, weekly reports, including reports reflecting collections and trial balances}
land (B) any other reports, copies, or information as may be requested from time to time by the Receiver, including, if requested, copies of (1) checks or other remittances received, (2) insufficient funds checks returned|
(3) checks or other remittances for payment to participants or for taxes, insurance, funding advances, and protective advances, (4) pay-off requests, and (5) notices to defaulted Obligors; (xi) remit on a weekly basis to
the Receiver (indicating closed bank name and number), Attn: DRR Cashier Unit, Business Operations Support Branch, in the same manner as provided in paragraph (a)(x), via wire transfer to the account designated b
he Receiver, or to any other person at an address or account as the Receiver may designate, all payments received; (xii) prepare and timely file all information reports with appropriate tax authorities (and send copies]
of those information reports to the applicable taxpayers), and, if requested by the Receiver, prepare and file tax returns and remit taxes due on or before the due date; Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION
AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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xiii) provide and furnish additional services, operations, or functions, including, without limitation, with regard to any business, enterprise, or agreement that is a Pool Asset, as may be requested by the Receiver; (xiv)|
h will be interest bearing, titled in the name of Assuming Institution, in trust for the Receiver or the|

lestablish a custodial account for the Receiver and for each successor owner at the Assuming Institution, each of whi
jsuccessor owner ( as applicable), in each case as the owner, and segregate and hold all funds collected and received with respect to the Pool Assets separate and apart from any of the Assuming Institution's own fundsj

land general assets; and (xv) no later than the end of the second Business Day following receipt thereof, deposit into the applicable custodial account and retain therein all funds collected and received with respect to}
he Pool Assets. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Exhibit, the Assuming Institution will not be required to initiate litigation or other collection proceedings against any Obligor or any collateral with|
respect to any defaulted Loan. The Assuming Institution will promptly notify the Receiver, at the address referred to above in paragraph (a)(x), of any claims or legal actions regarding any Pool Asset. (b) In consideration|

or the provision of the services provided pursuant to this Arrangement, the Receiver agrees to reimburse the Assuming Institution for the actual, reasonable, and necessary expenses incurred in connection with the|
performance of its duties pursuant to this Arrangement, including shared services of photocopying, postage, express mail, core data processing (allocated on a per loan basis based on historical actual costs) and

lamounts paid for employee services (based upon the number of hours spent performing servicing duties). (c) The Assuming Institution will provide the services described herein for a term of up to three hundred sixty
ive (365) days after the Bank Closing Date. The Receiver may terminate the Arrangement at any time upon not less than sixty (60) days' notice to the Assuming Institution without any liability or cost to the Receiver|
other than the fees and expenses due to the Assuming Institution as of the termination date pursuant to paragraph (b) above. (d) At any time during the term of this Arrangement, the Receiver may, upon not less than|

thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the Assuming Institution, remove one or more Pool Assets, and at the time of that removal the Assuming Institution's responsibility for the removed Pool Assets will terminate. ( e)
At the expiration of this Arrangement or upon the termination of the Assuming Institution's responsibility with respect to any Pool Asset pursuant to paragraph (d) above, the Assuming Institution will: (i) deliver to the|

Receiver ( or its designee) all of the Credit Documents and records relating to the Pool Assets; and Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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i) cooperate with the Receiver to facilitate the orderly transition of managing the Pool Assets to the Receiver or its designees (including its contractors and persons to which any Pool Assets are conveyed). (f) At the|
request of the Receiver, the Assuming Institution will perform those transitional services with regard to the Pool Assets as the Receiver may request. Transitional services may include assisting in any due diligence]
process deemed necessary by the Receiver and providing to the Receiver and its designees (including its contractors and any actual or potential successor owners) (i) information and data regarding the Pool Assets,
including system reports and data downloads sufficient to transfer the Pool Assets to another system or systems and to facilitate due diligence by actual and potential successor owners, and (ii) access to employees o
he Assuming Institution involved in the management of, or otherwise familiar with, the Pool Assets. (g) Until the time the Arrangement expires or is terminated, without limitation of its obligations set forth above or in
he Purchase and Assumption Agreement and without any additional consideration ( other than that set forth in paragraph (b) above), the Assuming Institution will provide the Receiver and its designees (including its
contractors and actual and potential successor owners) with the following, as the same may be requested: (i) access to and the ability to obtain assistance and information from personnel of the Assuming Institution,|
including former personnel of the Failed Bank and personnel of third party consultants; (ii) access to and the ability to use and download information from data processing systems and other systems of record on which|
information regarding Pool Assets or any assets transferred to or liabilities assumed by the Assuming Institution is stored or maintained (regardless of whether information with respect to other assets or liabilities is|
Iso stored or maintained thereon); and (iii) access to and the ability to use and occupy office space (including parking facilities and vault space), facilities, utilities (including local telephone service and facsimile
machines), furniture, equipment (including photocopying and facsimile machines), and technology and connectivity (including email accounts, network access and technology resources such as shared drives) in the Ban
Premises occupied by the Assuming Institution. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA NewYork,NewYork}
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INA New York, New York|

EXHIBIT7 EQUITY APPRECIATION INSTRUMENT Form of Equity Appreciation Instrument THIS EQUITY APPRECIATION INSTRUMENT AND ANY OTHER SECURITIES ACQUIRED UPON THE EXERCISE HEREOF HA VE NOT BEEN]|
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION STATEMENT]

INSTRUMENT AND SUCH OTHER SECURITIES MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS SPECIFIED HEREIN. Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATIJRE BRIDGE BANK,
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EQUITY APPRECIATION INSTRUMENT Issue Date: March 20, 2023 1. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, when used herein the following terms shall have the meanings indicated. "Average VW AP" means|
during any period, the arithmetic average of VW AP for each trading day during that period. "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company. "Business Day" means any day except Saturday, Sunday or any da

which shall be a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City and State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to close. "Common Stoc~' means the|
per share. "Company" means New York Community Bancorp, Inc., a Delaware corporation. "Determination Price" means the Average VW AP of the Common Stock over the two

[Company's common stock, par value $0
New York Stock Exchange Trading Days immediately prior to the earliest date on which the Notice of Exercise is delivered, by email, to the Company as set forth in Section 3. "Equity Appreciation Instrument" means|
this Equity Appreciation Instrument, issued to the Holder pursuant to the Purchase and Assumption Agreement. "Exercise Price" means $6.54. "Expiration Time" has the meaning given to it in Section 3. "FDIC' means]
he Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, in its corporate capacity. "FDIC Receiver' means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as receiver for Signature Bridge Bank National Association. "Holder" has the
Imeaning given to it in Section 2. "New .York Stock Exchange Trading Day" means any day on which the New York Stock Exchange is open for trading and the Common Stock is traded. "Person" has the meaning given to it
in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act. "Purchase and Assumption Agreement" means the Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among Flagsta
Bank, N.A., the FDIC and FDIC Receiver, dated March 20, 2023. 1 Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York|
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"SEC' means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. "Spread Amounf' has the meaning given to it in Section 3. "Subject Stoclt' has the meaning given to it in Section 2. "VWAP" means, for any day, the per]
lshare volume weighted average price of the Company's Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange from 9:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on that day as displayed under the heading Bloomberg VW AP on|

Bloomberg Page NYB <equity> AQR (or its equivalent successor page if such page is not available) in respect of the period from the scheduled open of trading on the relevant trading day until the scheduled close of

rading on the relevant trading day ( or if such volume weighted average price is unavailable, the market price of one share of Common Stock on such trading day determined, using a volume weighted average method,
by a nationally recognized investment banking firm retained by the Company for this purpose). 2. Number of Subject Stock. This certifies that, for value received, the FDIC Receiver or its registered assigns (the "Holder"
is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, to acquire from the Company, in whole, the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as determined as set forth in|
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Section 3 (the "Subject StocR'). 3. Exercise of Equity Appreciation Instrument: Term. To the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, the right to purchase the Subject Stock represented by this Equit:
[Appreciation Instrument is exercisable, in whole, by the Holder, on any New York Stock Exchange Trading Day prior to 11 :00 a.m., New York City time, on or after March 20, 2023, but in no event later than 11:00 a.m.
[New York City time, on March 31, 2023 (the "Expiration Time"), by submission of an electronic mail copy of a Notice of Exercise in the form attached hereto, duly completed and executed on behalf of the Holder, to John|
Pinto, Chief Financial Officer, at John.Pinto@myNYCB.com, with a copy to Patrick Quinn, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary, at Patrick.Quinn@myNYCB.com, to be followed by the surrender of the Equity Appreciation|
Instrument and the original copy of the executed Notice of Exercise, such original documents to be delivered by overnight courier to the office of the Company at 102 Duffy A venue, Hicksville, New York 11801 (or such

other office or agency of the Company in the United States as the Company may designate by notice in writing to the Holder at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company). Notwithstanding]
lanything in this Equity Appreciation Instrument to the contrary, upon exercise the Holder shall only be entitled to receive in settlement of this Equity Appreciation Instrument a number of shares of Common Stock equall
o the Spread Amount divided by the Determination Price. The Spread Amount shall mean the lesser of (A) three hundred million dollars ($300,000,000) and (B) the product of (x) three hundred million (300,000,000) and|
(y) the amount by which the Determination Price exceeds the Exercise Price. If the Determination Price does not exceed the Exercise Price, the Spread Amount shall be zero (0), and no Common Stock shall be issuable
hereunder; provided, that the Spread Amount will be automatically reduced to the extent necessary to prevent the Holder from obtaining shares representing more than 9.9% of the total voting equity of the Company.|
If this Equity Appreciation 2 Version 13.2 - PIJRCHASB AND ASSUMPTION AQREEMEITT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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Instrument is not exercised by the Holder before the Expiration Time, it shall be of no further force and effect. The Holder may only exercise this Equity Appreciation Instrument in whole and not in part. 4. Issuance of]
[Subject Stock: Authorization: Listing. Certificates for Subject Stock issued upon exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument will be issued in such name or names as the Holder may designate and will be delivered to
such named Person or Persons within a reasonable time, not to exceed three Business Days after the date on which this Equity Appreciation Instrument has been duly exercised in accordance with the terms of this]
Equity Appreciation Instrument. Upon the request of the Holder, the Company will cause the Subject Stock to be issued in book-entry form. The Company hereby represents and warrants that any Subject Stock issued
upon the exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument in accordance with the provisions of this Equity Appreciation Instrument will be duly and validly authorized and issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free|
rom all taxes, liens and charges ( other than liens or charges created by the Holder or taxes in respect of any transfer occurring contemporaneously therewith). The Company agrees that the Subject Stock so issued will
be deemed to have been issued to the Holder as of the close of business on the date on which this Equity Appreciation Instrument and a Notice of Exercise are delivered to the Company in accordance with the terms
lof this Equity Appreciation Instrument, notwithstanding that the stock transfer books of the Company may then be closed or certificates representing such Subject Stock may not be actually delivered on such date. The
ICompany will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued Common Stock, solely for the purpose of providing for the exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument, the aggregate number|
of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument. The Company will (i) procure, at its sole expense, the listing of the Subject Stock, subject to issuance or notice ofissuance|
on all stock exchanges on which the Common Stocks are then listed or traded, and (ii) maintain the listing of such Subject Stock after issuance. The Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that the|
[Subject Stock may be issued without violation of any applicable law or regulation or of any requirement (including the requirements of Section | 2{b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of any securities exchange on|

hich the Subject Stock, as the case may be, are listed or traded. The Holder agrees to hold the Subject Stock and not transfer such shares until April 28, 2023 ("First Sale Date") and will use all reasonable efforts to sell|
jall Subject Stock by no later than the fortieth (40) day after the First Sale Date {"Last Sale Date" and such period, the "Sales Period"); provided that the Company complies with its obligations under Section 6 below. To|
the extent that, despite the efforts described above and in Section 6, the Holder is unable to sell the Subject Stock during the Sales Period, the Holder and the Company agree to use reasonable efforts to complete the|
Isale as promptly as practical after the Sales Period, taking into account any customary blackout periods or other legal restrictions on use of the Company's registration statement for such sales. 5. No Fractional Subject]
JStock or Scrip. No fractional share of Subject Stock or scrip representing a fractional share of Subject Stock shall be issued upon any exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument. In lieu of any fractional Subject Stock|
o which the Holder would otherwise be entitled, the Holder shall be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the product of the Determination Price and such fractional share of Subject Stock. The Holder expressl
waives 3 Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yor
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the right to receive any fractional Subject Stock upon exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument. 6. Registration, Sales Efforts. During the Sales Period, the Company shall take all actions necessary to prepare and|
file with the SEC a registration statement covering the Subject Stock, or to designate the Holder as a selling shareholder under an existing shelf registration statement. The Company shall take all actions necessary to|
keep such registration statement effective at all times during the Sales Period. The Holder agrees to provide the Company all information pertaining to the Holder and its sale of Subject Stock required to be included in|
the registration statement. The Company agrees to use its best efforts to avoid the issuance of, or, if issued, obtain the withdrawal of (i) any order stopping or suspending the effectiveness of a registration statement]
or (ii) any suspension of the qualification (or exemption from qualification) of any of the Subject Stock for sale in any jurisdiction, at the earliest practicable moment. To the extent necessary for selling efforts, the
[Company agrees to (i) make senior management reasonably available for diligence calls with potential purchasers, (i) seek its accountants to provide a customary comfort letter if provided in similar offerings and (iii)|
seek its internal or external counsel to provide customary opinions for similar offerings. In connection with any such offering, the Company shall provide customary indemnification to the Holder and the FDIC, the FDIC]

Receiver and each of their officers, directors, employees and agents. 7. No Rights as Shareholders; Transfer Books. This Equity Appreciation Instrument does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a
jshareholder of the Company prior to the date of exercise hereof. The Company will at no time close its transfer books against transfer of this Eqnity Appreciation Instrument in any manner which interferes with the|
timely exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument. 8. Charges, Taxes and Expenses. Issuance of certificates for Subject Stock to the Holder upon the exercise of this Equity Appreciation Instrument shall be made]

without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax or other incidental expense in respect of the issuance of such certificates, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company. 9. Transfer/|

JAssignment. This Equity Appreciation Instrument and all rights hereunder may be transferred by the FDIC Receiver or any Holder, in whole but not in part, without the prior written consent of the Company and wi

any other contractual restriction. 10. Exchange and Registry of Equity Appreciation Instrument. The Company shall maintain a registry showing the name and address of the Holder as the registered holder of this Equity]

Appreciation Instrument. This Equity Appreciation Instrument may be surrendered for exercise, in accordance with its terms, at the office of the Company, and the Company shall be entitled to rely in all respects, prior|

o written notice to the contrary, upon such registry. 11. Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a

Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding day that is a Business Day. 4 Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTJON AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA|
New York. New York
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12. Governing Law. This Equity Appreciation Instrument shall be binding upon the parties hereto and to any permitted assigns. This Equity Appreciation Instrument shall be governed by and construed in accordance|
ith the federal law of the United States if and to the extent such law is applicable, and, insofar as there may be no applicable federal law, shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York|
pplicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such state. Each of the Company, the FDIC Receiver and the FDIC agrees (a) to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the federal courts|
located in the Southern District of New York for any action, suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Equity Appreciation Instrument or the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) that notice may be served
upon the Company at the address in Section 14 below and upon the FDIC Receiver and the FD IC at the address for the Holder set forth in the registry maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 10 hereof. To the
extent permitted by applicable law, each of the Company, the FDIC Receiver and the FDIC hereby unconditionally waives trial by jury in any legal action or proceeding relating to the Equity Appreciation Instrument o
the transaction contemplated hereby or thereby. 13. Amendments. This Equity Appreciation Instrument may be amended and the observance of any term of this Equity Appreciation Instrument may be waived only, in|

he case of an amendment, with the written consent of the Company and the Holder, or in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom the waiver is to be effective. 14. Notices. All notices hereunder shall be in|
riting and shall be effective (A) on the day on which delivered if delivered personally or transmitted by electronic mail or telex or telegram or telecopier with evidence of receipt, (B) one Business Day after the date onf
hich the same is delivered to a nationally recognized overnight courier service with evidence of receipt, or (C) five Business Days after the date on which the same is deposited, postage prepaid, in the U.S. mail, sent|
by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to the party to be notified at the address indicated below for the Company, or at the address for the Holder as well as for the FDIC set forth in the
registry maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 10, or at such other address and/or telecopy or telex number and/or to the attention of such other person as the Company or the Holder may designate by ten
day advance written notice. Ifto the Company, to: New York Community Bancorp, Inc. 102 Duffy Avenue Hicksville, New York 11801 Attn: R. Patrick Quinn Senior Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
[Secretary Email: R.Patrick.Ouinn@mynycb.com with a copy to (which copy alone shall not constitute notice): Sullivan & Cromwell LLP 125 Broad Street Version 13.2 PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 5
ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New Yorl

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 198/210

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited R E FI N ITIV
without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated <

companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

I=

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

©2023 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited
without the prior written consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated

companies.

slide87

199/210

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

New York, New York 10004 Attn: Mark J. Menting Jared M. Fishman Email: mentingm@sullcrom.com fishmanj@sullcrom.com 15. Entire Agreement. This Equity Appreciation Instrument and the forms attached hereto,
and the Purchase and Assumption Agreement, contain the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior and contemporaneous arrangements or undertakings|
ith respect thereto. [Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 6 Version 13.2 -PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York]
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zed officer as of the Issue Date Written above. NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC, <J

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Equity Appreciation Instrument to be executed by a dul
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-:r"'by'OHN By: CONNEELY j ~~~023,03.100C,1 .. 33 Name: Title: FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, AS RECEIVER OF

Acknowledged and Agreed by: FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION JOHN ~ 5
ISIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION JOHN flj . DigitillysignedbyJOHN CONNEELY By: CONNEELY 01 ~;023 .0 3.20l10'.20:03 Name: Title: [Signature Page to Form of Equity Appreciation Instrument] Version|

[13.2- PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York, New York|
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[Form ofNotice of Exercise] Date: - TO: New York Community Bancorp, Inc. RE: Election to Exercise the Equity Appreciation Instrument The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the attached Equit
Appreciation Instrument, hereby agrees to exercise the Equity Appreciation Instrument, in whole, in accordance with Sections 2 and 3 thereof. Holder: By: Name: Title: | Version 13.2 - PURCHASE AND ASSUMPTION
AGREEMENT =—-—-eeeree coeeoeeeeee SIGNATURE BRIDGE BANK, NA New York. New York]
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EXECUTION VERSION 4888-6938-8633 v.3 AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE EQUITY APPRECIATION INSTRUMENT This Amendment No. 1, dated March 27, 2023 (this “Amendment”), to the Equity Appreciation Instrument|
dated March 20, 2023 (the “Instrument”), is entered into by and among New York Community Bancorp, Inc., the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC") and the FDIC as Receiver for Signature Bridge Bank|
National Association. WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 13 of the Instrument, the parties hereto wish to amend the Instrument as set forth herein. NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt|

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 1. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings|
lascribed to such terms in the Instrument, and each reference to a specific Section refers to the particular section in the Instrument. From and after the date of this Amendment, all references to the Instrument shall be
[deemed to mean the Instrument, as amended by this Amendment. 2. The following language is hereby deleted from Section 3 of the Instrument: “; provided, that the Spread Amount will be automatically reduced to the|
extent necessary to prevent the Holder from obtaining shares representing more than 9.9% of the total voting equity of the Company” 3. Effect on Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Instrument has|
not been amended or modified in any respect and the Instrument shall remain in full force and effect. 4. Miscellaneous. Sections 12 - 15 of the Instrument are incorporated by reference herein mutatis mutandis.
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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4888-6938-8633 v.3 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 1 has been executed on behalf of each of the parties hereto as of the date first above written. NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. By: Name: Title:}
FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION By: Name: Title: FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, as Receiver of Signature Bridge Bank, National Association By: Name: Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 1 has been executed on behalf of each of the parties hereto as of the date first above written. NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. By: Name: Title: FEDERAL DEPOSIT]
INSURANCE CORPORATION By: Name: Title: FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION, as Receiver of Signature Bridge Bank, National Association By: Name: Title: R. Patrick Quinn General Counsel & Corporate
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EXHIBIT 31.1
NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas R. Cangemi, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of New York Community Bancorp, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

(b:

accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal

(d

control over financial reporting.

5. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
DATE: May 10, 2023 August 9, 2023 BY:
Thomas R. Cangemi
President and Chief Executive Officer
EXHIBIT 31.2
NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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I, John J. Pinto, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of New York Community Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

5. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

DATE: May 10, 2023 August 9, 2023 BY:

John . Pinto

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

ive;width:100%">

EXHIBIT 32.0
NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of New York Community Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended on March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersigned certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period
covered by the Report.
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BY:

DATE: May 10, 2023 August 9, 2023
Thomas R. Cangemi

President and Chief Executive Officer

BY:

DATE: May 10, 2023 August 9, 2023
John ). Pinto

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO FINANCIALS
PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING THE TEXT AND THE
COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY
INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW
THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS.
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